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Thank
YOu

Our vision is to be the veterinary company people most want
to work for and our colleagues are the heart of our business.
They are focused on giving the best possible care to animais.
It is their commitment and dedication to doing the right thing
that has enabled CVS to continue to deliver against our plans
and we greatly appreciate their support.

Just a few of the amazing achievements
of our colleagues in 2023:

Rosemullion

.——-=Veterinary__. __

Practice

was Quality
Improvement
Champian in
the-2023 RCVS

Knowledge Awards

White Lodge
Veterinary
Surgery

was Antimicrobial

Stewardship Champion
in the 2023 RCVS

Knowledge Awards _ __

| vets

Seymour

was awarded
Outstanding for both
diagnostic imaging
and client service

by the RCVS

Eight veterinary
nurses

from CVS Netherlands
successfully completed
training to become
Supervisory Radiation
Protection colleagues.
They cre the first vet
nurses in the
Netherlands with

this diploma



Care at our heart

CVS Group plc is the UK listed veterinary
group and one of the leading providers of
veterinary services, with practices in the
UK, Australia, the Netherlands and the
Repubilic of Ireland.

Operational highlights

> We have continued to increase investment in
our facilities and equipment, investing £45.7m in
2023, anincrease of £21.2m vs 2022, including
completing 21 refurbishment and relocation

projects in the year

> We have acquired 11 practices (16 practice sites)

> We have increased the overage number of vets

we employ by 6.5%
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Highlights

Financial highlights?

> Revenue increased by 9.8%, to £608.3m from
£554.2m, with strong Group like-for-like? growth
of 7.3% {2022: 8.0%) driven by a continued focus
on providing high-quality clinical care

> The Group delivered adjusted EBITDA growth of
13.0%, to £121.4m from £107.4m, as a result of the
above revenue growth, the continued investment
in our colleagues and the recognition of research
and development expenditure tax credit

> Profit before tax increased by 49.7% to £53.9m
from £36.0m

> Leverage?® increased to 0.73x from 0.40x as a result

of increased investment in existing practices and
acquisitions, partly offset by increosed EBITDA

> Cash generated from operations increased by
15.9%, to £107.9m from £93.1m, primarily as
a result of the increase in adjusted EBITDA

Revenue (Em)

£608.3m

+9.8%

Adjusted EBITDA*(E£m)

£121.4m

+13.0%

Adjusted profit
before tax® (Em)

£85.4m

+13.1%

Adjusted earnings
per sharef (p)

96.0p

+11.9%

2023 608.3 2023 121.4

2022 554.2 2022 107.4

2021 5101 2021 97.5

2020 4278 2020 710

2019 4065 2019 54.5

Proposed dividend Cash generated

per share (p) from operations (Em)
}3 £107.9m

+7 19 +15.9%

2023 75 2023 107.9

2022 7.0 2022 93.1

2021 65 2021 803

2020/ nfe 2020 94.8

2019 5.5 2019 52.1

-

N

. Adjusted financial measures (adjusted Earnings Before Interest. Tax.

Depreciotion ond Amortisation {*adjusted EBITDA"), adjusted profit
Pefore tax and adjusted earnings per share) are defined below. and
recanciled to the financial measures defined by International Financial
Reparting Standards {IFRS) on pages 115 and 133. {FRS 16 has been
applied prospectively and, therefore 2019 is stated before the impact
of IFRS 16.

. Like-for-like sales shows revenue generated from like-for-like operations

compared to the prior yeor, adjusted for the number of working days. For
example, for a practice acquired in September 2021, revenue is included
from September 2022 in the like-for-like calculations.

Leverage on a bank test basis is drawn bank debt less cash ond cash
equivalents, divided by adjusted EBITDA annuolised for the effect of
wvcquisitions, including costs reloting to business combinotions and
excluding share option costs. prior to the adoption of IFRS 16.

2023 85.4 2023 96.0

2022 755 2022 85.8

2021 66.2 2021 75.1

2020 382 2020 420

2019 41.4 2019 46.7

Profit before tax (Em) Basic earnings per
share (p}

£53.9m 58.8p

+49.7% +62.4%

2023 539 2023 58.8

2022 360 2022 36.2

2021 331 2021 272.3

2020:99 2020181

2019117 20191186

4. Adjusted EBITDA is profit before tax adjusted for interast (net finance

expense). depreciation. smortisotion, costs reloting to business
combinations ond exceptional items.,

Adjusted EBITDA is used os o financial metric that removes the cost

of debt. costs reloting to depreciotion ond amortisation ond one-off costs

to achiave a normalised earnings figure that is not distorted by irregular
items or structural investment.

Adjusted profit before tox is colculated as profit before omortisation.

n

taxation. costs reloting to business combinations and exceptionol items.

@

Adjusted earnings per share is calculated gs adjusted profit before
tax less applicable toxotion divided by the weighted average number
af Ordinary shares in issuée in the year.
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At a glance

Our people focused
strategy delivers the best
possible care to animals

Our locations

We have locations across the UK and o
presence in both the Netherlands and the
Republic of relond. Since the year end,
we have expanded into Australia®,

Key

Veterinory proctices (472)
Laborateries {3)
Lrernataria {7)

“ Mop of Austiclia nol shown,

85.9%"

Veterinary Practices

Qut first-apinion and referral
practices provide specialist
treatment for companion,
equine ond farm anirmols.
We provide high-quality

healthcore either when required.

or through our preventative
healthcore schemes: the Heolthy
Pet Club {HPC) and Horse Health
Programme (HHP)**.

We also operate buying groups
onhd o veterinary consumable
business, "Vet Direct”. and we
supply o number of own-brand
medicines ond products,

4.6%"

Laboratories

Our laboratories provide
diognostic services to CVS
veterinary practices and third
parties. We offer an extensive
range of tests with the ability
to tailor specific profiles to our
customers’ needs. Qur team
of pathologists and experts
specialise in a variety of
disciplines in all areas of the
laboratary and their aim is

to offer a leve! of service

and expertise beyond our
customers’ expectotions.

Discover more obout pur operations and the
market in which we operate on pages 14 to 17

2 CVS Group ple Annual Report and Financial Statements 2023

1.7%"

Crematoria

Our crematoria provide pet
cremation and clinical waste
services to CVS practices and
third-party proctices, ond
cremations to animal cwners.
We offer o ronge of services
to help our clients remember

and say goodbye 1o their pets.

7.8%"

Online Retail
Business

Our online retail business,
“Animed Direct”,

sells prescription and
non-prescription medicines,
premium pet foods ond

an ever-increasing range
of pet care products, which
can be defivered directly

to our customers’ doors.

N

* Revenue share before intercompony sales between Veterinary Proctices

ond other divisions.

** Throughout this report, references to Healthy Pet Club are inclusive
of Healthy Pet Club and Horse Health Programme.



Investment case

Multiple opportunities
to build on our strong
foundations

CVSis a AlM-listed veterinary group positioned well
for both organic and acquisitive growth

Market

> We continue to operate in a growing
market with increasing demand and
scope for growth in our market share

> ¢.6% morket growth

Discover more about our market
on pages 14 to 17

Management

> Strong management team with
o brood range of experience ond
expertise, which hos a proven track
record of delivering growth even
during periods of economic adversity

> Four of seven members of
our Executive Committee
are vetarinary clinicians

{iscover more about our Board
of Directors on pages 70 and 71

Sector

> A fovourable sector with continued
humaonisation of pets and oppetite
for innovation

> ¢.5,300 veterinary practices in the UK

> €.3,500 veterinary practices in Australia

Discover more in our Operaticnol
Review on pages 47 to 54

Business model

> Fully integroted veterinary services
model, with first-opinion proctices
supported by speciolist-led

multi-disciplinary referrol hospitals,

laboratories, crematoria and an
online retoil business

> 39 out-of-hours sites supparting
our busy veterinary practices

> Nine specialist referral hospitals

Discover more about cur business
mode! on pages 18 and 19

Strategy

>

>

G
>

>

>

Clear, people-focused strategy

of organic growth. supported

by investment in our facilities and
equipment, and ougmented by inorganic
growth thraugh investment in greenfield
sites and selective acquisitions

£45.7m copital expenditure in 2023

Discover more about our strategy on
pages 22 end 23

rowth opportunities

Alongside cansistent organic growth
through our fully integrated veterinary
model, there are opportunities for further
acquisitive growth both in areos of the
UK where CVS has limited presence and
other markets globally, such as Australio

Eleven acquisitions completed in 2023
Seven acquisitions completed post
year end, including five in Australia.

Discover more in our Chief Executive
Officer's Review on pages 8 to 10 ond
our Capital Allocation Review on page 12

CVS Group plc Annual Report ond Financial Statements 2023 3
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Strategic roadmap

Our clear strategy
supports resilience
and growth

Our purpose

To give the best possible care to animals

Our vision

To be the veterinary company people
most want to work for

Supported by four strategic pillars:

1. 2. 3. 4,
We recommend We are a greot We provide We take our
and provide the best place to work and great facilities responsibilities
care every time have a career and eguipment seriously

Underpinned by our ESG strategy, “Care at Our Heart”

Discover more about our sustoinobility and ESG strategy on pages 32 to 38

o e—. Our values

Customer focus Commitment Success through Honesty
to excellence our people and integrity

4  CVS Group plc Annual Report and Financiol Statements 2023



Chair’s statement

Building on our strong
foundations to deliver continued
high-quality clinical care and
investment in growth

Richard Connell
Chair

“{ would like to take this
opportunity to thank all CVS
colleagues for their continued
professionalism and commitment
in providing great care for our
clients and their animals.”

Introduction

| am delighted to introduce our 2023 Annuol Report and
Financial Statements and to report on another successful
yedr in which we hove increased investment in future growth,
as well as announcing our entry into the Australian veterinary
services rarket post the yeor end.

We have previously set out our clear strategy for growth
underpinned by our purpase to give the best possible care to
animals and our vision to be the veterinary company people
most want to work for. In November 2022, we outlined our
updoted five-year plan in support of this strategy with
continued focus on organic growth and through investment in
people, practice facilities, clinical equipment and technology
and further acquisitions in the UK and overseos.

Whilst we ore in the eorly stages of this five-yeor plon. we
have made a positive start with increased investment and
eleven proctice acquisitions completed in the finonciol yeor.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank all CVS colleagues
for their continued professionalism and commitment in providing
great care for our clients and their animals.

Improved financial performance

We have delivered anather strong set of financial results

with increased revenue and earnings, strong opergting cash
conversion and improved balance sheet strength. This positions
CVS well to deliver investment in future growth.

Revenue for the financial year increased by 9.8% to £608.3m
(2022: £554.2m) reflecting our continued focus on providing the
best possible clinical care to animals. We continue to see robust
client demand for our high-guality services with long term
drivers of o growing pet population, improvements in animal
healthcare ond the humanisation of pets.

Adjusted EBITDA increased by 13.0% to £121.4m (2022: £107.4m)
through revenue growth, our continued discipline in managing
costs and recagnition of net Research and Development
Expenditure Tox Credit of £9.6m.

Profit before tax increased by 49.7% to £53.9m {2022: £36.0m)
with adjusted EPS increasing by 11.9% to 96.0p {2022: 85.8p)
and basic EPS increasing by 62.4% to 58.8p {2022: 36.2p).

CVS Group plc Annual Report and Finonciol Statements 2023 S
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Chair’s statement continued

Improved financial performance continued

CVS continues to be highly cash generative with the improved
revenue and earnings resulting in cash generated frorm operations
increasing by 15.9% to £107.9m (2022: £93.1m). In accordance
with our strategy. we have increased gur investment in our
people, our facilities and our equipment to further aid growth
and, as a result, net debt increased to £70.7m {2022: £35.3m)
and leverage increcsed to 0.73x, from 0.40x.

We successfully refinanced our bank debt facilities in February
2023, with £350.0m of total facilities now available comprising
aterm loan of £87.5m and a £262.5m revolving credit facility.
The margin under these facilities remgined unchanged. Financial
caovenants also remained unchanged with considerable heodroom
at 30 June 2023 under both financiol covenants. We also hove
access to a £5.0m overdraft, renewable annually.

Discaver mare about our financial performance on pages 55 to 59

Strategic progress

Our strategy. purpose and vision are underpinned by our four
strategic pillars: to recommend and provide the best clinical
care every time; to be a greot place to work and have o career;
to provide greot facilities and equipment: and to take our
responsibilities seriously.

As outlined at our Capital Markets Day in November 2022, we
have increased investment in practice focilities, clinicol equipment
and technology to drive growth with capital expenditure of
£45.7m in the financial year {2022: £24.5m}. We completed

21 property relocation and refurbishment projects in the year,

We acquired 11 veterinary practices (comprising 16 practice
sites) in the yeor for initial cash consideration of £54.6m.

In July 2023 we announced our entry into the Australion veterinary
services market with our first acquisitions of veterinary practices.
Hoving explored o number of new potential markets we identified
Australia aos a particularly attractive market given the relatively
low levels of corporate consolidation, favourable market dynamics
and strong similarities with the UK, including highly trained
veterinary surgeons, shared kanguoge and cufture, and the Group's
experience with UK vets working between Australio and the UK.

At the heart of our growth ambitions is our vision to be the
veterinary company people most want to work for. We hove
taken further positive steps in the year to provide additional
support to our colleagues with a number of new and enhanced
employee benefits introduced. These include a health care
cash plan enabling colleagues to cover the cost of a range of
medical services and support available to colleagues ocross o
variety of health-related life events. including fertility, pregnancy
lass. major surgery and hospitalisation.

CVS introduced a new Equity, Diversity and Inclusion (ED)) strategy
in 2022 and we have developed this in the past financial year.
New policies have been introduced covering bullying, harassment
and incivility and we introduced an EDI training course for all CvS
colleagues. We hove alsc introduced o regulor survey question
measure of whether cur colleagues feel equally included at work,
and in June 2023 B3.6% of colleagues responded positively, Nearly
625 learners hove enrolled in our Equity, Diversity and Inclusion
training course which raises owareness of bias and prejudice in
the workploce ond recommends octions to consciously improve,

Discover more about our strategy on pages 22 to 23
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Governance and the Board

We remain committed to the highest levels of corporate
governance and, as an AlM-listed group. we voluntarily adopt
the UK Corporote Governance Code 2018,

We continue to review the composition of the Board in order to
ensure thot we have the right bolance of skills and experience.
Joanne Show was appointed os a new Non-Executive Director
with effect from 1 fuly 2023. Joonne brings a wealth of healthcore
experience from her current roles as Trustee and Audit Committee
Chair at Concer Research UK and Chair at the Royal College of
Paediatrics and Child Health, in addition to her previous roles
as Non-Executive Director at NHS England. Chair of NHS
Direct, Non-Executive Director at Kensington and Chelsea
Primary Care Trust and Chair of the British Equestrian Associction.

Ben Jocklin was promoted to a newly created role of Deputy
Chief Executive Officer on 1 July 2023 reflecting Ben's
significant contribution over the past few years in his Chief
Dperating Officer role. Ben retains responsibility for overseeing
the Group's operations in this new role.

Discover more about our governance on pages 69 to 93

Dividends

In light of the continued growth of the Group and its positive
operating cash generation. the Board is recommending o
continuation of our progressive dividend policy, with the payment
of  final dividend of 2.5p per Ordinary share (2022: 7.0p).

Shareholder engagement

The Board continues to engage actively with existing and
potential new shareholders. Our Capital Markets Day in
November 2022 was well attended in person and through

a live stream of the event. We outlined our growth ambitions
over the next five years and investors and analysts attending
in person had the apportunity to tour two of our veterinary
proctices and experience practical demonstrations.

The Executive Directors attended a number of investor
conferences in the UK, the US and Europe during the financiol
year and all Directors make themselves available to meet with
investors on request.

We continue to host a sell-side analysts and institutionol
investors’ webcast at our interim and full-year results, including
o question ond onswer session, with o replay focility provided
on our investor website.

Discover more about our stakeholders on pages 28 to 31

Qutlock

The finonciol performonce achieved in the post finonciol yeor,
and our clear strategy for future growth, positions CVS well
ta benefit from the sizeable and growing veterinary services
market and continued humanisation of pets,

I lock forward to reporting on further success in the future.

Richard Connell
Chair
21 September 2023



A focus on

CVS introduces pioneering
clinical improvement projects
to achieve outstanding levels

of patient care

“We aim to recommend and provide the best care

every time."” This requires us to continually improve the
quality of our services. Cur quality improvement programme
includes the way we support learning. collaboration ond the
sharing of best practice, empower teams to moke change;
and prioritise areas for improvement. To this end we have
introduced nine pigneering clinical improvement projects

to support colleogues in achieving putstanding levels

of potient care within our small animal practices.

The projects focus on improving first-opinion clinical
standards in dentot rodiography. ear cytology. endoscopy
and endosurgery, fine needle aspiration, hypertension,
lameness investigation, ophthalmology, radiography

and rodiology, and ultrgsound.

Each project is designed to help practices identify where
they may be able to improve their standard of clinical care;
detect any barriers which may be preventing them from
achieving it; ascertain if colleagues have associgted learning

and development needs; offer practices a suite of clinical
learning ond support moterials; and provide colleagues with
the tools to report and evaluate their preject achievements.

To provide support to colieagues, every project has its own
dedicated clinical quality improvement library on CvS's
unique Knowledge Hub virtual learning platform. These
learning, education and development materials include
webinars. training videos, clinical fromeworks, handy
checklists ond client resources. In addition. each project
has a virtual discussion board. creating a shared space to
discuss issues, co-create and share ideas for improvement.

CVS’s unique Clinical leadership team supports each one
of its practices in achieving the highest clinical standords,
and helps them to implement clinical quality improvements.
The experienced veteringry surgeons work in CVS's clinical
leadership nationwide, the anly veterinary team of it's

kind in the UK.

CVS Group plc Annual Report and Financiol Statements 2023



Chief Executive Officer's review

Continuing our focus of
providing the best possible
care to our clients and
their animals

Richard Fairman
Chief Executive Officer

1. Defined within finonciol highlights on page 1.
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Introduction

As o business whose purpose is to provide the best possible
care to animals, the passion ond care of our colleogues are
at the heart of our success. | would like to begin by thanking
each and every one of our colleagues for their hard work
and support over the past year in delivering great care

to our clients and their animals.

In November 2022, we hosted o Capital Markets Day which
included tours of two of our smoll animal veterinary proctices.
At this event. we announced our 5-year plan and the six
strategic targets underpinning this plan:

> orgonic revenue growth of 4%-89% per annum;

> adjusted EBITDA?! margins of between 19% and 23%
through investment in our facilities;

> investment in practice facilities, clinical equipment
and technology to deliver additional organic growth:

> acquisitions subject to disciplined criteria for returns
and earnings accretion;

> operating cosh conversion of more thon 70%; and
> leverage! on a bank test basis remaining below 2.0x.

This year's Annual Report sets out our progress to date
against these strategic targets.

A clear capital allocation strategy

We have o cleor strategic focus to provide high-quality clinico!
care to animals, and key to the delivery of this is investment

in our existing practice focilities, clinical equipment and
techneology, and expanding our Group through strategically
aligned acquisitions subject to disciplined criteria.

In support of this planned increase in investment, we successfully
refinanced our debt focilities in February 2023, increasing
the availoble funds to £350.0m, comprising:

> @ £87.5m term loan, repayable via bullet payment in
February 2027 and

> a £262.5m revolving credit facility.



“I am proud of the achievements
of our team of colleagues over
the past year."

The interest margin and covenants for the facility remain
unchanged. with maximum leverage of 3.25x and interest
cover no less than 4.5x. We obtoined commercial terms with
increased flexibility to suppaort our growth ambitions, and
welcomed Barclays, |P Morgan, Lloyds Bank, Virgin Money and
Danske Bank to our banking syndicate, alongside long-term
partners HSBC, NatWest and AIB.

In the financial year to june 2023, we invested £45.7m and

completed 21 practice refurbishments and relocation projects.
We are plegsed with the returns to date from this investment,
with higher-quclity facilities and enhanced technology allowing
us to provide high-quality care to our clients and their animals.

This investment included a brand new greenfield site, Southport
Vets, which opened in December 2022. This 3,000 sq ft building
comprises four consulting rooms tagether with an operating
theatre and specialist dental suite, plus an in-house laboratory
and digital x-ray facilities.

Alongside this investment, we invested initial cash consideration
of £54.6m in acquiring 11 practices {16 practice sites) in the
financial year, and it has been a pleasure to weicome our new
colleagues to CVS.

Financial performance
In terms of financial performance during the full year ended
30 June 2023 we have delivered:

> continued organic revenue growth with a 7.3% increose in
like-for-like sales (2022: 8.0%), consistent with the Group’s
organic revenue growth ambition of between 4% and 8%;

> odjusted £BITDA margin expansion of 60bps to 20.0%. within
our stated ambition of margins between 19% ond 23%;

> continued investment in our facilities and equipment to
support growth. with total copita! expenditure of £45.7m
{2022: £24.5m), within the Group's capital expenditure
ambition of £30m to £50m investment per annum;

> investment of £54.6m in 11 practice acquisitions {comprising
16 practice sites) {2022: £8.4m in three practice acquisitions
{comprising four practice sites)), in line with the guidance of
£50m+ investment per annur. and

> operating cash conversion of 70%, broadly in line with our stated
ambition of 70%. In light of the increased investment made in
the financial year, leverage increased to 0.7 3x at 30 june 2023
(30 june 2022: 0.40x), but remained well below our stated
target of less than 2.0x leverage as set out in our Capital
Markets Day ambitions.

Strategy

Our purpose is to give the best possible care to animals and our
vision is to be the veterinary company people most want to work
for and these are underpinned by our four cleor strotegic pillors: to
recommend and provide the best clinical care every time; to be a
great place to work and have a career; to provide great facilities
and equipment; and to take our responsibilities seriously.

In order to recommend and provide the best clinical care

every time we continue to invest in research and development
towards improved clinical standards. In 2022 we launched

our Clinical Research Awords and to date we are supporting
16 research projects, with more funds to be made available in
the coming year. These awards focilitate colleagues to be oble
to undertoke high-quality ond impoctful reseorch, os well as
work collaboratively with universities and research institutions
to contirtue to break new ground in veterinary care.

Our vision to be the veterinary compony people most want

to waork for is underpinned by our strategic pillar to be a

great place to work ond have a career. During the year,

we launched a range of new benefits and policies. Among
these is o zerg-tolerance policy towards abusive clients to put
colleague safety in practices at the forefront and this can result
In veterinary services being terminated for abusive clients.
The BVA pubiished dota in 2021 which showed six out of ten
vets had reported feeling intimidated by clients’ longuoge or
behaviour in the previous vear. We hope this policy helps our
colleagues in handling difficult situations with the confidence
that the Group is in support of their welfare.

We have increased investment in our practice facilities,
equipment and technology in the past year so that we can
achieve a minimum practice facility standard. This standaord
includes optimal layout of clinical spaces. increasing the
number of consult rooms and operating theatres, instolling
improved technology such as dental x-ray and advanced
imaging facilities. and improving colleague areas such as
kitchens and office spaces.
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Chief Executive Officer's review continued

Strategy continued

As a veterinary business. toking our responsibilities seriously is
in cur DNA. We work closely with industry bodies to ensure we
are improving standards of care and we fully embrace the RCVS
Practice Standards Scheme (PSS). In June 2023, the RCVS added
o Susteinability Award to its PSS whose requirements range
from having a written envircnmental sustainubility policy. to
demonstratian of techniques to minimise anaesthetic gas usage
and annual waste surveys being undertaken with demonstrable
action os a result. We are encouraging our practices to
participate in this new oward.

Discover more about our strategy on pages 22 to 23

Focus on our people

To enable us to provide great care we have invested in
employing an additional 6.5% vets and 8.4% nurses on
average in the financial year to 30 june 2023 in comparison
to the previous financial year. We continue to increase the
number of ¢linical colleagues we employ at o significantly
faster rate than the growth of the population of proctising
vets in the UK.

We are pleased that the RCVS has seen a rise in the number of
EU vets registering to work in the UK for the first year post Brexit,
with g 30% increase in 2022. Meanwhile, the orrongements
that allow groduates from European Association of Establishments
for Veterinary Education (EAEVE)}-accredited schools to be
recognised by the RCVS haove been extended for another year.

Although these structural improvermnents are positive, our
ability to attroct and retoin colleagues is significontly enhanced
by our focus on our people and on being a great place to work
and have a career. We measure employee Net Promoter Score
{eNPS) monthly, and this score has increased consistently each
year since we first began toa measure it. At June 2023 aur eNPS
was 14.6 (2022: 4.8) with the increose a reflection of our
efforts in improving the satisfaction of our colleagues.

We continue to focus on the wellbeing of our colleagues with
over 300 first aiders for mental health trained, considerable
awareness built across CVS and reguiar initiatives to promote
positive wellbeing. 100 practice teams have utilised our new
“Whot matters to us?” framework, which helps colleagues feel
empowered to make local changes to improve their wellbeing.
Some 400 managers across CVS have undertaken a new
course developed on supporting the wellbeing of their teams.

Developing a culture where everyhody can contribute
QOur volues gre customer focus, commitment to excellence,
success through our people, and honesty and integrity. In our
2022 Annual Report, we introduced our Group-wide culture
survey, in which we sought feedback from colleagues ocross
the business on their experiences of inclusion, support and
fairness within CVS.

During 2023, we have developed actions in response to the
resuits of this survey. with our main focus being on developing
an Equity, Diversity and Inclusion programme that enables alf
our colleagues to feel in¢luded and psychologically saofe. We
developed o psychological safety course to give leaders
practical knowledge ond skills for creating a psychologically
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safe tecm environment. By the end of June 2023, 372 leoders
had completed the course. with positive feedback on its impaoct
in the workplace.

Read more about this in our People and Culture Report
on pages 20to 21

Sustainability

We published our first Sustainability Report in 2022 and we
have concentrated our focus in the past year on six key oreas,
namely Energy ond Carbon, Waste, One Health, People
Development, Wellbeing and ED!.

During the year. we introduced our new network of Environment
Champions. These are volunteers from acrass the business
supporting us to reduce our impact on the environrent,
improve the way we deal with our waste ond cut our carbon
footprint. Qur aim is for each practice or building to have an
Environment Chompion, forming a network of CVS Group
colleagues who volunteer to help raise energy and
environmental owareness.

Discaver more abeut our sustainabllity an pages 32 to 46

Australia market entry

Since the year end, in July 2023 we announced our entry inte
the Australian veterinary services market ond we have now
completed five first-opinion small animal practices {comprising
five sites) with o strong pipeline of additional opportunities.

We identified Austrolia as an attractive market and | om
delighted to welcome our new colleagues in Australia to CVS.

Competition and Markets Authority {CMA) review
On 7 September 2023, the CMA announced o Market Review
of the Veterinary sector for household pets in the UK. The
review is carried out under the CMA's general review function
which allows it to obtain, compile and keep under review
information refating to the CMA's functions. The Market Review
is voluntary and we will work closely with the CMA in support.
The CMA have stated they will provide o further update in
early 2024,

Outlook
I am proud of the achievements of our tearn of colleagues over
the post year, os reflected in another set of strong finoncial rasults.

We set out a clear five-year plan at our Capital Markets Day

in Novernber 2022 and the achievements in the past year, the
refinancing of our bank focilities and balance sheet all position
us well to deliver against this ambition. Whilst we continue to
be mindful of infiationary pressures on household incomes, we
are confident that our strategy for growth focused on high-quality
clinical core ond investment in facilities and technelogy positions
us well to deliver further growth over the coming years.

With the continued support of our outstanding colleagues,
| look forward to sharing further success in 2024 and beyond.

Richard Fairman
Chief Executive Cfficer
21 September 2023



Afocus on

CVS invests up to £50m
a year 1n improving practice
facilities under a new standard

CVS has pledged to spend up to £50m a year to upgrade
ond relocate current practices and to open new practices
to a new minimum practice facility standard.

The new CVS standard has been designed by its veterinary
surgeons, nurses. practice managers, receptionists and
patient care assistants. Colleagues in practices across the
Group came together to outline whot a good practice iooked
like. From this, a new practice facility standord was developed.

The new standard has been designed around colleagues
and the way they work. It includes well lgid out clinical
spaces. including multiple consultation rooms, spacious
operoting theatres, central preparation areas. specialist
dental suites, in-house laboratories and digital x-ray
focilities. In oddition isclation wards, separate dog and cat
hospital wards and new walk-in kennels are incorporoted
for iarger dog breeds.

Creating a fantastic work environment was alsa
instrumental to the standard. The new practice design
includes modern office spoces, ample kitchen and food
preparation facilities, proper rest areas where colleagues
can take a break, and staff showers and lockers.

In addition, the practice standard is designed ta make clients
and their pets feel comfortable. New and relocated sites
have been selected with ample parking which is accessible
to all. Building layouts incarporate large and welcoming
reception areas with separate woiting areas for cats and
dogs to keep stress to a minimum, along with easy access

to consultation rooms for clients and patients. It alse includes
using modern building materiais, more efficient fighting

and other aptions that lower our carbon footprint such

as solar energy.

CVS Group plc Annuaf Report and Financial Statements 2023 11



Capital allocation

We have a disciplined approach
to deploying capital

Introduction

We have a clear, people-focused strategy with our purpose to
provide the best possible care to animals and our vision to be
the veterinary company people most want to work for, underpinned
by four strategic pilors. This strategy and vision ore focused on
our passionate team of colleagues delivering great clinical care
to our clients and their animals.

In November 2022, we held a Capital Markets Day in
which we outlined our plans over the next five years
with six key elements underpinning this five-year plan:

> organic revenue growth of 4%—8% per annum;
» odjusted EBITDA margins between 19% and 23%;

> investment of £30m-£50m per annurm in practice
facilities, clinical equipment and technotogy to deliver
additional organic growth;

> investment of £50m per annum plus in selective
acquisitions subject to disciplined criteria for returns and
earnings accretion;

> aperating cash conversion at or obove 70%; and

> maintaining leverage on a bank test basis below 2.0x.

The Group has developed a cleor capital allocatian policy in
support of the investment planned over the next five yeors.

Capital allocation

Any investment, whether capital expenditure or an acquisition,
has a minimum hurdle of o 10.09% Internal Rate of Return (IRR)
which more than covers the Group’s post-tax weighted average
cost of capital. All investment is aimed at improving our
business and should deliver enhanced EBITDA and cash flow.

Availability of capital

The Group has o clear track record of generating cash from
operations. In 2023 £107.6m was generated from operations
(2022: £93.1m} in support of our capital investment.

In February 2023, we successfully refinanced our debt facilities
with total facilities of £350.0m now available through to

21 February 2027. Margins and covenants remained
unchanged. The facility comprises the following elements:

> o fixed term loon of £87.5m, repayoble on 21 February 2027
via a single bullet repayment; and

» a four-year revolving credit facility of £262.5m, availcble
to 21 February 2027

This new facility provides important funding in suppert
of our five-year plan.

Leverage was 0.73x at 3G fune 2023 (2022: 0.40x) and
hence remained comfortably below our 2.0x guidonce.

Strong balance sheet and growing free cash flow underpins opportunity for disciplined investment in growth

Strong balance sheet Committed facilities

. of £350m to
and growing free
F 27
cash flow ebruary 20
Leverage 0.73x
Investment Investment Capex
opportunities

and dividends ¢-£30m - £50m Pa

Disciplined approach Leverage < 2.0x
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Strong balance sheet
and growing free
cash flow

Growing Free Cash Flow

Shareholder returns
Progressive Dividend
policy

UK and International
acquisitions

£50m pa subject
to timing

Disciplined Investment Shareholder returns

IRR of > ¢.10.0% Progressive

Dividend policy



Australian market entry

Number of
practices

c.3,600

Number of pets

c.29m

Market size

AS5bn

(13.5% CAGR 2016-2022)

Consolidation

c.15%

“| am delighted with our entry into the Australian
veterinary services market. At our Capital Markets Day
in November 2022, we set out our plans and ambition
over the next five years through a continued focus on
organic growth ond with acquisitions in the UK and
overseas. Our entry into the Australian market is
consistent with these plans and we are excited by
the opportunity.”

Richard Fairman, CEQ

In July 2023, CVS entered the Australian veterinary services
market with five acquisitions completed since the yeor end,
and o strong pipeline of additional opportunities.

CVS's expansion into Australio is in accordance with its growth
objectives, outlined in the five-year plan at the Group's Capital
Markets Day in November 2022, to execute on scelable international
consolidation oppartunities, subject to maintaining its disciplined
acquisition criteria.

The Group had been exploring opportunities in Germany, France,
Spain and Australia. The Board has identified Australia as
particularly attractive given the relatively low levels of corporate
consolidation, favourable market dynarnics and strong similarities
with the UK, including highly trained veterinary surgeons, shared
language and culture, and the Group's experience with UK vets
working between Australia and the UK.

Attractive features of the Australia market

The Australion veterinary services market has relatively low
levels of consolidation with two major established competitors.
VetPartners and Greencross. collectively owning c.11% of the
market. With ¢.3,500 practices there is o significant potential
opportunity for CVS to build scale

The Australio market has similar characteristics to the UK with
an increasing pet population post the COVID-18 pandemic,
humanisation of pets and consurners willing to invest in
veterinary core for their animals.

There is a history of UK and Australian vets spending time working
in the two markets and the approach to clinical core is simiiar,

CVS's purpose to give the best possible care to animals ond its
vision to be the veterinary company people most want to work
for fit well with the Australian market and we are excited by the
opportunity. Our expansion into Austrolio will also provide
career progression opportunities for UK vets and nurses who
may wish to gain experience in Australia.

Acquisition pipeline

As at the dote of this report. we have completed on five
acquisitions {consisting of five practice sites} along with
exchanging purchase agreements on a further two practices
(four practice sites),

The Group has identified a strong pipeline of opportunities

and its focus will be on acquisition opportunities in major urban
conurbations, including Sydney, Melbourne, Brisbane, Perth,
Canberro. Newcastle and Adelaide.

We are confident in our obility to make further acquisitions in
the UK as well as Australia ond our ambition is to spend over
£50m per annum on acquisitions. as outlined at the Capital
Markets Day.

Management of Australia practices

The Group has established an Australion-based senior
monagement team to support acquired proctices and continue
to develop the pipeline of new acquisition opportunities. This
team includes o highly experienced Gperations Director with
seven years' service at CVS on secondment from our UK
Veterinary Practices division, and an Acquisitions Birector
with extensive experience of the Australian veterinary market.
Members of the CVS Executive Committee will cantinue

to spend appropriate time in Australic to support the
establishment of our new operations,

Value creation

Qur focus is on ocquiring high-quolity small animal practices
with good facilities and strong management teams, We will
work closely with these manogement teams in supporting the
growth of their practices and in genercting value from our
Australia presence.

Whilst acquisition multiples in Australia are lower than in the
UK, practice margins are similar. However, the internal rate of
return is expected to be similor to the UK as synergies have not
been included initially, and the rate of corporation tax is higher
at 30% in Australig.

The Group expects gradually to benefit from additional
advantoges of scale os it further expands in Australia,
including improved drug purchosing terms, revenue growth
and margin enhancement with a focus on high-quality clinical
care and developing a market leading employee experience.
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Market overview

The veterinary market values
high-quality clinical care now

more than ever

Increased pet ownership continues to be a trend within the
UK market. Many dog and cat owners are first-time pet
owners and treat their animals as beloved family members.

Market size (E£bn)*

2022
2021
2020
2019

2018

Geographical markets

8.2

76

7.6

The Group operates veterinary practices in the UK,
the Netherlands, the Republic of Ireland and, since

July 2023, Australia.

The UK companion animal market remains our largest market
and goes from strength to strength. CVS is well placed to

benefit from fovourable market trends.

£9.9bn

spent on pets and related
products in the UK in 20221

c.5,300

veterinary practices in the UK3

T 472 ,

veterinary practices operated by CVS Group

9.9

Care at our heart

According to a recent market report?, 51% of dog owners

and 45% of cat owners decided to purchase their pet to

make themselves happy, with pver a third saying they provide
companionship, love and affection. This often means pet
owners place a high importance on the health and longevity
of their pet to ensure the continued companionship and
stability of the fomily or household. For this reason, pet
owners are increasingly prioritising veterinory care

"7 notwithstonding rising inflation.

 ———— e e —

1. httpsiuiwww.ons gov.ukfeconomy/nationalaccounts/soteliteoccounts/timeseries/uvjk/ct

Z PDSA Animal Wellbeing (PAW] Report 2023
3. findavet.rcvs org.uk.
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We provide integrated care throughout the life cycie

Typical life expectancy of 12 years for o dag (14-17 years for a cat), which is increasing

1-3 years 3-8 years

B+ yeors

First-opinion proctices servicing whole life veterinary care requirements

Online retail business food sales

Laboratory tests

Specialist referrol interventions

Compassionate end-of-life care and cremation service

The resilience of our integrated
veterinary model

CGver the past three years, we have seen g steady upwords
curve in the UK pet population.

The Group's focus on high-guality core ond on ermploying and
retaining clinicians who truly place care ot the heart of their
wark has supported the inherent resilience demonstrated
through our continued revenue growth.

Puppy Adult Senior

Australia

In July 2023, CVS entered the Australian veterinary services
market. More information on this market is on page 13.

*Having worked as a vet in Australia earlier in my
career, | know well its high standards of clinical care
and the dedicaticn of the highly talented veterinary
professionals that work there. As a company
dedicated to giving the best possible care to animals.
| see a fantastic opportunity for us to enter this
growing market, with low levels of corporate
consolidation, and execute our vision of being the
veterinary company people most want to work for.

1 have spent significant time in Australia over the
last twelve months. including meeting a significant
number of fantastic veterinary practices, and

it is clear we have a significant opportunity.”

Ben Jacklin, Deputy CEO
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Market overview continued

Market drivers and responses

A growing pet population

> The UK pet populotion has
continued to gradually grow.
Although not a dromatic jump,
approximately 8 million pets hove
been acquired since March 2020
This gradual incregse in the pet
pepulation is o helpful market driver,
not just in the short term when
kittens and puppies require
vaccinations, initial check-ups
and in some cases neutering, but
significantly in the medium and
longer term as they become
mature animals requiring more
veterinary intervention.

Our approach

> We continue to expond our network
of high-quality facilities, accessible
across the UK, the Netherlands. the
Republic of Iretand and Australia,
for afl species of companion animalis.

» We provide access to preventative
care through our successful Healthy
Pet Club scheme which provides
preventative healthcare including
reqular check-ups. annual
vaccinations and regular flea
and worming treatments.

> We glso provide odvice to clients on
the gppropriate choice of pet for their
individuat circumstances and we
offer puppy socialisation closses in
number of our first-opinion proctices.

Advances in
veterinary care

> Continued scientific research leods -
to further advances in veterinary
care offering pet owners g variety
of treatments for their animals.
This, along with improvements
in technology, has advanced the
offering of telemedicine and
remote specialist dicgnostic
image interpretation and advice.

Our approach

> We continue to investin our clinicians,
offering them industry-leading clinical
training, and we provide a culture of
recommending the most appropriate
treatment to our clients. OQur Chester
Veterinary Training Centre continues
to expond the range of qualifications
offered, ond in 2023 we opened a
second nurse training centre at The
Grove in Norfolk.

> We are striving to have o positive
impoct on the veterinary care sector as
a whole, through investing in research
projects designed to better understond
and improve veterinary care. These
projects are studying topics relating
to animat health, clinical practices
and the environment.

> We provide support for medical
imaging and interpretation through
our VetQracle™ business. Qur
VetOracle™ specialists are cble to
review images remotely and provide
advice on clinical treatments for
first-opinion vets within CVS and
third-party owned practices.

Availability of vets

t

o perform services

» There is a continued shortage of

veterinary surgeons and, to a lesser
extent, nurses across our markets.
We are working with our regulators
and veterinary schools to increase
the number of vets entering the
profession, afong with promoting
the right work being performed by
the right role in order to enhonce
job satisfoction.

Qur approach

>

v

Qur vision is to become the veterinary
compony people most want to work
for and our focus on achieving this
vision has enabled us to outperform
the market in recent yeaors.

In 2023 we sow an increase in the
number of clinicians we employ,
with the avercge number of

vets increosing by 6.5% and
nurses increasing by 8.4%.

We continue ta monitor our KPis
along with trocking colleogue
satisfaction through employee

Net Promoter Score and colleague
attrition. We continue to achieve
positive trojectories in these metrics.

Link to strategy
Reod more on pages 22 and 23

1 2 3

1. PDSA Animal Wellbeing {PAW) Report 2023,

Link to strategy
Reod more on poges 22 and 23

1 2 3 4
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Online retail

> Increasingly, our customers are
switching to shopping online for
their pet food, driven by convenience
and product range, Whilst the
majority of our clients purchase
drugs in our proctices, they can
also obtain a prescription from
our practices and then purchase
drugs online.

Our approach

> We continue to explore opportunities
within our online platform, increasing
our website capabilities and
ensuring we have sustainable
competitive pricing.

> We have instolled two pharmacy
robots to revolutionise our veterinary
pharmacy, improving logistics and
fulfilment, increasing productivity
ond improving quality control.

Consoclidated market

> The veterinary morket continues
to consolidate and in our largest
market it is estimated that ¢.55% of
the UK practices are under corporate
ownership. We recognise the
importance of privately owned
independent practices. However,
we can see significant runway for
further consolidation in the market,
from review of other successful
consolidoted markets. Where private
practice owners are iooking to sell,
we are well positioned to acquire
and provide benefits to owners.
colleagues and patients.

Qur approach

> We support independent practices
through our buying groups, our
laboratories, our referral specialists.
our VetOracle™ service and our
crematoria, oll of which offer
services to non-CVS practices
as well as our own.

> In the yeor, we acquired 11 practices.

v

Post year end, we have entered
the Australion veterinary services
market, which has similar dynarmics
to the UK with fower levels of
consalidation, providing an
increased runway for the future
growth of the Group.

Humanisation of pets

= The veterinary sector hos benefited
from the humanisation of pets in
recent years as pets are treated
increasingly as companions and
seen as an important part of family
and home life, as well as positive
contributors to improved mental
ond physical heaith,

Our approach

> We continue to prioritise high-quality
clinical care and con provide all-round
animal care, from first-opinion,
specialist referrals, diognostic
testing. accessories and pet food
and consumables, to end of life
care and crematoria.

> We understand the emotional bond
between our customers and their
pets and the wider social benefits
of pet ownership. With advonces
in clinical care. and our model, we
can support our clients throughaout
their pets’ lives.

Link to strategy
Read more on poges 22 and 23

1 2

Link to strategy
Read more on pages 22 and 23

1 2 2 4

Link to strategy
Read more an pages 22 and 23

H 2 3 <
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Business model

Leveraging the strength of our
veterinary services model

Our inputs

Passionate people
We employ dedicated professionals who
are committed to excellent clinical core.

8,520

Employees

2,215

Veterinory surgeons

Financial strength

We continue to deliver growth in revenue,
adjusted EBITDA and underlying cosh
generated from operations.

£608.3m

Revenue

£121.4m
Adjusted EBITDA

£107.9m

Cash generated from operations

High-quality clinical care

All of our practices are registered with the
RCVS Practice Standards Scheme (P55) and
are committed to investing in and using modern
diognostic techniques. We invest in clinical
troining ond advanced qualifications.

472

Practices including:

9

" T "Referral hospitals

150

PSS Awards

Customer focused
OFFEBiIeagues are dedicoted to providing
o quality service with the highest |evels
of customer and clinical care.

489,000

Healthy Pet Club members
73.0

Client Net Promoter Score

Veterinary platform

We have first-opinion veterinary practices at the core of cur business,
supported by speciclist-led, multi-disciplinary referral hospitals, cur own
diognostic loboratories, our network of crematoria and our enline retail
business for pet food, medicines and pet care products, Through our fully
integrated model, we can provide high-quality end-to-end care to

our patients and their owners.
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Underpinned by our sustainability focus, “Care at Our Heart"”

Discaver more about our operations and the markets in which we
operate on pages 14 to 17 .
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1,
Veterinary practices

at our core
> Strong barriers to entry

> High-quality integroted clinical care

> Scole benefits

Our empleyees
> Supporting colleagues’ wellbeing and
perferming regular check-ins

> Equity. Diversity and Inclusion {EDI) working
group driving change

v

Providing career progression ond legrning
ond development appartunities including
continued professional development and
access to top-tier clinical expertise

> Mointaining high standords of
clinical governance

v

Industry-leading graduate programme,
including graduate camps

> A culture of open dialogue and learning

v

Offering competitive rewaords and benefits

Our profession {Industry bodies)

> Regulor contoct with the Royo! College of
Veterinary Surgeans (RCVS) and other
industry bodies

> Participatian in RCVS Proctice Stondords
Scherne by ofl CVS practices. including
actively seeking occreditation under the
new Sustainability Award

v

Full engagement with RCVS as part of

its recent consultation on preposed reforms
of the Veterinary Surgeons Act 1966

with written submission from CvS

into this consultation

v

Publication of annual Quality Improvement
report to promote improvements across
the profession

v

Lioisan with RCVS on wellbeing and
ESG matters

Discover more about our people and
culture on pages 20 and 21

2.
Operating in o sizeable
and growing market with

resilient characteristics
> Increased population of pets

> Humanisotion of pets with consumers
willing to spend on core

> Recurring robust revenues

Stakeholder value creation

Our customers

» Ensuring ¢customers have access to
end-to-and care through our first-opinion
practices, our speciolist-led, multi-disciplinary
referrot hospitals, our diagnostic iaborataries
and, at the end of an animal’s life, our
compassionate cremation services

> Demonstroting consistently high
clinical standards

» Prioritising animol welfare

> Providing regular check-ups ond routine
treatments (e.g. vaccines ond flea ond
worming treatments}

> Mointoining high standords af pain
management, particularly in surgical patients

> All our first-opinion componion onimai
proctices have sign access to allow deaf
clients access to veterinary care

» Providing an equine out-of-hours service

Our community

> focus on One Heolth to ensure o reduction
in the impact of the veterinary industry
on the wider environment, including
antimicrobial stewardship

> Qutreach to community groups
including schools

> Regular ligison with industry bodies
including the RCVS, the British Veterinary
Associotion and the British Veterinary
Nursing Association

» Donatians to charity. including sponsorships
and annual Vetlife charity donations

Discover more about our
sustainabifity an pages 32 to 46
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3.

Supplemented by prudent

capital allocation

> Investment in new facilities and
equipment. ond increase in clinical
specialists, to drive organic growth

v

Oppertunity for occretive ocquisitions
> Progressive dividend pelicy

Discover more about our
capital allocation on page 12

Our investors {(Shareholders)
> Delivering sustoined finoncial performance

> Open diglogue ond communication with
owr shoreholders

Caopitol Markets Day held in November 2022

v

» Recording of onalyst resuits presentotions

> Adherence to reparting requirements,
including task force on climate-reloted
finoncial disclosures and streomlined energy
and carbon reporting

v

Preparing for the implementation of BEIS

Corporate Governance Regime to ensure trust

> Long-Term Incentive Plan {LTIP} awards
are linked to totol shorehalder returns and
targets are cligned with shareholder
interests. Executive Directors are subject
to two-year holding period on LTIP owards

> Annual bonus targets for Executive
Committee members including both
financiol and non-finoncial measures
linked to sustainobility

Qur suppliers

> Foir trading terms with our suppliers which
promote the collective interest of CVS and
our supplier base

> Building relationships with suppliers
through sponsarships and attendance
et conferences fincluding inviting suppliers
to our annual conference)

> Regular meetings with senior management
teams to ensure interests ore aligned

> Suppliers continue to benefit from the
growth of CVS arganicolly and through
our strategic acquisitions

> Engugement on ESG matters to ensure
collective improvement

Discover more about our
stakeholders on pages 28 to 31
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Our people and culture

Developing a culture where
everyone can contribute

Our approach Psychological safety

Qur culture and values reflect our purpose to give the best An inclusive-culture is reliant on teams experiencing consistent
possible care to animals and our vision to be the veterinary psychological safety; where they can express their ideos,
company pecple most want to work for. ask for help, raise questions, challenge opinions and admit

mistakes without fear. Psychological sofety enables an
inclusive culture in @ number of ways. It leads to team members
feeling more engaged and motivated, because they feel thot
their perspectives will bea listened to. It can creote better
decision-making. os people feel more comfortable voicing their
opinions and concerns. It supports to continuous learning and
improvement, as team members feel comfortable sharing their
mistakes and learning from them,

In 2022, we completed a Group-wide culture survey in

which our colleogues fed back their experiences of inclusion,
support and fairness within CVS. We formed our Equity,
Diversity and Inclusion (EDI} working group and set a six-point
strategy to achieve our objective to be the veterinary compony
people most want to work for, regardless of who they are,
how they identify, or their background.

1. Establish a demographic understanding of our workforce Our approach is to develop an ED1 programme thot enables
and regulor meosures for EDI goals. all our colleagues to feel included and psychologically safe.
. . . 1t includes development opportunities for all and the
2. Foster on inclusive culture with behaviours that support EDL empowerment of colleague groups to deal with obstacles

Ensure lead d d. 1ol del and te EDI themselves. To help us understand whether we are achieving
3. "Ttshiretrfo‘ ;ars understand, 7ole mocel and premate these aims we survey our cofleagues regularly about how
Within thelr teams. included they feel.

4. Promaote attroction, recruitment, selection and succession
practices that are equitable and inclusive.

K. Deliver targeted development and support of diverse tafent.

6, Improve engagement and retention of diverse workforce
through addressing inequities, improving experiences and
meeting needs.
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Qur culture in numbers

14.6

Employee Net
Promoter score

372

Active Wellbeing
Champions

Our values

Customer focus

CGur dedication to our customers is at the heart of our business
and we are focused on our customers’ and their animals’
needs. We treat our customers with warmth ond respect.

we make them feel welcome and we keep our commitments.

Commitment to excellence

We constantly strive to achieve the highest possible standards
in the quality of services and products we provide. We lock for
better ways of working. both individuolly and in teams, and
we encourage colleagues to be innovative to improve the

way we work.

Success through our people

We aim to attract, develop and retain the best pecple,

We foster a collaberative and mutually suppertive working
environment, and we assist all our colleagues in ochieving
their career aspirations, with progressive learning and
development apportunities,

Honesty and integrity

We treot our colleagues and customers with honesty and
respect. We strive to ensure safety and accessibility in all
oreas of our business. We act with integrity in all that we do.
being fair, tronsparent and accessible to all. We are open to
feedback, and we own up to our mistokes.

625

Learners enrolled
into our dedicated
EDI1 course

5

EDI working
groups

How we demonstrate our values

We are committed to the highest possible standards
Our unique clinical leadership team supports eoch one of its
practices in achieving the highest clinical standards and helps
them to implement clinical quality improvements. Each CVS
small animal practice selected one to two clinical improvement
projects to focus on during the following year. The team then
provided the support ond training needed to help practices
achieve their goals. Data was supplied to show their starting
position and updated monthly, giving timely feedback for sites
ond demonstroting the impact of changes made.

We achieve success through our people

We have developed and launched a new Extro-Mural Studies
{EMS) placement online booking system to help veterinary
students find suitable plocements. It is the first lorge-scale
EMS online booking system of its type in the veterinary
profession and will hopefully save students time contacting
individual practices. We are fully committed to supporting
the education and development of vet students. to support
our current and future celleagues to achieve success.

<
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Our strategy

A clear strategy for growth

2 We are a great place to work

1 We recommend and provide the
best clinical care every time

Our strategic objectives
> To have o cuiture of recommending the best possible treatments
to owr clients.

> To deliver industry-leading clinical training.

» To be committed to evidence-bosed medicine and have o robust
quality improvement fromework.

> To ensure our clinicions have access to the right medicines
at the right time.

Our achievements in the yeor

» We have placed particulor emphasis on research and devetopment
1o support the progression of the profession. A series of pioneering
clinical improvement prejects hove been commissioned to achieve
outstonding levels of potient care. This year, we lounched nine
projects focused on impraving first-opinion clinical standords in a
range of fields including dental radiography. fameness investigation
and ultrosound.

We published our fifth annual Quality Impravement report in

June 2023, featuring some of the impeortant work we did s a
company to improve the quality of our care. This year’s report
focused on the themes of research and development, our cutture
tincluding Equity. Diversity and Inclusion (EDI), empowerment and
continuous improvement), learning, educotion and development,
and engaging with the Royal College of Veterinary Surgeons
(RCVS) Practice Standaords Scheme (PSS).

In September 2022, Poul Higgs wos appointed to the role of Chief
Veterinory Officer. In this role. Poul oversees all clinical quality
improvement work in our first-opinien and referrals divisions to help
us enhance the care we pravide to animals. Prior to his current cole,
Paul was Chinical Director ot CVS's Higheroft Referrals Hospital in
Bristal, where he still practises 0s o European veterinary Specialist
in interngl medicine.

Outlook

» Asa business, we pride ourselves on our contribution ta the
veterinary industry, including significont contributions to clinical
research. This focus on driving forward standards within the
profession will continue into future yeaors.

Our Hub Clinical Lead team continues to review opportunities for
further research and development in areas where requests for help
are frequently received. Due to the success of the nine clinical
improvement projects launched during the year. we will be
launching further projects,

> Our Clinical Research Aweards continue, and there are now 16 prajects
being funded by this programme. We continué to take applications for
further clinicol veterinary research that oims to benefit the animals
under our care, ond research that supports the veterinary profession
in providing the best possible care to animals.

v

v

v

Market drivers
This pillar is impacted by:
» avoilability of vets to perform
services: and
> humanisation of pets.

» agrowing UK pet population:
» advonces in veterinary care:

0

>

>
>
>

8]

>

v

0

>

M

and have a career

ur strategic objectives

Te create opportunities for our people to have diverse

and rewarding coreers.

To be os flexible os possible in qlt our roles.

To have the best leaders within our businesses.

To offer the best learning, education and development in the profession.

ur achievements in the year

Ouring the year. we conducted o full review of our employment
policies and benefits ond lounched a range of new benefits,

Our new benefits include o health cosh plon enabling colleagues
to opt in to reclaim the cost of a range of mediccl services. including
rnental haalth services. We have olso added policies related to fertlity
investigations and treatments, pregnancy loss, and significant
health-reloted life events including major surgery, hospitalisation

and procedures reloted to gender transition.

In the year ended 30 June 2023 we employed an avercge of 2,215
veterinary surgeons (2022: 2,079). This is a 6.5% increose from
2022 to 2023, despite workforce shortages in the veterinary
industry, demonstrating the success of our people-focused strategy.

Our employee Net Premoter Score (eNPS), which tracks colleogue
engagement across our business, increosed by over 100% to
14.6 from 2022 to 2023.

We hove introduced a zero-toterance policy to protect against
intrusive, offensive, violent or oggressive behaviour from clients,
This policy will empower colleagues to take action against such
behgviour, protect our colleagues' sufety ond welibeing. and
support our practice teams in not having 1o tolerote such behaviour,

utlook

Qur vision is to be the veterinary company people most want to work
for ond therefore being a greot place to work and have a career is,
and will continue to be. a high priarity, We moniter vet and nurse
vaconcy rates, ottrition and eNPS monthly and seek actionable
feedback from colleagues in relation to changes in these metrics.
We will remain focused on colleague rectuitment and retention,
seeking further initiotives to improve colleague satisfaction.

Over the past two years we have developed and communicoted o
clear EDI strategy ond we ore taking steps towards achieving a fully
inclusive culture. Using the results of regular colleague surveys. we
are identifying priorities to work on. For example. during the year
we introduced o psychological safety course for leaders, and an EDI
course roising owareness of bias and prejudice for all colleagues.
Over 500 colleagues have enrolled in these training courses. and we
continue to publicise these.

Our industry-teading learning. educotion and developrment (LED)
platform, the Knowledge Hub, goes from strength to strength,
with 267 courses now agvailabte.

arket drivers

This pillar is impacted by:

>

> gdvonces in veterinary care;

> avoilability of vets to perform
services; ond

> humanisation of pets.

& growing UK pet populotion;

Link to risks
Reod more on pages 60 to 68

Link to KPIs
Reod more on pages 24 to 27
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We provide great facilities
and equipment

Qur strategic objectives

> To ensure all our practices meet the Royal College of Veterinary
Surgeons [RCVS) Practice Standards Scheme [PS5) accreditation
standards. ond to aspire to achieve further RCVS awords.

To invest in our estate to ensure all our facilities meet

excellent standards,

> Ta expand our network with high-quality facilities.

> To develop new ways to serve our clients and our patients.

v

Our achievements in the year

> During the year, we introduced our capitol allocation plon where
we hove identified on opportunity to invest in approximately half of
our gites and have made o commitment ta invast up to £50.0m per
annum to bring as many of those sites up to o néw minimum “CVS
Stondard” of guality of practice focilities and equipment os possible.
During 2023, we completed 21 practice relocotions and refurbishments,
investing £45.7m in property improvements across our estate.

We acquired 11 veterinary practices in 2023, with o focus on
ensuring acgquired practices have high-quality facilities which meet
the expectations of a CVS practice for both our colleogues ond
clients. Where acquired practice focilities do not meet our usual
standord, we factor in the ¢osts of improving the practice focilities
and equipment to our purchase consideration.

Outlook
> We hove committed to invest up to £50.0m per annum over five years
on refurbishing or refocating up to holf of our existing practices.

v

v

v

The quality of our existing facilities, and the acquisition of
high-quaiity veterinory practices. is o key component of our
growth ambition,

> in June 2023, the RCVS intraduced a new Sustainobility Award
within the Practice Stondards Scheme accreditation standards.
We have been preparing our proctices for participation in this
award ond look forward to the first inspections taking ploce,

Market drivers

This pillar is impacted by:

> 3 growing UK pet population:
» advances in veterinary care:

> availability of vets to parform
services: ond
> consolidoted market,

4 We take our responsibilities
seriously

Our strategic objectives

> To make our Group as environmentally sustainoble as possible.

> To implement the best ievels af health ond safety in the profession.
> To priaritisé the wellbeing of our people.

> To engoge with the veterinary profession and support its interests.

Our achievements in the year
> One of our key responsibilities is ensyring the upkeep of high
clinical standards within the profession. We engage actively
with regulatory bodies and cantinue to increase the amount of
investment in projects aimed to improve the industry through
research and development, outreach, and engogement with
veterinary professionals.
CVS has a speciolly designed health and safety system. the Safety
Hub. which has divisienally specific documentation, guidance, check
sheets and more. We olso hove on online health and safety manual.
During the year, we rolled aut @ new mondatary “Cantrol of Substances
Hozardeus te Health {COSHH)" training course to all tolleagues in
the business. Our Knowledge Hub learning. education and development
plotform ollows us to roll out such training and monitor completion
rotes. which are tracked by divisional manogement.
> We haove published our second annual Sustainability Report.
providing detailed updates on the Group's strategy and progress
towaords o more sustainoble future. Within this report we have
disclosed financially matericl sustoinability-reloted data under
the SASB Stondards.
> The wellbeing of our colleagues continues 1o be a key priority,
This year. we have been focusing on the impact of work on our
colieggues’ wellbeing, with a goal to increase the percentage of
colleagues answaring thot work has an overall positive effect on
their wellbeing in a quarterly survey. Since the beginning of the
survey in August 2022, we hove seen a five percentage point
incrense in the proportion of positive responses.

Outlook

> We have increased the amaunt of investment in clinical research and
development projects in recent years, with our Clinicol Research
Awards, both internally and externally, and our internal clinical
improvement projects. We are looking forward to receiving the
results of some of these projects and identifying ways to implement
improvements, both in our clinical work end ocress the wider industry.

> Our sustainability efforts continue to grow. and with the publication
of our annual Sustoinability Report and the development of internal
monitaring end reporting fromeworks which has taken place aver the
last year, we are looking forward to making o real difference to our
stakeholders and enviranmaent through the actions we are taking.
We hgve set targets within our Sustainability working groups which
will support us to work towords a more sustainable future.

v

Market drivers

This piflar is impacted by:

> avafiability of vets ta perform
services; and

> humanisction of pets.

Link to risks
Read mare on pages 60 to 68

Link to KPls
Read more on pages 24 to 27
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Key performance indicators

Financial KPIs

Ensuring we track and monitors the correct KPIs, both financial
and non-financial, is key in measuring our success.

A Revenue {Em)

£608.3m

+9.8%

2023 608.3
2022 5542
2021 510.1
2020 427.8

2019 406.5

Why it's a KP1

Revenue is ¢ key measure of performance
across all divisions of the Group and
demonstrotes our ability to ottroct ond
retain customers,

2023 performance
>

Overall revenue has increased by £54.1m,

v

Like-for-like sales. including
intercompany revenue eliminations.,
increased by £40.3m {7.3%) as a result
of investments in our people, facilities
ond clinical equipment.

> Acquisitions in the yeor ond the

full-year impoct of prior year acquisitions
generated additional revenue of £13.8m,

B Like-for-like sales (%)

7.3%

-0.7ppt

2023 7.3

2022 8.0

2021 17.4
20201 6.7

20181 6.2

Why it's a KPI

Like-for-like sules shows revenue generated
from like-for-like operations compared to the
prior yeor, odjusted for the number of working
days. For exarmple, for a proctice acguired in
Septermber 2021. revenue is included from
September 2022 in the like-for-like
calculations, This shows the underiying
growth in revenue across oll divisions,
excluding the impoct of acquisitions,

2023 performance

» Like-for-like performance reflects growth
in both price and volume compared to the
previous yeor,

v

Pricing approach reflects the impact
of costinfletion and our focus on
delivering high-quality core to our
clients and patients.

Performance has been supporied by
an intregse in dinical staff and our
continuing investment in our focilities
and equipment.

v

Link to strategy
Read more on pages 22 and 23

1 2 3 4

Link to strategy
Read more on pages 22 and 23

i 2 3 4

24 CVS Group plc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2023

C Adjusted EBITDA! (Em)

£121.4m

+13.0%

2023 121.4
2022 107.4
2021 97.5
2020 710

2018 545

Why it's a KPI

Adjusted Earnings Before Interest. Taxation,
Depreciation and Amortisaticn {EBITDA)
excludes ¢osts reloting to business
combinations und exceptionalitems and
assists in understonding the underlying
performance of the Group.

2023 performance

> Theimprovement in odjusted EBITDA
reflects the improvement in like-for-like
sales and improvement in gross margin
before clinical siaff costs, as we continue
to deliver aur purpose to give the best
possible care to onimals.

> Adjusted EBITDA includes £9.6m {2022;
£2.0m) of net Research ond development
expenditure Tax Credits: offsetting utility
inflation, investment in pegpie and to o
fessor axtent wage inflation.

This increase has contributed to the
improvement in iike-for-like adjusted
EBITDA of £11.0m, with acquisitions in
the year and the full-yeor impact of prior
year acquisitions generating additionol
EBITDA of £3.0m.

v

Link to strategy
Read mare on pages 22 and 23
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D Adjusted EPS?
(pence)

96.0p

+11.9%

2023 96.0
2022 858
2021 75.1
2020 42.0

2019 46.7

Why it’s a KPI

This is profit before tax
adjusted for: amertisation:
costs reloting to business
combinations; and exceptional
items net of the notional tax
impact of these, divided by
the weighted gverage
number of shares.

2023 performance

> Theincreose reflects the
increase of £4.9m in the
year in odjusted profit
before tax! partiolly offset
by the increase in the UK
rate of corporation tax.

v

Issued shore copital hos
increased only by the number
of shares required to satisfy
the Group's Long-Term
Incentive Plan and Save As
You Earn schemes.

E Total capex
(Em)

£45.7m
+86.5%

2023 45.7
2022 245

2021} 166

2020/124

2019|129

Why it's a KP)

This is the total amount spent by
the Group on capitol expenditure
("capex’]. Capex is incurred on
refurbishment ond relocation of
practice faciliies and investment
in new equipment and clinicol
faeilities. Investing in our
practices and clinical equipment
is key to achievement of our
strategic gool of providing great
tacilities ond equipment and aur
Copital Markets Doy ambition of
investment to deliver odditionol
organic growth in practice
focilities and technology.

2023 performance

> Total capex hos increased
by £21.2m, consisting of
0 £0.6m increase in
mointenonce copex, and
a £20.6m increase in

1. Adjusted financiol measures {odjusted EBITUA, adjusted

profit before tax and adjusted earnings per share) are defined
in note 1 to the finoncial stotements, and reconciled to the
finoncial measures defined by Internationol Finoncial Reporting
Stondords (IFRS) on poges 115 and 133.

F Gross margin
before clinical
staff costs (%)

77.7%

+0.8ppt

2023 77.7
2022 769
2021 76.1
2020 755
2019 76.2

Why it's a KPI

Gross margin represents
revenue after deducting the
cost of drugs. lobaratory fees
and cremotion fees. and other
goods sold or used by the
business. expressed os o
percentage of total revenue.
Gross margin is a KPl becouse
it helps us to monitor and
measure our ability to
purchase drugs at the best
possible price whilst ensuring
the highest quality.

2023 performance

> Theincrease in gross
margin is principally due
to our focus on providing
great clinical care ond
successfully recruiting more
vets and nurses whilst also
benefiting from a change

G Cash generated
from operations
{Em)

£107.9m

+15.9%

2023 1079
2022 931
2021 80.3
2020 S48
2019 52.1

Why it's a KPI

Cash generated from
operations shows the cash
inflows befare: payments of
taxation and interest: business
combinations: purchases of
property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets:
repayment of right-of-use
ossets; poyments of dividends;
debt issuance costs: increase/
repayment of bank loans; and
proceeds from issue of shares.
Delivery of increased cosh
genercted from operations
allows us to invest in further
growth opportunities ocross
our business.

2023 performance

» Cash genergted from
cperations has increased
due te the increase in profit

deveiopment copex with 1 mix. far the year offset by

the focus on improving odverse working capital.

client experience and with an increqse in

growing our business. inventories of £1.8m.

Refer to the Financiof increase in trade and other

Review on pages 55to 59 recaivables of £4.6mand

for further detoil. a reduction in trade
payables of £0.8m.

Link to strategy Link to strategy Link to strategy Link to strategy

Read more on pages 22 and 23
1 2 3 4

Read more on poges 22 and 23
1 2 3 4

Reqd more on peges 22 gnd 23
1 2 3 L)

Read more on pages 22 and 23
12 3
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Key performance indicators continued

Non-financial KPIs

Tracking our non-financial measures allows us to
monitor our performance against our core strategic goals.

H Vet vacancy rate (%)

11.5%

+1.1ppt

2023 115
2022 10.4
2021 8.3

2020 69

2019 91

Why it's a KPI

The vet vacancy rate is caltulated as the
overoge number of live vet voconcies
divided by the totol number of vets by
headcount plus vacancies. This shows the
average level of vet vocencies for the Group
during the period. This links to aur strategic
goal of being the veterinary compony
people most want to wark for.

2023 performance

> The vet vocancy rote hos increased in
2023, os we continue to odvertise for
a number of new paositions te support
our growth due to increasing demand
for our services.

> During 2023, we on average employed
€.5% more veterinary surgeons than
in 2022.

! Hegithy Pet
Club members

489,000

+4.0%

2023 489,000
2022 470.000
2021 450,000
2020 415,000
2019 401,000

Why it's a KPI

Healthy Pet Club is our preventotive care
scheme. It provides CVS with o robust
and regular revenue stream, as well us
improving customer loyalty.

2023 perfermonce

» The number of Healthy Pet Club
mermbers has increased by 4.0%
in the year.

» This demonstrates the Increased
humanisation of pets and desire for
our clients to invest in their pets’
futures through preventative core.

Link to strotegy
Read more on pages 22 and 23

1 2 3 4

Link to strategy
Read more on pages 22 and 23

1
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] Number of
RCVS awards*

150

-2.6%

2023 150
2022 154
2021 158
2020 159
2019 114

Why it's a KPI
This shows the number of RCVS Practice
Standards Scheme [PSS) Awards across
the Group. These owards promote

ond maintain the highest stendards

of veterinary core otross o range of
different criterio including client experience
ond chinicol governonce. Monitoring the
number of RCVS Awards helps us achieve
our strategic goa! of taking our
responsibilities seriously.

2023 performance

> Injune 2023, the RCVS introduced o new
oward for sustainability. During the year
we have been preparing to apply for
these awords ot many of our sites and
ore looking forward to weltoming the
assessors to our proctices,

Of our 150 PSS Awords, 103 refote
to client service, highlighting our focus
on exceptional client service.

v

* During COVID-19 new awards were put
on hald, Award ¢ssessments resumed
in the year and assessors are working
through the backiog.

Link to strategy
Read more on puges 22 and 23
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K Employee NPS!- 2

14.6

+204.2%

2023

2022 48
202129
2020]| 0.7

14.6

Why it's a KPI

Employee Net Promoter Score (eNPS)is a
measure of how likely our colleagues are to
recommend the Group as @ place to work as
reported on anonymous surveys. Monitoring
eNPS shows the level of collengue satisfoction
ocross the Group ond helps us to ensure we
are o great ploce to work and have a career.

2023 performance

> We have seen significant improvements
in colieague engagement: our focus on
colleague recruitment and retention
SUPPOrts us in our vision to be the
veterinary company peopie most want
to weork for.

v

We care about the wellbeing of our
colleagues ond continue ta Jook for ways to
support them in their roles with continued
pestoral support roles in proctices, and
utilising our Wellbeing Champions across
the business.

1. These non-finonciol KPIs align with our
strotegy: however, dota is only ovoilable
for four years.

L Client NPS2

73.0

+1.5%

N

. Net Promoter Score measures customer
and colleague experience using the answer
to a key question, “how likely is it that you

Responses are onclysed using a weighted
colculation to yield g score batween a low
of -100 b u high of 100.

2023 73.0
2022 719
2021 722
2020 78.5
Why it's a KPI

Client Net Promoter Score (NPS5) is o
measure of the |evel of our clients'
satisfaction with their experiences with
the Group via ananymous reporting of the
likelihood that clients would recommend
the Group for our services. Monitering NPS
helps us to ensure we recommend and
pravide the best clinical care every time.

2023 performance

> Client engagement hos remained
consistent with the prior year, at very
high levels.

> We continue to focus on high-quality
clinical care and investment in our
practice focilities to provide ¢ safe
ond comfortable environment for our
clients ond exceptional care of their
treosured animals.

Link to strategy
Read mare on poges 22 and 23

1 2 3 4

Link to strategy
Read mare on pages 22 and 23

1 3 4
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Section 172(1) statement and stakeholder engagement

Continuing to deliver
value for our stakeholders

Section 172(1) Statement

Our Section 172{1} Statement sets out how the Board has
given regard to the matters set out in Sections 172(1)(a)—(f)

of the Companies Act 2006 {5172} in performing its duties
over the course of the year. The Company’s purpose, vision

and strategy are reviewed and discussed annually by the
Board ta ensure that these continue to promote the long-term
success of the Company for the benefit of its members as &
whole. whilst also having regard to the matters set out in $172.

Purpose, vision and strategy

Our purpose is to give the best possible care to animals and
our vision is to be the veterinary company people most want

to work for, This purpose and vision are in alignment with the
long-term interests of our customers, our colleagues, and other
stakeholders in the delivery of high-quality, sustainable clinical
care for animals,

Stakeholder engagement

The Board hos identified six key stakeholders who are essential
to the delivery of the Company's strategy ond long-term success.
details of which are set out in the following pages. Our colleagues,
customers, shareholders, community, industry bodies ond
suppliers are at the heart of what we do; it is of the highest
importance to us that we engage with all of our stakeholders
meaningfully te inform decision making and ensure that we
provide value in cll areas of our business. We promote an
ongoing dialogue with all of our stakehoiders to enable us to
oct on feedback and foster a culture of honesty and integrity.

Consideration of 5172 factors by the Board
The following table sets out some key decisions taken
by the Board during the year and how s172 factors ond
engagement with stakeholders have been discussed
and taken into consideration.

The Board hos a duty to act for the benefit of its members
as a whole whilst having regard to the matters set out s172;

the likely consequences of any decision in the long term;
the interests of the Company’s employees;

¢. the need to foster the Company’s business relationships
with suppliers, customers and others;

d. theimpact of the Company’s operations on the community
and the environment;

e. the desirahility of the Company maintaining a reputation
for high standards of business conduct: and

f. the need to oct fairly as between members of the Company.
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Board decision

5172 considerations

Dividend

The Board approved @
finol dividend of 7.0p per
Ordinory shore of the
Company for the yeor
ended 30 june 2022,

Links to 5172: 0, cond f

The Board considered the Company’s
capitol pasition and performance ond
agreed the continuation of its progressive
dividend policy which is based on growing
the dividend per Qrdinary share over time,

The Board also considered whether

it wos opprogriote to return capitol to
sharehalders through the use of special
dividends ond share buybacks, but
taking into consideration the long-term
investment needs of the business. the
Boord decided to reinvest capital in
supporting delivery of long-term growth.

Appointment of cdditional
Non-Executive Director
During the course of the
year, the Board conducted
a search for on additienal
Non-Executive Director to
join the Board. increasing
the independence of

the Board.

Linkstos172:0,eond f

The Board considered the independence
of the Board along with female
representation ond in the yeor conducted
a search for an additionol Non-Executive
Director. After o search and robust
interview process, Joanne Shaw was
appainted from 1 july 2023. In making this
appointment. the Boord has recognised
the requirements of stokeholders on
ensuring o diverse Board with increased
clinical expertise.

Australion market entry
During the course of the
year. the Board reviewed
the opportunity to enter a
new territory and approved
the entry of the Austrolio
veterinary services market.

Linkstosl?2:q,bandc

The Boord considered the entry into o new
market os a further growth apportunity for
the Group. After the initicl identificotion of
Germany. Fronce, Spain and Austrolio as
markets to review, it was determined
Aystrolio o be the most ottroctive maorket
and approved the acquisition of the first
tranche of high-quality small animal
veterinory practices, Subsequent to the
yeor end, the Group completed a number
of acquisitions of veterinary practices

in Austrolio.

Re-finance bank facilities
The Board opproved
entering new bonk facilities
that run to February 2027,
whilst also increosing the
facilittes to £350.0m

fram £170.0m,

Links tos172:a,band d

The Boord approved entering into 0 new
bank facility-in February 2023 for o
four-year term, The Boord considered the
growth opportunities availoble with its
capital allocation plans and agreed that
by having the copital available, it could
continue its refurbishment and relocation
plan. benefiting its employees and the
care for animals. whilst providing growth
for the longer term through entering o
new morket,




Qur colleagues

Why we engage

Qur vision is to be the veterinary company people most want to
work for. By engaging with our colleagues, we can understand
their motivations and work with them to maximise colleague
engagement and welfare. Qur focus is continving to provide our
colleagues with the flexibility ond support they need to develop
their careers.

How we engage

We issue Group-wide correspondence in the form of weekly
emails, a monthly magozine and regular live video briefings,
which are issued in English and Dutch with subtitles. to improve
accessibility. We hest on annual conference where clinical
colleggues from across our divisions can engage with other
members of the business.

We actively monitor our colleague satisfoction via our employee
Net Promoter Score (eNPS), which is updated menthly. The score
is broken down on a divisional basis, and business leaders seek
feedback in response to changes inthe score.

Although much of our day-ta-day engagement with colleagues
is delegoted to local teams, a Non-Executive Directar reguiorly
meets with our colleagues ta discuss key matters.

Qutcomes

During the year. we introduced a zero-tolerance policy for
cbusive behaviour towards colleagues, other customers or
animals, under which colleagues ore supported to deal with
abusive behaviour.

We introduced a range of new benefits and policies to support
our colleagues. acting on feedback to introduce policies relating
to significant health-related ond life events.

Our colleague eNPS score increased to 14.6 from 4.8 in 2022.

We have launched new training packoges aimed at
increasing colleaogue wellbeing in the workplace, including
a "“What matters to you?” framework, psychological safety
training and odditional suppart for leaders to improve their
impact on their colleagues’ wellbeing.

Our patients and their owners (customers)

Why we engage

Customers rightly expect the highest quality care for their
animals. Our model enables us to deliver high clinical stondards
and guality facilities.

We engage with our customers te ensure we are meeting their
high expectations, and to identify opportunities to improve
client service.

How we engage

Alongside contact within our practices, we regularly
communicate with our customers through a variety of
channels such as sociol media, email and direct mail,
promoting anima} wellbeing in addition to discounts
and benefits.

We seek feedback from customers enabling us to measure
our client Net Promgter Score.

Our practice teams engage most closely with customers,
and these colleagues are encouraged to provide regional
and central management with feedback on key issues
identified in conversotions during consultotions ond
other in-practice interactions,

Outcomes
Client NPS haos increased to 73.0 from 71.9 in 2022.

We are undertaking a programme of investment in our
veterinary practices, including changes designed to imprave
the experience for customers.

in order to support our customers with pressures on household
incomes we offer a comprehensive preventative healthcare
scheme, the Heolthy Pet Club. which also includes discounts
on various products and services, We have also introduced
measures to support our customers with unexpected vet bills.
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Section 172(1) statement and stakeholder engagement continued

Our investors (shareholders)

Why we engage

We actively engage with our shareholders, highlighting our
investment cose and communicoting our future plons, to ensure
the Group's strategy is aligned to the interests of its shareholders.

Our shoreholders hold us occountable for doing the right thing,
and by engaging with them we can understand and act on their
expectations. enabling us to drive the business forward. deliver
sustainable growth in shoreholder returns and attract additional
investars to support the business.

How we engage

We engage with our shareholders through our Annual General
Meeting {AGM), broker conferences. one-to-one meetings and
investor roadshows, We have an ongoing dialogue with our.
shareholders end value their feedback, which is regularly
discussed at Board meetings.

We keep the investor section of our website up to dote to
provide timely updotes cbout CVS and its activities.

Individual shareholders are encouraged to contact Directors

on qll motters relating to governance and strategy via the
Company Secretary. Qur Executive Directors take part in live
wehbcasts of our interim ond preliminary results announcements,
including live question and answer sessions with analysts.

Outcomes

At the 2022 AGM, 100.0% of resolutions were passed with
all resolutions achieving over 90.0% votes for. other than
the re-appointment of Richard Gray which achieved 80.19%.

tn Navember 2022, we hosted a Capital Markets Day in the
north of Englend. During this event we outlined the key elements
behind our ombition to double EBITDA over five yeors ond
provided attendees with an opportunity to tour two proctices
and take part in interactive demonstraotions.,

During the year, we paid £5.0m in dividends relating to the year
ended 3Q june 2022, representing 7.0p per share. (n 2023, we
are proposing a dividend of 7.5p per share.
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Our communities

Why we engage

We regularly engage with local communities in which our
proctices operate, communities of pet owners ond animal corers,
and the communities to which cur colleagues belong, in orderto
understand how we can support them.

By engaging with our communities, we con find ways to
contnibute positively to the environmerits in which we work,
promote employment satisfaction within our operations ond
support our communities to achieve common goals, such as
the advancement of clinical care.

How we engage

Qur practices engage within their local communities. providing
key care to animals for local charities or individuals who identify
animals in need.

We have a charity of the year, which is chosen by our
colleogues; in 2022-23 this was Pet Blood Bank. Throughout the
year we held regular fundraising events from bake sales in local
proctices to Group-wide promoted events. In 2023-24 we look
forward to supporting Guide Dogs. which haos been chosen by
our colleagues.

We are dctive within the veterinary community, engaging with
industry bodies on tapical subjects, and supporting veterinary
professionals to advance the profession, for example through
ow Clinical Reseorch Awards. We also support chorities, such
us Vetlife, which support individuals and their fomilies in the
veterinary community.

Outcomes

QOur colleogues roised neorly £19.000 in 2023 for our charity
of the vear, Pet Blood Bonk, which was matched by CVSin
Q donation to Vetlife. .

We are piloting a student outreach Equity, Diversity and
Inclusion initiative. This project is about creoting equity for all
students regardless of their background who might like a career
in our industry, raising awareness of the opportunities the
veterinary industry offers ond encouraging students to toke

up a veterinary career.



Our profession (industry bodies)

Why we engage

We actively engage with our industry bodies. including the
Royal College of Veterinary Surgeons (RCVS). the British
Veterinary Associotion (8VA) and the British Veterinary Nurses
Associotion [BVNA), to promote innpvation ond odvoncement
within the veterinary industry.

How we engage
We engoge with our regulotors over o wide ronge of issues.

Where appropriate. we hold meetings with industry boedies,
such as the RCVS. BVA, BVNA and Veterinary Defence Society,
to discuss key issues ond shore initiatives and improvements
across the industry.

Appropriote colleagues attend updote calls and webinars with
regulotory bodies to understand upcoming regulatory chonges,
such as the implementation of the addition of ESG measures to

the RCVS Practice Standards Scheme (PSS} which beganin 2023.

Outcomes

In June 2023, we again published our annual Quality Improvement
report. An organisation that is committed to quality improvement
should be prepared to share its results, celebrate progress and
recognise success in learning. which is what we aim to achieve
with this report.

We lgunched our clinical improvement projects to support our
colleagues ond also drive continuous improvement within the
industry as a whole,

We plan to put forward a number of our practices to be
assessed for the new RCVS Sustainability Award.

Qur suppliers

Why we engage

‘We are proud to have long-term relatipnships with our wholesalers
and manufacturers, regularly communicating with them to
promote positive relationships. Through these relationships

we can generate consistent custom for our suppliers, in return
achieving mutually fovourable terms on purchases.

We engoge with our suppliers to deliver ongoing benefits to our
businesses, collaboratively finding operctional and sustainable
improvements and delivering improved value.

We hove shared sustainability goals with some of our key
suppliers. We recognise that through working together we
can reduce our impact on the environment.

How we engage
We regularly communicate with our suppliers to review contract
terms and identify mutually beneficial opportunities.

Our suppliers are invited to attend our annual conference to
understand our business. engoge with other key stakeholders
ond ask any guestions they may hove,

We attend industry conferences and events which are also
attended by our existing suppliers, as well as other suppliers
that we may work with in the future. We actively engage at
these events to understond where our goals might be aligned
to those of suppliers.

Outcomes

During the year, we completed a full review of our supplier
policies, including due diligence, code of conduct and labour
force. with the engagement of existing suppliers. During this
process we aimed to add more rigour to the due diligence
process to ensure long-term relationships can be maintained
with suppliers ond odded additional questions about
sustainability and environmental impact.

We continue to nurture our strong working relationships with
some of our key suppliers, including attendance ot conferences,
inviting suppliers 1o host stonds ot our annual collecgue conference,
and inviting suppliers to be involved in charity initiotives such
as our annual CVS Team Distance Challenge. which four of

our suppliers were involved with including sponsorship.

Sustainability is a key priority for both us and many of our
suppliers, and we are working with a number of suppliers to
implement initiotives including trials of reusable equipment,
improved waste disposal, ond promoting bulk buying and
scheduled orders ta reduce freight emissions,
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Sustainability

Driving change
for the future

Our Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)

strategy, “Care at Our Heart”, is based on our
care for animals, people and the environment.

The Board has identified seven key stakehclders who are
essential to the delivery of the Company's strategy ond
long-term success. Alongside building positive working
relationships with these stakeholders, we care about
driving positive change, behaviours and actions within
these key staokehaolder groups and the environment.

Qur sustoinable future and therefore ocur ESG strategy is built
upon our need to core about:

Our patients and
their owners

Our customers ore
ot the heort of
what we do - they
are the reason our
Company exists

Our colleagues
Our ¢olleogues
moke CVS -
without them

we could not run
our Company

Our communities
Our communities
give us o social
licence to pperote,
which is required
to be o trusted
veteringry

services provider

Our profession
{Industry bodies)
Our industry
bodies help set
the course of

the grofession,
train veterinary
profassionals of
the future, ond
give us unique
first-hand insight
into environmentcl
and social issues

Qur investors
Our investors
provide us with the
copital we need to
run gur Company
and we are focused
on delivering
enhanced
shareholder value

Our suppliers
Our suppliers
provide us the
materiols we need
te provide great
clinicol care

“Qur goal is to build a more sustainable
business, driving increased standards
and a better working environment for

our colleagues.”

Richard Fairman

Chief Executive Officer
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Our environment
Qur long-term
success depends
on the sustainable
use of the

plonet's resources



1. Our patients and their owners (customers)

Who are they? ‘Why do they matter to us? ‘Whaot do they expect from us? What are the desired outcomes? What are our KPIs?
All of the Qur customers are > Actess to end-to-end care through > A healthy pet population > Our client Net Promoter
animals that at the heart of what our first-opinion proctices. our Score has incregsed to

> Outstanding clinicol expertise

we treot ond we co — they are specialist-led, multi-disciplinory +73.0(2022: +71.9)
their owners the reason our referral hospitals. our diagnostic » The best possible service for pet .
. . >
Company exists loboratories and. ot the end of an owners ond their animals Membership of our

preventative heglthcare
scheme, Healthy Pet Club,

B has increased to 489,000

> Qut-of-hours services (2022: 470,000)
Consistently high clinical standards > Patient Care Index, our
measure of quality within
our practices. has decreased

animal’s life. our compassionate
cremotion services

v

v

The prioritisation of animal welfare

> Reguiar check-ups and routine by 1.Sppts
tregtments (e.g. vaccines, fleo
tregtments ond worming)
» High standards of pain
management, porticularly
in surgicol patients
2. Our colleagues
Who are they?  Why do they matter to us? What do they expect from us? What are the desired outcomes? Whaot are our KPis?
Everyone whe  Our collecgues moke > Supporting their wellbeing > Becoming the veterinary compony > Employese Net Promoter
':r:'rlic:z CZS; "I'gt::"": them > Creating on equitoble, diverse and people most want to wark for i;zrg I\;;-‘,I;F:ef;ed to
b gv; :‘\'JTCC um an un inclusive working environment > Fulfilled vets and nurses who have . +4.8)
Y empony the equiprment and support to provide > The average number of

> Provision of career prograssion,
learning and development
opportunities including continued > Equal opportunities for all colieagues
professional deveto_pment {CPO} > A healthy and sofe workspace > Expenditure on training and
and access to top-tier development per employee
clinical expertise Hoving the best Learning. has increased by 8.0%

Educotion and Development (LED)

the best possible care for animals colleagues we employ
has increased by 7.7%

v

> Maintenonce of high standards . ; > Femnale representation on
latform in the industr:
of ¢linical governonce P n sty the Board is 25.0% and
> Hoving a culture of open diologue Executlve Committee
) is 28.6%
ond leorning
- > Femaole representation
r
> Offering competitive rewo s in oll other roles is 87.09%
and benefits
. . " > Ethnic¢ minority
> Off an i try-leadin R
IUEEZ?e ronc::f'nr:e 9 representction on the Board
9 prog is 12.5% and Executive
Committee is 14.3%
> Ethnic minority
representation in all cther
roles is 2.8%
3. Our communities
Who are they? Why do they matter to us?  Whot do they expect from us? What are the desired oytcomes? What are aur KP(s?
Those whalive Cur communities give  » Focus an quality improvement > Reduce ingpprogpriate or > Prescriptions of highest
in areos where us g sociol licence to including ontimicrobicl stewardship unnecessary use of antimicrabials priority, critically impartant
we hgve operg te. which is > Dutreoch to schools > increosing the socio-economic antibiotics have decreased
proctices requiredtobe a diversity of quolified veterinar by 20% cver the past
and sites trusted veterinary > Donotions to retevant charities 9 y two years

surgeons ond nurses in CVS and
the wider profession > In 2023, we donated
£19.000 to Pet Blood Bonk
which was motched by the
Group in o donotion ta Vetlife

services provider

> Raising money for relevant charities
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Sustainability continued

4. Our profession (Industry bodies)

Who ore they?

The veterinary
profession,
colleges,
associations
and schools

Why do they motter to us? What do they expect from us?

Our industry bedies >
help set the course
of the profession,
train veterinary
professionols of the
future, and give us
unique first-hand
insightinto
environmento!

and social issues

Regular licison with industry
bodies including the Royal College
of Veterinary Surgeons, British
Veterinary Association, British
Veterinary Nursing Associotion,
and mote

Support of veterinary schools
with intra-murol studies and
extra-murol studies

5. Qur investors (shareholders)
Why do they matter to us? What do they expect from us?

Who are they?

Individuais or
orgonisations
which invest
in CVS
through shares

Investors provide us >
with the capital we need
to run our Company

v

6. Our suppliers

Who are they?

Organisations
thot provide
us preducts
and sarvices

Why do they matter to us?

Without our suppliers, >
we would not hove

the matericls we

need to provide

great clinical care >

7. Our environment

. Who are they?

Qur notural
environment

Why da they matter to us?

Qur [ong-term success >
depends on the
sustaingble use of
the plonet's resources

v

v

Deliver sustained
financial performance

Have open diglogue ond
communication with
our shareholders

Adhere with reporting
requirements including
Streamlined Energy and
Carbon Reporting (SECR)

Link shareholder returns and
torgets to Long-Term Incentive
Plan {LTIP) owards for
Executive Directors

Link annugol bonus targets for
Executive Committee members
to non-finonciol meosures
including sustainability .

What do they expect from us?

Responsible sourcing. including
sustainoble packaging

Introduction of greener deliveries
Recycling of packaging

Support on tackling new illnesses
and disecses

What do they expect from us?

Responsible sourcing, including
sustainoble pockaging

> waste reduction initiatives ond the

analysis of waste collection doto

Use of 1009% renewable electricity
in veterinary proctices

Introduction of o graener
vehicle fleet

Whot ore the desired outcomes?

> Investment in the veterinary
profession

> Roising stondords ocross
the industry

> Increasing the numbers of high
flying groduote veterinary
professionals

what are the desired outcames?

> Sustainoble shareholder value
and leng-term growth

Shareholder consultotion on key

v

issues raised through AGM voting

or through regular meetings

v

monagement and receive
approprigte communications

Whaot ore the desired outcomes?

» Collaborotive initiatives that
reduce plostic, packaging and
delivery emissicns

‘What ore the desired outcomes?

> Monitoring and reducing our
envirgnmental impact

> Reduced waste
» Reduced emissions
» Reduced carbon footprint

> Partnership with National Trust
and tree-planting initiotive

v

environmental impact of printing

> Reduction in Vet Direct
catalogue printing

Shareholders have access 10 senior

Launch of CVS Print Hub to reduce

What ore our KPls?

> |nvolvement in setting
strategy and policy.
collaborative projects.
meetings ond events

> Tracking the numbers
of veterinary ond nurse
students we have supported
with troining

What are our KPls?

» Atthe year end the
Company's maorket
capitakisation was
£1.4bn {1,970p per share),
compared to £1.2bn
{1.656p per share) ot
the previous year end

> Attendgnce at
broker conferences

> Engogement with investors

What ore our KPIs?

> Work with our suppliers to
reduce waste entering vio
our supply choin and create
environmental supplier
standards to set out our
expectotions ond promate
good environmental proctice
from our portners

» Reduce the valume of
oroducts we use that
generate large omounts
of waste -

What are our XPIs?

> Qur energy consumpticn has
fallen by 12.3% and our total
emissions has follen by 11.19%

> 677 tonnes of medical
waoste and 1,030 tonnes
of non-medical waoste were
produced in 2023 (590 and
1.009 in 2022}

> In 2023, 36.1% of medical
waoste waos disposed via
landfill {20°22: 32.8%}. 33.1%
vig incineration (2022: 33.09%)
and 30.89% via reuse
as refuse derived fuel
(2022 34.2%)
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We developed our ESG strategy which involved at the outset > Energy and Carbon;

forming executive-led working groups to focus on six

> Waste:
programees that are most important to our stakeholders:

> One Hegalth;
> People Development;
> Wellbeing; and

> Equity, Diversity and inclusion.

uoday Abmons

Our Energy and Carbon Programme

Our challenge
Qur long-term success depends on the sustoinable use of the
plonet’s resources,

Climate crisis

Globai greenhause gas (GHG) emissions are now ot their highest levels
in history. Climate change is alreody affecting the way we live today
through extreme weather and rising temperatures and sea fevels. A
1.5°C temperature rise also puts up to 30% of wildlife at risk of extinction.

How this relates to CVS

Chmate change hos the petentiol to impoct our business in o number
of ways, including extreme weather and water scarcity. Reducing
our emissions helps to minimise these risks ond builds trust with our
stakeholders - including clients, colleagues and communities, It may
olso help to drive efficiencies ond cost sovings in the longer term,
making our business maore cest effective.

How we are responding

Caring for ammals goes hond in hand with caring for the natural
environment. We care about doing our job in o way that is sustaincble
and that does not compromise the naturol environment. Qur oim is to
minimise our impact on the planet in ¢ woy that supperts and develops
our services and clinicol expertise.

OQur approach
As aleading UK veterinory company, we know we must play our port

We ore investing in o ronge of interventions to conserve energy.
increase energy efficiency and reduce the corbon footprint of our
own operations and those within our wider supply chain.

Qur Energy and Carbon Reduction workstreoms have targeted three
specific areas:

1. user owareness and consumption management;

2. enhoncing construction, maintenance and property leasing octivities; and
3. capital expenditure in energy saving.

As part of our adoption of Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting
{SECR), we hove undertaken work to reduce cur Scope 1, 2and 3
emissions, os well as broadening the extent of our reporting to inciude
detyils of greenhouse gas emissiens {including onuesthetics which are
not covered by SECR}.

For more information on our work progrommes,
please see our 2023 Sustainability Report

Our Waste Programme

Qur challenge

Veterinary medicine generotes substantial amounts of enviranmental
waste which includes medical and non-medical waste, for example
packaging. Managing the waste has on environmentol impact
depending on whether it is recycled. gog&s to landfill or is incinerated.
This impact is reduced if it is managed well.

Qur approach

Qur approach is to Reduce, Reuse ond Recycle our waste wherever
possible. These strands can be broken down further into the following
three key orecs.

Reduce
> Optimise woste segregotion te divert waste 1o g suitable streom
with the lowest carbon footprint.

Pravide sites with accessible woste data to allow them to monitor
and track their progress.

v

> Work with our suppliers to reduce waste entering via our supply
choin and creote environmentol supplier stondords to set out our
axpectotions and promote geod enviconmental practice from
our partners.

v

of waste.

> Replace with products thot generate less waste whilst maintaining
high clinical standards.

Reuse
> Identify and evoluate reusable product alternatives.

> Avoid single-use items where possible.
Recycle

> Increase the amount of woste disposed of via standard dry, mixed
recycling through improved waste segregotion.

> Identify and trial dedicated schemes for harder to recycle items
such as soft plastics.

> Work with suppliers to creote ond share resaurces to promote
recycling of packcging where possible.
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Sustainability continued

Our One Health Programme

Our challenge

To protect the environment ond public heolth while bolancing our
primary responsibility for animal wetfare, we ore focused on the risks
caused by:

Antimicrabial resistonce - Reducing misuse and overuse of antimicrobiols
is an important area for continucus improvement in the battle against
antimicrobial resistance {AMR). to reduce the development of drug
resistont pathegens. The inappropriate disposcl of antimicrabials also
risks environmental contamination, which can contribute to AMR.

Parasiticides - The use and disposal of medicines that could getinto
the environment. Some of our products such as topicol parositicides,
whilst important for animal health and welfare. are potenticlly domaging
to our environment. Where possible. we wont te bolonce this risk and
are systematically locking ot how we con minimise our environmental
impact whilst maintaining animal welfare,

Antesthetic gases — The use of anaesthetic gases that could contribute
to global warming through depletian of the ozone layer. Qur gim is to
continue to meet the physiological needs of our patients undergoing
onaesthesia and avoid the overdelivery of anoesthetic gases during
their procedure, which wiil act to reguce our carbon footprint.

Qur approach

We use o data driven gpproach where we seek to understand the
problem and then respond to it. Where we can meosure the effects
of our interventions. that's exactly what we do.

Whether or not we hove dota, we use feedback to guide the repeated
quolity improvement process. Through integroting our experience with
dota collection and analysis, we understand our progress and enable
demonstroble improvement.

We empower our people to make change lacally. By giving people
closest 10 the issyes the resources they need we provide support that
enables locol change driven and achieved by all our proctice teams.
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Our People Development Programme

Our challenge
Our long-term success in providing the highest standords of veterinory
care in part depends on the capabilities of our colleagues.

Why it matters

Sighificont advances continue to be mode in veterinary medicine. These
include: o greater emphosis on preventotive progrommes; more effective
diognostic tools: the availability of minimally invasive treatments: the
more selective use of antimicrobials; and improved concer tregtments.

How this relates to CVS

Cur purpose is to give the best possible care to animols by providing the
highest stondards of progressive veterinary medicine. To achieve this
we need to offer our colleagues high-quality learning opportunities,
alongside excellent facilities ond resources.

How we are respanding

Cur vision is to be the veterinary company people most wont ta work for.
We aim to attract, develop and retoin the very best people. We want to
be o greot place to work and hove a iong-term fuffifling career. So we
have developed an environment which supports learning, educotion
ond development {LED), ensures we colloborote ond shore best
proctice, ond gives occess to top tier clinicol expertise.

QOur approach
Our People Development strategy has three objectives:

1. to develop our people in their current roles, including coreer pathways
and preporatien for future roles.

2. to build our relationships with mojor stakeholders. to enhance our
recruitment pipeline ond roise the standaord of new colleagues: and

3. to support broader sgciety with community autreach, schaol
engogement and client education.

Qur workstreamns fall under four key pillars:

1, to deliver industry-leading training;

2. to offer the best LED in the profession;

3.to have the best leaders in our business; and

4. to engage with the veterinary profession and support its interests.



1. 2019-2021. RCVS Workforce Summit 2021

2. https:/iwww.revs.org.uk/news-and-views/publications/revs-diversity-and-inclusion-group-strategy/

1. httpsi/www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunityiculturalidentity/ethnicity/bulletins/ethnicgroupenglondondwales/
census2021#8:~textathe9%20%22 Asion9%2C%200r%20Asian%20British,wos%2081.0%25%20{45.8%20million}

4. https:/commonslibrary.parlioment.uk/research-briefings/cbp-7540/#:~text=There%20were%209.58%20million%20people, 598%2C000%20

from%20the%20year¥%20before

Qur Wellbeing Programme

Qur challenge

Workforce shortages - Workforce shortages are a key chalienge.
There has been & decline in pegple joining the UK vetennory profession
in recent years!. The issue hos been exacerbated by a drop in new

EU registrants post Brexit and an increose in demand for vets, driven
by a surge in pet ownership.

In RCVS's recent workforce survey, 9% stated they intended to leave
the profession within five yeors, for reosons other than retirement.
The most common reosons were poor work-life balonce (60%j), not
feeling reworded or valued {55%}, chronic stress (49%j. long or
unsocial hours {(48%), and poy (449%)*.

How this relates to CVS

Qur purpose is o give the best possible care to unimols and our vision
is to be the veterinary company people most want to work for. We aim
to attract. develop and retain the best people and to creote o healthy.
motivated ond stable workforce in the long term.

How we are responding

We toke our respensibifities sericusly and continue to prioritise the
wellbeing of our people. We are taking significant steps to reduce
wark-based stress, create o heofthy ond safe workspace. support good
mental health and wellbeing, ond protect our colleagues. We aim to
have fulfilled vets and nurses who have both the resources and support
they need.

Qur approach

During the year the Group employed on average 8,520 calleggues,
including 2,215 vets and 3.125 nurses. Their continued efforts help us
to deliver our purpose of providing the best possible care to animals.

As o leading UK veterinary company, we take our responsibilities
seriously in continuolly bettering conditions for the colleagues who
work for us,

We are investing in a range of initiatives and programmes to protect
colleagues and increase wellbeing in the workplace.

Our wellbeing workstreams facus on three specific areas:

1. individugl providing support and rescurces 1o enable individual
colleagues to look ofter their own wellbeing;

2. leadership: supplying leaders with the relevant taols, training and role
modeling to enoble them to support the wellbeing of their teams: end

3. community: fostering welibeing across cur teams using our network,
activities ond events.

Qur Equity, Diversity and inclusion
{EDI) Programme

Our challenge
Equity. Diversity and Inclusion (EDI) is important for the long-term
success of our Group.

Diversity in the veterinary profession

Only 3.5% of the UK veterinary profession are Block. Asian or of Ethiic
Minority backgrounds?, despite 139 of the working age UK population
identifying cs such®. There is under-representation of peopie with disabilities.
6.7% of vets and 7.4%? of nurses identify as having o disability. in the
working age poputotion this is 23%*. The sector needs to improve its
diversity. The veterinary sector is highly feminised with 58% of vets,
979% of nurses?. and the majority of receptionists being femaole. This
influences the profession’s gender pay gop, We want to close this gop
by ensuring women have fulfilling careers and equal opportunities to
succeed at the highest level.

How this relates to CVS
To increase the levels of diversity we first need to ensure that we are
fostering an inclusive ond equitoble workplace environment,

Continucus clinicol improvement relies on cultivating o “just culture”
where learning is continuous, diverse perspectives are invited, challenges
are welcomed and people feel psychologicoliy safe to speak up.

There is o correlation between colleagues feeling included and how
positive they feel about our Company. This reduces attrition and will
improve the sustoingbility of our workforee.

Our approach
Nurturing an inclusive culture takes conscious effort over time,
So we have set out o tan-yeor plon:

Year 1: Awareness {2021-22):

Year 2: Foundational understanding {2022-23).
Yeors 3-5: Growing competence {2023-26); and
Yeors 5-10. In¢clusion fluency.

During our first “Awareness” year we increased our orgonisation’s
seff-kriowledge and set up EDI structures. We established five Colleague
EDI Groups {obility ond neurodiversity, ethnicity. gender. LGBTQ+ and socicl
makility). introduced systems to capture diversity data, and storted o survey
to inform our ED] opproach.

Last year's “Foundational understanding” phose has built a good level of
EDI understanding ond includes octions within ol six of our EDI strategy pillars:

1. understonding our workforce:

2. inclusive culture;

3. inclusive leodership;

4. oddressing inequalities ond meeting diverse needs:
S. inclusive recruitment; and

6. develbping diverse talent.
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Sustainability continued

Looking ahead

As we look ohead to 2024 we have some clear priorities outlined which wili enoble the continued delivery of our sustainaobility focus:

Progromme The Quicome — 2023 Our target - 2024 and heyand ESG
Our Energy & Reduced our business energy use by 12.3%. Reduce our business energy use by 59, E
Carbon Programme J Reduced our operational carbon footprint by 11.1%. | Reduce sur eperational carbon foatprint by 3%. E
Our Waste IEin the last yeor we achieved an 1.85% reduction We gim to reduce our medical waste by a further 59, E
Programme in our annual medical waste thot is incinerated. We will olso gim to reduce the medical waste thatis incinerated | g
This is the category of woste thot hos the highest by 59%.
environmental impoct.
We olso reduced our total volume of medicol
waste by 2.2% in the twelve-month period.
Our One Health CVS has seen a consistent decrense of 20% in Gur aim is to promote responsible use of antibiotics and reduce ES
Programme the prescriptions of Highest Priarity Critically their use in o way that is consistent with animal welfare.
Importont Antibiotics (HPCIAS) by all companion | Ty ynderstand better the impact of topicol parasiticides on the ES
animal practices in the last twenty-four months. environment and insect life in particular.
The Introduction of the practice-specific doshboord | 14 and the use of Nitrous Oxide, which has been achieved of the £s
has also encouraged practices to pursue their own end of the period, and to reduce the overuse of commonly ysed
individual improvement projects. anaesthetic goses.
We have elimineted the use of Nitrous Oxide
in practices.
Our People Reduced attrition. Increase our eNPS score by 5%. S
Development Reduced vet attrition. Reduce attrition rotes by 5%.
Programme Increased the gverage number of vets employed
by 6.5% (cgainst o 1% market growth),
Achieved 200 greduote vets employed (20-25%
of the avoilable UK poof).
Achieved an improvement in our Employee Net
Pcomoter Score (@eNPS).
Cur Wellbeing Qverall, our eNPS reflects the number of people Ensure that cur colleagues are having regular check-ins where s
Programme who would recommend us os a good ploce to their wellbeing is a key topic of conversation.
work. During the lost twelve months our eNPS Incraose the % of colleggues saying we provide relevant and s
hios increased to +14.6 from +4.8. We have also: helpful wellbeing resources to 70%.
> incraosed the number of colieagues saying our Ensure thot our colleagues are having regulor team mestings. s
wellbeing resources are refevant and useful -
from 63.0% in August 2022 to 66.4% in June
2023; ond
> increased the number of colleagues saying
work hos hod on overoll positive effect on
their wellbeing - from 40.5% in August 2022
to 45.4% in June 2023,
Our Equity, We have embedded Foundational Understanding | Within three years of the launch of our EDI programme in June 2022, | AllS

Diversity and
Inclusion {(ED1)
Progromme

of ED} through; policy implementation, supportive
training resources, and initiatives that address
the needs of under-represented groups.

The proportion of colleagues reporting they feel
equally included at work has risen from 75%
(Culture Survey, Feb 2022} to 83.6% (Jun 2023).

The proportion of colleogues reporting they feel
sofe to present themselves ot work, sow a rise
from 739 (Feb 2022) tc B4.6% (jun 2023)
following the lounch of our Psychologicol
Sofety training {Aug 2022).

Steps we've made have contributed te an
increased eNPS score and a reduction in
colleague attrition levels,

our torgets ore to:

> Increase the % of colleagues saying they feel equally included
ot work to B5%.

> Attain the below workforce dote completion rates:

workforce dato cempletion raotes Target 3 years

Ethnicity 80%
Sexval Orientation 65%
Disability 65%
Gender identity 50%
Saciol Mobility 30%
> Achieve the following workforce representation:

Workforce representation  Veterinary sector Within
Godals benchmork (RCVS 2021) 3 years
Ethnic Diversity (Black, Vets 3.5% Vets: 4%
Asion, & other Ethnic Nurses 1.9% Nurses: 2.4%
Minority backgrounds Other: 4%
Qverall; 4%

Disability vets 6.7% vets: 6%
representation Nurses 5.29% Nurses: 79
Other: 6.5%

Overall: 6.5%
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A focus on

Rosemullion Veterinary Hospital
in Falmouth recognised for
outstanding work

Our Rosemullion Veterinary Practice in Falmouth hos achieved
six "outstanding” accreditations from the Royal College

of Veterinary Surgeons (RCVS) in its Proctice Standards
Scheme Awards (PSS).

Rasemullion Veterinary Hospital received “outstanding”
accreditations for its hard work ond exceptional standards in
patient consultation service, diagnostic service, emergency and
critical care service, in-patient service, client service, and tearn
and professional responsibilities.

Lounched in 2015. the RCVS Practice Standards Scherne
Awards is a voluntary scheme, enabling vets to accredit their
practices in a range of specific areas. It is done via an external
inspection and ossessment by an inspector from the Royal
College of Veterinary Surgeons which normally lasts two days.
The practice is awarded points agoinst set criteria and the
number of points accumuloted determines if they achieve a
“good” or “outstanding” rating. Itis unusual for a practice to
apply for s© many owards at the same time and few achieve
alt six awards.

Susan Hawkins, Practice Manager at

Rosemullion Veterinary Hospital, said:

“I'm exceptionally proud of our 80 colleagues for this
achievement. We aim to offer the best possible care to
animals and ta do this we always strive to work to the
highest standards. in oddition we try to create o supportive
team culture within the proctice to make it ¢ great place to
work. So we are thrilled that our hard work over many months
has now been recognised as “outstonding” by the RCVS.”

In July 2023, the RCVS issued a further oward for
sustainability, so practices will have the opportunity -
to achieve up to seven awards in the future.
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Non-financial and sustainability information statement

Preparing for the potential
impacts of climate change

Caring for animals goes hand in hand with coring for the
notural environment, so climate-related risks and opportunities
are a key factor of consideration in the short, medium and
long-term strategic planning of the Group. Our aim is to
minimise our impact on the plonet in a way that supports

and develops our services and clinical expertise.

In 2022. we applied the Task Force on Climate-Related
Financial Disclosures (TCFDj recommendations for the first
time, to begin the journey of understanding our impact on the
environment. This year, we developed our climate-related
scenario analysis, gathering an understanding of the potential
climate scenarios in our future, the impacts of these on our
business, ond the strotegic steps we con toke to ensure we
are prepared,

Over the following poges we have applied the TCFD -
recommendations, including:

Governance

Disclosure requirement Our progress

> scenario ghalysis which includes a global warming scencrio
os well os o net zero scenario:

> setting torgets tor short, medium and long-term to lessen
harmful environmental impocts of our business ond increose
environmentally friendly activities; and

> reviewing and improving our processes around
monitoring our environmental impact and managing
climate-reloted risks.

To ensure open communication with stokeholders on progress,
we have chosen to ecrly adopt the disclosure recommendations
of the TCFD in this Annual Report. In the table below, we have set
out our progress agoinst the eleven recommended disclosures.

The Group has included dimate-related financial disclosures as
required by the Companies (Strategic Report} (Climate-related
Finoncial Disclosure) Regulations 2022 (S| 2022/31).

Find out mare

Describe the
Hoard's oversight
of climate-reloted
risks and
opportunities

The Board has overall responsibility for ensuring risk is oppropriately manoged ocross the Group,
including risks relating to Environmental, Social and Gavernance {ESG) matters and climate
change. The composition of the Board, and the members’ expertise, enakles substantiol coverage
ocross risk monogement. governance & legal, eperotions. technological ond strotegy. os set out on
pages 70 and 71. This ensures o balanced ond extensive consideration to climate-reloted risks and
opportunities that impact the Group.

In 2021, the Group formed an ESG Implementation Group, chaired by the Chief Executive Officer
{CEO). to assist the Baard in identifying the risks ond opportunities orising s a resuit of climate
change and sustdinability. Addressing the climate challenge is @ key port of our wider ESG strategy.

Sustainability and ESG. including climate-related issues, ore discussed os o stonding ogenda item in
Board meetings, with the CEQ presenting the octivities of the ESG Implementation Group with key
findings and metrics reviewed against set criteria and targets. In 2023 there ware 11 Board meetings.

The Group has increased the volume and regularity of its climote-reluted reporting, with the
publication of our second onnual Sustoinability Repart in 2023, which again includes dato under
the Sustainability Accounting Stondords Board {(SASB) standards, The Group has made significont
efforts to ensure this reparting is foiv, balanced, and understandoble, for example by adapting
metrics and, where necessary. prowiding supporting discussion to explain sources of dato or
colculotion methods,

The Board feels thot the business is prepared for potential short-term climate-related issves which
are discussed later in this report, due to the strength of its integrated model.

2023 Sustainability
Report gvaiable on gur
Investor Website www.
cvsukitd co.uk/
investor-centre/

2023 Annual Report:
Principal Risks and
Uncertainties on pocges
60to 68

2023 Annuai Report:
Remuneration
Committee report

on pages 83 io 93
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Disclosure reguirement

Our progress

Find out mare

Describe
manggement's
role in assessing/
managing climate-
related risks

ond opportunities

The ESG Implementation Group, chaired by the CEQ, has ossisted in the identification of climate-related
risks and opportunities, ond helped to set climate-related targets across the Group.

Board
Monthly updotes delivered by Chiefl Execytive Officer

ESG Implementation Group
Chaired by Chief Executive Officer

Working Groups

Energy Waste One Peaple Wellbeing Equity,
and Carbon Chaired by Heolth Development Chaired by Diversity
Chaired by Purchasing Chaired by Chaired by Graup HR and ndusion
Group Director Director of Group HR Director (EDNY)
Property Quality Director Chaired by
Director Improvement Group HR
Director

Within CVS, working groups have been formed to manitor, assess, and understond our impact on
areas including energy. carbon and waoste. These groups are led by senior monagement, and are
already making gaod prograss, having developed their own terms of reference. and set work in
mation to ensure thot we are doing the right thing, and to challenge us to go further. For example.
the Waste working group has developed key cbiectives to segregote waste appropriately for
effective recycling, to replace single-use items with reusable items where possible and to engage
with suppliers around their sustoinability policies.

The Group hos been able to diversify its climate-related assessments and menitaring with the
working groups spanning across the business from collengues in our practices to the support office
which provides o wider remit of input to be gained with relevant end innovative measures.

This enables monthly information and monitoring to be reported back to our CEQ, the chair of the
ESG Implementation Group. with progress reports and improvement areas across the Group which
is subsequently fed back to the Board as port of the standing agenda item.

The Group intends to introduce further ESG targets and KPls, including climate-related targets,
against which progress can be reported to the Board to ensure consistent and comparable
information is avoiiable to support decision-making.

Business mode

Disclosure requirernent

and strategy

Qur progress

Find out mare

Describe the
climate-related
risks and
oppottunities
identified in the
short, medium,
and long term

The Group's continued long-term success depends on the social and environmental sustaingbility
of its operations. There is ¢ risk thot potential climote-reloted issues can have an adverse effect en
finonciol or operaticnal perfoermaonce. including our ability to fulfil operotioncl octivities. disruption
of supply chain. cost of production. and demand for services,

The Group's strategy. long-term sustainobility and growth potential also rely on how the Group
assesses risks and opportunities and takes action to reduce the environmental impact of
operations. Below we hove detailed scme of the key climate-related risks and opportunities we
tave identified.

As an AlM-listed business. risks ond apportunities which will impact cur finoncial performance are
considered financiclly materiol as these are likely to impoct the decision-maoking of our investors
and potential invastors, particularly our financial Key Performaonce Indicatars (KPIs) as disclosed on
pages 24 and 25. Therefore. the Board considers that those risks that ore likely to impact these
metrics the most significantly ore the most financially material to the Group.

A scenaric analysis has been performed. toking into occount three climate scenarios. Using the
research and models produced by the Netwark for Greening the Financial System {NGFS), we
identified scenarios across the spectrum of transition risks and physical risks. The Divergent Net
2ero scenario hos high transition risks and low physical risks: the Net Zaro 2050 scenario has low
transition risks and low physical risks; and the Current Policies scenario has low tronsition risks and
high physical risks.

2023 Quality
Improvement report
published on our
website www.cvsukitd,
co.uk/wp-content/
uploads/2023/06/
QI-Report-2022-23-v6.pof

2023 Annua! Report:
Principal Risks and
Uncertainties on
pages 60 to 68
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Non-financial and sustainability information statement continued

Business mode! and strategy continued

Disclosure requirement Our progress Find out more
Describe the Based on guidance from the TCFD. we hove onafysed the driving forces of each scenario and whether
climate-reloted these represent risks or opportunities. We considered the potential impocts on our stakeholders,

risks and particulorly our suppliers ang customers os the stokeholders with the most moterial impoct on the

e busineas. We hawe unulysed the potential financial impacts v assets, revenue. costs. and other
opportunities ! " . o X . " i

. ki s financiol metrics and used o probability-impact matrix to ossign a RAG rating to each risk or
identified in the , s -, . - B "

X d opportunity considering the Political, Economic, Social, Technological, Legal and Environmental
short, medlum‘. an (PESTLE) landscopes. This brought 36 potential financially impacting risks and opportunities in which
long term continued | e have broken down into Short-to-Medium-Term (0-5 years), Medium-to-tong-Term (5-10 years]
ond Long Term {10+ years). This subset is then categorised into its RAG stotus bosed an its impact to
the Group’s finonciol position. Finally, we considered the strategic options for the business to take in
order to address the risks and optimise the opportunities posed by dimate change.

Bosed on this detailed assassment, we remoin confident in the strength of cur pecple-focused
strategy ond fully-integrated veterinary services business model in oddressing the risks and
opportunities of climate change. We will continue 1o review the scenoric analysis annually.

Divergent Net Zero

The Divergent Net Zero scenario reaches net zero by 2050 but with higher costs due to divergent
policies intreduced across sectors and g quicker phase out of fossil fuels. We identified a range of
risks and apportunities in this scenaria, including:

> an opportunity for CVS to continue to diffarentiate 0s a high-quolity brand with a transparent
approdch to cerbon reporting:

> arisk that supply chains relying on less developed countries who decarbonise less successfully
than more developed countries, results in poor brond image; whereas prefit margins could be
adversely impacted by moving supply chains to more developed countries and therefore reducing
the environmental impoct of the business and its supply chains:

v

o risk thot geclining crop yields ond incrensed row maoterio) prices couse growing inflotion.
reducing disposcble income and putting increased cost-of-living pressure on households,
This may reduce demand for veterinary services due to a reduction in pet population; and

Ll

arisk that carbon tox sthemes are introduced. including berder taxes which offect supply chains
and cause significant econamic disruption.

Net Zero 2050

Reaching net zero global CO2 emissions by 2050 will require an ombitious transition ocross all

sectors of the econamy. This scenoric emphasises the importance of decarbonising the efectricity

supply, increasing electricity use, increasing energy efficiency, and developing new technologies

to tackle hard-te-abate emissions. Risks and opportunities identified in this scenario include;

> rigks that some customers and business areas will be significantly impacted by changing
lifestyles. such as on increase in meat-free diets significantly reducing the Farm animal
veterinary market:

> opportunities arising from behavioural changes towards reduced international travel and
increased leisure time. which are likely to see increases in pet populations and o demand for
preventative veterinary care;

> despite globol warming being limited to 1.5 degrees, environmental risks remgin such as more
intense monsoon seasons in Asia disrupting food preduction, and longer and hotter UK summers
causing eperational challenges:

> significant policy chonges such as the ban on the sale of new petrof and diesel cors causing risks
such as reduced household income and increased taxes: and

> risks orising from g slowing of globol economic growth and rising carbon prices,
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Disclosure requirement

Cur progress

Find out more

Describe the
climate-related
risks and
opportunities
identified in the
short, medium, and
long term continued

Current Policies

while many countries have started to introduce climate policies, they aore not yet sufficient to
achieve officiol commitments and targets. If no further measures are intraduced. 3 °C or more of
worming could accur by 2100. This would likely result in deteriorating living conditions in many
parts of the world ond lead to some irreversible impacts like sea-level rise.

Physical risks to the economy could resuit from disruption to ecasystems, heolth, infrastructure

and supply choins.

» The current temperatures are the highest they have been for 12,000 years and if there isn't
sufficient changes to current policy then extreme tempercture changes could be expected
throughout the 215t century.

> On the current trajectory, with the highest emissions of greenhouse gosses since the industrial
revolution, globol warming of 1.5°C could be reached in the 2030s, 2°C nround 2050 and 3°C
in the 2090s.

Describe the impoct
of climate-related
risks and
opportunities

on the Graup's
businesses,
strategy and
financial planning

As part of the scenario and risk onalysis described on pages 41 to 43 ("Describe the impoct of
climate-related risks and opportunities the Group's businesses, strotegy end financiol planning”),
we have considered the impoct of tha identified climate-related risks and opportunities on the
business’ assets, revenue, costs, and cther finoncial metrics. We identified through this analysis a
requirement to monitor the valuation of assets for the possible impact of climote-reloted risks which
may result in impairment of those assets. For example, a significant decline in demand for meat and
ather animol-derived products os a social impact of the Net Zero 2050 scenario could reduce the
market far veterinary core for farm onimals: as a result, the Group may be reguired to impair ossets.
in the Farm division.

The Group will continue to monitor KPIs including revenue, EBITDA morgin, energy costs ond salery
costs to ensure the business medel remains appropriate to cope with the patentiol impacts of future
climate-related scenarios, including:

> increased energy costs os Corbon. Copture and Storage (CCS) and Carbon Dioxide Removal
{CDR) technologies are implemented ond costs passed on to consumers;

> increased costs of consumables due to environmental impacts on the supply chain. including
maoving supply ta more developed countries which are less impacted by ¢limate change:

> o reduction in disposable income as a result of inflotien in raw moterial eosts, declining crop
yields, and other focters, increasing pressure on colleague's salaries: ond

> potential fiscal measures such os corbon tox schemes, border taxes ond government support
schemes increosing the Group's tax expense.

Conversely. the Group's diversified business and integrated veterinary services model positions
it well ta benefit from climate-related opportunities. including:

> reduced internationol travel and the resulting increosed domestic leisure time increasing the
demand for pets ond therefore the pet population and number of clients for our Compenion
Animal veterinary division;

> omore holistic understanding of prasperity increases customers’ desire for quality services ond
leisure time, increasing the demand for cur preventative healthcare services to ensure longevity
and good health of pets; gnd

> the share of online soles increasing due to a reduction in travel or during extreme weather events
providing enhanced oppertunities for our online retail business.

In preparing this Annual Report. the Group hos, where possible, cansidered the impoct of
climate-reloted risks ond opportunities on the Group's businesses. strategy, and financial planning.
Considergtion hos been made os ta the impairment of tangible and intangible assets held at the
end of the year. in line with the Group's annual impairment review, As o result of the impairment
review undertaken this year, there were no tangibie or intangible assets which required impoirment
on the grounds of climote-relgted impact and carbon emissions.

In future years, the Group's accounting pelicies and impairment reviews will festure climote-reloted
criterio which will be empirical and quantifioble of which the Groups assets will be reviewed
against. At the present time, no changes were mode to the Group's accounting pelicies, estimates
of judgements. In line with developments in climate chonge, the related reporting thereof and the
climate-related initiatives we have put in place. we expect thase disclosures to evolve in future years.

2023 Annual Report:
Sustainability on pages
32t0 46

2023 Annual Report:
Financial statements
Accounting Policies on
pages 1i5to 124
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Non-financial and sustainability information statement continued

Business model and strategy continued

Disclosure requirement

Our progress

Find out more

Describe the
resilience of the
Group's strategy,
toking into
consideration
different climate-
related scenarios,
including o 2*C or
lower scenario

As part of the scenario ond risk analysis described on poges 41 10 43 ("Describe the impact of
climote-reloted risks and opportunities the Group's businesses, strategy and financial planning”),
we have considered the impact of the identified climate-related risks and opportunities on the
business’ strategy.

In order to monage the climate-related risks and oppartunities identified in the scenarios
censidered, we hove highlighted some strategic optians to coansider in future business planning.
The Group’s current strategy for growth includes organic growth through capital investment in
existing and new facilities, and inorganic growth through synergistic acquisitions. This strategy
enobles the Graup to be flexible in deciding where to deploy capital, therefore climate-related
issues such os moss migration os o result of rising sea levels, can be adopted into our strategy.,
for example by choosing alternative sites in which to invest.

Further, we have identified strategic points to monitor and focus on. including:

> continuing to increase transparency and occuracy of carbon end climate-related reporting
in order to maintain positive brand olignment with “green” goals:

v

maintaining facus on high-quality clinical care and preventative veterinary care to appeol to the
conscientious cusiomer ond increosing demand For Quolity ond decline of “throw-owoy” culture; ond

> maintgining strong relotionships with suppliers whilst auditing and monitoring supply chains
to reduce supply disruption, increosed costs resulting from carbon taxes. and the likelihood
of “greenwashing” scandols within the supply chain.

2023 Annual Report:
Principal Risks ond
Uncertainties on pages
60 to 68

2023 Annual Report:
Market overview on
poges 14to 17

Risk management

Disclosure requirement

. Qur progress

Find out more

Describe the
Group’s processes
for identifying and
ussessing climate-~
related risks

As an AlM-listed business, risks and opportunities which will impact our fingncial performonce are
considered financiolly moterial as these are likely to impact the decision-making of our investors
ond potential investors, porticulary cur financial Key Performance [ndicators {(KPis} as disclosed
on pages 24 and 25 of this Annual Report. Therefore, the Boord considers that those risks thot are
likely to impact these metrics the most significantly are the most financially moterial to the Group.

As described on pages 41 to 43 ("Describe the impoct of climate-reloted risks ond opportunities the
Group's businesses, strategy ond financial planning™). we have completed a detoiled scenario
analysis which includes a risk and opportunities ossessment. roting the probability and impact

of the identified risks.

2023 Annual Report:
Principal Risks and
Uncertainties on poges
&0 to 68
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Disclosure requirement

Our progress

Find out more

Describe the
Group's process for
managing climate-
related risks

The Board regulorly undertokes assessments of the emerging and printipal risks facing the Group,
including climate-reloted risks ond climate-reloted impacts on other risks. The £5G Implementation
Group and members of senior manogement monitor these risks on a day-to-day bosis. reporting
changes to the Boord where necessary.

The Group has identified o range of dlimate-related risks, both transitional and physical.

Toe little, too iate

Assume that a lote transition fails to (imit
physical risks. No scenarios have been
specifically designed for this purpose,
This spoce can be explored by ossuming
higher physical risk outcomes for the
disarderly scenarios.

Disorderly

Assume significant ¢climote action but with
deloys or regional tensions, The two
ossociated norratives within this cotegory
are the Divergent Net Zero scenario, which
reaches net zero by 2050, but where oction
anly commences in 2030, and the Divergent
Tronsition scenario. where different regions
pursue uncoordinated policies of tronsition.
These scenorios both result in around 1.5°
of warming in 2100, respactively, but with
muth more severe econgmic disruption.

Scenarios: Divergent Net Zero,
Delayed Tronsition

Hot house world

Assume limited additional cimate action is
token. and physical damoges from climate
change continue to mount. In the more
optimistic narrative, countries fulfil their
Nationally Determined Contributians (NDCs}
but nathing more, leading to warming of over
2.5*C in 2100. The more pessimistic norrative
{termed "Current Policies’} assumes cimate
policies ore not strengthened. leading to
warming of over 3*C by 2100,

Orderly

Assume global climate gction eccurs
steadily and efficiently. The two associated
norratives within this cotegory are the Net
Zero 2050 scenario. which limits end-of-
century warming to below 1.5°C. and the
Below 2°C scenoro, @ slightly less
ambitious pethway that results in below
2°C of warming in 2100.

Scenarios: Net Zero 2050. Below 2°C

Transition Risks

Scenarios: Current Policies, Nationally
Determined Contributions (NDCs)

Physical risks

We have not identified any risks which we currently expect could hove o significant er critical
impact on the Group.

Within this pracess, we have also considered the strategic actions which can be taken to mitigote
these risks, as described on poge 44 [“Describe the resilience of the Group’s strategy, taking into
cansideration different climate-related scenarios, including @ 2°C or lower scenario”).

The Directors have assessed the prospects of the Group in line with the “Going concern” provision
for o period of five years, os disclosed in the Directors' Report on pages 94 to 97, and have concluded
the business is vioble ond will remain vioble up to at least 30 june 2028,

Sustainability and ¢limate change ore key considerations of the Group. ond the potential impocts
hove therefore been built into the Group’s going concern and viability assessment.

This ossessment is reconsidered an at least on annuol basis, and any significant signals that
climate-related issues are likely to have animpact on this ossessment would be identified by the
working groups responsible for menitoring ond ossessing matters relating to sustainability end
ESG. These working groups feed back to the ESG Implermentation Group. which provides a report
to the Board 6t eoch Board meeting as a standing agenda item.

2023 Annuol Report:
Principal Risks and
Uncertainties on poges
60 tc 68

2023 Annual Report:
Directors’ Reporton
pages 94 to 99

Describe how
processes for
identifying,
assessing and
managing climate-
related risks are
integrated into the
Group's overall risk
management

The Group’s everall risk management approach is described in the Principal Risks end Uncertainties
report on pages 60 to 68. One of the principal risks identified by the Boord is Sustainability ond
climate change.

The impact and probability of this risk is reviewed on at least a bi-annual basis, including review
of the mitigating factors in place, ond any changes since the lost review,

The Group has olso developed a fromework for assessing climote-related risks using o scenaria
analysis, which is described on obove.

2023 Annual Report:
Principal Risks and
Uncertainties on pages
&0t 68
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Non-financial and sustainability information statement continued

Metrics and targets

Disclosure requirement

Our progress

Find out more

Disclose the

metrics used by

the Group to assess
climate-relnted risks
and opportunities

in line with its
strategy and risk
management process

The Group hos a standalone ESG strategy. "Care at Our Heort™. which underpins the Group's
averall strategy and business maodel.

To support the delivery of this strategy, aur working groups in €nergy and carbon, waste, One
Health, peapte develupment, wellbeing and DT monitor and ossess our impact in these areas.
Each group has its own terms of reference and targets. within which ciimote-related challenges
can be identified and managed.

in addition, we publish an onnual Sustoinability Report in which we produce o full disclosure report
under the Sustainahility Accounting Standards Board [SASB) standards. This reporting framework
was selected to provide religble dota on finoncially material sustainability factors which is comparable
and consistent. thereby assisting investors to make better investment and voling decisions.

SASR standards are industry specific, and under the current classification system used by SASB,
there is no single industry framework that would be fully aligned with the indicatars relevant to o
veterinary business.

To maxwmise the transparency and suitabitity of our reparting. we decided to repoart against two
industry-specific sets of standurds within SASB: “Heaith Care Delivery”, and “Muitiline and
Speciality Retailers & Distributors™. In some cases, the metrics within the SASB standards were
adapted to suit the Group's business and markets. We were odvised and supported in the selection
of the SASB framework, and the reporting of this data, by an external expert which also advised in
the creatian of our Care ot Qur Heart strategy.

In most cases, the dato required to report agoinst SASE metrics is available internally. This is with
the exception of same energy and carbon dota, for which we use an external energy consultancy
which alsa supports us in the deiivery of our Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR]) in
our Annucl Report.

The Board is aware that the Group has runway to improve in a range of sustainability and
climate-rejated metrics, One of the key intentions when publishing the Sustainability Report and
SASB dotu is to ensure accountability across the Group in delivering improvements to these
metrics. The creation of our ESG working groups helps to disaggregate responsibility for delivering
progress in the Group's sustainability and readiness for climote-relfated risks and opportunities.

Whilst SASB standards are for the purpose of a holistic reporting of sustainability, there is limited
climate-related metrics, The Group reports olternative climate-related metrics within the SASB
section of gur 2023 Sustainability Réport, however there are not currently specific timelines for
improvement of these metrics,

2023 Sustainability
Repart gvaitable on
our Investor Website
www.cvsukitd.co.uk/
investor-centre/

2023 Annual Report:
Streamlined Energy and
Cearbon Reporting on
poges 98 to 59

Disclose Scope 1,
Scope 2 and,

if uppropriate,
Scope 3 greenhouse
gas (GHGj emissions
and the reloted risks

The Group's Scope 1, Scope 2 and Stope 3 emissions and the methodology for caolculoting these
ore disclosed in the SECR report within our 2023 Annual Report on pages 98 to 99.

The SECR lays out the total emissions. as well as the methodology applied. An internal carbon
price is coleulated te normalise yeor~on-year dota, by calculoting the emissions in tonnes of CO,
per £m of revenue resulting in an intensity ratio. This ollows for mare effective year-on-year
comparison which represented a 18.99% reduction from 21,2 to 17.2 tCO,e per £m revenue

from 2022 to 2023.

2023 Annual Report:
Streamlined Energy
and Carbon Reporting
on pages 98 te 99

Describe the
targets used by the
Group to manage
climate-related
risks and
opportunities

and performonce
against targets

The Group has initiatives in ploce to reduce its impoact on the environment, which gre disclosed in
our Sustainability Aeport. Qur purpase is to give the best possible care to animals and. to be able
to deliver this purpose. the Group must be able to continue in operation despite climote-reloted
risks. Therefore. the Boord is overseeing the implementation of specific forgets relating to

climate resilience.

We have set sustainability-reloted targets in bonuses for Directors and other Senior Management,
for the financial year to 30 June 2023, os a strategy to incentivise the achievement of ¢limate-
related torgets. These are included in the non-financiol companents of the bonus entitlernent
which represent 20% of the availoble bonus. These are set out in our Remuneration Committee
Repoart on page B5 and specified below,

The five non-financisl components each present 4% of the banus entitlement:

> Patient Care Index — an increase of one percentage point. Actual Patient Care Index reduced
in the year by 1.5ppts ond therefore this target wos not met.

> Attrition — 10.0% reduction, Attrition fell by 17% in the year ond therefore this target was met.

> eNPS - 50.0% improvement in emplayee net promaoter score. @NPS incregsed by 204.2% in the
year and therefore this target was met.

Clinical waste — 5.0% raduction in total ¢linical waste {(measured across existing CVS sites and
excluding acquisitions in yaar). Tota clinical woste reduce 5.6% and therefore this target was met.

v

Client NPS - 5.0% improvementin client net promoter score. Client NPS incregsed by 1.5%
in the year and therefore this target wos not met.

v

2023 Sustainability
Report gvoilable on
our investor Website
www. cvsukitd.co.uk/
investor-centre/

2023 Annuol Report:
Rermuneration
Committee Report

on puges 83 to 93
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Operational review

Continuing to attract great talent
to deliver the best possible care
for our patients and their owners

| am once again proud to present o review of our operations,
on behalf of all our dedicated colleagues across each of our
divisions. in an inflationary envirenment which has been
challenging for consumers and businesses across many other
industries, we hove seen another successful year characterised
by investment in our core businesses. These investments
further our pursuit of the best possible care for our patients
and working environments that attract the very best veterinary
tolent. They are a testament to the continued resilience of
clients in the veterinary sector and, particularly for Cv'5, their
ongaing desire to give their pets the very best care they can,

We launched our strategy back in 2019: a purpose to give

the best possible care to animals, which we will deliver through
our vision to be the veterinary company people most want

to work for. Underlying our purpose and vision are our four
strategic pillars:

> we recommend and provide the best clinical care every time;

Ben Jacklin > we are o great ploce to work and have o caoreer:

Deputy Chief Executive > we provide great facilities and equipment; and
Officer A .
> we take our responsibilities seriously.
We continue to demonstrate that through delivery of this
strotegy we achieve strong and sustainable growth.

QOur clinicat leadership teams continue to work with our
colleogues and proctices delivering clinical development and
quality improvement. During the year we executed a number
of clinical improvement projects. developed by our clinical
leadership teoms. In 105 of our first-opinion componion
animal practices we launched a preject to increase screening
for hypertension (high blood pressure) in older cats. Up to
40% of cats over seven years old will have hypertension,
many of which are undiagnosed. Undiagnosed hypertension
can lead to serious disorders affecting the brain, heart and
kidneys, including weight loss. retinal disease and renal failure
omangst other serious complications. However, early diagnesis
can lead to significantly better outcomes for each patient.
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Operational review continued

“During the year we executed a number of
clinical improvement projects, developed by
our clinical leadership teams.”

This project led to 5,984 additional bicod pressure measurements
to screen cats for hypertension. and 444 more cats being
diagnosed and treated in the participating sites. This is just
one example of the difference we caon moke to all stakeholders
with clinical projects such as these. First and foremost we can
improve outcomes for potients, while improving the experience
and outcome for clients and ultimately generating revenues
from the occurate diagnesis and treatment of clinical cases.

Being a grect place to work and have a career is our ambition
for all of our colleagues, not just vets. Our veterinary nurses
perform a vital role in practice and during the year we took
time to understand why nurses leave their roles and the sector,
and what foctors predict those who will leave. The study used
multivariable logistic regression analysis to identify that higher
quality property facilities were predictive of nurses choosing
not to leave, underlining the importonce and benefit of
investment in our facilities.

The dota used for the study was from 2021, and since then we
have seen a continued reduction in attrition within our nursing
population and across the Company. probably in part due to
the investments we have maode in facilities across CVS. During
the year we completed 21 maojor property projects, including
15 major relocations, 5 refurbishments and a new greenfield
site in Southport. Alongside those facilities investments

we have continued to invest in developing career pathways
and new employee benefits, ond improving wellbeing and
engagement, all of which move us towards our vision.

We have opened a second nurse training school, based in
Norfafk, which is in addition to cur existing school at Chestergates.
This enables us to train more of our own student veterinary
nurses and help them to qualify as Registered Veterinary
Nurses, as well as offering training to same external students,
Such career development apportunities are critical to those
colleagues ospiring to become veterinory nurses, ond being
able to train nurses in house is o significant benefit.
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The research into nurse ottrition was led by our Group Director
of Clinical Research, and recegnised by publication in the

“Vet Record”. a leading peer-reviewed scientific journal in

the profession.

Alongside the continued opportunities to invest in and

grow our organic business, we continue to see significant
opportunity for acquisitions in the UK and further afield.

We continue to follow the guidance issued by the Competition
and Markets Authority and have successfully completed

11 acquisitions of 16 practice sites in the year. Continuing the
discipline of acguisitions opplied over the lost few years these
are high-quality proctices that fit with our provision of the best
possible care, and | warmly welcome these new colleagues

to CVS.

Sustainability remains ot the heart of what we do. and

| am pleosed that we continue to focus on o wide variety of
initiatives that we feel are material to CVS and its stakeholders.
Outlined in our 2022 Quality Improvement report, published
during the year. we shared thot our data driven approoch
reduced the use of Highest Priority Critically Important
Antibiotics (HPCIA) by 20% in twelve months,

Further information on our sustainabitity focus can be found on
poges 32 to 46



Veterinary Practices division

Supporting our colleagues to deliver
the best possible clinical care

£541.6m 489 000

Revenue growth

10.1%

Veterinary Practices revenue share*

85.9%

* Revenue shore before intercompany sales between
practices and other divisions.

Qur Veterinary Practices division comprises our componion
animal, referrals, farm animaol and equine veterinary proctices,
as well as our buying groups, veterinary wholesaler “Vet Direct”,
and MiPet Insurance.

The division has performed well during the financial year with
like-for-like sales growth of 7.3%, contributing to total revenue
growth of 10.1%. Adjusted EBITDA increased 7.2%. We made
11 acquisitions during the financicl year. odding 16 practice
sites to the Group.

Since the year end, o further seven practice sites have been
acquired, including five in Australia following CVS's entry
into that market.

Companion Animal

Our Companion Animal division forms the majority of our
Veterinary Practices division. The focus of our Companion
Animal division on delivering the best possible care for our
patients continues, and benefits from o growing market as
customers continue to seek out veterinary care for their pets.

We have ptaced particular emphasis on reseorch and
development to support the progression of the profession.
A series of clinical excellence projects has been launched to
provide o greater range of clinical services with each project
designed to help practices identify where they may be able
to improve the standard of clinical care, More information

is available on page 7.

We continue to focus on the recruitment, retention and
development of our highly skilled and dedicated colleagues.
We employed an average of 6.5% more vets in 2023 vs 2022
reflecting o further reduction in ottrition, o record gradugte vet
intoke and the ongoing recruitment of some of the best talent
in the profession.
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Operational review continued

Veterinary Practices division continued

Heferrals

Our Referrals opergations hove continued to grow. benefiting
from the leadership of a new management team. We continue
to support our colleagues with their careers, supporting them
through their specialist exams. We have also integrated our
advance clinical services network inte our Referrafs division,
to aid collaboration across our teams.

Equine

Our Equine operations have seen gnad top-line revenue
growth, despite being the one area of our Veterinary Practices
division more susceptibie to macroeconomic pressures. During
the year we have expanded our Equicall dedicated out-of-hours
service, which benefits both CVS and third-party practices.
This not only provides vital speciclist out-of-hours care to our
patients but removes the need for onerous out-of-hours rotos
in practices, providing o better work-Jife balance for colleagues.

Due to the ambulatary nature of this division, we are trialling
o diary optimisotion tool, to help efficiently meet cur clients’
needs. and improve collaboration between our practice sites.

Farm

Qur Farm operctions consists of 14 farm animal practice
locations and a large specialist poultry veterinory business.
During the year we have introduced the procurement of drugs
for all of our Farm division through our Pharmsure practice,

to deliver best price and secure supply.

We have continued our investment in advanced breeding
work, with Castle Farm Vets exponding its advonced
breeding programme. In addition. we have introduced
reciuiting Approved Tuberculin Testers to undertake
tuberculosis testing across England, allowing vets to
focus an clinical work.
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CVS data driven approach reduces use of
Highest Priority Critically Important Antibiotics
(HPCIlAs) by 20%

The Group's continuous improvement in antimicrobial
stewardship ond promoting the appropriote use of HPClAs
is outlined in its new Quality Improvement Report 2022,

Reducing misuse ond overuse of antimicrobials is an
important grea for continuous improvement in the battle
against antimicrobial resistance (AMR), to reduce the
development of drug resistant pathogens. The inappropriote
disposal of antimicrobials also risks environmental
contamination, which can contribute to AMR.

To grow a culture of continuous improvement, CVS’s
approach was to focus on HPCIAs, as these are most
important to human health. CVS first updoted its
Group-wide prescribing guidelines for antibiotics. it then
created a digital dashboard for every practice to enable
the Company to deliver prescribing daota direct to each
site on a monthly basis. This provided each practice team
with aon opportunity to reflect on their decision-moking,
to monitor trends and to measure their progress.

As a result, the Group has seen o consistent decrease

of 209 overall in the prescriptions of HPClAs by all of

its practices in o two year period. The introduction of the
proctice-specific doshboord has olso encouroged practices
to pursue their own individual improvement projects.



International

Our International division comprises 27 practices in the
Netherlands and three practices in the Republic of irelond.
These include companion animal, equine and farm practices.

During the year we coniinued to focus on our people and their
careers. We have supported our colleagues through further
training with eight veterinary nurses from CVS Netherlands
successfully completing their training to becorne Supervisory
Radiation Protection colleagues, the first veterinary nurses in
the Netherlands with this' qualification. In addition, we have
focused on attracting further clinical colleagues to ensure we
can continue to service client demand across our practices.

As we continue to review and ensure we are able to meet the
high standards of service and clinical care across our practices,
during the year we made the difficult decision to close our
Gilabbey site in Cork, Republic of Irelond. The existing facilities
required major investment and o protracted renovation to meet
both our high clinical stondards and the very highest standards
of health and safety that we set ourselves. Accordingly the
best course of action was to close the site ond in the interests
of our patients and clients, tronsition client services to
neighbouring competitor practices.

Since the year end, the Group has entered the Australian
veterinary services market. Having explored o number of
new potential markets, the Board has identified Australia
as particularly attractive given the relatively low levels of
corporate consolidation, favourable market dynamics and
strong sirilarities with the UK, including highly troined
veterinary surgeons, shared language and culture, and the
Group’s experience with UK vets working between Australia
and the UK. The practices that have joined us are of the
highest quality, and with o long pipeline of accepted offers
we expect to grow our Australian business strongly over
the coming years. Read more about Australia on page 13.

Hedlthy Pet Club

As well as offering first class care to sick or injured animals,
we continue to offer preventative healthcare through our
Heolthy Pet Club scheme, which offers routine fleo and
worming treatments and vaccinations, as well os twice yearly
health checks. These clients can spread the cost of accessing
the best preventative healthcare, allowing our clinicions to
identify diseases and recommend the best diognostics end
treatments. The scheme membership has grown by 4.0%
over the past year to around 489.000 members, representing
roughly 40% of our companion animal active client base.

MiPet products

We continue to enhance our own-brand range, MiPet, with a
further four products planned to be added in the new financial
year, Our own-brand spend consistently makes up ¢.39% of
the UK proctices’ pharmaceutical spending in 2023 and 2022.

Vet Direct

We continue to see strong growth in Vet Direct, our equipment
and consumables business, both from CVS and third-party
practices. We introduced a dedicated marketing team to
promaote Vet Direct to third-party customers,

Outlook

As we continue to focus on delivery of high-quality clinical
care alongside our people-focused strategy. we are optimistic
that cur Veterinary Practices division will continue to deliver
year-on-year growth despite the economic uncertainties
ahead. We operate in a resilient market and are comforted
thot the results we are publishing for 2023 demonstrate spend
on high-quality veterinary care continues to be o priority for
pet owners.

QOur colleagues have always been and remain our biggest
asset and | continue to admire the hard work and dedication
across our clinical teams. We have seen attrition fall to its
lowest level since we began recording it. and employee net
promoter score pecked at its highest level during the year,
ending strongly ot 14.6.

Since the financiol yeor end, the onnouncement of our entry
into the Australia market represents more good news for CVS.
As a company dedicated to giving the best possible care to
animals, we see a fantastic opportunity for us to enter this
growing market, with low levels of corporate consolidation,
and execute our vision of being the veterinary compony people
most want to work for. Having spent time in Australia over the
last twelve months, including meeting some fantastic veterinary
practices, it is clear we have a significant apportunity. We are
excited to build o significant CVS business in Australia with
the same culture and volues that hove brought us success

in the UK.
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Operational review continued

Laboratories division

Supporting clinical care through
in-house analysers and nationwide
coverage of diagnostic testing

Qur Laboratories division provides diagnostic services and
in-practice desktop analysers to bath CVS and third-party
practices and employs a national courier network to facilitote
the collection and timely procassing of semples from practices
across the UK. We continue to develop our capability to ensure
we can support the wider Group focus on growing diagnostic
care and introduced further tests in the year.

Revenue hos increased 7.7% compared to the prior year and
odjusted EBITDA increasing 10.8%, with strong case numbers
contributing towaords the rise. We sow opproximotely a 3%
increase in case volume, with approximaotely 45% of diagnostic
laboratory tests performed for CVS proctices.

Outlook
The Laboratories division has remained resilient despite
increasing consolidotion in the veterinary sector. By increasing

rformed
£29 3 m pertar the speed and range of testing we offer in our laboratories,
- 460 000 along with providing great client service, we are optimistic

9

for growth in the years to come.

Revenue Laboratory tests

Revenue growth

7.7%

Laboratories revenue share*

4.6%

—_—————

* _Rewvenue shore before intercompony soles between
practices and other divisions,
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Crematoria

Supporting clients to achieve
a compassionate goodbye

Revenue Relocations in the year
£109m 1

Revenue growth

14.7%

Crematoeria revenue share*

1.7%

* Revenue share before intercompony sales between
practices and other divisions.,

Our Crematoria division provides both individual and
communal cremation services for companion animal and
equine clients, as well os clinical waste disposal services for
both CVS ond thirg-porty veterinory proctices. The strong
revenue ond adjusted EBITDA growth in the division was
driven by the Direct Pet Cremation service we introduced in
2021 and rolled out across all our sites during the year. Putting
customers directly in contact with crematoria to make pet
aftercare arrangements, and giving them more time to consider
their range of options, has resulted in significant changes to
customers’ choices and generated improved customer care.
We relocated our Valley Pet Crematoria to o new site and
incarporated temperature and oxygen-controlled systems.
which to date have only been used in human cremators, to
minimise our environmental impact by delivering optimal
combustion efficiency.

Outlook

The outlook for cur Crematoria division remains strong, as
awners continue to volue the opportunity to remember their
beloved pet and utilise the offering the Crematoria division
provides in the experience of losing their pet, through our range
of more premium offerings. Whilst Direct Pet Cremation has
now been rolled out ta all our CVS clinics, there are opportunities
to broaden our premium range of services in due course.
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Operational review continued

Online Retail Business

A trusted provider of your pets’
food and pharmacy needs

Revenue Website visits
£49.1m 8.1m

Revenue growth

5.4%

Online Retail Business revenue share*

7.8%

Our anline pet food and pharmacy retailer, “Animed Direct”,
focuses on supplying pet food and prescription ond
nur-prescription medication, directly to customers.,

This is supported by the buying power of the Group

as a whole, which ensures the business is able to provide
the best value for customers.

During the financial year, our Online Retail Business division
delivered revenue growth of 5.4% and adjusted EBITDA
growth of 11 4% and an increase in visits to our website

to 8.1m from 7.6m in 2022.

We have invested in twa new pharmacy rebots to bring
efficiencies in worehouse space, increasing dispotch
productivity along with improving quality control.

Outlook

During the yeor we continued the design ond implementation
of a new website. We continue to work on this and expect the
new site to go live during 2024. Qur improved website and
warehouse systems will enable us to increase capocity.
delivering future growth in online sales and improving
customer satisfaction,

Ben Jacklin
Deputy Chief Executive Officer
21 September 2023

Central administration

_ _Central administration costs include those of the central
finance, IT, human resources, purchasing, legal, Boerd and
property functions. Total costs were £11.9m (2022: £16.6m).
representing 2.0% of revenue (2022: 3.0%). The decrease
in central administration costs primarily relates to increase
Research and development ¢laims recognised centrally

— . *_Revenue share before intercompany sales between . . .partially offset by increased spend on support functions.

practices and other divisions.
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Financial review

Our continued opportunities
for investment in growth
underpin our strategy

Financial highlights

As highlighted at our Capital Markets Day, we continue to
focus on our strotegy to invest in the growth of our business
with a record investment of £45.7m in our facilities and
equipment and £54.6m invested in acquisitions in the UK
during the year.

With operating cash conversion of 70.0%, leverage remained
low ot 0.73x (2022: 0.40x).

We were olso delighted to announce our entry into the
Australion veterinary services market in July 2023. Our expansion
into the Australian market is in line with our growth objectives
outlined in our five-year plan and since entering the market in July
we hove successfully completed five acquisitions.

The Group continues to deliver its strotegy, which translates
ond is supported by the financial highlights below.

Statutory financial highlights are shown below:

Chonge

Robin Alfonso 2023 2022 %

Chief Financial Gfficer Revenue (Em) 6083 5542 98%

Gross profit {Em) 262.3 239.1 9.7%

Operating profit (Em) 62.3 428 456%

Profit before tax (£m) 539 360 4%.7%

“We continue to focus on our Profit after tax (Em) 41.9 25.7 63.0%

Strotegy tO invest in Basic eagrnings per share (p) 58.8 362 624%
our business.” Adjusted* financial highlights

2023 2022 Chonge

£m £m %

Adjusted EBITDA (Em) 121.4 107.4 13.0%

Adjusted profit before tax (Em) 85.4 755 13.1%

Adjusted earnings per share (p} 96.0 8568 11.9%

* Adjusted financial measures {odjusted EBITDA, adjusted profit before income tax and adjusted earnings per shore) are defined in the financial
statements, and reconciled to the financial measures defined by International Financial Reporting Standards {(IFRS} on pages 115 and 133 of the Annual
Report. Monagement uses adjusted EBITDA and adjusted earnings per share (“adjusted EPS7) os the basis for ossessing the financial perfarmance of the
Group. These figures exclude costs reloting to business combinations and exceptional items ond hence assist in understanding the performance of the Group.
These terms ore not defined by IFRS and therefore may not be directly comparable with other companies’ adjusted profit measures.
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Financial review continued

Revenue

Total revenue increased 9.8% to £608.3m from £554.2m with
CVS continuing to deliver high-quality clinical invention for an
increasing pet population. There was good growth across each
of our four divisions notwithstanding a challenging economic
climote and cost of living crisis.

The Group continues to deliver against its strategy for
sustainable growth. There wos strong like-for-like revenue
growth of 7.3% (2022: 8.0%), with the remaining revenue
growth coming from acquisitions.

Qur preventative Healthy Pet Club scheme saw membership
continue to grow with membership at June 2023 of 489,000,
a 4.0% increose year on year (2022: 470,000) and we are
pleased to be able to highlight o 6.5% incregse in the average
number af vets employed in 2023 versus 2022,

We continue to invest in our practice facilities, clinical
equipment and technology with tota! capital expenditure

of £45.7m (2022: £24.5m). We are confident the investment
creotes on opportunity for us to further increase organic
growth and like-for-like sales by facilitoting better clinical
care gnd providing our colleagues with o better working
environment, which we believe will support attracting and
retaining talent.

Gross profit/gross profit margin

Gross profit of £262.3m increosed by 9.7% from £232.1m
benefiting from revenue growth with gross profit margin flat

at 43,1%. During the year, there was on improvement in gross
margin before clinical staff costs to 77.7% from 76.9%,; offset
by an increase in clinical staff costs as we continue to investin
people. We continue to focus on ensuring we purchase drugs
at the best possible price whilst maointaining the highest quality
to enable us to focus on great clinical care.

Adjusted EBITDA and adjusted earnings per share
Adjusted EBITDA increased by 13.0% to £121.4m from £107.4m
benefiting from an increase in gross profit and includes £9.6m
(2022: £2.0m) of net Research and Development Expenditure
Tax Credits: offsetting utility inflation, investment in people

and to g lesser extent wage inflation,

‘ Adjusted EBITDA margin increased to 20.0% from 19.4%, in
line with our ombition fram the Capital Markets Day for organic
expansion of our margin from 19.0% to 23.0%.

Adjusted EPS {as defined in note 1 to the financiol stotements)
increased 11.9%, to 96.0p from 85.8p. Adjusted EPS exclude
the impact of amortisotion of intangible assets, costs relating
to business combinations aond exceptional items.

Operating profit, profit before tax and basic
earnings per share

Operating profit increased by 45.6% to £62.3m from £42 Bm
benefiting from the improvement in adjusted EBITDA ond

a reduction in exceptional items.
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Profit before tax increased by 49.7% to £53.9m from £36.0m.
Finance expense increased to £8.4m from £6.8m following
an increase in SONIA rates and increased bank borrowings
to support investment, Conseguently, basic EPS increased
62.4%, to 58.8p from 36.2p.

A recanciliation between statutory operating profit and
adjusted EBITDA is shown below:

2023 2022

£m £m

Operating profit 623 428

Adjustments for:

Amortisation. depreciation. impairment

and profit on disposal 50.2 47.3

Costs relating to business combinations 6.6 49

Exceptional items* 23 124

Adjusted EBITDA 1214 107.4

* Exceptional items relote to the closure of Gilabbey Veterinary Hospital and
include a trading loss for the year of £1.3m, loss of disposal of potient data
records of £0.8m and impairment of right-of-use asset, net of reduction in lease
liability. of £0.2m.

We believe the Group is well ploced to continue to deliver
further growth underpinned by our strategy and integrated
business model. Qur balance sheet further supports
investment opportunities to deliver on our growth ambitions.

Taxation
The Group's tax charge for the year is £12.0m (2022: £10.3m),
onincrease of £1.7m at an effective tax rate of 22.2% (2022: 28.6%).

A reconciliotion of the expected tax charge, ot the standard
rate, to the actuol charge is shown below:

£m % *
Profit before tox 53.9
Expected tax at UK standard rate of tax 111 205
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 13 2.4
Adjustments to deferred tax in respect of
previous periods 04 0.8
Adjustments to previous yeor tax chorge {2.3) {4.3)
Impact of unrecognised losses 0.6 11
Effect of difference between closing
deferred tox rate and current tax rate 09 1.7
Actual chargefeffective rate of tax 120 22.2

* Percentage of profit before tax.

All of the Group's revenues and the majority of its expenses
are subject to corporation tax. The main expenses that are not
deductible for tax purposes are costs relating to acquisitions
and depreciation on fixed assets that do not qualify for tax
relief, Tax relief for some expenditure, mainly fixed gssets,

is received over a longer period than that for which the costs
are charged in the financial statements.



Financial position

2023 2022 Chonge

£m £m £m

intangibie gssets 256.1 2165 396
Property. plant and equipment 1015 69.7 318
Right-of-use assets 1029 1017 1.2
Other non-current assets _ 2.4 {2.4)
Current assets 1118 127.9 {16.1}
Current ligbilities {105.1) (1014} . (3.7)
Non-current liabilities {210.6) [199.4) {11.2)
Equity 2566 2174 39.2

Intangible assets

The Group's intangible assets consist of goodwill, patient data
records and computer software, The increase during the year

is mainly from business combinations of £569.6m, partially
offset by amortisation of £22.6m. In addition, £0.8m was
impoired ond treoted as an exceptional item in respect of the
closure of Gilabbey. The Group reviews goodwilt for impairment
and as at 30 June 2023 maintains significant headroom with
no indications of impairment.

Plant, property and equipment

The Group's continued focus ond commitment to investing in
our facilities and equipment resulted in additions of £44.5m.
(including business combinations) {2022: £23.7m). offset by

a depreciation chorge in the year of £12.6m (2022: £11.3m).

Other non-current gssets

The Group mointcins a cash flow hedge for the purpose of
hedging interest rates; as at 30 June 2023 the fair value of
this hedge was £2.1m which is now included within current
ossets 0s the hedge expires in Februory 2024 {2022: £2.3m).
In addition, during the year ovailable for sale investments
with a carrying volue of £0.1rm were dispesed.

Current assets

The net decrease in current ossets of £16.1m to £111.8m from
£127.9m is driven from the reduction in cash held to £21.5m
from £49.0m; partially offset by an increase in working capital
balances, including stock and debtors following the growth

in revenue,

Equity

The netincrease in equity of £39.2m is mainly attributable
to profit for the year of £41.9m (2022: £25.7m). transactions
related to share-based payments taken to reserves of
£3.0m {2022: £3.3m), partiolly offset by annual dividends
of £6.0m {2022: £4.6m).

Cash flow and movement in net debt

Net debt increased by £35.4m during the year from £35.3m
to £70.7m following an increase in investment in our focilities
and equipment of £45.7m from £24.5m and an increase in
investment in acquisitions in the UK of £54.6m from £8.4m.

The movement in net debt is explained as follows:

2023 2022
£m £m

Adiusted EBITDA 1214 107.4
Working capital movements {10.9) {14.09
Capital expenditure - maintenance (11.4) (10.8)
Repayment of right-of-use liabilities (14.1) (12.7})
Operating cash flow 85.0 69.9
Operating cash conversion (%) 700% 651%
Taxation paid {14.9) (11.2)
Net interest paid {7.2) (6.4)
Free cash flow 62.9 523
Capital expenditure — investment {(34.3) (13.7)
Business combinations
(net of cash acquired)/other invastments (54.6) {20.8)
Contingent consideration {2.6) {0.3)
Dividends paid (5.0 (4.6)
Other financing activities (4.4) 2.4
Net {outflow)/inflow {38.0) 15.3
Increasef{decrease} in unamortised
borrowing costs 26 {0.4)
{Increcse)/decrease in net debt {35.4) 149
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Financial review continued

Cash flow and movement in net debt continued
The Group continues to remain highly cash generative with
operating cash flow of £85.0m (2022: £69.9m|}. Neguotive
working copital movements of £10.9m was mainly driven
by an increase in stock and other receivables.

Operating cash conversion of 70.0% (2072 AR 19) wac
in line with our capital markets day ambition of 70%.

Interest paid of £7.2m (20272 £6.4m) reflects the increasing
SONIA rates from 1.1874% on 30 June 2022 to 4.928B6%
on 30 june 2023, together with increased bank borrowings
fallowing enhanced investment in capital expenditure and
strategic acquisitions.

Maintenance capital expenditure of £11.4m (2022: £10.8m}
reflects expenditure required in order to maintain the quality
of our facilities and services,

tinvestment capital expenditure of £34.3m (2022: £13.7m}
includes new sites, relocations, significant refurbishments

and extensions and new equipment. We are pleased with the
additiona! investment we have made in the year and continue
to see further opportunities to grow organic revenue in line
with our growth ambitions ond commitment to spend between
£30.0m and £50.0m per annum.

Business combinations of £54.6m (2022: £8.4m} consisted

of 11 practices {comprising 16 proctice sites). This investment
in the yeor is again in line with our growth ambition set out

at the Capital Markets Doy in November 2022,

A dividend of £5.0m (2022: £4.6m} was paid in the year
reflecting a final dividend for the prior year of 7.0p per share.

Other financing activities includes £3.6m of costs in respect
of refinancing our facilities which were capitalised on the
balance sheet.
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Net debt and borrowing costs
The Group's net debt comprises the following:

2023 2022
£m £&m
Borrowings repoyoble:

Within one year — —

After more than one year:
Term loan and revolving credit facility 95,5 85.0
Unamortised borrowing costs (3.3) @.7)
Total borrowings 922 84.3
Cash and cash equivalents {21.5) (49.0)
Net debt 70.7 35.3

In February 2023, the Group successfully increased its loan
focilities from £170.0m to £350.0m which comprises o £87.5m
term loon and £262.5m revolving credit focility. This facility

is supported by eight banks and for o four-year term.

The facility has two key financiol covenants:

> net debt to bank test EBITDA of no more than 3.25x; and
> bonk-test EBITDA to interest ratio of no less thaon 4.5x.

Bank test EBITDA is based on the last twelve months' adjusted
EBITDA performance annualised for the effect of acquisitions,
deducting costs relating to business combinations ond adding
bock share option expense, prior to the adoption of IFRS 16.

The increase in loon facilities supports the Group's ambition
to continue to invest via both orgonic growth and acquisition
opportunities in the future in line with our Capital Markets
Day ambitions.

The Group manages its banking arrangements centrally. Funds
are swept daily from its various bank accounts into central bank
accounts to optimise the Group's net interest payoble position.

Interest rate risk is also monoged centrally ond derivative
instruments are used to mitigate this risk. On 28 February
2020, the Group entered into two four-year fixed interest rote
swap arrangements to hedge fluctuations in interest rates on
£70.0m of its term loan facility, which end on 31 January 2024.
In the prior year the two hedge arrangements were transitioned
from LIBOR to the SONIA benchrnark rate: further information
can be found in nota 17.

The Group hos a strong balance sheet with a leverage ot

30 June 2023 of 0.73x, an increase from 0.40x at 30 june 2022,
The Group has the ability to generate cash which enables it

to effectively manage working copital. The Group targets o
long-term net debt to EBITDA ratio of less than 2.0x and closely
monitars this in line with acquisition investment opportunities.



Going concern and viability

At the 30 June 2023, the Group had cash balances of £21.5m
and an unutilised overdraft facility of £5.0m. Total facilities of
£350.0m, of which £254.5m were undrawn at 30 June 2023,
are available to support the Group's organic and acquisitive
growth initiatives over the coming years, comprising a term
loan of £87.5m and an RCF of £262.5m. The Group is fully
compliont with cll covenants in respect of these focilities.

The Directors consider that the £5.0m overdraft and the
£350.0m facility enable them to meet all current liobilities
when they fall due. Since the year end. the Group has
continued to trade profitobly and to generate cash.

After considerotion of market conditions. the Group’s financial
position {including the level of headroom available within the
bank facilities). financial forecasts for the five years to 30 june
2028, its profile of cash generation and the timing and amount
of bank borrowings repayable, and principal risks, the Directors
have a reasonable expectation that both the Company and

the Group will be able to continue in operation ond meet

its liobilities as they fall due over the period. For this reason,

the going concern bosis continues to be adopted in preparing
the financial statements.

More information on the Group's Viability Statement can
be found on page 95

Share price performance

At the year end the Company’s market capitalisation was
£1.4bn (1,970p per share), compared to £1.2bn (1,656p per
share) at the previous year end.

Key contractual arrongements

The Directors consider that the Group has only twao significant
third-party supplier controcts which are for the supply of
veterinary drugs. In the event that these suppliers ceased
trading, the Group would be able to continue in business
without significant disruption in trading by purchasing from
alternotive suppliers.

Forward-looking arrangements

Certain statements and arrangements described in the Annual
Report and results release are forward looking. Although the
Board is comfortable thot the expectations reflected in these
forward-looking statements are reasonable, it can give no
assurance thot these expectaticns will prove to be correct.
Because these statements involve risks and uncertainties.
actual results moy differ materially from those expressed

or implied by these forward-looking statements.

Robin Alfonso
Chief Financial Officer
21 September 2023
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Focused approach to
managing risk throughout

the Group

Risk monagement structure

The Board hos overall responsibility for ensuring risk is
appropriately imunaged ocross the Group. The doy-to-day
identification, mancgement and mitigation of risk is delegated
to the Group's senior management.

Risk registers are prepared which evaluate the risks most
likely to impact the Group. Colleagues across the business

are involved in the preparation and regular review of these
risk registers in order to ensure that all potential areas of risk
are adequately identified, recorded and managed. Controls
thot ore in ploce are ossessed in order to determine the extent
to which they mitigate risk and in circumstances where itis
considered appropriate to reduce risk further, appropriate
actions are determined.

The Group's business operations are subject to o wide range
of risks. Some of the most significant risks are explained on
pages 61 to 68 together with details of actions thot have
been taken to mitigate these risks.

The key roles and delegated
responsibilities

Executive Committee
Collectively responsible for managing risks.

Audit Committee

Assists the Board to fulfil its corporate governance duties
and oversees responsibilities in relation to financial reporting,
internal control and the risk manggement structure.

Internal qudit

Holds meetings with risk owners across the business, assesses

the risk ratings and decuments the controls in place to mitigote
. each risk, and recommends improvements and correction actions.
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Risk appetite

The effectiveness of the Group's risk management appraach
relies upon ¢ culture of transparency and openness that is
encouraged by both the Board and senior management.

The Group's appetite for risk is considered low; whilst some
risk is accepted in order to develep the business and invest in
future growth, the Greup has no appetite for major risks which
cannat be effectively mitigated through appropriate contrals.

Assessment of principal risks

During the year, the Board undertook g robust, in-depth and
comprehensive assessment of the emerging and principal risks
facing the Group ond specifically those that might threaten the
delivery of its strotegic business model, its future performance,
solvency or liguidity. A summary of the principal risks and
uncertainties that could impoct the Group's performance

is shown on pages 61 to 68,

Board

Executive Committee

Audit
Committee
Internal controls

Internal audit

Group risk management

Employees



1 Key employees

2 Economic gnvironment

a Competition

4 Adverse publicity

s Information technology

6 Changes in industry regulations

7 Sourcing phermaceuticol supplies

8 Sourcing and
integrating acquisitions

9  Health and Sofety legislation

N
10 Corporate legisiation ond _
regulatory requirements g
£ 15
11 Bonk facilities o
12 Future pandemic or lockdewn -
< S
13 Sustainobility and g 1
climote change ‘E ’/
= O 11 7
14 Epidemiology 8 @ g - 2
.
18 Cyber attock E o ’/
. - B 6 14 4 16
18 Competition and Markets 3 4
Authority market review 20 10 3
12 9
<3
£
=
Y
e
Remote Possible Likely Very likely
Probability

1. Key employees

Description
Failure to retain and attract >
key staff, particularly >
veterinary surgeons due
to structural shortages of >
qualified vets in the industry. >
Potential impact
> Failure to be able to
meet the increased
demand from clients
cnd their animals.

L 4

> Increased employment
costs leading to adverse >
impaoct on financial
performance of the Group.

> Failure to recruit may >

lead to increased locum
fees leading to an
adverse impacton
finoncial performance.

> increased pressure on
our colleagues to cover
vacancy gaps.

v

v

Mitigating factors
Increasing number of veterinary schoois and graduote intakes.

Close relationship with UK veterinary schocls.
Market leading graduate induction progromme.

Summer and Winter Comps cid an increase in the number
of graducte intake,

Focused training programmes to cover clinical, customer
service and moanagement training.

Appropriate reward and benefits.

Maximum of up to five additional days annual leave for
each year of service.

Annuol bonus scheme ond a Group Long-Term Incentive
Ptan (LTIP) scheme for senior colleagues. An annual Save
As You Earn {(SAYE) scheme is in place for all colleogues.
Regulor feedback from colleagues to address common
issues or concerns.

Highly quclified recruitment teom.

Home Office reinstatement of veterinary surgeons

on UK Shortage Occupation List.

Changes in the year

>

v

v

v

We have increased the number
of vets and nurses employed
by 6.5% and B.4% respectively.
Vet attrition rates decreased
and nurse attrition rates
remained stable.

eNPS scores improving at

14.6 vs 4.8in 2022.

Delivered our largest ever
graduote intoke of vets,
taking a lorger share of the
population available.

Commitment to pay 3.0% higher
than the national minimum and
national living.

We have increased nurse
utilisation, improving nurse

job satisfaction and reducing
pressure on vets.

We have introduced a new health
cash plan to cover a range

of medical services including
significont health-reloted ond

life events.

Link to strategy
Recd more on poges 22 and 23

1

g

2 3 4

Ne change to risk

<

Increasing risk

T

Reducing risk New risk

d N
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

2. Economic environment

Description
Risk of potential further
decline in the UK economy.

Potential impuct

> Reductien in consumer
confidence ond spending
on veterinary services.

> Rising costs impacting cost
of product and adversely
effecting margins.

Mitigating focters

» Diverse range and provision of services geross the Group
to ¢ wide range of animals in the UK, the Netherlands,
the Republic of rrland andg Australia.

> Strong year-on-year growth in the Healthy Pet Club {HPC)
preventative healthcare scheme, which increased by 4.0%
to 489,000 members {2022: 470.000 members).

> Online retail business protects the Group against chonges
in consumer spending habits.

> Ability to source supplies from g number of manufacturers.

We hove strong relationships with our suppliers
and manutacturers.

Changes in the yeor

> A fixed-term energy contract is in
place to protect the Group against
increasing energy prices.

> Latest PDSA "PAW" report
highlights a continued increase
in the pet populotion.

> The Group closely monitors
rising infiation.

Link to strategy
Read more on pages 22 and 23

103 4 L

3. Competition

Description

Increased consolidation and
acquisition of independent
veterinary proctices.

Potentiol impact

> Third-party practices
choose to use
cther laborotories.

» Third-party practices
choose to use
other crematoria.

" Mitigating factars

> The Group has o wide range of services to offer its clients.
> Continuous investment to maintain high-ciass facilities

and equipment in order to provide excellent clinicol service.
> Detailed assessment of acquisition opportunities measured

ogainst clear target criteria.

Regular reviews of pricing of products and services

to ensure we remain campetitive.

> Healthy Pet Club (HPC) scheme offers clients access to
preventative healthcare for their pets while spreading
the cost.

The Group has successfully entered the Australion
Veteringry Market in July 2023 with o strong pipeline
of opportunities.

v

v

Changes in the year
> Ongoing market consalidation.

> Steady increase in our
HPC scheme.

> Growth in revenues in the year
reflecting on focus to deliver
organic growth.

> The number of registered
veterinary practices in the UK
steadily increasing to 5,371
(2022 5.293).

Link to strotegy
Read more on poges 22 and 23

i 2 3 ~

No change to risk Increasing risk Reducing risk New risk

© T

J N
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4. Adverse publicity

Description

Any adverse publicity on

the Group. sther corporate
veterinary groups or the
veterinary sectar as a whole.

Potential impact

> Reduction in custorner
nurbers leading to
odverse revenue,

> Adverse impact on our
ability to attract and
retain key colleagues.

Mitigating factors

»

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

Policies and procedures in ploce to maonitor service delivery
and ensure continued levels of high class veterinary care.
Participation in the RCVS Proctice Standords Scheme
and RCVYS Knowledge QI Champion accreditotion.
Established Clinical Advisory Committee to advise on
clinical standards and drug lists across the Group.

New online branding for all our practices under 'The Vet
Collection” brarnd.

Group marketing and communications teoms to respond
swiftly to any issues.

Prominent representation on notional bodies and at
industry events to enhance the Group's reputation

and credibility.

Financial PR ogency in place to support with

medio communication.

Positive feedback from Summer and Winter Camp

for Veterinary graduates.

2022 Quality Improvernent report issued which outlines
our approach to increasing clinicat standards.

Leading learning and Educational programme offering
a wide range of continued professional development
courses for our Vets and Nurses.

Changes in the year

> Increased media coveroge
regarding veterinary
consolidation and the impact
on end user pricing.

> Continued monitaring of our
clinical standards against our
quality improvement framewarks
for clinicians and practices.

> We haove continued to engage
with third parlies to further
enhance reporting of important
issues such as sustainability.
Dedicated Communications
Director.

> Launch of “The Vet Collection™
bronding in August 2023.
Finoncial PR agency continues
to offer an enhanced level

of PR support.

v

v

Link to strategy
Reod more on pages 22 and 23

102 3 4 ’]‘

5. Information technology

Description

The Group is dependent

on various aspects of
Information Technology (IT)

and support for its operations.

Potential impact

> Loss of connectivity and
availability of systemns
across our netwark.

> A cyber-attack could result
in loss of systems and
potential loss of client dato.

Mitigating factors

>

v

v

Policies and procedures are in place te ensure stability
and security of our networks and systems.

Restricted access to systems, networks ond cpplications
wherever possible.

Scheduled programme of network security enhancement
with external reviews performed periodically.

Full system testing of ony developments prior to

live deployment.

Regular bockups ond testing of the recovery of those

. system bockups.

Established Practice Manogement System in place which is
able to work without access to the internet for short periods
of time,

Appropriate training offered to all stoff.

Changes in the year

> Strengthened T team.

> Detailed review of policies and
procedures undertaken during
the year.

> Enhanced focus on key projects
and timelines to delivery.

> Initial roll out of our new
¢foud based practice
managerment system.

Link to strategy
Read more on pages 22 and 23

3 4 <
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

6. Changes in industry regulations

Description

The industry is subject
to o number of lows
ond regulations.

Potential impact

> Failure to adhere to these
could have a rmaterial
impact on the Group
through damage to
reputation andfor
financial penalties.

> Changes in regulations
could adversely impact
the Group.

Mitigating factors

> Policies and procedures in place to monitor compliance
and any developments or proposed changes.

> Regular engagement with regulatory and legislative bodies to
promote best proctice and lobbying for change where
considered appropriate.

» Clinical Directors in place to ensure high standards
are maintained.

> Chief Veterinary Officer {CVQ) overseas all clinical quality
impravement work to help enhance the care we provide
to animals.

Changes in the year

> We continue to review
and respond to evolving
government and regulatory
guidance and able to adapt
our services accordingly
(e.g. use of tele-consultations).

> Continued focus on delivery
of CVS Clinical Governance
framework led by CVO.

> "Under core review”,
The RCVS implemented
new professional guidance
regarding the requirements
for o vet to bring an animal
under their care in order to
prescribe medication. These
¢hanges allow for remote
prescribing of medications
with the exception of
antimicrobials and controlled
drugs. No significant changes
in working practices
are anticipated.

Link to strotegy
Read more on pages 22 and 23
1 1 3 4 ©

7. Sourcing pharmace

Description

Failure to source
pharmaceutical products
at the required price

and quantity,

Potential impact
> Inability to treat patients
" with the required

prescription and non-
prescription medicines.

> Adverse revenue impoct.

> Adverse impact on margins
through having to source
olternative supplies on less
fovourable terms.

utical supplies

Mitigating factors

> Supply ogreements in ploce with muitiple major wholesolers
and manufacturers to cover stocking issues.

> Supply of ewn-brand products in Group warehouses
for onwards supply.

> Regular pricing reviews with all major suppliers across
all divisions for best possible pricing.

> Increase in direct supply of products.

Changes in the year

> Warehouse system fully
implemented for monitoring
stock levels accurotely.

> Where possible, we have
included price caps in supplier
contracts to protect the
Group from price increases,

> We are establishing
relationships with
manufacturers in Australia.

Link to strategy
Read more on poges 22 ond 23

14 ©

No change torisk Increasing risk Reducing risk New risk

© T

J N
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8. Sourcing and integrating acquisitions

Description

Failure to ottract, acquire
ond integrate acquisitions
at the appropriate price with
minimal disruption.

Potential impact

> Pressure that higher
multiples reduce
growth opportunities
through acquisitions.

> Foilure to integrate
efficiently impocting
actual performance
versus business case,

>

>

>

v

v

v

Y

¥

Mitigating factors

Dedicated team committed to sourcing acquisitions.
Acquisitions Committee in place to ensure acquisitions are in line
with business need.

Clear list of criteria used to assess any potential

ocquisition targets.

Multi-disciplined team communications in advance of acquisition
to plan the integration.

Use of professional advisors to ensure oppropriate due diligence
ond legal odvice are undertaken.

Close monitering of post-acquisition performance versus
business plan.

Ligise with Competitions and Mergers Authority (CMA) on
acquisitions where appropriate.

Full review of potential territories conducted before entering.

Changes in the year

> Risk-based approach to
pre-acquisitions checklist.

> Strengthened
acquisitions team.

> Clear guidelines set by
CMA an how to assess
local market competition.

> Group have announced entry
into the Australian Veterinary
Marketin July 2023.

Link to strategy
Reod more on pages 22 and 23

3 4

9. Health and Safety |

Description

Foilure to comply with heolth
ond sofety legislation ocross
our practices, laborotories,
crematoria, warehouse and
other sites.

Potential impact

> Colleagues, clients or the
general public are injured.

> Required temporary closure
of sites whilst ony issues
are oddressed.

> Loss of revenue ond
potential ¢claims against
the Group.

>

>

v

v

v

egislation

Mitigating factors

Robust health and safety procedures are in place ensuring
full complionce with health ond safety legis|otion.

Mandatory employee training to ensure they con perform their
duties safely.

Appropriate protective equipment supplied to oll employees
in order for thern to perform their duties sofely.

Speciolist health and safety team which regularly reviews any
risks and identifies areas for improvermnent.

Participation in the RCVS Practice Standards Scheme to ensure
the Group promotes the highest levels of clinicol standards.

Specialist and oppropriotely qualified third-party advisors
undertake maintenance. inspections and property development.

Heaith and Safety committee in place.

Experienced Director of Property and Health ond Safety in place.

Changes in the year
> Continued focus on health
and safety in oll practices.

> Emphaosis on ensuring health
and safety stondards ore at
the forefront when considering
property improvements.
Focilitates Management
ocutsourced to @ market
leading provider.

v

v

Development of new
mandatory training
for employees.

Link to strategy
Read more on pages 22 ond 23

«
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10. Corporate legislation and regulatory requirements

Description
Failure to comply with lows
ond regulations.

Potential impact

> The Group could face fines
and penalties leading to
financial loss.

> The Group could

face suspension of
certain operations.

>

>

>

Mitigating factors

Appropriate training supplied to colleagues in the relevant
areas required.

Suitable experts employed to ensure complionce

and to regularly update policies and procedures.
Appropriate insurance cover and third-party professicnol
advice used as required.

Changes in the year

> Strengthened corporate
legal team during the year.

> Engage third parties to keep
us informed of upcoming
regulatory changes.

> Development of new
mandatory training
for employees.

Link to strategy
Read more on pages 22 and 23

" ©
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

11. Bank facilities

Description

Failure to comply with bank
covenants and ability to
secure future funding.

Potential impact
> Lack of availability
of funding.

> Increased borrowing costs.

Mitigating factors

> The Group maointains suitable facilities from o syndicote of
leading banks with an appropriate term.

> Fyisting facililies comprise term debt, revolving credit focility
and an overdraft.

> Regular reporting of headroom and compliance to the Beard
and Executive Committee.

> Regular meetings with bank syndicate members to
appraise performonce.

> Focus on maintaining relotionships with main lenders and other
banking parties.

> Daily cash flow forecasts prepared and reviewed for a rolling
three-mnnth period to cnable working copitul requirements to
be understood and to optimise bank drawings and interest costs.

> The Group has the ability to de-lever quickly.

Changes in the year

» New £350m loan facility
with extended syndicate of
eight members secured
through to Februory 2027

> The Group i$ monitoring the
changes in interest rates
ahead of the expiry of the
existing hedge, which is
February 2024,

> Strong cash generation
continues; net debt and
leverage remgin low.

Link to strategy
Read more on pages 22 and 23

1 02 3 4 4

12. Future pandemic or lockdown

Description

Future uncertginty over
COVID-19 or ather pandemic
and associated lockdowns.

Potential impact

» Future lockdowns affect our
obility to service our clients
if non-emergency services
are unable to be undertaken.

Mitigating factors

> Multiple geographically-spread locations across the UK.
Netherlands, Republic of lrelond ond Austrolio protect the
Group frem any localised lockdowns.

> The Group operates across o diverse number of gperations with
an online retail business and provides veterinary care across
componion, equine and farm animal species.

> The Farm Animal division is protected due to it being critical
to the human food chain.

Changes in the year

> We continue to maintain the
highest levels of protection
for our staff Gnd customers.

> We continue to offer flexible
working where appropriate
to promote safety across
the Group as a whole.

Link to strategy
Read more on pages 22 ond 23

3 4 <«

No change to risk

© T

Increasing risk Reducing risk New risk

4 N
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13. Sustainability and climate change

I

| Description

‘ The Group's continued’
success depends on the

t social and environmental

1 sustainability of its operations. '

-

' Potential impact

" » Disruptions to our

*  supply chain leading

j tostock shortage and
financial loss.

» Adverse weather

leading to a decline
in our client demand.

1 > Changes in regulgtions
increasing the cost of
our operations.

Mitigating factors

> Sustainability and ESG is discussed os a standing agenda item
in Board meetings.

> ESG working group formed which is chaired by the CEO.
Supperted by an additional six working groups in the following
areas: (1) Energy and Carban. (2} Waste, {3} One Health,
(4) People Development. {5) Wellbeing (6) Equity. Diversity
and inclusion.

> Introduction of additional electric vehicles for the cor fleet
ond use of energy from renewchble sources.

> Focus on implementing targets to aim for net zero
carbon emissions.

> ESG odvisors help to assess our risks and to implement
our ESG strategy. “Care ot our Heart™

Changes in the year

> Sustainability Report
published with SASB-
compliant data.

> TCFD reparting in 2023
Annual Report.

> Risks and opportunities

ossessment and scenario

onalysis performed in relotion

to climote change.

Non-finoncial targets linked

to our sustainability strategy

introduced for Executive

Committee bonuses for 2023.

v

Link to strategy
Read more on pages 22 and 23

14. Epidemioclogy
Description \

. There is a risk to the Group

+ as o result of potential

! animal epidemics.

Potential impact .
. > New diseases entering the
U UK due to enimol
' importotion could lead to
animal deaths. and loss of
v future revenues.

> Disegses transmitted from
animals te humans moy
lead to operational
disruption.

Mitigating factors

> The Group continues to invest in resecrch and development
and closely monitors trends and concerns through our well
estoblished Clinical Advisory Committee.

> Investment in ensuring we drive quality improvement ond
continue to publish our Quoality Improvement report.

> Notification system implemented to aid tracking and resolution
of issues arising.

> Focus on increased protection if suspected coses are identified.

Changes in the year

> We launched our Clinical
Research Awards in 2022
and to date we are
supporting 16 resecrch
projects, with more funds
to be made available in the
coming year to fund clinical
research, including quality
improvement, which are open
to both internal and external
applicants vio collaboration
with universities and research
institutions.

Link to strategy
Read more on pages 22 and 23
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

~15. Cyber attack
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Mitigating factors
> The Group has a number of policies in place that are aimed ot

ensuring the stability ond security of our networks and systems.

> Network security is regularly enhanced with external reviews

being performed pericdically to identify areas of risk. A scheduled

programme of equipment and software replacement takes place
to help ensure that the latest security features are available,

» The Group employs a Head of Cyber Security o!ongside_
thirg-porty advisors where gppropriate to ensure we maintain
high standards of protection.

> Systems are regularly bocked up to the cloud ond the recovery
of those systems is tested.

v

Use of Antivirus sufllwuore in place ocross the Group.

v

Password policies are in place encouraging use of strong
passwords. Forced passward changes on a regular basis and
two factor cuthentication used where appropriate.

v

Fully encrypted poyments terminals rolled out across the Group.

> Restricted access to systems, networks and applications
wherever possible.

Changes in the year

> Head of Cyber Security
and Head of Infrastructure
in ploce.

> The Group’'s has undertaken
a review of key risks.

> We switched provider of
anti-virus software to
mitigate potential threats
arising from the chonging
political lendscape in Europe
in 2622,

> We continue to review our
equipment and software
and regularly install updates.

Link to strategy
Read more on poges 22 and 23
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Mitigating factors

> Ability to expond in other territories.

> Significant opportunities for organic growth with continued
investment in our proctices.

» The Group has an integrated veterinary platform with laboratory
services, crematoria services and an online platform.

» Proactive engagementin CMA pracess to help shape outcome
of the review.

Changes in the year

> The Group has entered the
Australian Veterinary Market
and hoas opportunity to widen
its geographical footprint
globally.

Link to strategy
Reod more on poges 22 and 23

The Strategic Report is approved for issue by the Board of Directors.

Scott Morrison

Company Secretary
21 September 2023

No change to risk

Increasing risk Reducing risk New risk
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Chair’s introduction to governance

Appropriate governance
and Board oversight of
the Group’s operations

Richard Connell
Chair

Dear Shareholders,

1am delighted to introduce our Corporate Governance Report
for the year ended 30 June 2023 on behalf of the Beard. This
section of our Annual Report outlines the approach we have
adopted in complying with the principles of the UK Corporate
Governance Code {the "Code") over the year as well as outlining
improvermnents we have made in our governonce structure,
including strengthening the Board. We outlined our five-year
growth plan at our Capital Markets Day in November 2022
and we remain committed to ensuring an effective corporate
governance regime in support of this five-year plon.

Board effectiveness and enhancement

During the year, | conducted a further rigerous internal
evaluation to assess the effectiveness of the Boord with input
from ocur Company Secretary. Whilst | am satisfied that the
Board remains effective in providing appropriate governance
and cantrol, we will continue to ensure sufficient time is set
aside at Board meetings to review perfarmance against our
plons and to engage with the wider CVS employees. We held
our annual CVS conference in October 2022 which was attended
by the full Boerd, and this gave all Board members the opportunity
to meet colleagues from all aur business areos.,

Gn 1 July 2023 Joanne Show joined the Board as an additional
Non-Executive Director. Joanne, who quelified as o Chartered
Accountant, has significant healthcare experience from a
number of executive ond non-executive roles aond will add volue
to the Board. Joanne is o member of the Audit. Remuneration
and Nomination Committees of the Board.

On 1 July 2023, we also promoted Ben jacklin into a new

role of Deputy CEQ in recegnition of his contribution over the
past few years and to provide uitimote succession planning.
Ben retains responsibility for overseeing the Group's operations
in the UK and internationally.

Scott Morrison wos appointed Company Secretary on 8 June 2023,
replgcing jenny Farrer. who served as Company Secretary
throughout the year until that dote.

Equity, Diversity and Inclusion

QOur Equity, Diversity and Incfusion (EDI) strategy supports

our vision to be the veterinary company people most want to
work for - regardless of who they are, how they identify or their
background. We're working to foster a culture where everyone
feels welcome ond nurtured. In recognition thot sustainoble
cultural change takes time, we have a ten-year strategy, which
witi evolve s we reéspond to what colleogues are telling us.

More detail about cur peaple and culture is set out on
pouges 20 ond 21

Section 172 and Stakeholder Engagement

I have held @ number of meetings over the course of the year
with our institutional sharehclders. These meetings are helpful
in understanding their priorities, ond in discussing our strategic
focus ond capito! allocation priorities and any key developments
in the business.

Over my tenure as Chair, CVS has built o strong corporate
culture with o focus on providing great care to our clients and
their animals ond on investing in and developing our peaple.
We continue to invest in the development of our business, and
we remain focused on ottrecting and retaining the very best
tolent. The Board cansiders the interests of afl stakeholders when
toking decisions ond we have set out some examples of how the
Boord has fulfilled its Section 172 duties and engaged with
stakeholders during the course of the year on pages 28 to 31.

Sustainability

Over the course of the year, the Board has received on update
from the CEO ot each Board meeting setting out the facus of
our Sustainability and ESG working groups and updating on
our progress.

We are delighted to publish our second annuol Sustainability
Report detailing the progress we are making and explaining
how our ESG strategy is closely aligned to our purpose, vision
ond key strotegic pifiars.

Annual General Meeting

We will hold our 2023 AGM on Wednesday 29 November 2023
ot 11:00 am. Full detoils including the resolutions to be proposed
to shareholders will be set out in the Notice of AGM which will
be made ovailable in the Investor Centre on our website.

Outcomes of the resolutions put 1o the AGM, including pol!
results detoiling votes for, against and withheld, will be
published on the Compony's wehsite and the London Stock
Exchange once the AGM has concluded. '

Yours sincerely,

Richard Connell
Chair
21 September 2023
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Board of Directors and Company Secretary

Our experienced Board with
diverse skills and expertise

Richard Connell (68)
Non-Executive Chair

Appointment
to the Board

" Richard was appointed to
the Board in Qctober 2007,

Career and
experience

Richard is o Choartered
Accountant and worked in
investrnent manogement
with 3i Group, Invesco
and HSBC, Previously he
was Chair of Dignity plc.
Mercury Pharma and
Idea] Stetrad Group.

Committee

membership
Richard is not o member
of the Audit, Remuneration

cr Nomination Committees,

®n -
David Wilton (60)

Non-Executive
Director

Appointment

to the Board

David was oppointed to the
Boord in September 2021.

Career and
experience

David is o qualified Chartered
Accountant with more thon
30 years’ post-qualificotion
experience as g Chief
Financia! Officer. Nen-
Executive Director and
consultont ofter mony
years in corporate finance,
primarily in mid cop M&A
with Rothschilds. He is

the Chair of Frontier
Developments plc ond
previcusly CFQ of Sumo pic
until October 2022. Dovid
has held roles in both public
and privote equity backed
companies including as
Group Finance Directar

of WYG plcand as
Non-Executive Director
ond Chair of the Audit
Committee of Sweett
Graup plc.

Committee
membership

David is Chair of the
Audit Committee. end
is ¢ member of all three
Boord Committees.

A H N

Deborah Kemp (62)
Non-Executive
Director

Appointment

to the Boord

Deborah was appeinted to
the Board in january 2018.

Career and
experience

Deborah hos held a variety
of Chief Executive Officer
reles in the consumer and
hespitolity sector, including
as a FTSE 100 main boord
Director at Punch Taverns
plc. Following a periad in
private equity and a trade
sale of Laure! Funerals. she
is now Director of Vennco
Limited a consultancy and
interim speciolist inthe
cansumer-focing retoil

and hospitolity sector, ond
assists multi-site businesses
through growth, change
and tronsformotion.

Committee
membership

Deborgh is Chair of the
Remunerotion Committee.
She is o member af all
three Board Committees
qand is the Senior
Independent Director.

O]

Richard Gray (66)
Non-Executive
Director

Appointment

to the Board

Richard was appointed
to the Board in July 2020.

Career and
experience

Richordis o career
investment banker who has
extensive copital markets
and corporate finonce
experience and has held
senior positions. He is the
Chair of CT Privote Equity
Trust plc and Director of
Zeus Capital. He has
previously warked with
Panmure Gorden. Lazard.
Charterhouse and UBS.

Committee
membership

Richard is Choir of the
Nomingtion Committee,
and is o member of all
three Boord Committees.

A R N

Joanne Shaw (60)
Non-Executive
Director

Appointment

to the Board '
Joonne was appointed

to the Board in July 2023.

Career and

experience

Joanne has significant
healthcare experience from
her current roles as Trustee
ond Audit Committee Chair
at Cancer Research UK,
Chair ot the Royal College
of Paediotrics and Child
Heclth. and Deputy Chair
at Vitakity UK. She has

held o number of previous
non-executive roles over
the past 17 yeors including
as Non-Executive Director
ond Choir of the Audit ong
Risk Committee ot NHS
Englond and the Notional
Audit Office, Choir of NHS
Direct, Non-Executive
Director ot Kensington

ond Chelsea Primary

Care Trust ond Chair of

the British Equestrion
Associotion. Joanneg, who
quolified as a Chortered
Accountant, was o former
monagement consultont ot
Bostan Consulting Group.

Committee

membership
Joonne is o member of cll
three Boord Committees.

Key skills

Committee membership

A Audit Committee

R ARemuneration Cammittee
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Board gender diversity

Richard Fairman (56)
Chief Executive
Officer

Appointment
to the Board

Richord was appainted as
a Director in August 2018,
was appointed as Chief
Financiol Officer in October
2018. and become Chief
Executive Officer in
November 2019.

Career and
experience

Richard spent six and a half
years atthe RAC Group.,
including as Chief Financiol
Officer from 2016. Prior to
this, Richard qualified os a
Chaortered Accountant ot
EY. later working at PwC,
following which Richard
held roles including Finance
Director of Virgin Money,
CFO of Central Trust and
Finance Director of Virgin
Money Giving.

Male &
Femole 2

Ben jacklin (39)
Deputy CEO

Appointment

to the Beard

Ben was appointed os
a Director and Chief
QOperating Officer in
November 2019 ond
became Deputy CEO
in July 2023.

Career and

experience

Benis responsible for the
leadership and management
of our business operations,
Qcross oll our territories.
These include all our
veterinary practices and our
loboratories. cremotorio ond
communication departments.
Ben joined CVSin 2015 and,
prior to his oppointment to
the Board in 2019, fed the
Veterinory Proctices division
across the CVS territories.
Ben qualified as ¢ Veterinary
Surgeon from Combridge
University and is o European
College of Veterinary
Surgeons and Royal College
of Veterinary Surgeons
recognised specialist

in equine surgery, Ben

has previously worked

in Australia as a

veterinary surgeon.

Robin Alfonso (44)
Chief Financial
Officer

Appointment

to the Boord

Raobin wos appeinted as a
Director and Chief Financiol
Officer in Novenber 2019,

Career and

experience

Robin spent eight years ot
the RAC Group, initiglly as
Group Financial Controller
and then gs Divisianal
Finance Director of its
lorgest commercial division
and profit centre, Consumer
Rocdside and Marketing.
Prior to this. Robin qualified
as a Chaortered Accountant
at PwC, following which

he moved to Aviva where
he perfermed a technical
accounting role.

Board ethnic diversity

White

Ethnic minority

Scott Morrison {53)
Company Secretary

Appointment

Scott was appointed as
Company Secretary in
June 2023.

Career and

experience

Scott quolified as a

solicitor in 1998, working
at Eversheds for some
years before moving inte

an in-house role, initially at
Kwik Fit os Legal Director,
and loter joining Croegmoor
Group Limited (o heaithcare
business) as Generat
Counsel and RAC Motoring
Services where he had the
role of General Counsel and
Company Secretory.

Key skills
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Essential skills
and experience
our Board
delivers:

Strategy ond
leoderthip

Brend end product
deveiopment

Operotionot
expertise

E-commerca. soles
and markting

Technology
sevelopment

Risk manogemant
Financkl

Governance ond legal

Mergers and
acquisitions
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Corporate governance statement

Appropriate
corporate
governance in
support of the
Group’s strategy

fn this Corporate Governance Statement, we explain how the
Company is manoged, the roles of the Board, its Committees
and Directors and the Group's compliance with the standards
set out in the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018 [the "Code”)
for the financial year ended 30 June 2023. For more infarmation

Scott Morrison about the Code set by the Financial Reporting Council (FRC),
Company Secretary visit the FRC's website ot www.fre.org.uk.
Principles Disclosure in the 2023 report Poges
Board leadership and A, B,C.0DandE Chair's Stotement 5t06
Company purpose Chief Executive Officer's Review 81010
Capital Allccation 12
Business Model 18 and 19
Cur People and Culture 20 and 21
Cur Strategy 22 ond 23
Section 172(1) Statement ond Stakeholder Engogement 28to 31
Chair's Introduction to Governance 69
Corparate Governance Statement 72t0 77
Audit Committee Report 78to BO
Nomination Committee Report 81 and 82
Remuneration Committee Report 831093
Directors” Report 94 to 99
Division of responsibilities F, G, Hand) Board of Directors and Company Secretary 70aond 71
' Corporate Governance Statement 72t0 77
Nomination Committee Report 81 ond 82
Composition, succession J.Kandt Chait's Introduction to Governance 69
——=and evaluation Corporate Governance Statement - 72t0 77
Nomination Committee Report 81 and 82
:Audit, risk and M Nand O Financicl Review - 5510 59
internal control Principal Risks and Uncertainties 60 to 68
Boord of Directors and Company Secretary 70and 71
Corporagte Governonce Statement 72w 77
Audit Committee Report 781080
Directors’ Report 94 t0 99
Remuneration P.QandR Beard of Directors and Company Secretary 70and 71
Corporate Governance Statement , 72t 77
Remuneration Committee Report 831093
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During the year to 30 June 2023, the Company has fully complied with the principles set out in the Code throughout the financial year
ond up to the dote of this Annugl Report and Accounts save from two exceptions which are exploined on poge 75 (independence)

and B7 (pension alignment). The Corparate Governance Report explains how the Compony has applied the principles ond
provisions of the Code and the guide below outlines where further information can be found within this report.

Our governance framework
The Group’s governance framework includes a schedule of matters reserved to the Board and its Committees and clear

terms of reference for each Committee. The Board has a delegoted authority policy which ensures that decisions are made

at appropriate levels within the Group:

The Board

Five Non-Executive Directors Three Executive Directors
Our five Non-Executive Directors (including our Chair)
provide independent oversight and constructive

challenge to the Executive Directors,

Board Committees

Remuneration Committee
Key responsibilities:

Nomination Committee
Key responsibilities:

Audit Committee
Key responsibilities:

v

Qur CEQ, Deputy CEQ and CFO are appointed to the Board.

reviewing ond monitaring
finoncicl reparting:

> interngl control and risk management:

> whistieblowing procedures; ond

> monitoring interncl ond external
oudit arrangements (including
auditer independence).

Membership:
Dovid Wilton - Chair

Deborah Kemp
Richard Gray

Jaanne Show {with effect from 1 July 2023)

Executive Committee

> making recommendations on all Board > assisting the Board in ensuring

appointments and succession planning:

> monitoring and reviewing Board
compesition; and

v

undertaking on onnual evaluation
of the effectiveness of the Boord and
its Committees.

Membership:
Richard Gray - Chair

Deboroh Kemp
David Wilton

Joanne Shaw [with effect from 1 July 2023)

appropriate remuneration policies
are in place for the Groug;

ensuring Executive Director remuneration
is aligned to the strategic priorities of the
Group and its performance; and

making recommendations regarding
Long-Term Incentive Plan terms and
conditions, and awards.

Membership:
Deborah Kemp - Chair

David Wilton
Richerd Graoy

Joanne Shaw {with effect from 1 July 2023}

The Executive Committee ("Exca”} comprises the Group CEQ, Deputy CEO and CFO. Group HR Director, Chief Veterinary
Officer. Group Pracurement Directar and MO CVS International. The Exco assists the CEQ in managing the Group's operatians
and in the implementation of strategy. The Exco meets on a weekly basis to set performance targets, monitor key objectives
ond commercial plans and evalucte opportunities and business initiatives. Executive Committee members report annually

to the Board in person as well as providing monthly updates through the CEC. Deputy CEO ond CFO Board reports.

Senior Leadership Group (SLG)
The SLG comprises the heads of major business units and key service functions. The SLG
meets on 0 monthly basis to collaborate. review Group performance and discuss major

plans and developments.

CVS Group ple Annual Report and Financial Statements 2023
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Corporate governance statement continued

Structure of the Board

and Board Committees

At 30 June 2023, the Board of Directors
consisted of seven members, including

a Non-Executive Chair and three
independent Non-Executive Directors.
Jeanne Shaw was appointed us an
additional Non-Executive Director on

1 July 2023. Bicgrophical details of the
Directors os ot the dote of this report

ore set out on pages 70to 71. The
responsibilities of the Board members
are set out in the chart below. The Board
and its Committees have access to
management and external advisors to
assist them in discharging their duties.
During the year ended 30 June 2023. the
Board and Board Committees received
sufficient, relicble and timely information
in order for them to perform their
responsibilities effectively.

Roles and responsibilities

Board activity during the financial year to 30 June 2023

Strategy, » Overseeing the development of g new five-year strategic plon os
business and cemmunicoted to shareholders ot our Novembear 2022 Capital Morkets Day.
operational » Reviewing and monitoring the Group's performance against the targets
performance set out in the annuot budget ond five-year plon.
> Reviewing ond opproving mojor investments in property, focilities, clinicol
equipment and acquisitions.
> Monitoring trading and market conditions, competitor octivity and
regulgtory requirements.
Financial » Receiving Audit Committee reports on full and half year financial results.
performance > Reviewing ond opproving the Group's annyal budget ond five-year
strategic plan.
» Considering the Company’s dividend policy and approving the allecation
of capital for investment,
Risk > Review of the Group's risk register.
management » Receiving reports from the Audit Committee on the effectiveness
and internal of internal conirols.
control > Lioising with KPMG as internal guditor and reviewing internol audit
reports from KPMG.
> Receiving regular updates on legol and regulotory matters.
Board and Receiving reports from the three Boord Committees,
Committee Reviewing terms of reference for Board Committess,
governance Adopting the Schedule of Matters Reserved to the Board.

Receiving corporote governance updates.

v ¥ ¥V v v

Conducting an annuol review of Board effectiveness.

The roles and responsibilities of the Directors are agreed by the Board. There is a clear division of responsibilities between the
Chair and the CEQ, and all Board members have clearly defined roles and responsibilities as set out below. Board members have
the range of skills and experience required to ensure the successful operation, growth and sustainability of the Group, as set out

in their biographies on poges 70 and 71.

Responsibility

» The Chair is responsible for leading the Boord and for ensuring its overall
effectiveness in directing the Company. The Chair facilitates constructive Board
relations and the effective contribution of all Non-Executive Directors. The Chair
ensures that the Directors receive accurate, timely and clear information os well
as overseeing the governance framework.

> The CEQ is responsible for leading the Company's executives in managing the
day-to-day operations of the Group. The CEGQ is accountabile te and reports to
the Board and is assisted in his role by the Group's Exco, all of whom report directly
or indirectly to the CEOC.

> The Deputy CEO reports to the CEQ and is responsible for overseeing and directing
the doy-to-doy operations of the Group in addition to supporting the CEO with
developing and implementing the Group's strategy. Ben was promoted to Deputy
CEO from Chief Operoting Officer with effect from 1 July 2023.

Rale Ngme

Chair Richard Connell
CEO Richord Fairman
Deputy CEO Ben Jacklin

CFO Robin Alfonso

> The CFO reports to the CEQ and is res;ponsible for the day-to-day management
of the Group's finances. development and implementation of financial strategy
as well as suppaorting the CEQ with developing and implementing Group strategy.

Senior Independent  Deboraoh Kemp

> The Senior Independent Director (SID) provides advice and additional support and
experience to the Chair.

Dir_e_c‘tor
Independent Non- Richard Gray
Executive Directors  David Wilton

Joanne Show*

> Non-Executive Directors provide constructive challenge, strategic guidance and
specialist advice as well os holding management to account and being available
to work with the Chair to resolve any contentious issues.

Company Secretary  Scott Morrison

> The Company Secretory octs gs Secretary to the Board and its Committees and
is responsible for ensuring that the Boord has the policies, processes, information,
time cnd resources it needs in crder to function effectively and efficiently as well
as supporting the Chair in developing and overseeing the governance framework.

* Joanne joined the Board on 1 July 2023.
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Board and Committee meeting attendance

The Board meets formally eleven times a year and meetings
are planned around key events in the corporate colendar
including interim results, full year results and the Annual
Generol Meeting {AGM). The Non-Executive Directors confirm
that they have sufficient time to devote in order to effectively
discharge their Board responsibilities. In addition to the eleven
scheduled Board meetings and other Committee meetings, the
Non-Executive Directors make themselves available for ad hoc
meetings and Board calls to receive reguiar updates and to
deai with specific projects or matters arising during the year.

The Choir and Non-Executive Directors meet from time to time
as approprigte without the Executive Directors present and
meet with the externol auditor ot legst annuaily without the
Executive Directors present,

The table below sets cut attendance at Board meetings during
the financiol year ended 30 June 2023.

Audit R ati
it 0 :

Board C
Number
of meetings 11 3 4 4
R Connell 10 2 4* 4*
D Kemp 11 3 4
R Groy 11 3
D Wilton 11 3
R Fairmon 11 3* 4* 4*
R Alfonso 11 3* 4* 4*
B Jacklin 11 3 4* 4*

* In ottendonce by invitation of the respective Committee.

Joanne Shaw was appointed os a Non-Executive Director
on 1 July 2023 and hence did not attend any Board meetings
in the year ended 30 June 2023,

Board processes and effectiveness

The Board maintcins o formal schedule of matters reserved
for its approval which includes matters of strategy, structure
and capital, finencial reporting and internal controls, major
contracts. Board membership. remuneration. delegation of
authority and corporote governance. Matters thaot foll outside
of those reserved to the Board or its Committees fall within the
responsibility ond authority of the CEQ, Deputy CEO and CFO
and are either reserved to them or delegated further through
the Group's Delegated Authorities Policy.

Board and Committee popers are circulated well in advance

of meetings and Directors have access to a Board portal
containing Board packs and reference materials from previous
meetings as well as all Board policies and procedures. In
addition to formally scheduled meetings. the Chair maintains
regular contact with the Non-Executive Directors, CEQ, Deputy
CEOQ. CFO ond Company Secretary in perfarming his duties
leading the Baard.

In light of the Company’s AIM listing and regular Board
meetings, the Board does not believe that external evaluation
of the Beard is appropriate. During December 2022, the Choir.
assisted by the Company Secretory, carried out an internal
review of Boord effectiveness which included o review of the
information provided to the Boord, the composition of the
Board. decision maoking processes and the Board's

annual agenda.

Qutcomes from the Board effectiveness review were:

> appointment of an additional Non-Executive Director to
improve the gender diversity of the Board;

> creation of a new Deputy CEQ role to ensure long-term
succession planning:

> maintenance of a Board portal to support all Directors in
reviewing Boord.papers and in creating a reference paint
for Board policies and procedures:

> maintaining an annual rolling agenda to facilitate interaction
with Executive Committee members: and

> full Board attendonce at the Group's annual conference to
facilitate engogement with employees from across all areas
of the business.

Board induction and training

New Directors appointed to the Board undertake an induction
programme to assist in developing their understonding and
awareness of the business, its governance framework,
employees and Group policies and procedures. Induction is
tailored to suit the requirements of each new Director and
includes site visits to proctices around the Group, meetings
with the heads of Group functions and one-on-one meetings
with fellow Board members, Executive Committee members
and the Company's external advisors in addition to being
provided with details of the Group's policies and praocedures.

New Board members also receive appropriote training on
AlM and the Market Abuse Regulation delivered by the
Company’'s Nominated Advisor or external legal counsel.

Independence

Richard Connell has held the position of Chair of the Board
since September 2007 ond has therefore served on the
Board for more than nine years. This is an example within the
Code of a circumstance in which o Non-Executive Director's
independence is likely to be, or could appear to be, Impaired.
The Board of Directors believes that Richard's knowledge

of the veterinary sector and the Group's operations and his
experience of transactions continue to be invaluable to the
leadership of the Group.

Deborah Kemp, Richard Gray, David Wilton ond Joanne Shaw
are all considered to be independent by the Board. The independent
Non-Executive Directors meet ot least annually to appraise the
Chair's performance.

All Directors will offer themselves for re-election ot the 2023
AGM of the Company.
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Corporate governance statement continued

Relations with shareholders

Copies of the Annual Report ond Financial Statements are
issued 1o oll shareholders where requested ond copies are
available on the Group's website, www.cvsukltd.co.uk.

The Group olso uses its website to provide information

to shareholders and other interested parties. The Company
deals with shareholder correspondence as and when it arises
throughout the yeor.

The CEQ, Deputy CEQ and CFO hove regular meetings
with institutional investors, private client brokers, individual
shareholders, fund managers and analysts to discuss
information made public by the Group.

The Chaoir and the Non-Executive Directors are always
availgble to shareholders on oll matters relating to governance
and strategy. They may be contacted through the Company
Secretary at compaony.secretory@cvsvets.com.

Shareholder engagement activities
There has been considerable engagement with institutional and
retail investors during the year ended 30 June 2023 including:

> preliminary results roadshow ~ September 2022;
> annual CVS employee canference — Octaber 2022;
> Capital Markets Day = November 2022;

> Annual General Meeting - November 2022;

> interim results roadshow — February 2023; and

> US institutionaol investor roadshow ~ March 2023,

The Audit Committee

David Wiltan chaired the Committee throughout the year
under review. Dovid has o wealth of experience in senior
finance roles including in listed compaonies. All Non-Executive
Directors other than the Chair of the Board were members of
the Committee during the year, with Joanne Show joining the
Committee from 1 July 2023 on her appeintment to the Boaord.

The Board considers thaot members of the Audit Committee
have recent and relevant financial expertise. and thot the
Committee as 0 whole has competence relevant to the sector
in which the Company operotes.

The Audit Committee’'s duties primarily concern financial
reparting. internal control and risk monagement systems,
whistleblowing procedures ond internai oudit ond external
gudit arrangements {including auditor independence}.

The Audit Committee Report can be found on pages 78 to 80.

The Nomination Committee

Richard Groy chaired the Nomination Committee throughout
the yeor under review. All Non-Executive Directors other
than the Chair of the Board were members of the Committee
during the year, with Joanne Shaw joining the Committee
from 1 july 2023 on her appointment to the Board.
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The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and compasition, including skills. independence,
knowledge and experience, of the Board. It is also responsible
for the co-ordination of the annual evaluation of the performance
of the Board and of its Committees, and for ensuring appropriata
succession plons are in place. Given the size of the Group and
the Company’s AlM listing, the Board does not believe external
evaluation of the Board to be appropriate. All Directors engage
in the internal evaluation and appropriate action is token in
light of the assessment.

The Committes is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on all Board appointments and on the succession
plans for both Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors,

The Nomination Committee Report can be found on pages
81 and 82.

The Remuneration Committee

Deborah Kemp chaired the Remuneration Committee througheut
the year under review. All Non-Executive Directors other than the
Chair of the Board were members of the Committee during the
year, with joanne Shaw joining the Committee from 1 july 2023
on her oppeintment to the Board.

The Remuneration Committee hos delegoted respensibility
for designing and determining remuneration for the Chair, the
Executive Directors and the next level of senior management,
as well as the Company Secretary.

The Chair of the Board, CEQ, Deputy CEQ and CFO are invited
1o ottend meetings as appropriate but do not participate in
discussions relgting to their own remunerotion.

The Remuneration Committee Report can be found on poges
83t093.

The Company Secretary

The Compony Secretary is responsible for ensuring thot
Board procedures are complied with, advising the Board on
all governonce matters. supporting the Chaoir ond helping the
Board and its Committees to function efficiently. All Directors
have access to the advice of the Company Secretary.

Jenny Farrer served as Company Secretary during the year until
8 May 2023. when Scott Morrison was appointed Company
Secretary as her successor following Boord approvol.

Annual General Meeting 2022 — voting results

In the 2022 Results of AGM announcement, the Board of CVS
noted thot all the resolutions had been passed with the
requisite majority. During the course of the year, the Board of
Directors has continued to actively engoge with shareholders
and to discuss ond consider their feedback.

Whistleblowing :

The Group's whistleblowing policy is reviewed by the Board
annuglly. The policy sets out the procedures for employees or
third parties to raise concerns about any suspected wrongdoing.
Employees also have access to a wide range of alternative
informal routes through which to raise concerns. This reflects
the open culture and strong internal communication channels
of the Group, in line with our strategy. and supports the formol
whistleblowing policy we have in place,



The Boord receives any whistleblowing reparts at each Board
meeting and will receive more detailed reports of any investigations
that moy take place. There were no mojor issues reported to
the Board under the whistleblowing policy during the year.

Audit, risk and internal control

The Board is ultimately responsible for the Group's system
of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness onan
ongoing baosis.

The system is designed to monoge rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve the Group's strategic objectives and
can only provide reasonable ond not absoiute assurance
against materiol misstatement or 10ss.

The key risk management processes and internai control
procedures include the following:

> the close involvement of the Executive Directors in all
aspects of the day-to-day operations. including regular
meetings with seniar colleagues from across the Group
and a review of the monthly operational reports compiled
by senior management:

> clearly defined responsibilities and limits of outhority.
The Board has responsibility for strategy and has adopted
a schedule of matters which are required to be brought
to it for decision;

v

a comprehensive system of finoncial reporting, forecasting
and budgeting. Detailed budgets are prepared annually

for all parts of the business. Reviews occur through the
manogement structure culminating in a Group budget which
is considered and approved by the Board. Group management
accounts are prepared monthly and submitted to the Beard
for review. Variances from the budget and the prior year are
closely monitored and explanations are provided for significant
variances. Independent of the budget process, the Board
regularly reviews revised profit, cash flow and bank covenant
compliance forecasts which are updated to reflect actual
performaonce trends;

v

a continuous process for identifying, evaluating and
managing significant risks across the Group together
with a comprehensive annual review of risks which
covers both financial and non-financial areas:

v

an independent internal audit function provided by KPMG
that reports 1o the Chair of the Audit Committee;

v

a central teaom that checks clinical and health and sofety
compliance in all parts of the Group; and

> the Company’'s Scheme of Delegation of Financial Authority.

The Board has sotisfied itself that the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems are effective.

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of
business conduct and ethics, ond has an ongoing process for
identifying, evaluating ond managing ony significant risks in
this regord.

The internal control procedures are delegated to the Executive
Directors and senior management and are reviewed in light
of the ongoing assessment of the Group's significant risks.

Remuneration

The Boord considers that policies on executive remuneration
should be transparent. They should be implemented ina
manner which supports strategy and promotes long-term
sustainable growth. In addition. remuneration should reflect
both the performance of the Company as well as individuals.
The Board has delegated to the Remuneration Committee
responsibility for complying with these aspects of the Code
ond the work of the Committee is reported in full on pages 83
to 93 of this Annual Report. The Group's remuneration policies
are fully in compliance with the principles and provisions of the
Code save for pensions alignment per provision 38 as disclosed
on page 87,

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the Company will toke place on
29 November 2023. Full details of resolutions to be preposed
to our shareholders will be set out in the Notice of AGM which
will be made available in the Investor Centre on our website.

Qutcomes of the resolutions put to the AGM, including poll
results detailing votes for, against and withheld, will be
published on the website of the Company and the London
Stock Exchange once the AGM has concluded.

By order of the Board.

Scott Morrison
Company Secretary
21 September 2023
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Audit Committee report

Governing a strong

financial control framework

David Wilton

Audit Committee Chair

Key responsibilities:

> reviewing and monitoring financiol reporting;

> ensuring an appropriate internal contro! and risk
management framework;

> maintaining appropriate whistleblowing
procedures; and

> monitoring internal and external audit arrangements -
{including ouditor independence).

Committee composition during the year
to 30 June 2023

Attendance

David Wilton

Deboroh Kemp
Richard Gray

Joanne Shaw was appointed as a Non-Executive
Director and Audit Committee member on 1 july 2023
and hence did not ottend any Audit Committee
meetings in the yeor ended 30 June 2023.
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Responsibilities and terms of reference

The Committee is responsible for ensuring that the finoncial
performance of the Group is properly controlled, monitored and
reported, for liaising with the external auditor and for reviewing
its reports relgting to the Annual Report and Financial Statements,
ond for internal control matters. During the year under review
the Committee Chair was David Wilton. All members of the
Committee are Non-Executive Directors with considerable
experience in senior rofes and are deemed to hove the necessary
ability ond experience to understand financial statements.

The Chair, the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ), the Deputy CEQ
{DCEQ} and the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) ore invited to
ottend such meetings, but the Committee aiso meets with the
internal and external ouditors without the CEQ, DCEO and CFO
being present ot Jeast once onnuolly. Other members of senior
management are invited to present such reports as are required
for the Committee to discharge its duties. The internal auditor
(KPMG) is also invited to ottend and present at each meeting.

The agenda of each meeting is linked to the reporting
requirements of the Group and the Group's financial calendar.
Each Audit Committee member hos the right to require reports
on matters relevant to its terms of reference in cddition to the
regular items.

Summary of activity

In the year ended 30 June 2023 and up to the date of this
report the actions taken by the Audit Committee to discharge
its duties inciuded:

> gppointing KPMG to provide internal audit services to the Group;

- » reviewing the Annual Repart and Financia! Statements and

the Interim Report, including significant financiol reporting
judgements contained therein. As part of these reviews the
Committee received a report from the external ouditor on its
oudit of the 2023 annual fingncial statements;

> advising the Board that the Annual Repart ond Financial
Statements are fair, balanced and understandable, and
provide the information necessary for shorehelders to ossess
the Compony's position and performance, business model
ond strotegy.

> reviewing the acquisition of a veterinary practice from
a related party:



> reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's internat controls
ond reports received from the Group's internal cudit function
in respect of its programme of internal audit reviews;

v

reviewing the Group's risk management framework;

> reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's cutsourced internal
audit function;

v

reviewing the external auditor's audit planning document,
with particular reference to the oudit approach, planned
materiality, significant risks os detoiled in the Independent
Auditor's Report and the audit approoch to these risks;

v

reviewing the external auditor's audit findings memorandum,
noting conclusions in respect of identified qudit risks, materiality
of adjusted and unadjusted misstatements, control observations

and suggested improvements in the disclosure provided in the

Annual Report and Finencial Statements;

> considering papers prepared by the CFO to support the
going concern basis of preporation of the Annual Report
and Financial Stotements;

v

considering popers prepared by the CFO to support goodwill
and cash-generating unit impairment review;

v

reviewing the colculation. application and presentation of
Alternative Performance Measures (APMs) in the Annual
Report and Financial Statements;

v

agreeing the fees to be paid to the external auditor for
its audit of the 2023 financial statements; and

v

reviewing the performance and independence of the
external auditor.

Significant financial reporting risks and judgement
areas considered during the year

Revenue recognition

During the yeor. we have reviewed the appropriateness of the
revenue recognised occording to the cost profile of delivering
the performance obligations for our Healthy Pet Club scheme.

Management override

During the year, we have reviewed the appropriateness of
controls oround mancgement override of controls, ensuring
the controls in place are robust and, where apprapricte.
recommending areas for improvements.

Research and Development Expenditure Tax Credit
{RDEC) income

During the year, we haove reviewed the appropriateness of
the income recognised in relation to RDEC, along with the
associoted accounting estimates and judgements.

In respect of the obove significant finonciol reporting risks ond
judgement creas, we concluded that the Group's accounting
treatment and/or controls in place were appropricte.

Going concern and viability assessment

In considering going concern and viability overoll, the Committee
reviewed the Group's forecasts with particular focus on the key
assumptions in relation to revenue. gross margin and cash flow
management. Sensitivities to these key assumptions were also
reviewed based on the impact of the Group's key risks, as set
out on pages 60 to 68.

Following o review of the detailed considerations set out above
by the Committee and Executive Committee, the Committee is
satisfied that it is appropriate for the Group to continue to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the Annual Report and
Financial Statements of the Group and, further, thot the going
concern fonger-term viobility statement on page 95 is
appropriate.

Related party transaction

During the year, the Group completed the purchose of 100.0%
of the share capital of The Harrogate Vet Limited, o company
registered in England and Waoles, for initial cosh consideration
of £2.5m, plus deferred consideration of £0.1m and contingent
consideration of £1.5m. This is a business comprising one small
animal veterinary practice site in the UK. Prior to acquisition,
the company wos portially owned by the spouse of Ben jacklin,
the Deputy CEO, and as such the acquisition is considered a
reloted party transaction. The terms of the ocquisition, including
consideration paid, were on an arm’s length basis, where

Ben Jacklin was not party to the discussions held, and
consistent with acquisitions of other unrelated entities.
Shareholder approval wos granted ot our 2022 AGM.

Internal audit

The outsourced interna!l audit function has o direct line of
report inta the Committee and is an important part of the
independent gssurance processes within the business.

The Committee reviews and approves the internal audit plan
for the year which is developed to address key risks ocross the
business os well as reviewing core governance, financiol and
commercial processes.

KPMG attends each Committee meeting, updating on progress
against the audit plan throughout the'yeor, and reporting on
any key control weoknesses identified and progress against
mitigoting actions.
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Audit Committee report continued

Internal audit continued
Specific work performed during the year in our key risk

creas included:
Risk area Work undernoken

Strategic

> Assurance mapping (strategic risks).

> iT governance, risk management ond
infrastructure {gap assessment/high
level benchmarking).

Operational > Cyber security gap ossessment.

> Practice Controls Seif Assessment
Questionnaire {CSAQ).

> Acquisition ond integration.

> Payroll processing.

> Controls volidation {key financial controls)
focusing on the following key financial
controls: accounts receivable; accounts
payable: general ledger; staff expenses,
and payroll.

Financial

Legal and > Recruitment {right to work).
regulatory

compliance > Governance reform reoqmess assessment.

During the next financial yeor, the internal audit plan will
include @ mixture of risk-bosed, routine and requested internal
audits to include: Cyber and IT controls review, BEIS progress
review, supply chain and procurement, Australia - key finance
ond |T controls, controls validotion (key financial controls,
CSAQ and IR35.

External auditor

The external auditor was cppointed with effect from the year
ended 30 June 2017 giving o current tenure of seven years.

A tender process was carried out prior to this change. From
the year ended 30 june 2022, in line with guidance frarm the
Auditing Standards Board, there has been an qudit partner
rotation and @ new audit engegement partner has started
working with the Committee. The oppointment is reviewed and
subject to a shareholder vote ot the AGM on an annual basis.
Details of the fees paid to Deloitte during the financial year
are set out in note 6 to the financial statements.

The Audit Committee has primary responsibility for the
supervision of the relationship with the external quditor,
including overseeing its qualification, independence. expertise,
performance and effectiveness, and the terms of its engogement
and remunergation. The Committee is also responsible for ensuring
the quaiity and efficiency of the external audit enabling the
Committee to formally evalugte the effectiveness and quality of
the auditar’s output, which it does annually. After reviewing the
external auditor's performance during the year, the Committee
hos concluded that it is satisfied with the effectiveness of the
audit and the gudit process, and thot Deloitte remains effective
in its role as externof auditor. The Committee hos therefore
recommended to the Board that Deloitte be re-oppointed for

a further year and a resalution to this effect will be proposed

at the AGM.
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What we will do in 2024

During 2024, we will continue to build on our focus in 2023
and to discharge our responsibilities as set out in the terms of
reference. We will continue to monitor emerging and maturing
risks and will continue to develop and enhance the control
environment of the Group. We will review the proposals set
out by the Government in response ta the Department for
Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) corporate
governance reform agenda along with monitoring progress

of the Group's review of its internal contrels framework and
documentation. We will continue to monitor and build our fraud
policy ond carry out a fraud effectiveness review gcross the
business. We are developing our gudit and assurance policy
in preparction for legislative requirements and continue to
support the development of the Group's scenario planning
and reporting in relation to the Task Force on Climate-Reloted
Financiol Disclosures (TCFD), specifically relating to new
requirements and recommendotions made by the FRC.

Approval -

The members of the Audit Committee have reviewed the
financial statements and the content of the draft Annuol
Report ond Financial Statements to ensure that it is fair,
bolanced and understandable and, accordingly. the Audit
Committee resclved to recommend that the Board makes
the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on pages
96 ond 97.

David Wilton
Audit Committee Chair
21 Septernber 2023



Nomination Committee report

Ensuring an appropriate level
of experience on the Board
and maintaining corporate
governance standards

Richard Gray

Nomination Committee Chair

Key responsibilities:

> making recommenddations on all Board
appointments and succession planning;

» monitoring and reviewing the Board
composition: and

» undertoking an annual evaluation of the
effectiveness of the Boord and its Committees.

Following the oppointrent of Joanne Show as on
additional Non-Executive Director on 1 July 2023, the
Camnmittee is comprised of the four independent Non-
Executive Directors. The primory purpose of the Committee
is ta lead the process for Board appointments and to moke
recommendctions to the Boord to achieve the optimat
composition of the Board having regard to:

> its size and compasition;

> ensuring that it consists of individuols who ore best
able to discharge the responsibilities of Directors;

> potential conflicts of interest:

> the extent to which the required skills, experience
or ottributes are represented; and

> the need to maintain the highest standards
of corporate governance.

Committee composition during the year
to 30 June 2023

Attendance

Richard Gray

Deborah Kemp
Dovid Wilton

Joanne Shaw was appointed as a Non-Executive
Director on 1 july 2023 and hence did not attend any
Committee meetings in the year ended 30 June 2023.

The Board recognises the importance of having a diverse
Board ond workforce and encourcges reviewing ways of
working to ensure candidates from oll backgrounds can apply.
Each oppointment of o Board member or senior executive is
made on merit ond the best candidate will be appointed. The
Board recognised thot further steps could be taken to improve
the diversity of the Group at all levels and across afi business
streams ond continues to work towords this aim, with the
appaintment of Joonne Shaw on 1 july 2023 a pasitive step.

What we did in 2023:
> following an extensive search process, appointed Joonne
Shaw as an additional Non-Executive Director;

v

ossessed Board composition and how it may be enhanced:

> reviewed ond considered Board evaluation ond effectiveness;

v

reviewed the independence of the Non-Executive Directors;
> reviewed and considered Directors’ conflicts of interest;

> recommended the promotion of Ben Jacklin to a newly
created paosition of Deputy Chief Executive Officer;

> recommended the re-appointment of Richard Gray for
o further term;

h]
> recommended the appointment of Scott Morrison os
Company Secretary;

> reviewed and considered executive succession plans; and
> reviewed the Committee’s corporate governance obligations.

What we will do in 2024:
> continue to review Board composition and effectiveness:

> continue to keep succession planning under review;
> review corporate governance obligations end updates; and
> undertoke o further Board evaluation.

Board appointments and resignations

The Nomination Committee oversaw the appointment of
Joanne Shaw, Nan-Executive Director, who joined the Board on
1 July 2023. Joanne has significant healthcare experience from
her current roles as Trustee and Audit Committee Chair ot
Cancer Research UK, Chair at the Royal College of Paediotrics
and Child Health, and Deputy Chair ot Vitality UK. She has
held a number of previous non-executive roles over the past

17 years inciuding as Non-Executive Director and Chair of the
Audit and Risk Committee ot NHS England and the National
Audit Office, Chair of NHS Direct, Non-Executive Director at
Kensington and Chelsea Primory Care Trust and Chair of the
British Equestrian Association. Joanne, a Chartered Accountant,
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Nomination Committee report continued

Board appointments and resignations continued
was a former monggement consultant at Boston Consulting Group
and had previous executive roles at the Medicines Partnership, the
Audit Commission and Coopers and Lybrond., joanne became

a member of all three Board Committees on her appointment.

Following a thorough and independent tender process, the
Nominotiohs Committee engaged a third-party recruitment
speciglist, Fletcher Jones, to support with the search for, and
ultimote appointment of, Joanne Shaw. Fletcher Jones has no
other relationships with the Company or any of the Directors,
save for previously acting for Columbia Threadneed|e Private
Equity Trust plc, o company in which Richard Gray has an interest

As port of its long-term succession planning, and in recognition
of the significant contribution Ben Jacklin has made over the
past few years the Nomination Committee opproved the
recommencduation of Ben Jacklin's promotion to Deputy Chief
Executive Officer with effect from 1 july 2023.

The Nomination Committee considered and recormmended the
re-appointment of Richard Gray as Non-Executive Director
with effect from 16 July 2023.

Committee terms of reference

The Nomination Committee's terms of reference were
reviewed during the course of the year and were considered
to be appropriate.

Board evaluation and effectiveness

The Norningtion Committee scrutinises the performance of the
Executive Directors, taking into account the performonce of the
business against agreed plans. The Nomination Committee also
considers the other cormmitments of Directors and is satisfied that
all Directors devote oppropriate time to the Company’s affairs.

In December 2022, the Nomination Committee evoluated the
results of the internal Board effectiveness review conducted

by the Chair and the Company Secretary and wos sctisfied
that the Board remains effective and has the right batance of
skills and experience to provide continued effective stewaordship
of the Group.

Succession planning

The Committee is responsible for ensuring thot plans are in
place for orderly succession to Board and executive positions,
and to oversee the development of a diverse pipeline for
succession, toking into occount the challenges and opportunities
facing the Group ond the skills and expertise needed on the
Board in the future. The Nomination Committee considered
contingency and succession plans in April 2023,

The Committee is also responsible for keeping under review the
leadership needs of the Group, both Executive and Non-Executive,
with @ view to ensuring the continued ability of the Group ta
compete effectively.

It is important that a diverse pipeline for succession is developed
in line with the Company's strategy on pages 22 and 23.

The gender balance of those in the senior management, which,
in accordance with the Code, we consider to be the Executive
Committee, is three women and four men.

The Committee is responsible for keeping up te dote and fully
informed about strategic issues and commercial changes affecting
the Group ond the morket in which it operates. The Group
competes with o number of private equity backed veterinary
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businesses and, in arder to respond appropriately to changing
and increasing competition, and to successfully execyte accretive
acquisitions, it is cansidered impartant that the Board

contains Executive and Non-Executive Directors with
transaction experience,

Conflicts of interest

The Board has established robust procedures for monitoring
conflicts of interest in accordance with the Group's Articles of
Association and conflicts of interest policy. All Directors are
required to make the Boord aware of any other commitments
and potential conflicts of interest are approved by the Board
where appropriote, and recorded in the conflicts register, The
Boord has delegated authority to the Nomination Committee
to keep under review any actual or potential conflict of interest
situations authorised by the Board, and to determine whether
it is appropriate for such matter(s} to remain so authorised.
During the financial year to 30 June 2023, the Committee
noted that none of the Directors have interests or external
appointments which gave rise to materiol conflicts of interest,
save 0s discussed below.

During the yeaor, the Group completed the purchase of a business
comprising one smalt animal veterinary practice site in the UK.
Prior to acquisition, the company was partially owned by the
spouse of Ben Jacklin, the Deputy CEQ, and as such the acquisition
is considered u related party transaction. The terms of the
acquisition, including consideration paid, were on an arm's length
basis ond consistent with acquisitions of other unrelated entities.
The Committee satisfied itself that Ben jacklin had na involvernent
in the discussion or the decision to acquire this business.

Electing and re-electing Directors

The Committee has reviewed the independence of the
Non-Executive Directors and the Non-Executive Chair and
concluded that alt have sufficient time to meet their Boord
responsibilities in accordonce with the criteria set out in the UK
Corporate Governance Code. The Committee has olso sotisfied
itself that, save for the Chair, who has served for more than nine
years and hence cannot be considered independent under the
Code, all four other Non-Executive Directors are independent.

The Committee will recommend to the Board and the
shareholders that all serving Directors should be submitted
for re-election ot the Company’s 2023 AGM,

Ongoing review

Whilst the Committee will continue to review the compasition of
the Beard. it is confident that the Board hos the right balance of
skills, experience and tenure at present to successfully steer the
Group through the next stages of its growth and to respond
appropriotely to the strategic opportunities cheod.

The Group continues to deliver strong financial performance
and has successfully refinanced its bank facilities in the yeaor.
The strengthened bolonce sheet ond experienced
management teom position it well to toke advantage of the
strategic opportunities and to deliver further enhancements
in shareholder value.

Richard Gray
Nomination Committee Chair
21 September 2023



Remuneration Committee report — unaudited

Ensuring our remuneration policies
are transparent and fully aligned
with the delivery of long-term

sustainable value

Deborah Kemp

Remuneration Committee Chair

Key responsihilities:

> pssisting the Board in ensuring appropriate
remuneration policies are in place for the Group:

> ensuring Executive Director remuneration is
aligned to the strategic priorities of the Group
and its performance; and

> making recommendations regarding Long-Term
Incentive Plan {LT1P} terms and conditions,
and awards.

Foliowing the appointment of joanne Shaw as an
additional Non-Executive Director, the Remuneration
Committee is now comprised of four independent
Non-Executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee meets frequently
thraughout the yeor to consider remuneration
matters of the Group, to consider feedback from
shareholders on remuneragtion matters and to make
appropriate recommendations to the Board.

Terms of reference

The full terms of reference for the Committee are
reviewed and approved annually. These were last
updated on 21 September 2022,

Committee composition during the year
to 30 June 2023

Attendance

Deborah Kemp

Richard Gray

David Wilton

Joanne Shaw was appointed as a Non-Executive
Director on 1 July 2023 ond hence did not attend any
Committee meetings in the year ended 30 June 2023

As an AlM-quoted company. the information provided is
disclosed to fulfil the requirements of AIM Rule 19. CVS Group
plc is not required to comply with Schedule 8 of the Large and
Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008. The information is unaudited.

Remuneration policy

The Remuneration Committee seeks to develop the Company's
executive remuneration arrangements appropriately taking
due account of matters specified in the UK Corporote
Governance Code and the Investment Association Principles
of Remuneration in light of the Company's growth and its
status as an AIM 50 company.

The Remuneration Committee considers it important thot
remuneration policies for Executive Directors are aligned to the
Group's long-term strategy and that a meaningful portion of
Executive Director reward is linked to long-term performence.
In light of this, remuneration for Executive Directors is comprised
of base salary, an annual bonus and a Long-Term Incentive
Plan (LTIP) with performance criteria based cn earnings

per share ond total shareholder return,

In respect of basic solary, the objective is to ensure that the
Group attracts and retains high calibre executives with the
skills, experience and motivation necessary to direct and
manage the affairs of the Group. The annual bonus scheme

is designed to reward exceptionol performance with criteria
aligned to the annual budget approved by the Board along
with non-finaoncial targets to align Directors’ interests with the
Group's Sustainability and ESG ambitions. Long-Term Incentive
Plans are seen as an important part of Executive Directors’
total remunerotion and are designed to drive and reward
exceptional performonce aligned with shareholder returns
over the long term.

The policy also provides for post-retirernent benefits through
contributions to Executive Directors’ personal pension schemes,
together with other benefits such as a compony car ond life
and medicol insurance.

A description of how the Company has addressed the matters
specified in Rule 41 of the FRC Code is set out on poge 89.
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Remuneration Committee report — unaudited continued

Development of remuneration policy in alignment
with shareholder interests

The Remuneration Committee haos introduced o number of
changes over the past three years to better align Executive
Director remuneration with shareholders' interests. These
changes include the negotiation of new contracts of employment
for cach of the Cxecutive Directurs, the intivduc Uon of molus
and clawback provisions for annual bonuses and LTiPs, the
ability for the Remuneration Committee to oversee formulaic
outcomes, the introduction of total shareholder return measures
in the LTiP scheme, the introduction of a new two-year hold
period for LTIP awords and the introduction of new non-financial
measures within the annual bonus scheme oligned to
shareholders’ interests.

In 2022 the Remuneration Committee introduced a new
formal sharehelding guideline of 100% of salary for the three
Executive Directors. The Executive Directors have ogreed

to increase this formal shareholding guideline to 200% with
effect fram 1 July 2023 with the expectation that Executive
Directors will meet this requirement within five years of
appointment. The CEC had met this target ot 30 June 2023
and the DCEQ and CFD continue to work to this target.
Current shareholder interests are shown on poge 93.

2023 financial performance and shareholder returns
CVS has delivered a strong financial performance in the
financiol year to 30 June 2023, with revenue increasing 9.8%
to £608.3m (2022: £554.2m). growth in adjusted EBITDA

of 13.0% to £121.4m {2022: £107.4m) and odjusted EPS
increasing 11.9% to 96.0p (2022; 85.8p). These financial
metrics are at the upper end of morket expectations.

We have made notable steps forward in our ambitions outlined
at our Capital Markets Day in November 2022 and in the year
acquired eleven practices for £54.6m along with completing

21 refurbishments or relocation projects with capital
investment of £45.7m.

We successfully refinanced and extended our bank facilities
in February 2023, and as a result of the strong financial
performance leverage remains comfortably below 2.0x at
0.73x (2022: 0.40x).

The Board is recommending the payment of a final dividend
per share of 7.5p (2022: 7.0p) which represents g 7.1% increase.

In light of the obove. the Remuneration Committee considers
that the Group’s remuneration policies are alighed with
shoreholders’ interests.
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Supporting our colleagues

CWVS colleogues continue to work tirelessly to ensure CVS
provides the best possible care to onimals. In recognition of the
dedication and professionalism of colleagues, during the year
the Remuneration Committee in conjunction with the Board,
made the following changes:

> the Remunerotion Committee opproved on overoge onnual
colleague poay review of 6.5% effective from 1 July 2023,
with a further review plonned for 1 july 2024;

» the Remuneration Committee approved solary increases in
April 2023 for those colleagues subject to the National Living
Wage/National Minimum Wage such that these colleogues
earn 3% above the statutory minimums;

> the Remunergtion Committee decided to increase the reward
and benefits for colleagues to include o heolth cash plon,
discounted critical illness and life insurance os well as
promoting sustainable travel through a new salary sacrifice
electric vehicle scheme:

> the Remuneration Committee approved the enhancement of
sick pay to help colleagues with exceptional health-related
events; and

> the Remuneration Committee decided to intreduce o "CVS
refresh” reward scheme where teoms receive o weekly
allowance to spend on boosting team morale.

In line with the applicable bonus scheme terms and conditions,
colleague bonuses will also be payable for 2023 in line with the
usual timetable.

The Remuneration Committee is pleased thot the take-up of its
SAYELS scheme, where employees can save over o three-year
period and have the option to buy shares in the Group at

0 20% discounted option price, increosed by 42.7% to

1,985 employees {SAYEL4: 1,391 colleagues).

in light of the competitive landscape ond the continued
shortage of veterinary professionals in the UK, the Remuneration
Committee will continue to consider reword and benefits
across the Group to ensure that CVS remains well positioned
to attract and retain talent.

Supporting our customers and communities
Whilst not specifically o Remuneration Committee matter,
throughout 2023, CVS continued to suppart our wider
stakeholders, in particular our customers and communities:

> we donated £19.000 to Pet Blood Bonk UK, the CV5S
colleagues’ chosen charity of the year:

> we matched the above donation with o donation of £19,000
to Vetlife, which provides inveluable support to professionals
within the veterinary sector;

> we introduced o formol payment plan offering for customers
who need to spread the cost of emergency, one-off care for
their pet; and

» we introduced a student outrecch EDI initiotive to encourage
students from all backgrounds into the profession.



Gender pay gap

We published our Gender Pay Gap Report for the 5 April 2022.
Our mean pay gap reduced. and our medion poy gop increased
marginally. Our bonus pay gop increased which was impacted
by long term incentive plans and whilst this was a small
number, more men thon women were eligible to receive them.

A full copy of the Gender Pay Gop Report can be found herea:
Cvsukdtd.co.ukk e

pay-gap-report/

Directors' remuneration in respect of 2023

Qur Directors’ remuneration policy continues to ensure the
alignment of long-term performance with remuneration of
Executive Directors.

Base salary

Salaries are reviewed annually and are regularly benchmarked
against similor AlM-quoted and other listed companies with
changes effective annually in January. The Remuneration
Committee decided to increase the salary of the Chief Executive
Officer (CEQ), Deputy CEQ {DCEO) and Chief Financial Officer
{CFD) by 6.5% with effect from 1 January 2023 in line with the
overage Company-wide increase. The CEC salary increased
to £443,210, the DCEQC solary increased to £332,408 and the
CFO salary increased to £287.870.

Pension
There were no changes to the executive pension contributions
in 2023,

Annual bonus

The annual bonus scheme in which the Executive Directors
participate is based on the combination of financial and
non-financial targets. 80% of the bonus is payable on
achievement of adjusted EBITDA prior to share option costs,
in comparison to the onnual budget opproved by the Board,
and 20% is payable based on non-financial targets linked to
our sustainability ond ESG strotegy.

For 2022/23, the maximum bonus for the CEQ, DCEO and CFO
was 100% of salary.

In light of the wider business and stokeholder context set out
cbove, the Committee was comfortable that the formuloic
outcome set out immediately below was fair and appropriate;
therefore, no adjustments were made and no discretion

was exercised in relation to that outcome. The bonus will

be awarded in cash and is payable in September 2023.

> The adjusted EBITDA target range, excluding Executive
Committee bonus accrual, was set between £109.0m for
zero bonus and £119.8m for maximum bonus prior to
acquisitions completed within the yeor {with torgets increased
to reflect ocquisitions). Reflecting acquisitions, the target
was odjusted to £111.7m for zero bonus and £122.5m for
maximum bonus, Actuol cdjusted EBITDA was £121.4m
and 98% of this bonus component was achieved.

> The five non-financiol components eoch present 4% of the
bonus entitlement:

> Patient Care Index — an increase of ane percentage point.
Actual Patient Care Index reduced in the year by 1.5ppts
and therefere this target was not met.

> Attrition - 10.0% reduction. Attrition fell by 17% in the
year and therefore this target was met.

» eNPS - 50.0% improvement in employee Net Promoter
Score. eNPS increased by 204.2% in the year and
therefore this torget was met.

> Clinical waste - 5.0% reduction in total clinical waste
(measured across existing CVS sites and excluding
acguisitions in year). Total clinical waste reduced 5.6%
and therefore this target was met.

> Client NPS - 5.0% improvement in client Net Promoter
Score. Client NPS increased by 1.5% in the year and
therefore this target was not met.

» Overall, three of the non-finoncial targets were met
presenting 609 of this bonus component.

> In light of the above, the Remuneration Committee
proposes that the CEQ, DCEO and CFO achieve 20.4%
of their bonus entitlement.

Long-Term incentive Plan (LYIP)

LTIP awards

In October 2022, the Company granted awards under its LTIP
scheme to the CEO with a value of 125% of salary, and to the
DCEO and CFO with a value of 100% of salary. These awards
ore subject to an adjusted EPS real growth performance
condition measured over three years in addition to total
shareholder return benchmarked cgainst the FTSE 250 index
{excluding investment trusts) measured aver three years.
These awards are subject to ¢ two-year hold period post
vesting. Detail on the perforrmance conditions is set out loter

in this report.

Directors' remuneration in respect of 2024

Base salary

Effective from 1 July 2023, Ben Jacklin was gromoted to

o newly created role of Deputy CEQ. The Remuneration
Committee has cpproved o new solary of £382,408 in
recognition of his increased responsibility within this new
role including everseeing the Group’s operations in Australia.

The usual onnual pay review will take place for the Executive
ond Non-Executive Directors effective from 1 January 2024,
The Committee will continue to benchmark ageinst relative
market comparisons to ensure that the package is considered
competitive and does not pose a risk to retention and succession
planning whitst considering the sclary increases in the context
of the broader colleague population ond business performance.

Pension
No changes are proposed to Executive Director pensions for 2024.

Annual bonus

The Remuneration Committee has also made an award to
Executive Directors for the financial year to 30 June 2024 on

a consistent basis. The targets for the financial element of the
bonus are deemed commercially sensitive, and therefore the
committee has decided that the targets will not be disclosed
for the current financial year. The Committee intends to
retrospectively publish the onnual bonus targets in the Annual
Report and Financial Statements for the yeor to June 2024.

Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

The Rermuneration Committee plans to maoke further owards
in October 2023 on a consistent basis with those made inthe
2022 financial yeor.
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Remuneration Committee report — unaudited continued

Directors’ remuneration in respect of 2024 continued
Shareholder guideline '
As noted above, the sharehalding guidance for has been increased to 200% of salary with effect from 1 July 2023.

Qngoing review

The Remuneration Committee intends to keep remuneration policies under review and will continue to consider and deveiop
its approoch to remuneration on an ongoing basis, The Remuneration Committee will continue to review a number of further
matters on remuneration, in particular bonus deferral and Director pension olignment with the workforce.

In relotion to bonus deferral, the Remuneration Committee continues to see merit in o clear distinction between annual bonus
and long-term incentives and does not propose this should be introduced at this puint. The maximum annual bonus is copped
at 100% of salary for each Executive Director.

The Remuneration Committee hos received advice in relation to the matters outlined above and overall executive remuneration
from h2glenfern Remuneration Advisory.

I hope that you find the report helpful and informative, and I look forward to rece'iving further feedback from our investors on
the information presented.

Deborah Kemp
Remunergtion Committee Chair
21 September 2023

Executive Directors’ remuneration policy
This part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report sets out the remuneration policy of the Company with regord to its Executive Directors.

] and link to L] i Patential remunerotion Performonce metrics

L Y .

Base salary

Base pay is designed Salories are reviewed annually and  The CEO's base salary was Not applicable.
to reflect Executive benchmarked against similar reviewad on 1 January 2023

Directors’ experience, AlM-quoted ond listed companies {the prior review being in

capobilities and role with any changes effective from Jonuary 2022) and was

within the business. 1 january, save where g Director is increased by 6.5% to £443,210.

promoted to o new role. The review

° The then COO's base salary
takes into account:

To be set at a level

which is sufficiently was reviewed on 1 January
competitive to recruit » Company performance and 2023 (the prior review being
ond retgin individuals increase in scale and complexity:  on 1 January 2022) and was
of the appropriate increased by 6.5% to

> therole, experience and
performance of the individuag)
Director; and

£332,408. The COO's base
salary was increased to
£382.408 0n 1 July 2023 on
> average workforce salary his promotion to DCEC.
adjustments within the Company.

calibre tc deliver the
Group's strategy.

The CFO’s base salary was
reviewed on 1 January 2023
{the prior review being on

1 January 2022) and was
increased by 6.5% to £287,870.
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Purpose and link to strategy

Qperation

Potential remuneration

Performance metrics

Benefits

To complement basic
salary by providing
market competitive
benefits to attract and
retain Executive Directors.

Reviewed from time to time to ensure

that benefits, when taken together

with other elements of remuneration,

remain market competitive.

Benefits for the Executive Directors
currently include the provision of

a company car ond medical and
life insurance.

The cost of providing these
benefits varies year on year
depending on the schemes’
premiums. The Remuneration

Committee monitors the overall

cost of the benefits package.

Not applicable.

Pension

To provide retirement
benefits which, when
taken together with
other elements of the
remunerction package.,
will enable the Company
to attract and retain
approprigtely qualified
Executive Directars.

The CEO and CFO participated
in a defined contribution pension

arrangement and received payments

partly in lieu of pension.

The DCEO receives payments in lieu

of pension which is portly used for an

enhonced company car contribution.

Pension orrangements, including
contribution rates, for any new
Executive Directors will be aligned
with those of the majority of the
UK warkforce.

The CEQ is entitled to o
Company pension contribution
of 12%. This is portly token as
a payment in lieu of o pension.

The DCEQ is entitled to a
Company pension contribution
of 10%. This is partly taken as
a payment in lieu of salary and
portly as enhanced company
car contribution,

The CFO s entitled to a
Campany pension contribution
of 8%. This is portly taken as

a payment in lieu of a pension.

Only basic salary is pensionable.

Not applicable.

Annuai bonus

To drive and
reward exceptional
performonce.

The Executive Directors are eligible
to participate in a discretionary,
annual, perfermance related bonus
scheme. Targets are set ot the
beginning of each year based on
the recommendations of the
Remuneration Committee linked

to the onnual budget approved by
the Board. with o proportion of the
bonus linked to Sustainability and
ESG targets.

Bonuses are paid in cash based on
audited financial results. Annual
bonus poyments are subject to
malus and clawback provisions.

During the year under review,
the maximum caopped bonus
potential for the CEQ, DCED
and CFQ is 100% of salary.

For the years ended

30 June 2023 and ending
30 June 2024, 80% of the
bonus is payable on targets
that are based on odjusted
EBITDA. The target is
adjusted to take account

of acquisitions made in the
course of the yeor and
exceptiona! items. The level
of payment commences from
zero gt the threshold target
increarsing on o straight-line
basis to full poyment ot

the maximum target.

The remaining 20% of

the bonus is payable on
non-financial targets

linked to sustainability

and ESG.
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Remuneration Committee report — unaudited continued

Executive Directors’ remuneration policy continued

Purpose and link to strategy

Operation

Potential remuneration

Performonce metrics

Long-Term Incentive

To drive and reword
exceptional performance
over the mediurn term
ond to align the interests
of Executive Directors
and shareholders.

Plan (LTIP)

The Executive Directors are entitled
to be considered for the grant of
awards under the Group's LTIP
scheme. The awards toke the form of
nominal cost options over a specified
number of Ordinary shares. Awards
ore not transferable or assignable.
Awards are released to participants
ofter g performance period of three
years, subject to certain performance
and service conditions being met.
25% of awards vest ot threshold
performance for each target, being
odjusted EPS growth ond totol
shareholder return, with a maximum
oward being 100%. If the minimum
performonce torgets ore not met
then no awards will vest.

The LTIP rewards the future
performance of the Executive
Directors and certain other
employees by linking the size

of the award to the achievement
of Group performance targets.

Participation is at the discretion

of the Remuneration Committee.
Awards will typically be made
annually bosed on a percentage

of annual salary. The Remuneration
Committee sets performance
conditions at the time of the award.
The 2017 plan rules, amongst cther
things, include clawback provisions
and a limitation to ensure that new
shares issued, when aggregoted
with oll other employee share
awards, must nat eéxceed 10%

of issued share copital over any
ten-year period.

For schemes granted from 2021,
there will be a twe-year holding
period for LTIPs for Executive
Directors, other than for settling
related tax liabilities.

The Remunergtion Committee

would in normal circumstances

expect to make annual LTIP
awards to the CEC of 125% of
solary and the DCEO and CFO
of 1009% of salary.

The moximum annual award
permissible under the 2017
plan rules in exceptional
circumstances is 200%

of saiary.

From 2019, 50% of awards
are subject to on adjusted
EPS CAGR real growth
target, where adjusted EPS
reflects adjustments for
amortisation of intangibles,
costs of business combinations
and associoted income tax
and exceptional items, and
S0% are subject to a relative
total shareholder return
performance condition against
the FTSE 250 companies
excluding investment trusts.

In addition, and irrespective
of the targets, no owaord will
vest uniess, in the opinion of
the Remuneration Committee,
the underlying performance
of the Group has been
satisfactory over the
measurement period.

An amendgment to the 2017
plan was made in 2019 to
ensure that the Committee
has discretion to vary award
vesting in the event of
exceptiongl negotive

events and to override
formulaic outcomes.

Commencing in 2021, o
two-year holding period
applies to Directors for
shares owarded under the
LTIP schemes, other than the
requirement to sell to settle
associgted tox liabilities.

Shareholding guideline

_ Toincentivise executives
to gchieve the
Company's long-term
strategy and create
sustainable shareholder
value. To align with
shareholder interests.

Target volue to be achieved over
five years:

CEO - 200% of salary.
DCEO - 200% of salary.
CFO - 200% of salary.

Current shareholder interests
are shown on page 93.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.
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In relation to both annual bonus ond LTIP awards. the
Remuneration Committee may, in line with the UK Corporate
Governance Code, exercise its discretion to cverride formulaic
outcomes, including to reflect overall corporate performance
and the experience of shareholders of the Company and if the
business hos suffered an exceptional negative event which
have not been applied in the current year {2022: not applied).
Malus and clowback provisions are effective for three years
from the date bonuses are paid or LTIPs vest. Issues which
may trigger melus ond clawbaock include discovery of
misstatement of the financial results or error in assessing the
ochievement of the perfermance conditions. Other circumstances
include the individual being found guilty of misconduct.

Save As You Earn (SAYE)

The Group operates o sovings scheme for cll colleagues,
incluging the Executive Directors. being the CVS SAYE plan.

A SAYE scheme is operated for each calendar year. Under

the SAYELS, SAYE14 and SAYE13 schemes, the awords were
made ot a 20% discount to the closing mid-market price of
the day preceding the date of invitation. Under the SAYE12
scheme, the awards were made ot o 10% discount. There are
no performance conditions attached to any of the SAYE schemes.

Policy on Non-Executive Directors' remuneration
The Chair's and the other Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration
comprises only directorship fees. They are reviewed annually.
The Chair's and the Non-Executive Directors’ fees are
opproved by the Board on the recommendation of the CEQ.
The Non-Executive Directors are not involved in any decisions
about their own remunerction. The Chair and the other
independent Non-Executive Directors are entitled to be
reimbursed for reasonable expenses.

Derails of the fees payable for 2022/23 are set outin the
Annual Report on Remuneration.

The current fees are as follows:

Director

R Connell £129,057
D Kemp £52,318
R Gray £48,548
D wilton £52,318
| Shaw £46,335

Service contracts and letters of appointment
The service controcts and letters of appeintment of the
Directors include the following terms:

Exeeytive Service agreement Most recent service

Directors commencemernt agreement Notice

R Fagirmon 1 August 2018 10 September 2020 12 months
B Jacklin 7 September 2015 18 September 2020 12 months
R Alfonso 8 July 2019 22 September 2020 12 months

Non-Executive Oate of Most recent service

Directors appointment agreement Term Notice
R Connell 4 October 20 September

2007 2023 1 year 3 months
DKemp 2 January 2 January

2018 2021 3 years 3 months
R Gray 16 july 2020 16 July 2023 3 years 3 months
D Wilton 24 September 24 September

2021 2021 3 years 3 months
1 Shaw 1 july 2023 1 July 2023 3 years 3 months

The Non-Executive Director base fee is currently £46,335
with additional fees for choiring the Audit and Remuneration
Committees of £5,983 ond for chairing the Nominations
Committee of £3,213.

Further items specified under Rule 41 of the

FRC Code

The Remuneration Committee believes remuneration is
appropriate in light of the skills and experience of the Executive
Directors, and the need for differentials between different
levels of seniority, ond in the context of the amounts and
structure of remuneration at comparable UK companies.

Mindful of provision 40 of the Code, the Remuneration
Committee will continue to consider factors including clarity,
simplicity, risk, predictability, proportionality and alignment

ta culture. The Remuneration Committee believes thot the
Company's remuneration practices are clear and simple. as
laid out in this Remuneration Report, The Committee has
always been conscious of reputational and other risks in
maonaging remuneration and in taking decisions on remuneration
matters. Malus and clawback provisions, and the Remuneration
Committee’s ability to exercise discretion within the policy to
override formulaic outcomes, support the mitigation of risks.
The Committee believes that the range of possible values

of rewards is clearly identified and explained in this report.
that the rewards and potential rewards are proportionate
and do not reward poor performance and that remuneration
arrangements are aligned with Company culture,

The Remuneration Committee believes that the policy
operated as intended in terms of Company performonce and
quantum during 2022/23. The Committee continues to engoge
with the workforce in respect of remuneration gnd other
matters. The Committee did not apply discretions in respect

of the operation of onnual bonus or LTIP during 2022/23.
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Remuneration Committee report — unaudited continued

Annual Report on Remuneration

Introduction’
This Annual Report on Remuneration sets out informotion about the remuneration of the Directors of the Company for the period

ended 30 June 2023,

Membership and role of the Remuneration Committee

The Reinuneration Committee is appointed by the Board, and comprises Deboreh Kemp as Chair, Richard Groy, David Wilton
ond Joanne Shaw from the date of her appeintment as a Non-Executive Director on 1 July 2023. The role of the Remuneration
Committee is to determine and recommend to the Boord the remuneration policy for the Executive Directors. This includes base
solory, onnuol ond long-term incentive owords ond pension orrongements,

Advisors

During the year, the Company engaged h2glenfern Remuneration Advisory to provide advice on executive remuneration. h2glenfern
Remuneration Adviscry is o member of the Remuneration Consultants Group in relation to executive remuneration consuiting

in the United Kingdom. h2glenfern does not provide other services to the Group and hds no other connection with the Compony
or individual Directors. The Board is satisfied that h2glenfern is independent and has no connection to uny individual Director.

Remuneration of the Executive Directors — audited
Directors’ emoluments

Value of
share LTIP
Basic salary Performance  awards vested
allowance Benefits related during the
and fees in kind Pension bonus year? Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £000° £'000 £'000
Executive Directors
R Fairman 2023 430 12 52 401 847 1,742
2022 412 12 49 409 926 1808
B Jackiin 2023 322 5 24 300 508 1,189
2022 303 4 24 307 558 1.124
R Alfonso 2023 279 10 22 260 418 989
2022 268 10 21 266 3086 871
Non-Executive Chair ‘
R Conneli 2023 125 — —_— —_— _ 125
2022 116 — _ — _ 116
Non-Executive Birectors
D Kemp 2023 51 — _ — — 51
2022 a7 —_ - -— —_ 47
R Gray 2023 48 — — — —_ 48
2022 45 — — — -— 45
D Wihkon?* 2023 51 — — — _ 51
2022 38 — — — - 38

1. D Wiltan wos oppainted on 24 Septernber 2021,

2. Inrespect of 2023, LTIP owards expected to vest by reference to the performance peried ending 30 June 2023 value is bosed on: the estimoted vesting
autturn (100%} and the estimated share value at vesting colculated by using the three-month average share price up ta the period ending 30 june 2023
[being £20.64) less the exercise price per share {0.2p}. In the 2022 Rernuneration Report, LTIP owards expected to vest by reference to a performance
period ending 30 June 2022 volue was based on: the estimated vesting outturn {100%} ond the estimaoted volue of o share ot vesting calculoted by
reference to the threg-month average share price up to 30 June 2022 {being £17.08} less the per shore exercise price (0.2p). The values have been
updoted to reflect the share price on the date of vesting {19 December 2022}, being £20.01. The value of these awards is not included in the table
in note B to the finoncial statements. o= -

Benefits in kind include the provision of o company cor ond medical and life insuronce for eoch Executive Director.
No Directors waived emoluments in respect of the year ended 30 June 2023.

The remuneration of the Executive Directors of CVS Group pic is borne by the subsidiary compaony, CVS (UK} Limited,
without recharge to CVS Group plc.
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LTIP vesting
LTIP awards for the three-year performance period ended 30 june 2023 are due to vest in October 2023 (LTIP14). The vesting
of these awards is subject to meeting adjusted EPS and total shareholder return targets as set out below:

Adjusted EPS

Adjusted EPS for the year ended 30 June 2023 was 96.0p. This compares to adjusted EPS of 42.0p for the year ended 30 June 2020,
a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 23% above inflation. The torget CAGR for threshold and full vesting of LTIPs issued

in Qctober 2020 was 5% and 10% above inflation. respectively. This torget has been substantially exceeded and, therefore,

50% of the options gronted have vested.

Total shareholder return

Total shareholder return for the three years to 30 June 2023 was 99.2%, and in the upper quartile when benchmarked against
the FTSE 250 index (less investment trusts). measured over the same period. This target has been exceeded and. therefore.
509% of the options granted have vested.

In light of the adjusted EPS and total shareholder return targets having been ochieved, 100% of the options granted have vested
for LTIP 14,

Discretionary bonus

Banus Paoyout

{% of salary) £000

R Fairman 20231 904 401
20222 984 409

B Jacklin 20237 804 300
20227 98.4 307

R Alfonse 2023 90.4 260
20221 984 266

1. 2023 bonus targets were adjusted EBITDA, excluding Executive Committee bonus ocerual.
2. 2022 bonus torgets were adjusted EBITDA, excluding Executive Committee benus occruol, share option costs and ossocioted employee nationol insuronce.

The Remuneration Committee has considered the financial performance and non-financial KPIs of the year and considers it
appropriate that the CEO, DCEO and CFO are paid 80.4% (2022: 98.4%) of their bonus entitlement. '

Share scheme interests as of 30 June 2023
Details of plans at the reporting date thot have not yet vested are set out below.

Award Grant dote Vesting period

LTIP 14 02 October 2020 3 yeors The performance targets for award LTIP 14, LTIP 15 and LTIP 16 are based on
LTIP 15 06 October 2021 3 years achieving adjusted EPS growth in excess of inflation and total shareholder return
LTIP 16 30 September 2022 3 vears in comparison to the FTSE 250 {exciuding investment trusts).

50% of the awards will vest if adjusted EPS growth in excess of inflation,
is achieved as follows:

LTIP 14 and LTIP 15
> Less than 5% CAGR - no oward subject to this condition.

> 5% to 10% CAGR — awarded on a straight-line basis between 25% and 100%
of total award subject to this condition.

» More than 10% CAGR - full award subject to this condition.
LTIP 16
> Less than 1% CAGR - no awaord subject to this condition.

> 19 to 6% CAGR - awarded on a straight-line basis between 25% and 100%
of total award subject to this condition.

> More than 6% CAGR — full award subject to this condition.

50% of the awards will vest if total shareholder returns in comparison to

the FTSE 250 index (excluding investment trusts) are achieved os follows:

> below median comparable performance — no award subject to this condition:
> medion comparable performance — 25% of awords subject to this condition:

> median to upper quartile comporable performance — 25% to 100% of owards
subject to this condition measured on a straight-line basis; or

> upper quartile comparable performance — 100% of awards subject to this condition.
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Remuneration Committee report — unaudited continued

Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Share scheme interests as of 30 June 2023 continued
Options over Ordinary shares awarded to Executive Directors under the LTIP and SAYE schemes in place on 21 September 2023

are as follows:

Market price of shores Earliest exercise dote and ' Number of
Brhema Cate of grant o1 dorue gt grant date of vesting of shores  Exercise price shares
R Fairman
LTIP 14 02 October 2020 1.218p 30 june 2023 02p 41,030
LTiP 15 08 October 2021 2.407p 30 June 2024 0.2p 21188
LTiP 16 30 September 2022 1,690p 30 june 2025 0.2p 30,773
SAYEL3 02 December 2020 1,415p 01 january 2024 1,009p 606
SAYE1l4 2% November 2021 2.230p 01 January 202% 1974p 310
SAYEL1S 25 November 2022 1515p Q1 January 2026 1515p 380
B Jacklin
LTIP 14 02 Cctober 2020 1,219p 30 June 2023 0.2p 24618
LTIP 15 06 Cctober 2021 2.407p 30 June 2024 0.2p 12,712
LTIP 16 30 September 2022 1,690p 30 June 2025 C.2p 18,464
SAYE13 02 December 2020 1,415p 01 January 2024 1.009p 570
SAYE1l4 25 Novernber 2021 2.230p 01 January 2025 1974p 310
SAYE1S 25 Navember 2022 1.515p 01 January 2026 1516p 403
R Alfonso
LTIP 14 02 October 2020 1.219p 30 June 2023 0.2p 13,540
LTIP 14{b} 04 January 2021 1.485p 30 June 2023 0.2p 6,733
LTIP 15 06 October 2021 2.407p 30 june 2024 0.2p 11.009
LTP 16 30 September 2022 1,690p 30 june 2025 02p 15,990
SAYEL3 02 December 2020 1.415p 01 January 2024 1,009p 606
SAYE1l4 25 November 2021 2.230p 01 January 2025 1974p 291
SAYE1S5 25 November 2022 1.515p 01 January 2026 1.515p 403
During the year, shares were exercised as follows:

Market price of shores Eartiest exercise date and Number of
Scheme Date of grant on date of gront date of vesting of shares  Exercise price shares
R Fairman
LTiP 13 19 December 2019 1,.080p 30 june 2022 0.2p 46,296
8 Jacklin
LTIP 13 19 December 2019 1,080p 30 June 2022 0.2p 27.778
SAYE1Z? 04 December 2019 1.054p 01 January 2023 863p 708

. R Alfonso

LTIP 23 19 Decernber 2019 1.080p 30 june 2022 0.2p 15,278
SAYE12 04 December 2019 1,054p 01 January 2023 863p 709

No eptions have lapsed during the year.
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Directors' interests in shares
The interests of the Directors when combined with their spouses’ holdings as of 30 lune 2023 in the shares of the Company were:

QOrdincry

shares
of 0.2p each 9% of
Number  basic sakary*
R Connell 169,000 N/A
D Kemp © 8013 N/A
R Gray 6.000 N/A
D witton 6,500 N/A
R Fairman 55981 249%
B Jacklin 23,802 141%
R alfonso 12,151 83%

" Celeulated using closing share price on 30 June 2023 of 1.970p

Apart from the interests in shares ond share opticns disclosed above, the Directors had no other interest in shares of Group
componies. There have been no chonges to the Directors' interests in shares between the yeor end ond the dote of this
Annual Report.

On 30 June 2023, the market price of the Ordinary shares was 1.970p.

Statement of voting
At the Annual General Meeting on 23 November 2022, the total number of shores in issue with voting rights was 71,155,578,
The resolution to approve the Remuneration Report received the following votes from shareholders:

To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year ended 30 June 2022

Votes for! 49,042,089
942 95.4%
Vates against 2,365,389
% 4.6%
Votes total £1,407.478
% of issued share capitoP 722%
Votes withheld* 3,342

1. Votes “for” include discretionary votes.

2. Percentoge of votes are of votes made ond are rounded to one decimal ploce.

3. Issued shaore capitol at meeting dote: 71,155,678,

4. A vote withheld is not & vote in law ond is not counted in the calculation of the proportion of votes “for® and “against” a resolution.

Annual General Meeting
Our Remuneration Report will be subject to an advisory vote at our AGM to be held on 29 November 2023.

Deborah Kemp
Remuneration Committee Chair
21 September 2023
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Directors’ report

The Directors present their Annual Report and Financial
Statements together with the audited consolidated financial

Re-election of Directors
The Articles of Association of the Compony require cll

Directors to be re-elected ot intervals of not more than three
years. The Boord haos decided that it is oppropriate for all
Directors to be re-oppointed each year, so in accordance
with thot decision ol Directors will stand for re-election

ot the Annual General Meeting,

statements for the year ended 30 june 2023.

Principal activities and results

The principal activities of the Group are to operote animal
veterinary practices, complementary veterinary diggnostic
businesses, pet crematoria and an online retail business.
The principal activity of CV$ Group plcis that of a

holding company.

The Group made o profit after taxation of £41.9m (2022: £25.7m).

Directors’ remuneration and interests

The Remuneration Committee Report is set out on pages
83 to 93. It includes details of Directors’ remuneration,
interests in the shares of the Company, share options and
Particulars of events which have occurred since the end pension arrangerments,
of the financial year have been disclosed in note 32 to the

financial statements. Environment

The Group recognises the significance of environmental
responsibility ond undertokes clinicol compliance reviews
1o ensure environmental stondards are conformed with
in addition to providing training to its employees to
ensure complionce.

Business review

The informaotion thot fulfils the requirements of the business
review, including details of the 2023 resulis. key performence
indicators, principal risks and uncertginties and the outlook for
future years, is set out in the Chair’s Statement {pages 5 to 6),
the Chief Executive Officer's Review (poges 8 to 10), the
Operational Review {poges 47 to 54) and the Financial Review
{pages 55 to 59), including key performance indicators (pages
2410 27) and principal risks and uncertainties (pages 60 to 68).

Dividends

In respect of the year under review, the Directors recommend o
dividend poyment of 7.5p. amounting to £5.3m (2022: £5.0m).
The oggregate dividends recognised as distributions in the year
ended 30 jJune 2023 amounted to £5.0m (2022: £4.6m). No
interim dividends (2022: £nil) have been paid during the year.

Although the Group's activities do not have a major impact
on the environment, every effort is made to reduce any effect.
Details of the Group's approach to sustoinabitity and ESG are
set out on pages 32 to 46.

Health and safety

The Group is fully aware of its obligations to maintain high
health and safety standards ot cll times, and the safety of
our colleagues and customers is of paramount importance.
The Group’s operations are mongged at all times in such

a way 0s to ensure, as for as is reasonably practicable, the
health, safety and welfare of all of our colleagues and all
Dividend policy other people who may be attending our premises.
The Group has established an ordinary dividend policy thot
is both progressive and sustainable, bosed on growing the
ordinary dividend per share over time. The rate of growth

of the ordinory dividend will be decided by the Board in light
of the circumstonces at the time. The Boord also gives due
consideration to the return of capital through the use of
special dividends or shore buybacks.

Corporate governance
The Boord’s Corporate Governance Statement is set out
on pages 69 to 93.

Going concern

The Governance Code requires the Boord to assess ond report
on the prospects of the Group and whether the business is a
going concern. In considering this requirement. the Directors
have taken into account the Group's forecast cash flows,
liquidity, borrowing facilities and reloted covenant requirements
and the expected operational activities of the Group.

The ability of the Group to pay a dividend is elso subject to
constraints including the avoilability of distributable reserves
ond the Group’s finoncicl and operating performance.
Distributable reserves are determined as required by the
Compaonies Act 2006 by reference to o company's individual
financial statements.

As part of the going concern assessment, the Group modelled
a base case scenario and undertook sensitivity analysis to
stress-test the performance ot which the Group would breach
its covenants. This sensitivity analysis ossessed the impact

of o sustoined reduction in revenues and directly reloted costs
on cosh ond covenants, with reductions between 5% and 30%
modelled. While the sensitivity analysis was modelled up to a

Directors

The following Directors held office during the year and up
to the date of signing the financial statements unless
otherwise stoted:

R Connell sustained 30% decrease in revenue and directly related costs,
D Kemp it is considered thot a reduction of 159% would be 0 reolistic

R Gray worst case scenario. given this was the short-term decrease

D Wilton in revenues experienced across the Group at the height of the

] Shaw (appointed 1 July 2023) COVID-19 pandemic. In the 15% decrease scenario, the Group
R Fairmon would breach its covenants in June 2024, however this anglysis
B Jacklin excludes any reduction in costs and cash savings and in practice.
R Alfenso the Group is confident that sufficient mitigating actions could

be taken to remedy this. Additional detaifs on the above

Biographical details of the Directors rovi n pa
grophical details & Directors are provided on pages scenario analysis can be found in the Viability statement.

70to 71.
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Having due regard to these matters and after making
appropriate enquiries, the Directors hove a reasonable
expectotion that the Group and the Company have adequate
resources to remain in operation unti at least twelve months
after the approval of these financial statements. The Board
has therefore continued to adept the geing concern basis in
preparing the consolidated fingncial statements.

Viability statement

In accordance with provision 31 of the UK Corporate Governance
Code, the Directors have assessed the prospects of the Group
over a longer period than twelve months required by the
“Going concern” provision. A period of five years is believed to
be appropriate for this assessment since this is consistent with
the Group's long term strategic planning, and other assessment
periods included within the Annual Report, for example impgirment
reviews. The Group alsa finonce debt on a 4 + 1 year period,
which is also consistent with a five-year assessment period.

The Directars confirm that they have o reasonable expectation
that the Group will continue in operation to meet its liabilities.
as they fafi due, up to 30 June 2028,

The Directors’ assessment has been mode by reference to the
Group's financial position as at 30 June 2023, its prospects.
the Group's strategy, the Board's risk appetite and the Group's
principal risks. all of which are described in the Strategic
Report. The assessment olso considers scenario analysis

over the key principal risks to the business, how the Group

is resilient to those risks and how the Group can mitigate the
effects of those risks.

The Directors’ assessment of the Group's viability is underpinned
by a paper prepared by monagement. The paper is supported
by comprehensive and detailed analysis and modeiling, containing
financial projections for a detciled one-year plan and extended
five-year period. The longer-term plan is reviewed each year
by the Board as part of the strategy review process. Once
approved by the Boord, the plan is cascoded across the Group
and provides the basis for setting oll detailed financicl budgets
and strategic actions that are subsequently used by the Board
to monitor performance,

The five-yeor plan provides a robust planning tool against
which strategic decisions con be made. In making their viobility
assessment. the Board has taken into consideration thot finoncing
facilities are maintained for the durotion of the forecast.

For the purposes of assessing the Group's viability. the
Directors have reviewed the risks as detailed on pages 60 to
68, whilst all the risks identified could hove on impact on the
Group's performance, the specific risks which could potentially
impact the Group's financial position include: o potential
redyction in sales volumes through either failure to attract and
retain key staff or future pandemic, failure to comply with bank
facilities; and possible disruption due to the economic environment
and inflation impacting the Group's revenue and profitability.

As part of the going concern ossessment, the Group modelted
a base case scenario and undertook sensitivity analysis to
stress test the performance ot which the Group would breach
its covenonts. The base case takes into account the latest run
rate of performance of 3.0% growth year on year. The Group
has two financial covenants dssociated with the Group’s bank
facilities, which are based on the rotias of net debt to EBITDA
which must not exceed 3 25x and EBITDA to interest ratio

which must not exceed 4.5x. Further details on the covenants,
solvency and liquidity are included below.

Scenario analysis was completed to assess the required reduction
in revenue and directly related costs that would lead to a breach
of covenants before any mitigating actions. At o sustained 15%
decrease in revenue, covenants would be breached by june 2024
due to the negative impact on EBITDA. This sustaoined decrecse
in revenue has been modelled around the impact of the first
COVID-19 lockdown as the Directors’ consider this to be an
accurate representation of a potentiol worst-case scenario.

The scenario analysis assumes that no mitigating action
is taken, However, the Group would be able to mitigate
the impact of loss in revenue and directly related costs on
covenant compliance through reductions in non-essential
spending including locum vets and discretionary bonuses,
and the deferment of non-essential capital expenditure.

Therefore, the Directors consider that under this worst cose
scenario, the Group would be able to meet their covenants
and be able to secure future funding if required.

The Directors hove considered other sources of risks and
uncertainties that may impact the Group's ability to trade,
and the controls in place to mitigate them on pages 60 to €8.

The Group has modelled o further scenaric of no further
revenue growth and under both the base case ond the no
growth scenario, there is more than sufficient headroom in
both liquidity and covenants.

The outputs of the above scenario tests hove been reviewed
against the Group's current and projected future cash and liquidity
position. At the year end, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of £21.5, @ drawn term loon of £87.5m, an unutilised RCF

of £254.5m and an unutilised overdraft facility of £5.0m.

During the viability period, on 21 February 2027, the term

loan of £87.5m will expire. In addition the Group does have an
option for a further one year extension until 21 February 2028.
The Directors have considered the available cosh, the undrown
overdraft facility and cosh flow forecasts, and cansider thot
the Group will be able to meet its liabilities in full as they fall
due, including the repayment of the drawn term logn if not
refinanced. The Group menitors cash flow on a daily basis,

and maintains sufficient cash reserves to ensure both solvency
and liquidity within the Group.

In making this ossessment, the Board has assumed that there
is no material adverse change in the legislative environment

in the practice of veterinary medicine. The Group expects

that legislative changes. such as the proposal by the RCVS

to enabie highly skilled nurses to undertake o broader range of
procedures without veterinary surgeon supervision, will benefit
the Group moving forwards. It is recognised however, that such
future assessments are subject to ¢ level of uncertainty thot
increases with time and therefore future outcomes caonnot be
guoranteed or predicted with certainty. In the scenario analysis.
the Board has also assumed that o worst case scenaric would
not exceed the impact of the initig) COVID 19 lockdown. On this
bosis and in conjunction with other motters considered ond
reviewed by the Board during the year, the Boord has reascnable
expectations that the Group will be able to continue in operation
and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the five financial
years used for its ossessment.
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Directors’ report continued

Financial instruments
Details of the Group’s financial risk maonagement objectives
and policies are included in note 3 to the financial statements.

Share capital and substantial shareholdings

31 August 9%
Shareholder 2023 IC
BlackRock Inc 5,370,996 7.52
Global Alpha Copital Mancgement 4,838,881 6.31
abrdn plc 4,830,125 6.83
Octopus Investments Limited 4,701,673 6.58
Grandeur Peok Glabal Advisors 4,650,558 6.51
Columbia Threadneedle Investments 3,135,317 4,46
Canaccord Genuity
Wealth Manogement 2,592,707 375
Invesco 2,219,735 3.09
32,339,992 45.05

Detoils of the shore capital of the Company as at 30 June 2023
are set out in note 26 to the finoncial stoterments. Each shore
carries the right to one vote ot general meetings of the Compony.

At 31 August 2023, the Company has been notified {(using TR1
standerd form) of the substantial shareholdings detailed in the
toble above comprising 3.0% or more of the issued Ordinary
share copitol of the Company.

The Boord is satisfied that no mojor shareholder presents o
conflict of interest or exerts undue influence over the Board's
independent judgement.

Employees

Consultation with employees takes ploce through o number

of regional meetings throughout the year and an annual stoff
survey. The gim is to ensure that employees’ views are taken
into occount when decisions are made which are likely to affect
their interests and thot all employees are aware of the general
progress of their business units and of the Group as a whole.
To enhance communication within the Group, g committee is in
place which is constituted of regional members from oll areos
of the business with the aim of improving consultotion and
communicotion levels.

Deborah Kemp is the Board's dedicated Non-Executive Director
for employee engogement and during the year Deboroh has
consulted with employees through online meetings with the
Company’s Senior Leadership Team, visits to our businesses
and regular reviews of the Group’s monthly employee Net
Promoter Score, The business has further reviewed its monthly
employee survey and additionoal questions have been added to
this to obtoin more detoiled feedback from employees in
addition to calculating the employee Net Promoter Score.

The Group regularly consults with, and seeks feedback from,
employees and the Board monitors employee engagement.

Applications for employment by disabled people are always
fully considered. bearing in mind the respective optitudes and
abilities of the applicant concerned. in the event of members
of stoff becoming disobled, every effort is mode to ensure
that their employment with the Group continues and that
appropriote training is arranged. It is the policy of the Group
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that the training, career development gnd promotion of a
disabled perscn should be, as far as possible, identical to
that of a person who does not have a disability.

The Group operates a Long-Term Incentive Plan for Executive
Directors and seniar managers. Details are included in note 11.
The Group also has a Save As You Earn scheme, now in its 15th
year, under which employees are gronted on option to purchase
Ordinary shares in the Compony in three years' time, dependent
upon their entering into a contract to make monthly contributions
to o sovings account over the relevant period. These savings
are used to fund the option exercise value. The exercise price

in respect of aptions issued in the year was ot a 20.0% discount
to the shares’ market volue at the date of invitation. The scheme
is open to all UK Group employees, including the Executive
Directors. Details of the scheme are included in the
Remuneration Committee Report on pages B3 to 93,

Directors’ third-party indemnity provision

A qualifying third-party indemnity provision os defined in
Section 234 of the Companies Act 2006 was in force during
the yeor aond clso at 30 june 2023 for the benefit of each of
the Directors in respect of liobilities incurred as a result of their
office with the Company and any associated company to the
extent permitted by law. In respect of those liabilities for which
Directors may not be indemnified, the Company mointained

a Directors’ and Officers’ {D&Q) liability insurance policy
throughout the financial year.

Directors’ responsibilities statement

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annuat Report
ond Financial Statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepore financiol
statements for eoch financiol year. Under that law the Directors
ore required to prepare the Group financial statements in
accordance with the United Kingdom adopted International
Accounting Standards in conformity with the requirements of
the Cempanies Act 2006, The Directors have also chosen to
prepare the parent company financiol statements under United
Kingdom adopted international accounting stondards. Under
company law the Directars must not approve the financial
stotements unless they are satisfied thot they give a true and
fair view of the stote of offoirs of the Group and the Compony
and of the profit or loss of the Company ond the Group for
that period.

In preparing these financiol statements, International
Accounting Standard 1 requires thot Directors:

> properly select and apply cccounting poalicies;

> present informotion, including occounting policies, in o
manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information;

> provide additional disclosures when compliance with the
specific requirements of the financial reporting framewaork
are insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of
particular transactions. other events and conditions on the
entity’s financial position ond financial performonce; and

> make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.



The Directors are responsible for keeping odequote accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Compony and the Group and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and
hence for toking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregulorities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity
of the corporote ond financial infermation included on the
Company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and disseminatinn of financial
statements maoy differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Responsibility statement
We confirm thot to the best of our knowladge:

> the financial statements, prepcred in accordance with
International Accounting Standords in conformity with the
requirements of the Compenies Act 2006, give a true and
fair view of the assets, lighilities, financial pesition and profit
or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the
consolidation token as a whole;

v

the Strategic Report includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the
position of the Compony and the undertakings included
in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with o
description of the principal risks and uncertainties that
they face; and

v

the Annual Report and Financial Statements, token os o
whale, are fair, balanced and understandable and provide
the information necessary for shareholders to assess the
Company's position and performance, business model
and strategy.

This responsibility statement was opproved by the Board of
Directors on 21 September 2023 ond is signed on its beholf by:

Ko

Richard Fairman
Chief Executive Officer
21 September 2023

Robm Alfonso
Chief Findncial Officer
21 September 2023

Disclosure of information to auditor
Each of the persans who is a Director ot the dote of approval
of this Annual Report and Financial Statements confirms that:

> so far as the Director is aware, there is ne relevant audit
information of which the Compony's auditor is unaware; and

> the Director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have
taken as a Director in order to make himself/herself aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the
Company's auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given ond should be interpreted in
accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006,

Resolutions concerning the re-appointment of Deloitte LLP
as auditor and authorising the Audit Committee to set its
remuneration witl be proposed at the AGM.

Approvat
The Strategic Report on pages 1 te 68 wos opproved by
the Boord of Directors on 21 September 2023,

Authorised by order of the Board.

7.__.-.-—-'—_q'-z.———

Scott Morrison
Company Secretary
21 September 2023
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Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR)

The Group is required under the Streamlined Energy and

Carbon Reporting {SECR) regulations to report how it manages
its energy consumption and corbon emissions and has used a

third-party consultant to advise on this and support with the
preparation of this SECR report. Since 2020, we have
published our direct greenhouse gas [GHG) emissions from

sources that are controlled or owned by the Group {"Scope 17),

indirect GHMG emissions from the Group's consumption of

purchased electricity {"Scope 27) and oll emnissions the Group is

indirectly responsible for across its value chain {"Scope 3").

Monitoring and reporting these emissions enables
us to evaluate and minimise our impact on the notural

environment, which supports us in our purpose to give the best

possible care to animals. We have taken strong actions to

increase our energy efficiency and reduce cny adverse impact

our business has on the planet.

Our energy efficiency actions

Qur energy and carbon reduction sustainability waork streams

hove targeted three specific oreos:
1. User owareness and consumption monagement,

2. Enhancing construction, maintenance ond property
leasing activities.

3. Capital expenditure in energy saving.

Increasing energy efficiency in our facilities

One of our strategic goals is to provide great facilities and
equipment, and a key part of this is to ensure our facilities
and operations are as energy efficient as possible.

We have pledged to spend up to £50.0m a yeor to upgrade
and relocate current practices and to open new practices to
a new minimum practice facility stondard.

As port of this we have developed a set of sustainability
criteria for all new, relocated and refurbished practices.
This includes:

> the use of sustainable building materials;

> installing building manogement systems in our new
build projects;

> boiler upgrodes aond replacement to increase heating
efficiency and reduce number;

»> better insulation to retain building heat;

> more energy efficient LED lighting;
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> a standard heating and cooling specification is for variable
refrigerant flow to optimise energy efficiency and will
actively pursue other solutions to avoid installing cooling
systems where they do not impact on operaticnal
performance/clinical standards;

> passive introred light sensor detectors;
> the fitting of smart meters; and

> the instoliation of solar panels and electric vehicle choarging
where possible.

We also plan to embed a sustainability support on future major
projects to ensure whaole life carbon emissions and impacts are
carefully accounted for and elsewhere ongoing copital
expenditure projects are rolling out LED lighting, efficient
boilers, sensor detectors and smart meters into existing sites.

We are glso continuing to secure Green Leases with our
landicrds. This includes an obligation for both parties to share
building environmental performance dato, ond for no )
aiterations or maintenance to be conducted which adversely
impacts a building's environmental performance.

Moving farward, we will continue to conduct an infrastructure
ond equipment asset survey of Group's property portfolio. This
will help us to improve future investment in energy monitoring
ond consumption.

We will also embed an 'environmental net gain’ principle for
our new developments so thot they will be compliant with
Local Planning Authority requirements in 2023 and beyond.

A greener approach to transport

We hove a range of ultro-low emissions vehicles to our
company cor list, as well as more hybrid and electric vehicles
(EV). All fossi! fuel-reliant vehicles on the fist are capped to 130g
CO, emissions. We have also launched o salary-sacrifice electric
vehicle scheme, further promoting o greener approach to
transport. To support the future increase in EV and hybrid
vehicles, we have installed several EV charging points ata
range of our sites..

Using renewable sources

Since August 2021, oll our veterinary practice sites across the
UK, the Netherlands and the Republic of Irelond use electricity
from 100% renewable sources.



Our UK and offshore energy usage and carbon emissions

2023 2022
tCO.e tCO.e Change (%) Cormments
Scope 1 6,919 8,539 -19.0% The decregse in these emissions arises from
a reduction in travel. in addition emissions
o from gas hove decreased by 25.4%.
Scope 2 2919 2,619 115% As we promote office working, we hove
seen an increase in electricity usage ocross
our estate.
Scope 3 " so6 593 2.2% Travelin employee-owned vehicles hos
. remained consistent year on yeor.
Total emissions 10,444 11,751 -11.1%
Totai energy volume {KWh) .48,416,083 55,227.876 -123%
Intensity ratio {tCO.e . 17.2 212 -18.9% The intensity ratio hos decreased from the prior
per £m revenue} year, due to our reduction in total emissions

despite revenue growth of the Group.

Methodoclogy

The Group has taken guidonce from the UK Government’s Environmental Reporting Guidelines {Morch 2019), the Greenhouse Gas
Protocol reporting stondord, and the UK Government's Greenhouse Gas Conversion Factors for Company Reporting document
for calculating carbon emissions.

Energy usage information (gas and electricity) has been obtained directly from the Group's energy suppliers and holf-hourly
outomated meter reading (HH/AMR) dato, where availoble, for those suppliers with HH/AMR meters. For suppliers where energy
usage dota was not available for o full twelve months, flat profile estimation techniques were used to calculate the annucl
consumption. With oll landlerd sites these have had to be estimoted using similar-sized sites’ usage far gas and electricity.

Tronsport mileage data was obtoined from expense cloims submitted for our compony cars and grey fleet.

Exclusions
CO,e emissions were calculated using the appropriate emission factors from the UK Government's UK Greenhouse Gas Conversion
Factors and this is retained within the Group's dota file for reference where required.

Normalisation
The Group has chosen to report gross Scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions tonnes of CO, equivalent (tCO,e) per £m revenue
as this is a common metric used in corporate GHG reporting.

Approval
Authorised by order of the Board.

S —

Scott Morrison
Company Secretary
21 September 2023
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Independent auditor’s report
To the members of CVS Group pic

Report on the audit of the financial statements

1.Opinion

3.Summary of our audit approach

In our opinion: Key audit

> the financial statements of CVS Group pic (the ‘parent matters
company'] and its subsidiaries {together the "Groip’) give

o true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the

parent company's affairs as at 30 June 2023 and of the

Group's profit for the year then ended,;

> the Group financiol statements hove been properly prepared
in accordance with United Xingdom adopted international
accounting standards:

> the parent company financial stotements have been

The key audit matters thot we identified
in the current year were:

> Revenue Recognition - Healthy Pet Club
> R&D Expenditure Credit {("RDEC") recognition

Within this report, key audit motters are
identified as follows:

Newly identified

@ Similar level of risk

properly prepared in occordance with United Kingdom
adopted international accounting standards ond as applied
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act
2006: ond

> the finonciol statements hove been prepored in accordonce

Materiality

The matericlity that we vsed for the Groun
finaricial stotements was £3.2m (FY22:
£3.0m). which equates to 3.7% of adjusted
pre-tax profit and was determined by reference
to a range of income statement measures.

with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. Scoping
We have qudited the financial stotements which comprise:
> the consolidated income statement;

> the consolidated statement of comprehensive income;

Our audit comprised of two components
subject to full-scape audits and a further
eleven components subject to audit
procedures on specified account bolonces.
The remainder of the Group was subject to
review procedures only.

> the consolidated and company statement of

financial position; Significant

changes
in our
approach

> the consolidated statement of changes in equity:
> the company statement of changes in equity:
> the consolideted and compaony statement of cash flow; and

> the related notes 1 ta 33.

We have identified an cdditional key audit
maotter in the current year in relotion to RDEC
recognition, due to the increased lavel of
uncertainty and judgement in this areo.
Otherwise, there have been no significant
changes to our audit approach in the

current year.

The financial reporting framework thot has been opplied

in their preparation is applicable low and United Kingdom
adopted interngtiona! accounting stondards and. as regards
the porent company financial stotements, os applied in
accordonce with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

2.Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK) {ISAs (UK)) and applicable law,
Qur responsibilities under those standords are further
described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the gudit

of the finoncial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Group and the parent company

in occordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the
Financial Reporting Council’s {the ‘FRC's'y Ethical Standord as
applied to listed entities, and we hove fulfilled our other ethica!
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient ond appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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4.Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. ’

Our evaluation of the Directors’ assessment of the Group's ond parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern
bosis of accounting included:

> ossessment of the available financing focilities of £350m, including extended focilities available to group following the
refinancing that occurred in February 2023, and evaluation of repayment terms ond covenant requirements:

> evaluation of the assumptions used in the forecasts such as revenue growth, gross margin changes and cash flow movements,
and whether these are appropriote in line with historicol performance:;

> assessment of the level of headroom in the financing facilities under the base case forecast:

> ossessment of the arithmetical accuracy of the forecast model confirming consistent calculations are used throughout. using
internal software:

> assessment of the histarical accuracy of forecasts through compaoring octual performance to forecast, to assess the historic
accuracy of forecosts prepared by management;

> assessment of the reverse stress test scenario performed by management, and consideration of whether the cdverse variance
in cash flows required to produce a covenant breach represents a remote possibility; and

> assessment of the appropriateness of the going concern disclosures in the financial statements.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material unicertainties reloting to events or conditions thot,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group's and parent company's ability to continue as o going concern
for a period of at least twelve months from when the finoncial statements are authorised for issue.

In relation to the reporting on how the Group has applied the UK Corporate Governance Code, we have nothing material to add
or drow attention to in relotion to the Directors’ statement in the finoncial statements about whether the Directors considered
it appropriate to adopt the geing concern basis of accounting.

" Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern ore described in the relevant sections

of this report.

5.Key agudit matters

Key audit maotters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to
fraud) that we identified. These matters included those which had the greotest effect on: the overall audit strategy. the allocation
of resources in the audit; ond directing the efforts of the engagement team.

These matters were addressed in the context of our oudit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
therecon. and we do not provide o separate eopinion on these motters.

5.1. Revenue Recognition — Healthy Pet Club

Key oudit The Group earns revenue via the Healthy Pet Club ("HPC") scheme whereby customers sign up for a monthly

matter or annual direct debit arrangement in exchange for o programme of preventative products and treatments.

description The Group recognised £75.6m (FY22: £67.3m) of HPC revenue during the yeor and has opproximately
489.000 (FY22: 470,000) active members as ot the year-end.

The revenue recognition for this scheme is judgemental since IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” requires revenue to be recorded either at a point in time or over time according to when the
performance obligation is satisfied, which in the case of HPC revenue is not aligned to the timing of cash
receipts due to the weighting of treatments towards the earlier months of the scheme. Revenue must olso

be adjusted for anticipated animal deaths (whereby cutstanding fees will be waived) and irrecoverable debts.
Additionol adjustrments are also required where a customer does not receive their treatment during the
scheduled month, due to various factors.

The Group's accounting policy is to record revenue according to the cost profile associated with providing the
services offered in the scheme, as disclosed in note 2 to the financial staterments, and due to the complexities
outlined above there is a risk that revenue recognition is not in accordance with IFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”.
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Independent auditor’s report continued

5. Key audit matters continued
5.1. Revenue Recognition - Healthy Pet Club continued

How the
scope of

our audit
responded
to the key
audit matter

In response to the key cudit matter, we performed the following procedures:
> tested monagement's controls around HPC revenue recognition;

> assessed the opproprioteness of geeruing revenue according to the cost profile of treatments offered,
including odjustments to delay revenue recognition where treatments are missed, in line with the
requirements of IFRS 15;

> tested the accuracy ond completeness of the membership data that drives the HPC revenue calculation;

> tested the accwracy and completeness of the underlying dota of the assumed cost profiles for the different
types of pet that can be odded to the scheme;

> performed a reconciliotion of amounts due from customers to cash receipts in bank statements,
on a sample bosis;

> performed a recalculation of accrued revenue bosed on member data and assumed cost profiles:

> performed o recalculation of revenue subsequently deferred due to missed treatments, based on operationol
and sales dato used to estimate the level of missed treatments occurring across the Group; and

> assessed assumptions around animal deaths and cancellations through comparison and benchmarking
against direct debit collection rates and operational data around onimal life expectancy.

Key
observations

Based on the audit procedures performed, we concluded that revenye recognition in respect of the HPC
is gppropriate.

5.2. RDEC recognition

Key audit
maoatter
description

The Group continues to submit cloims for RDEC arising from qualifying R&D expenditure, having previously
submitted ¢loims in respect of FY19 and FY20 and in the current year submitted claims for FY21 and FY22.
The scheme rules are subjective and, for claims where the HMRC enquiry window has not yet elapsed, there
remains the possibility of chollenge. Significant judgement is therefore required when determining the extent
of recognition of claims already submitted and the extent of discounting to apply to these claims. Judgement
is further required when determining an estimate of amounts thot should be accrued in respect of qualifying
expenditure in FY23.

RDEC recognition hos been included as a new key audit matter in the current year due to the cdditionol
number of claims resulting in an increased quantum of possible outcomes in terms of amounts that will
uitimately be recovered from HMRC.

In the current year, the Group recognised £1.8m in respect of their estimated cloim for FY23, £5.7m in respect
of cloims submitted for FY21 and FY22, and o further £4.0m in respect of earlier years foliowing the expiry of
enquiry windows for those claims. The total RDEC in the consolidated income statement is therefore £11.5m
{FY22: £2.0m}, which is presented in note 6 net of associated fees.

How the
scope of

our audit
responded
to the key
audit matter

tri response ta the key audit matter, we performed the fallowing procedures:

> inspected documentation for claims made during the year and, through involvement of a tax specialist,
considaered the appropriateness of the underlying methodology agoinst HMRC requirements;

> gssessed the level of discounting applied to claims where the enquiry window remains open, in the context
of benchmorked peers;

> inspected correspondence with HMRC in respect of histaric claims, and considered the implications
for the recoverability of future claims: '

> verified cash receipts in respect of claims fully paid to bank stotements;
> challenged the consistency of provisioning applied to claims relating to different financial years: and

> considered, with the assistance of our internal tax specialist, wider context regarding HMRC's current
opproach to RDEC submissions

Key
observotions

Based on the audit procedures performed, we concluded that RDEC recognition is appropriate.
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6. Our application of materiality

6.1. Materiality

We define moteriglity as the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that makes it probable thot the economic
decisions of o reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced. We use materiality both in planning the scope
of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work.

Based on our professional judgement. we determined materiality for the financiol statements as a whole as follows:

Group financial statements Parent compony financial statements
Materiality £3.2m £1.8m
Basis for determining 3.7% of adjusted pre-tax profit Parent company materiality equotes to
materiality 1.2% of net assets. which is capped ot 56%

of group materiality

Rationale for the We have considered both adjusted pre-tax As o holding company, net assets were
benchmark applied profit of £85.4m and revenue of £608.3m, considered the most relevant benchmark to users

where odjusted pre-tax profit is calculoted of the parent company fingncial statements.

as profit before tax adjusted for amortisation,
costs associated with business combinations
and exceptional iterns. These are the metrics

that are deemed to be of most importance

to stakeholders. as dis-closed within Note 1.

Group materiality

£32m
Adjusted PBT Component
£85.4m materiality range

£0.9m to £1.8m

Adjusted PBT Audit Committee
Group materiality reporting threshold
£0.16m

6.2. Performance materiality
We set performance materiality at a level lower than materiality to reduce the probability that. in aggregote, uncorrected
and undetected misstatements exceed the materiality for the financial statements as a whole.

Group financial statements Parent company finoncial stotements
Performance materiality 70% (FY22: 70%) of Group materiality 70% (FY22: 70%) of parent company materiolity
Basis and rationale We hove assessed the quality of the Group's overall control environment, as
for determining well as the low volume of corrected ond uncorrected misstatements in the
performance materiality previgus audit.

6.3. Error reporting threshold

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all oudit differences in excess of £160.000 (FY22:
£150,000), as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also report
to the Audit Committee on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financicl statements.
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Independent auditor’s report continued

7. An overview of the scope of our audit

7.1. identification and scoping of components

Our Group audit was scoped by obtaining on understanding of the Group and its environment, including group-wide controls, and
assessing the risks of material misstatement.

We have focused our work on the UK-based subsidiaries which account for the majority of the Group's revenue, expenses and

net assets. We have subjected two components to full-scope audits and a further eleven compenents to audits of specified
account balances, which covers 85% of revenue (FY22: 84%), B8% of expenses (FY22: B5%) and 88% of net assets (FY22: 919%).
The remainder of the Group, including oll components located overseas in the Republic of irelond and the Netherlands, were
subject to review procedures only. All audit wark was carried out by the UK engagement team, with no involvement of component
cuditars. Testing was performed to component materiality ranging from £0.9m to £1.8m (FY22: £0.7m 10 £1.9m).

15% 12% 12%
7%

Revenue Expenses Net assets

22% 24%

63% 64%

81%

Full augit scope Specified account balances Review at Group level

7.2. Our consideration of the control environment

We obtained on understanding of the control environment, including the underlying key IT systems (Navision and Rebovet), and
general IT controls. The Navision | T system is the main financial reporting system odopted by the Group. The Robovet IT system
is the Group adopted proctice management software which reports all transactions within individual practices using the software.

We olso obtained an understanding of. ond tested, the relevant controls over the revenue cycle. We did not reiy on the controls
and note the Audit Committee’s discussion of the controls envirenment in their report commencing page 78.

7.3. Our consideration of climate-related risks
We have cbtgined an understanding of management's process and related controls to consider and identify the impaoct of
climate risks. The risks identified during the period ore complete and consistent with our understanding of the Group's operations.

The key climate risks disclosed by management in the Principal Risks section of the Strategic Report include the following:
> disruptions to supply chain leading to stock shortage and financial loss:

> gdverse weather conditions leading to a decline in client demand; and

> chonges in regulations increasing the cost of operations.

Our audit included the following procedures in refation to climate change:

> consideration of the impact of climate issues on key audit matters;

> review and challenge of management’s own climate risk assessment, and consideration of the impoct of climate matters
on other areas of the financial statements:

> evaluation of whether appropriate disclosures have been made in the financio! statements; and

> reod the climate disclosures in the strategic report to consider whether they are materially consistent with the financiat
stotements and our knowledge obtoined in the oudit.
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8. Other information

The other information comprises the informetion included in
the annual report, octher than the fingncial statements and our
auditor's report thereon. The Directors are responsible for the
other information contained within the annual report.

Qur opinion an the financial statements does not cover the
other information ond, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the ather information and, in doing
sg, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial stotements or our knowledge
obtained in the course of the audit. or otherwise appears to be
materiolly misstated.,

If we identify such materiol inconsistencies or apparent
material misstatements, we are required to determine whether
this gives rise to o material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstotement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

9.Responsibilities of Directors

As exploined more fully in the Directors’ responsibilities
statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation

of the financial stotements and for being sotisfied that they
give a true and fair view. and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstotement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the finoncial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent
company’s ability to continue as @ going concern, disclosing

as applicable. matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidote the group or the parent company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

10. Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as o whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

ond to issue an guditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high leve! of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an cudit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK} will always detect @ material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or

error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisicns of users taken on the basis of these
financiol statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of
the financial stotements is located on the FRC's website ot:
www.fre.org.ukfauditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our guditor’'s report.

11. Extent to which the audit was considered
capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of nen-compliance
with lows and regulations. We design procedures in line

with our responsibilities, cutlined above, to detect material
misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud.

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting
irreqularities, including froud is detailed below.

11.1. ldentifying and assessing potential risks related
to irregularities

In identifying and assessing risks of material misstatement in
respect of irregularities, including fraud ond non-complionce
with lows and regulctions, we considered the following:

» the nature of the industry and sectar, control environment
ond business performance including the design of the
group's remuneration policies, key drivers for Directors’
remuneration, bonus levels and performance targets:

> the group’s own assessment of the risks that irregularities
may occur either as a result of fraud or error that was
opproved by the boord on 21 September 2022;

v

results of our enquiries of management, internal oudit,
the Directors and the Audit Committee about their own
identification and assessment of the risks of irregularities,
including those that are specific to the group's sector;

> ony matters we identified having obtained and reviewed
the Group's documentation of their policies aond procedures
relating to:

> identifying, evaluating and complying with laws ond
regulotions and whether they were aware of any instances
of non-complignce;

> detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether
they have knowledge of any actuol, suspected or alleged
fraud: and

> the internal controls established to mitigate risks of froud
or non-compliance with laws and regulations.

v

the matters discussed among the oudit engagement team
and relevant internal specialists, including tax, valuations,
financiol instrument and IT specialists regarding how and
where fraud might occur in the financial statements and
any potential indicators of fraud.

As a result of these procedures, we considered the
opportunities and incentives thot may exist within the
arganisation for fraud and identified the greatest patential for
fraud in the following areas: revenue recognition — Healthy Pet
Club and RDEC recognition. In common with all audits under
ISAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures
to respond to the risk of management override.

We also obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatery
frameworks that the group operates in, focusing on provisions
of those laws and requlations that had a direct effect on the
determinaticn of material amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The key laws and regulations we
considered in this context included the Companies Act, AIM
listing rules, Corporate Governance code, pensions legislotion
ond tax legislation.
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Independent auditor’s report continued

11, Extent to which the agudit was considered
capable of detecting irregularities, including

fraud continued

11.1. identifying and assessing potential risks related
to irregularities continued

In addition. we considered provisions of other lows and
regulations that do not have a direct effect on the financial
stotermnents but complignce with which may be fundamental to
the group's ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty.
These included the group's complionce with the RCVS
regulations applicable to all practices and qualified nurses,
GDPR, Veterinary Surgeons Act 1966, Animal Welfare Act
2006, veterinary Medicines Regulations 2013 and The Animal
Act 1986.

11.2. Audit response to risks identified

As a result of performing the above, we identified Revenue
Recognition — Healthy Pet Club: and RDEC recognition as key
audit matters reloted to the potentiol risk of fraud.

The key audit matters section of our report explains the
motters in more detoil ond olso describes the specific
procedures we performed in response to those key audit
matters. in addition to the gbove, our procedures to respond
to risks identified included the following:

> reviewing the finonciol statement disclosures and testing
to supporting documentation to ossess compliance with
provisions of relevant loaws and regulations described
as hoving a direct effect on the financial statements;

> enquiring of manogement, the Audit Committee and external
legal counsel concerning actual and potentiol litigation
and claims;

> performing analyticat procedures to identify any unusual or
unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of material
misstatement due to froud;

v

reading minutes of meetings of those chorged with
governance, reviewing internal audit reports and meeting
with internal audit, and reviewing correspondence with the
Health ond Sofety Executive ("HSE") and the Royal College
of Veterinary Services (“RCVS"); and

> in addressing the risk of froud through management override
of controls, testing the approprioteness of journo) entries and
other adjustments; assessing whether the judgements made
in moking occounting estimotes ore indicotive of o potentiol
bias: and evaluating the business rationale of any significant
transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course
of business.

We clso communicated relevont identified laws and
regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team
members including internal speciafists. and remained alert
to any indications of fraud or non-complionce with lows and
regufations throughout the audit.
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Report on other legal and
regulatory requirements

12. Opinions on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course
of the audit:

> the informotion given in the strotegic report ond the
Directors’ reéport for the financial year for which the finonciol
stotements ore prepored is consistent with the financial
stotements: and

» the strategic report and the Directors’ report have been
prepared in accordance with opplicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge ond understanding of the Group
and the parent company and their environment obtained in
the course of the gudit, we have not identified any material
misstatements in the strategic report or the Directors’ report.

13. Corporate Governance Statement

Based on the work undertoken as part of our audit, we have
concluded that each of the following elements of the Corporate
Governance Statement is materiaily consistent with the financial
statements and our knowledge cbtained during the qudit:

> the Directors’ statement with regards to the appropriateness
of adopting the going concern basis of accounting and any
material uncertainties identified set out on pages 94 to 95;

> the Directors’ explanation as to its assessment of the group’s
prospects, the period this ossessment covers and why the
period is appropriate set out on pages 94 to 95;

> the Directors’ stotement on fair, balanced and
understandable set out on poges 96 to 97;

> the Board's confiemation that it has carried aut a robust
assessment of the emerging and principal risks set out on
poges 60 ond 68;

> the section of the gnnual report that describes the review
of effectiveness of risk management and interna) control
systems set out on pages 78 to 80: and

> the section describing the work of the Audit Committee set
out on page 80.



14. Matters on which we are required to report
by exception

14.1. Adequacy of explanations received and
accounting records

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report
to you if, in our opinion:

» we have not received all the information ond explanations
we require for our audit; or

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
parent company. or returns adequate for our audit hove
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

> the parent company financial statements are not in
ogreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

14.2. Directors’ remunerotion

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report
if in our opinion certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration
have not been made.

We have nothing to report in respect of this matter.

15. Use of our report

This report is rmade solely to the company’s members,

as a body, in occordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the cornpany’'s members those matters
we are required to stote to them in an auditor's report ond for
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by low, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyane other than the
company ond the company's members as o body, for our oudit
waork, for this report, or for the opinions we hove formed.

2 )

Paul Schofield FCA ior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Stotutory Auditor

Combridge, United Kingdom

21 September 2023
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Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 30 June 2023

2023 2022
Note £m £m

Revenue 4 608.3 554.2
Cost of sales (346.0) (315.1)
Grass profit 262.3 2391

Administrative expenses {200.G} {196.3)
Operating profit 623 428

Finance expense 5 (8.4) (6.8)
Profit before tax 4 539 36.0

Tox expense 9 {12.0 {10.3)
Profit for the year 419 257

Earnings per Ordinary share (EPS)

Basic 10 58.8p 36.2p

Diluted 10 58.5p 359p

All activities derive from continuing operations.

Reconciliation of alternotive performance measures-

The Directors believe thot adjusted meosures, being adjusted EBITDA. adjusted PBT and adjusted EPS. provide additional useful
infarmation for shareholders. These meosures are used by the Board and management for planning. internal reporting and setting
Director and manogement remuneration. In additicn, they ore used by the investor analyst community ond are aligned to our strategy ond
KPls. These measures are not defined by IFRS and therefere may not be directly compuareble with other companies’ odjusted mecsures.

Adjusted EBITDA is caiculated by reference to profit before tax, adjusted for interest {net finance expensej, depreciation, amortisation.
costs reloting to business combinations and exceptional iterns. The following table provides the calculation of adjusted EBITDA:

) 2023 2022
Altemative performonce meosure: odjusted EBITDA Note £m £m
Profit before income tax 538 36.0
Adjustments for:
Fingnce expense S 8.4 6.8
Amortisotion of intangible assets 12 22.6 222
Depreciutionv of property. plont ond egquipment 13 126 113
Depreciation of right-of-use ossets 14 15.2 142
Profit on disposal of property. plont and equipment and right-of-use assets 0.2) 0.3
Costs reloting to business combinations® 15 6.6 49
Exceptional items? € 2.3 12.4
Adjusted EBITDA 4 121.4 107.4
Adjusted eamings per share (EPS):
Adjusted EPS 10 96.0p B5.8p
Diluted odjusted EPS 10 95.5p 85.0p

* 1. Includes omounts paid in respect of acquisitions in prior yeors expensed t the income statement.

2. Exceptional iterns relate to impoirment ond trading lasses in respect of the Gilobbey Veterinory practice closufe in the current year ond the impoirment of Quolity Pet Care Ltd
inthe prior year. Further information is oveilable in note 6,

108 CVS Group plc Annual Report and Financial Stotements 2023



Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 june 2023

r‘ﬁ-— 3-2‘5] 2022
Note 2. " €m £m
Profit for the year : r 419 25.7
Other comprehensive income - items that will or may be reclassified to profit or loss T
in future periods
Cash flow hedges:
Net moverment on cash flow hedge (0.2), 2.8
Cast of hedging reserve . — {0.1)
Deferred tox on cosh flow hedge and available-for-sale financicl assets 253 — (0.7}
Exchange differences on transiation of foreign operations : ) ;(9.2:); {0.1)
Other comprehensive {expense)/income for the year, net of tax L ) ) (0.4):. 18
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to owners of the parent i I_ ) 7 . 41.§| 276
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Consolidated and Company statement of financial position

as at 30 June 2023

Company registration number: 06312831

- = PN

Group | ,: Cnmpony , Company
2022 ¥ T "3023% 2022
! £m ‘sax.:.nv:.:ﬂ'ﬁ £m
Non-current assets V
Intangible assets 216.5 !%‘ —
Property, plant and equipment COT 1. wh —
Right-of-use assets 1017 —
Investments 0.1 739
Amounts owed by Group undertakings — 79.4
Derivative fingncial instruments 23 —
390.3 153.3
Current assets
Inventories , 26.2 -
Trade and other receivables 827 —
Derivative financial instruments —_ -—
Current tax receivable — —
Cash and cash equivalents 490 3_ —
1279 X —
Total assets 518.2 ;—I -y 1‘:‘563_'; 1533
Current liobilities f:{“f' '“f“'
Trade and other payables (86.6) 3,* !_"' 3:“—:;% —_
Pravisions 1, Ta x L] —
Lease liabilities {9.4) 1 ‘_ : : ;_.,.... —
Current tox liobilities {3.3) 2y ;{,‘;‘ﬁ: —
(101.4) ¥y FI21 —
Non-current liabilities : %,?L"wm: Pl
Borrowings 24 {84.3) 3, « ’ ; 5 w L‘—“‘,-;, —
Lease liabilities (95.1) 344" > ‘;\i' —
Deferred tax liabilities 25 ¥ {20.0}) ot g; okt —
INZ106) {199.4) Fove ] —_
Total liabilities 4 T (3187, (300.8) Tar ors s ] -
Net assets j&ﬁ}ﬁg@.ﬁ_s 217.4 T’“"EIEE:"M 153.3
Shareholders’ equity
Share capitat 26 iy 1 og- "’5 S¥0.10 0.1
Share premium 27 ;J* 105.4 ‘ ; ‘1‘25 .04 105.4
Copitai redemption reserve 06 . ,0€ 0.6
Tregsury reserve — 4 ;.P.. = “Tﬂ_ _—
Cdsh flow hedge reserve - Al A ~ LB bt e —_
Cost of hedging reserve e e —
Merger reserve P ©1.4) : "":"""- _
Fareign exchange translation reserve yrar (0 2) — ¥ —
Retained earnings ,:g‘_w 209 11 1711 _,:h43if 47.2
Total equity 7T TTAUT566 217.4 {58 " 153.3

The Company reported a total comprehensive loss for the financial year ended 30 june 2023 of £0.8m (2022: £0.6m).
The notes on pages 115 to 155 are an integral part of these consolidated and Company finoncial statements.

The financial stotements on poges 108 to 155 were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 September 2023 '

and were signed on its behalf by:

Robin Alfon
’ Directur

Richard Fairman
Director
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Fareign
Capital Cash flow Cost of exchange
Share Share redemption  Treasury hedge hedging Merger translotion  Retained Totol
copital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  eamings equity
Note £m £m £m £m Em £m £m £m £Em £Em
At 1 July 2022 0.1 1054 0.6 — 16 —_ (61.4} -— 1711 2174
Profit for the year _ —_ - —_ —_ —_ — — 41.9 419
Other comprehensive income
and losses
Cash flow hedges:
Foir value loss — —_ - — {0.2) — — e — 0.2)
Deferred tax on cash fiow
hedge and available-for-sale
financiol assets — — — — —_ — - - —_ —
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations —_ - — — —_ — — (0.2} —_ {0.2)
Total other comprehensive loss —_ —_ — — 0.2) — — 0.2 — (0.4)
Total comprehensive
({loss)/income — —_ —_ — {0.2) — — (0.2) 419 415
Transactions with owners
Issue of Crdinary shares 26 —_ 16 — — — — — — — 16
Purchase of Treasury Shares 26 — — — (1.2 —_ — — — —_ (1.2
Disposal of Treasury shares 26 —_ - — 1.2 — —_ — — {0.7) 05
Credit to reserves for
share-based payments 11 — — — — — — — — 17 1.7
Deferred tax relating to
share-based payments 25 — — —_ - — — — — 0.1 0.1
Dividends to equity holders
of the Company _ — — — — — — — {5.0) (5.0}
Total transactions with owners — 16 — — — — —_ — (3.9) {2.3)
At 30 June 2023 . 0.1 1070 06 —_ 1.4 — (61.4) (0.2) 209.1 2566
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity continued

for the year ended 30 June 2023

Foreign
Capital Cash flow Cost of exchoer:ge
Share Shore redemption  Treosury hedge hedging Merger transiation  Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve raserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings equity
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 july 2021 0.1 103.1 06 — {0.5} 0.1 {61.4) — 1491 191.1
Profit for the year — — — —_ —_ — — — 25.7 257
Other comprehensive income
and losses
Cash flow hedges:
Fair value income/{loss) — — — — 28 (0.1) — — — 2.7
Deferred tax on cash flow
hedge ond ovailoble-for-sale
finoncia! assets — — — — {0.7) — — — — {0.7}
Exchange differences on
tronslation of foreign operctions _ — — —_ _ —_ —_ — (0.1} {0.1)
Total other comprehensive .
{loss)fincome —_ — — —_ 2.1 (0.1} _— — (0.1} 1.9
Total comprehensive
income/{loss) — _ — — 2.1 {0.1) — — 256 276
Transactions with owners
issue of Ordinary shares 26 — 23 —_ — — - — — — 2.3
Disposal of treasury reserve 11 — — — — — — — — — —
Credit to reserves for
share-based payments — — — - — — — — 2.3 23
Deferred tax relating to
share-based payments 25 — — — — — — — — (1.3) {1.3)
Dividends ta equity holders
of the Company 26 — — — — — — — — (4.6) {4.6)
Total transactions with owners — 23 — — — — — — {3.6) {1.3)
At 30 June 2022 0.1 105.4 0.6 — 16 -— (61.4) — 1711 217.4
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Company statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 30 June 2023
. Capital
Share Share redemption Retained Total
capital premium reserve earnings equity
Note £m Em £m £m £m
At 1 July 2022 a1 1054 0.6 47.2 153.3
Total comprehensive loss for the year —_ — — {0.8) 10.8)
Transactions with owners
Issue of Ordinary shares 26 -—_ 1.6 — _ 1.6
Credit to reserves for share-based poyments 11 -— — — 1.7 1.7
Dividends to equity helders of the Compaony 26 - — — {5.0) (5.0}
Total transactions with owners —_ 16 — (3.3) (1.7}
At 30 June 2023 0.1 107.0 0.6 43.1 150.8
Capital
Share Share redemption Retained Tatat
copital premium reserve earnings aquity
Note £m Em £m £m £m

At 1 July 2021 0.1 103.1 06 50.1 153.9
Total comprehensive loss for the year _ —_ - {0.6) 0.6)
Transactions with owners
Issue of Ordinary shares 28 —_ 23 — _ 2.3
Credit to reserves for share-based payments 11 — — — 23 23
Dividends to equity holders of the Company 26 — —_ — (4.6) {4.6)
Total transactions with awners —_ 23 — {2.3) —
At 30 June 2022 0.1 105.4 0.6 47.2 163.2
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Consolidated and Company statement of cash flow

for the year ended 30 june 2023

Group

Group

2023 2022 2023 2022
Note £m £m £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cosh generated from operations 29 107.9 93.1 34 23
Taxation poid {14.9) (11.2) —_ -—
Interest paid {7.2) (6.4) —_ —
Exceptional items (1.3) — — —
Net cash generated from operating activities 845 7585 3.4 23
Cash flows from investing activities
Business combinations {net of cosh acquired) 15 (54.6) (8.4) —_ —
Purchase of property. plant and equipment 13 (42.3) {23.00 -_ —
Proceeds fium sule of property. plont and equipment 03 0.2 — —
Purchase of intangible assets 12 3.4) {1.5) — —
Purchose of other investments 16 — {21.4) -— —
Proceeds from sale of other investments 16 0.1 8.0 —_ —
Net cash used in investing activities {99.9) (45.1) —_ —
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid 26 (5.0) {4.6) {5.0} {4.6)
Proceeds from issue of Ordinary shares 26 i6 2.3 1.6 23
Proceeds from sale of Treasury shares 26 05 —_ — _
Purchase of Treasury shares 26 {1.2) —_ — —
Repoyment of obligations under right-of-use ossets (14.1} {12.7) — —
Debt issuance costs (3.6) — — —
Repayment of borrowings 28 {0.8) 0.2 - —
Increase of barrowings 28 10.5 — _ —
Net cash used in financing activities (12 {15.1) {3.4) (2.3)
Net [decrease)fincrease in cash and cash equivalents (27.5}) 163 — —
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the yeaor 49.0 33.7 —_ —
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the yeor 215 49.0 _— —
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

1. General information

The principal activity of CVS Group plc, together with its subsidiaries (“the Group™}, is to operate veterinary practices,
complementary veterinary diagnostic businesses, pet crematoria and an online pharmacy and retqil business. The principal
activity of CVS Group plc ("the Company”) is that of a holding company.

CVS Group plc is a public limited company incorporated under the Companies Act 2006 and domiciled in England and Wales
ond its shares are quoted on AIM of the London Stock Exchange (CVSG). Its company registration number is 06312831 and
registered office is CVS House, Owen Road, Diss, Norfolk IP22 4ER.

Use of alternative performance measures

Adjusted EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation), adjusted profit before tax (adjusted
PBT) and adjusted earnings per share {adjusted EPS)

The Directors believe that odjusted measures, being adjusted EBITDA, adjusted PBT and adjusted EPS, provide additional useful
information for shareholders. These measures are used by the Board and management for planning, internol reperting and
setting Director and management remuneration. In addition, they are used by the investor onalyst community and are aligned to
our strategy and KPls. These measures are not defined by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and therefore may
not be directly comparoble with other companies’ adjusted measures. They are not intended to be a substitute for, or superior to.
IFRS measurements of profit or earnings per share.

Adjusted EBITDA is calculated by reference to profit before tax, adjusted for interest {net finance expense), depreciation,
amortisation. costs relating to business combinations and exceptional items.

Adjusted PBT is calculated as profit before tox, amortisation, costs reloting to business combinations and exceptional items.

Adjusted EPS is calculated as adjusted PBT, less opplicable tax. divided by the weighted average number of Ordinary shares
inissue in the period.

The following toble provides the calculotion of adjusted EBITDA as defined above:

2023 2022
Alternative performance measure: adjusted EBITDA Note Em . £m
Profit before income tax 53.9 360
Adjustments for:
Finance expense 5 84 6.8
Amortisation of intangible assets 12 226 222
Depreciation of property, plont and equipment 13 126 11.3
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 14 18.2 4.1
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets (0.2) 0.3)
Costs relating to business combinactions? 15 6.6 49
Exceptional items? 6 23 12.4
Adjusted EBITDA 4 121.4 107.4
Adjusted earnings per share (EPS):
Adjusted EPS ’ 10 96.0p 85.8p
Diluted adjusted EPS 10 95.5p 850p

1. Includes amounts paid in respect of ocquisitions in prior yeors expensed to the income statement.

2. Exceptional items relate to impairment and trading lesses in respect of the Gilabbey Veterinory Haspitol closure in the current year and the impairment
of Quality Pet Care Ltd in the prior yeor. Further information is avoilable in note €.

The reconciliations for adjusted PBT and adjusted EPS can be found in note 10.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the yeor ended 30 June 2023

1. General information continued
Net debt
Net debt is calculated as bank borrowings less gross cash and cash equivalents and unamortised borrowing costs.

2023 2022
Note £m £m

Rarrawings repayable after rmore thon one year:
Term loon and revolving credit focility 955 85.0
Unamortised borrowing costs (3.3 {0.7)
Totol borrowings 24 92.2 843
Cash and cash equivalents 21 (21.5) (49.0)
Net debt 70.7 353

For bank covenant reporting, an alternative calculation for net debt in used. This definition can be found in note 3.

Like-for-like sales
Like-for-like sales shows revenue generated from like-for-like operations compared to the prior year, adjusted for the number of working
doys. For exomple, for o practice ocquired in September 2021, revenue is included from September 2022 in the like-for-like colculotions.

2, Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The consolidated und Compony financial statements of CVS Group plc hove been prepored in accordance with United Kingdom
adopted international accounting standards as applied in occordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and
applicable law.

The accounting policies set gut below have, unless ctherwise stated, been applied consistently to all years presented in these
financial stotements. The accounting policies which follow relate to the Group and ore applied by the Company as appropriate.

Going concern

The consolidated financial stoterments have been prepared on a geing concern basis and under the historical cost convention,
except for certoin financial instruments that have been measured at fair value. At the year end the Group had cash balances of
£21.5m and an unutilised overdraft facility of £5.0m. Totol facilities of £350.0m are available to support the Group's argonic and
acquisitive growth initiatives over the coming years, comprising o term loan of £87.5m and an RCF of £262.5m. The Group is fully
compliant with all covenants in respect of these facilities. The Directors consider that the £5.0m overdroft and the £350.0m
facility enable the Group to meet all current liabilities as they fall due. The Group is not reliant en any Government support.

Since the year end, the Group has continued to trade profitably and to generate cash. After consideration of market canditions.
the Group’s financial position {including the level of headroom available within the bank facilities), financicl forecasts, its profile
of cash generation aond the timing ond amount of bank borrowings repayable, principal risks, and considering the Task Force on
Climate-Related Finoncial Disclosures {TCFD) scenario analysis conducted, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Group has odequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing these financial statements.

Critical accounting estimates ond judgements

The preparation of finonciol stotements in conformity with IFRS requires monagement to make judgements, estimates ond
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities. income and expenses.

The estimates and associcted assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors thot are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form g basis for making the judgements about carrying values of assets and
ligbilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimotes ond underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to occounting estimutes are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Due to the inherent
uncertainty involved in making assumptions and estimates, actual outcomes will differ from those assumptions and estimates.

Judgement: Leases
Management exercises judgement in determining the likelihood of exercising break or extension options in determining the
lease term.

When determining the leose term in accordance with IFRS 16, ‘Leases’, parographs 18-21, manogement has opplied the
following policy for all leases:

a) for properties in contract, the lease term has been determined to be the period to the end of the contractual lease term;

b} for properties out of contract and therefore occupied on a rolling basis in accordance with legislation that perrnits this.
the lease term has been determined to be 7.5 years from the end of the contractuol lease term; and

¢} for properties where management has cammitted to close the site, the lease term is determined te be until the next break
clause, Refer o note 14 for additional disclosures reloted to leases.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Critical accounting estimates and judgements continued

Accounting estimate: Research and Development Expenditure Tax Credit (RDEC)

Certain companies within the Group may be entitled to cloim tax credits in relotion to the Research and Development Expenditure Tax
Credit (RDEC) scheme in the UK. Tax credits receivable under this scheme ore determined to hove the substance of a government
grant and accordingly these tax credits are accounted for under IAS 20. Further information can be found in the Government
grants occounting policy.

The Group has recognised £1.8m in respect of their estimated claim for the current year. being 2023, which is ofter applying a

discount of £5.2m to reflect uncertainty. The Group has also recorded £5.7m in respect of cloims submitted for 2022 and 2021,
ofter applying a discount of £6.7m, and o further £4.0m in respect of earlier years following the expiry of the enquiry windows

for those claims.

The total RDEC in the consolidated income statement is therefore £11.5m (2022: £2.0m).

The Group has recognised £15.5r to date for claims olready filed. or as estimates for cloims yet ta be made for qualifying
expenditure that has already been incurred. Of this amount, £7.5m has an open enquiry window, and this would therefore be
the maximum amount that could be disallowed in the event of challenge from HMRC. Alterngtively. the maximum income that
wili be recorded in future periods in relation to R&D expenditure that has already taken place is estimated to be £11.0m. which
waould arise if all previously submitted cloims were paid in full, ond the estimate for 2023, which is yet to be submitted, was also
recovered in full.

Management's policy remains to recognise the remainder of submitted claims when the uncertainty has been removed either
vig formal acceptance of the claims, or the expiry of the enquiry windows.

The net benefit of the RDEC scheme in the year was £9.6m ofter associated costs {2022: £2.0m}.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosure
Standards adopted by the Group for the first time
Four new and revised standards, including the following. are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Jonuary 2022:

> Amendment to IFRS 3 - Reference to the conceptual framework

> Amendments to 1AS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before intended use
> Amendments to IAS 37 - Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfiling a Contract

> Annuol improvements-to IFRS Stondards 2018-2020

Adoption of these standards has not had an impact on the Group’s financial stotements.

Standards and interpretations 1o existing standards which are not yet effective and are under review as to their impact
on the Group:

The following standards and interpretations te existing stondards have been published that are mandotory for the Group’'s
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 Januory 2023 or later periods but which the Group has not early adopted:

> Amendments to IFRS 16 - Lease Liability in Sale and Leaseback {effective 1 Jonuary 2024)

> Amendments to IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts (effective 1 january 2023}

> amendments to IAS 1 - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current {effective 1 January 2023}

> Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 - Disclosure of accounting policies (effective 1 January 2023)

> Amendments to IAS 1 - Non-current Liabilities with Covenants {effective 1 January 2024)

> Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 - Supplier Finance Arrangements (effective 1 January 2024}

> Amendments to I1AS 8 - Definition of accounting estimates (effective 1 january 2023)

> Amendments to IAS 12 - International tax reform - Pillar two model rules (effective 1 january 2023}

> Amendments to 1AS 12 - Deferred Tax related to assets and liobilities orising from a single transaction feffective 1 January 2023)

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated finoncial statements include the financial information of the Compony and its subsidiory undertokings as at
and for the year ended 30 June 2023.

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The results of companies ond businesses acquired ore included
in the consclidated income statement from the dote control passes. They are deconselidated from the date that control ceases.
Where the Group does nat control o subsidiary, it is not consclidated. On acquisition of o0 company or business, oll assets and
liahilities thot exist at the date of acquisition cre recorded at their fair volues, reflecting their condition at that date. Changes
that arise during the measurement period that inform cbout conditions at the date of the acquisition are adjusted via goodwill,
ond changes thot arise ofter the measurement period. are credited or charged to the income statement.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 June 2023

2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Basis of consolidation continued

Intra-group transactions and profits are eliminated fully on consolidation. Accounting policies of subsidiories have been aligned
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting -

Qperating segments are reported in o manner consistent with the internal reporting to the Chief Operating Decision Moker
{CODM). The CODM has been determined to be the Board of Directors, as it is primarily responsible for the allocation of resources
to segmenits and the assessment of the performance of segments. The Group has four operating segments: Veterinary Practices,
Laboratories. Crematoria and Online Retail Business. Further details of the Group's operating segments are provided in note 4 to
the financiol statements.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration tronsferred in
o business combination is measured ot fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition date fair volues of assets
transferred by the Group and liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree. Acquisition related costs
are recognised in the incame statement os incurred. At the acquisition dule, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed are recognised at their fair value, .

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred over the net of the acquisition date amounts of
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If. after reassessment, the net of the acquisition date amounts of the
identifioble assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the excess is recognised
immediately in the income statement os a bargain purchose gain.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes an asset or liability resulting from a contingent
or deferred considerction arrangement, this additional consideration is measured ot its ccgquisition dote foir volue ond included as
part of the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes in fair value of the contingent or deferred consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments ogoinst goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information cbtained during the “measurement period”
(which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts ond circumstances that existed at the acquisition dote,
Contingent or deferred consideration thot is clossified as an asset or o liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with IFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’, or IAS 37, 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities

and Contingent Assets’, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in the income stotement.

Property, plant and equipment

Property. plant and equipment are stated at cost [being the purchase cost, together with any incidental costs of ccquisition) less
accumulated depreciction and any accumulated impairment losses. The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed
asnnually and adjusted as appropriate. Depreciation is provided so as to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment. less
their estimoted residuol values, over the expecied useful economic lives of the assets in equol onnugl instolments ot the following
principal rates:

Freehold buildings 2% straight line

Leasehold improvements Straight line over the life of the lease
Fixtures, fittings and equipment 209--33% straight line

Mator vehicles 2596 straight line

Freehold land is not depreciated on the basis that it has an unlimited life.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial year in which they are incurred.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

With the exception of the acquisition of CVS [UK) Limited, which was occounted for using the principles of merger accounting, all
business combinations are accounted far by applying the acquisition method. Goodwill arising on acquisitions that have occurred
since 1 July 2004 is stated after separate recognition of intangible ossets and represents the difference between the fair volue of
the purchase consideration and the fair value of the Group's shore of the identifioble net ossets of an acquired entity. In respect
of acquisitions prior to 1 July 2004, goodwill is included on the basis of its deemed cost. which represents the amount recorded
under previous Generally Accepted Accounting Practice. Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impeirment losses and is
subject to onnual impoirment testing.

Patient data records and trade names
Acquired patient data records and trade names are recognised as intangibie assets at the fair value of the consideration paid
1o ocquire them ond are corried at historico) cost less provisions for amortisation and impairment.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Intangible assets continued

Patient data records and trade names continued

The fair voiue attributable to these items acquired through a business combination is determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows to be generated from thot asset at the risk-adjusted post-tax weighted overage cost of capital for a market
participant. The residual values are assumed to be £nil. Patient data records ond trade names aore reviewed for impairment if
conditions exist that indicate a review is required. Amortisation is provided so as to write off the cost over the expected economic
lives of the asset in equa! instalments at the following principal rates:

Patient data records 10% per annum
Trade names 10% per annum
Amortisation is charged to administrative expenses,

Computer software

Acquired computer software licences ore capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred te acquire and bring into use the specific
software. These costs are amortised aver their estimated useful lives of three years and charged to administrative expenses.
Costs associated with maintaining computer software progroms ore recognised as incurred.

Impairment of non-current assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life ore not subject to amortisation but are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are
subject to amortisation or depreciation are reviewed for irmpoirment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the corrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement for the omount by which
the asset’s carrying omount exceeds its recoverable amount.

As permitted by IAS 36, Impairment of Assets’, for the purposes of assessing impairment, individual cash-generating units {CGUs)
are grouped at a level consistent with the Group's operating segments. Recoveroble amounts for CGUs ore based on value in use.
which is calculated from cash flow projections using data from the Group's latest internal forecasts, being a one-yeor detailed
forecast and extrapoloted farecasts therecfter. the results of which are approved by the Board. The key assumptions for the
value-in-use calculations are those regarding discount rates ond growth rates. The Group has considered the Task Force on
Climate-Reloted Financial Disclosures {TCFD) scenaria analysis conducted in undertaking this assessment and concluded no
changes were required to the Group’s accounting policies, estimates or judgements in this area.

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been o change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does net
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impoirment loss had
been recagnised. Impairment losses in respect of goodwill are not reversed.

Inventories

Inventories comprise goods held for resale and are stated at the lower of cost and net realisoble value on a firstin, first out bosis.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling price less costs expected to be incurred on disposol. Where necessary, a provision
is made for obsolete, slow maving or defective inventory.

Finoncial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Group’s consolidated and Company statement of financial position
when the Group becomes a party to the contractuol provisions of the instrument.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) and subsequently measured

at amortised cost, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is recognised if there
are considered to be expected credit losses. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at eoch reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the financial asset. Lasses arising from impairment are recognised in the income
statement within administration expenses.

fnvestments

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of availoble-for-sale investments in equity instruments thot have a quoted
market price ore recognised directly in ather comprehensive income (“fair value through other comprehensive income” (FVTOCH)
until the security is disposed of or is determined to be impaoired. ot which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
equity is included in the net result for the year.

in accordance with IFRS 9. available-for-sale investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value connot be reliably measured are measured at cost. The Group assesses at each year end whether
there is abjective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Dividends on an available-for-sale
equity instrument are recognised in the income statement when the Group's right to receive payment is estoblished.

In the Company’s financial statements. investments in subsidiary undertakings are initially stated at cost. Provision is made
for any permanent impairment in the value of these investments.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 June 2023

2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Financial instruments continued

Financial liabilities and equity

Financic) liobilities ond equity instruments are cassified aoccording to the substonce of the contractuol orrongements entered
into. Finonciatl liabilities are obligations to pay cash or other financial assets and are recognised when the Group becomes o party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are recorded initicily at fair value and subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest methud. with interest reloted charges recognised as an expense in finange cost in the income
stotement. A financial liability is derecognised only when the obligation is extinguished. An equity instrument is any contract
thut gives o residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its ligbilities,

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are initially recorded as the proceeds received, net of associated transaction costs.
Subsequent to inittal recognition, interest-bearing borrowings ore stated at amortised cost with any difference between cost
and redemption value being recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method. Borrowings are classified as current liobilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for ot least twelve months ofter the consolidated and Company statement of financial position date.

Trode gnd other payables
Trade ond other payables are non-interest bearing and ore recognised initialty at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

The Group uses derivative financiol instruments to hedge its exposure to interest rate risks arising from financing octivities.
The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes: however, if derivatives do not qualify
for hedge occounting they are accounted for as such.

Derivative finoncial instruments are recognised and stated at fair value. The fair value of derivotive financial instruments is
determined by reference to market values for similor financial instruments, by discounted cosh flows, or by the use of option
valuation models. The fair value of interest rote swop arrangements is calculated as the present value of the estimated future
cash flows. Where derivatives do not quolify for hedge accounting. any gains or losses on remeasurement are immediately
recognised in the income statement.

Where derivatives qualify for hedge accounting. recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the hedge
relationship ond the item being hedged.

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as
well os its risk monogement objectlives, the strotegy for undertoking various hedging tronsoctions, the noture of the risks being
hedaged and the economic relationship between the item being hedged and the hedging instrument. The Group also documents
its assessment, bath at hedge inception and on on ongoing basis. of whether or not the derivativas that are used in hedging
transoctions are highly effective in offsetting changes in cash fiows of hedged items.

The fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or ligbility when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is
more than twelve months and as a current asset or liability when the remaining moturity of the hedged item is less than twelve months.

Cash flow hedging
Derivative financial instruments are classified as cash flow hedges when they hedge the Group's expasure to variability in cash flows
that are either attributable to a particular risk associoted with a recognised asset or liability, or a highly probabie forecasted transaction.

The effective element of chonges in the fair volue of derivatives that are designated and gualify as cash flow hedges is recognisad in
other comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recagnised immediately in the income statement
where material. Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled in the income statement in the periods when the hedged item affects
the income stotement. The clossification of the effective portion when recognised in the income statement is the some as the
clossification of the hedged transaction. Any element of the remeasurement of the derivative instrument which does not meet
the criteria for on effective hedge is recognised immediately in the income statement within finance costs.

when o hedging instrument expires or is sold. or when o hedge no langer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative
" guin or loss existing in equity ot thot time remains in equity and is recegnised in the income statement when the forecast transaction
is ultimately recognised in the income statement. When o forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or toss that was reported in equity is immediately transferred to the income statement.

Coash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and deposits with maturities of three months or less from inception.
Bank overdrafts that are repoyable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included
as a component of cash and cosh equivalents for the purposes of the consolidated and Company statement of cash flow.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued
Current and deferred tax
The tox expense represents the sum of the current tax payable. deferred tax and any adjustments in respect of previous periods.

The current tax payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
income statement because it excludes some items of income or expense thot are taxoble or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or tox deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated on the basis of
tax laws and tax rates thot have been enacted or substantively enacted by the consolidated and Company staotement of financiol
position date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid
to the tax outhorities.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tox
hases of ossets and liobilities used in computation of toxable profits and their carrying amounts in the consolidated finoncial
statements. However, deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of on asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination thot ot the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is clso net accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates
{and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the consolidated and Company statement of financial position
date and are expected to apply when the reloted deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liobility is settled.

Current and deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement. except where it relotes to items charged or credited
directly to other comprehensive income or equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
of equity respectively.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legolly enforceable right to offset current tox assets against current
tox liabilities and when the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on o net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultanecusly.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is meosured in accordonce with relevant accounting standards. For oll contracts within the scope of IFRS 15, 'Revenue
from Contracts with Customers’, the Group determines whether enforceable rights and obligations have been created with the
customer ond recognises revenue bosed on total transaction price as estimated at the contract inception, being the amount
which the Group expects to be entitled to ond hos present enforceable rights under contract. Revenue is cllocated proportionately
across the contract performance obligations and recognised either over time or at & point in time as appropriate.

Service revenue

Revenue represents sales of veterinary services, laboratory diagnostic services and crematoria services which are recognised
in accordance with IFRS 15, at the point in time when the performance obligation is satisfied. Revenue is recognised when the
veteringry consultation, veterinary procedure, laboratory test or cremation is completed.

Members of customer membership schemes, for example the Healthy Pet Club. pay annually or monthly subscription fees and
receive preventative consultations ond treatments over a twelve-month period, being the life of the contract. Annual subscription
fees are received annually in advance and monthly subscription fees are received evenly over o twelve-month period. Revenue

is recognised in line with the cost profile of individual perfermance cbligations as they are completed in accordance with the
contract and not in line with the receipt of subscription fees. For the majority of customers who pay monthly. this results in
revenue recognised in advance of cash received as performance cbligations are weighted towords the beginning of the
twelve-month contract.

The adjustments are made through deferred and occrued income and the contract asset and contract liabitity for this are shown
in note 20 and note 22, respectively. Revenue is recognised net of the provision to reflect cancellations as a result of animal
deaths, due to our pelicy not to invoice our customers in such an event. The provision is calculated bosed on histarical membership
data. All other cancellations are accounted for as on impairment of receivables within administration expenses.

Products
Revenue relating to the sole of veterinary products is recognised according to the terms of sale, at the pointin time when the
performance obligations are satisfied.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 June 2023

2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Rebates received from manufacturers

Consistent with standard industry practice. the Group has agreements with suppliers whereby volume refated allowances and various
other fees are received in connection with the purchase of goods from those suppliers in the form of rebates. Rebotes received from
drug and consumable monufacturers in respect of the Group's purchases retating to inventories are held by the Group at the reporting
date; the rebate is included within the cost of those inventories and recognised in cost of sales upon sale of those inventories.

Rebotes negotiated on behalf of our buying group members, MiVetClub and VetShare, are recorded in the stotement of finoncial
position as o receivable and the corresponding liability for the rebate due to the member is recorded as a poyable. The associated
commission receivable by the Group is recorded os revenue in the income statement when all obligations attached to the rebote
have been discharged and the rebate can be measured reliably based on the terms of the contract which is token as at the point
at which the buying group member purchases the drugs and consumables.

Leases

The Group as a lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee. except for short-term
leases (defined os leases with a lease term of twelve months or less) ond leases of low value assets {such as toblets and personal
computers. small items of office furniture and telephones). For these leases. the Group recognises the lease payments os an
operating expense on ¢ stroight-line bosis over the term of the leose unless another systemotic bosis is more representotive

of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets cre consumed,

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee uses its incremental
borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

> fixed lease poyments (including in-substance fixed payments). less any lease incentives receivable:

> varigble leose payments that depend on an index or rate, initially mecsuréd using the index or rate at the commencement date;
> the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual volue guarantees;

> the exercise price of purchase options, if the iessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options: ond

> payments of penalties for terminating the leose, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to tarmincte the leose.

The lease liability is presented as o separate line in the consolidated stotement of financial position,

The legse liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liobility {using
the effective interest methad) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The Group remeosures the lease liability {ond makes o corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

> the lease term has changed or there is a significant event or chonge in circumstonces resulting in a change in the assessment
of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate;

> the lease poyments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under ¢ guaranteed residual value,
in which case the lease ligbility is remeasured by discounting the revised lecse poyments using an unchanged discount rate (unless
the lease payments change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used): and

> g lease contract is modified and the legse modification is not accounted for as g separate lease, in which case the lease liabitity
is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate ot the effective date of the modification,

The right-of-use assets comprise the initia! meosurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before
the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation ond impairment losses.

Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset. restore the site on which it is locoted
or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the leose,-a provision is recognised ond
measured under |1AS 37,

Right-of-use assets are deprecioted over the shorter period of lease term ond useful life of the underlying asset. If o lease
transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group expects to exercise
a purchase option, the reloted right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation
starts at the commencement date of the lease.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Leases continued

The Group as a lessee continued

The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the consolidoted statement of financiol position.

The Group applies IAS 36 to determine whether o right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified impairment loss
as described in the Property, plant end equipment policy on page 118.

Variable rents that do nat depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the legse liability and the right-of-use
asset. The reloted poyments are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those
poyments eccurs and are included in administration expenses in the income statement,

As a proctical expedient, IFRS 16 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, ond instead account for any lease and
associoted non-lease components as o single arrangement. The Group has not used this practical expedient. For a contract that
contains a leose compenent and one or more additional lcase or non-lease components, the Group allocotes the consideration in
the contract to each lease companent on the basis of the relative standalone price of the lease component and the aggregate
standalone price of the non-lease components.

Government grants )
Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and thot the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in the income staterment on g systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants ore intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpese of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in the income statement in the period
in which they become receivable.

Certain compaonies within the Group may be entitied to claim tax credits in relation to the Research and Development
Expenditure Tox Credit (RDEC) scheme in the UK. Tax credits receivable under this scheme are determined to have the substance
of o government gront end accordingly these tox credits are accounted for under {AS 20, 'Accounting for Government Grants',
as described above. The tax credits are recagnised within administration expenses within the income statement when there

is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the relevant conditions and that the tox credits will be received.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the stotement of finoncic! position when the Group has o present legol or constructive obligotion as
a result of a past event and thot con be reliably measured ond it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows ot a pre-tox rate that reflects
risks specific to the liability.

Share-based payments

Certain emplayees of the Group receive port of their remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions, whereby
employees render services in exchange for shares or rights over shares [equity-settied transactions). UK employees may also
acquire shares in the Company through an HMRC-approved employee Save As You Earn scheme {SAYE), where the employee
makes monthly savings over a three-year peried and has the option to purchase shares at the end of the period.

The fair values of equity-settled transactions are measured indirectly at the dates of grant using Monte Carlo or Black Scholes
option pricing models, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the awards are granted. The fair value of
share-based payments under such schemes is expensed on o straight-fine basis over the vesting period. based on the Group's
estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted at each reporting date for the effect of non-market-based vesting
cenditions. The fair value of options awarded to employees of subsidiary undertakings is recognised as a capital contribution
and recorded in investments on the Campany statement of financial position,

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentational currency

The individual finencial statements of each Group company are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment
in which it operates {its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial
position of each Group company gre expressed in Sterling, which is the functional currency of the Company, and the presentotion
currency for the consolidated financial statements, rounded to the nearest £0.1m.

In preparing the financiol statements of the individual companies, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functionat currency
{foreign currencies) are recognised ot the rotes of exchonge prevoiting on the dotes of the transactions. At eoch year end, monetary
assets and liobilities thot are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated ot the rotes prevailing ot that date. Non-monetary
items carried ot fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated ot the rates prevailing ot the date when the fair
value was determined, Non-menetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 June 2023

2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Foreign currency translation continued

Functional and presentational currency continued

Exchange differences are recognised in the incerne statement in the period in which they arise.

For the purpose of presenting consolidoted finoncial statements, the ossets and liobilities of the Group's foreign operations

are transloted at exchange rates prevailing on the consolidated and Company statement of fingncial position date. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
that period, in which case the exchange rotes at the date of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any. are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate component of equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as ossets and liobilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate. The Group has elected to treat goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisitions
before the date of tronsition to IFRS qs Sterling-denominated assets and liabilities. Exchange differences orising are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Research and Development
Costs in relation to research and development are expensed to the income statement os incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

The Group makes contributions to stakeholder and employee personal pension defined contribution schemes in respect of certain
employees. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions hove been paid. The contributions are recognised
as an employee benefit expense in the period to which they relate. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Financing costs

Finencing costs comprise interest payable on borrowings, debt finance costs, finance cost on the right-of-use lease liability,
ond goins ond losses on derivotive finoncial instruments thot are recognised in the income stotement. Interest expense is
recognised in the income statement as it accrues, using the effective interest method.

Share premium
The share premium reserve comprises the premium received over the nominal value of shares issued.

Treasury reserve
The treasury reserve comprises shares held by an Employee Benefit Trust {(EBT) for the purposes of satisfying the exercise
of certoin share options vesting under the Group’s Long-Term Incentive Plan {LTIP) and SAYE schemes.

Capital redemption reserve
Upon cancellation of redeemable Preference shares on redemption, a capital redemption reserve was created representing
the nominal value of the shares cancelled. This is a non-distributoble reserve.

Merger reserve
The merger reserve resulted from the acquisition of CVS (UK) Limited and represents the difference between the value of the
shares acquired (nominol value plus related share premium) and the nominal value of the shares issued.

Loss for the financial year

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Compeny has elected not to present its own income statement
or statement of comprehensive income for the year. The loss attributable to the Company is disclosed in the footnote to the
consolidated and Company statement of financial position.

3.Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it tc a variety of financial risks: market risk {being foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and

other price riske), credit risk and liguidity risk. The Grougr's wveiall lisk immunagernent programme tocuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance. The Group uses derivative
instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate movements. It is not the Group's pelicy to actively trade in derivatives,

The Board monitors finoncial risk management. The policies set by the Board of Directors are implemented by the Group's
finance department.

" a) Market risk

i) Foreign exchange currency rote risk

The Group has limited exposure to foreign exchange risk as the majority of its transactions are denominated in the Company's
functional currency of Sterling. The Group has a policy to minimise foreign exchange currency rate risk through the regulor
monitoring of foreign currency flows, Currency exposures are reviewed regularly and all significant foreign exchange transactions
are approved by Group management. For subsidiaries incorporated in the Netherlands and the Republic of Ireland, a naotural
hedge is applied where both revenue and expenditure is denominated in Euros. Aside from this, the Group does not hedge ony
fereign currency transactions but continues to keep this policy under review.
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3.Financial risk management continued

Financial risk factors continued

a) Market risk continued

i) Cash flow and fair volue interest rate risk

The Group has interest-bearing ossets and liabilities. The Group's income and operating cash inflows are substantially independent
of changes in market interest rates. The Group's interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued ot variable
rotes expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

At the year end, the Group had interest hedging arrangements in place covering £70.0m {2022: £70.0m) which expire in January 2024.
This allows the Group to minimise its exposure to significant interest rate increases whilst enabling the Group to take advantage
of interest rate reductions. The strotegy for undertaking the hedge is to match a portion of the loan liability with a derivative that
allows interest to floot within an ogreed range and thereby limits the cash flow exposure relating to interest.

Excluding the impact of the interest rate swap arrangement. bank borrowings bear interest ot 1.45% to 2.70% above SONIA.
The cpplicoble interest rate is dependent upon the bank test net debt to bank test EBITDA ratio. During the year the bank
borrowings carried a rote averaging 1.45% above SONIA.

At 30 June 2023, the Group has censidered the impact of movements in interest rates over the past year and has concluded thot
o 1% movement is d regsonable benchmark. At 30 June 2023, if interest rates on Sterling-denominated borrowings had been

1% higher or lower. with all other varicbles held constant. post-tax profit and the movement in net ossets for the year would hove
been approximately £0,3m (2022: £0.9m) lower or higher, mainly as a result of the movement in interest rates on the floating rate
borrowings. net of the hedging derivative instrument in place.

b) Credit risk .

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair volue and subsequently measured at amortised cost, less provision for impoirment.
A provision far impairment of trade receivables is recognised on trade receivables if there is considered to be expected credit losses.
The amount of expected credit losses is calculated using the simplified approach as allowable under IFRS 9 and is updated at
each reporting dote to reflect changes in credit risk since initiol recognition of the financiol asset.

Losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in administrative expenses,

The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative finoncial instruments is limited because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit rating ogencies.

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited due to the Group's diverse customer base. Soles made
other than on a cash basis are limited to a small port of the Group’s overall business, and within these business areos the Group
has appropriote credit checking facilities and procedures in place. Customer accounts are also monitored on an ongoing basis
and appropricte action is token where necessary to minimise any credit risk. The Directors therefore believe there is no further
credit risk provision required in excess of normal provision for impaired receivables.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at 30 June 2023 is the fair value of each class of receivable as disclosed in note 20

to the finoncial statements.

¢) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies mgintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availobility of funding
through on adequate amount of committed credit focilities. The Group octively maintains cash balances and a mix of long-term
and short-term finance facilities that are designed to ensure the Group has sufficient available funds for operations and
acquisitions. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity reserve on the basis of expected cosh flow.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

for the year ended 30 June 2023

3.Financioal risk management continued
Financial risk factors continued
¢} Liquidity risk continued

The table below summarises the remaining contractual maturity for the Group’s financial liabilities. The amounts shown are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows, which include interest, analysed by contractual maturity. When the amount payable
or receivable is not fixed. the omount disclosed has been determined by reference to the projected interest rates as illustrated

by the yield curves existing ot the reporting date.

In more than In more than In more than
one year but two years but three years but
In less than  not mere than  not mere than  not more than In more than
one year two years three years five yeors five yeors Total
30 june 2023 Note £m £m £m £m £m £m
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings — — — 955 — a55
Trade and other payabies (excluding
social security and other taxes) 22 69.3 — — — — £9.3
Leaose liabilities 14 173 16.2 15.2 26.9 517 1273
86.6 16.2 152 122.4 51.7 2921
In more than In more than In more than
one yeor but  two yeors but  three years but
Inlessthan not more thon notmorethon  not more than In mare than
one year two years three years five years five yeors Totel
30 fune 2022 Note £m £m £m £m £m - £m
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings — 850 — — — 85.0
Trade and other payables (exciuding
social security and other taxes) 22 68.2 — _— —_ —_ 68.2
Leose liabilities 14 13.2 15.5 146 26.1 56.6 1260
814 1005 146 26.1 56.6 279.2

Capital risk management

The Group's policy is to mointain a strong copital base. defined os bank facilities plus total shareholders’ equity. so as to maintain
investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Within this overall policy. the Group
seeks to maintain an optimum copital structure by a mixture of debt and retained earnings.

The bank facilities include financial covenants and a number of general undertokings. There have been no breaches of the terms
of the respective lcan ogreements, breaches of covenants or defoults during the current ¢r comparative years.

Funding needs are reviewed periodically ond also each time a significant acquisition is made. A number of factors ore considered
which include the bank test net debt/bank test EBITDA ratio. future funding needs {usually petential acquisitions) and Group

banking orrangements.

2023 2022

£m £m

Bank test net debt 74.0 360

" Bank test EBITDA 101.4 893
Ratio 0.73 0.40

The ratio above is calculated for the bank covenants as baonk test net debt divided by bank test EBITDA.

Bank test net debt

Drawn bonk debt less cash and cash equivalents which includes £nil held in escrow at 30 June 2023 {2022: £9.0m).
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3.Financiol risk management continued

Bank test EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA annualised for the effect of acquisitions. deducting costs relating to business combinations and adding back
share option costs, on an accounting basis prior to the adoption of IFRS 16. Refer to note 1 for the calculation of adjusted EBITDA.

There were no chonges to the Group’s approach to copital management during the year.

The primary sources of funding for the Group are internally generated cash and syndicated borrowings. The Group's £5.0m
overdraft facility was undrawn at 30 June 2023 (2022: undrown) and £254.5m of the revolving credit facility was undrawn
at 30 June 2023 (2022: £85.0m revalving credit facility fully undrawn).

Fair value measurement
The Group's financicl assets and liabilities thot are measured at fair value at 30 June 2023 by level of foir value hierarchy are:

> quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1):

> inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability. either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly {that is, derived from prices) {level 2): and

> inputs for the asset or liobility that are not based on observable market data (that is. unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The Group does not have available-for-sale financial assets (2022: level 1 available-for-sale financial assets of £0.1m}.
Refer to note 16 for further information.

4. Segment reporting

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group's business ond gecgraphical segments. The primary format, operating
segments, is based on the Group's monogement and internal reporting structure and manitored by the Group’s Chief Operating
Decision Maker.

Segment results, assets and liakilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well os those that can be ollocated
an a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly interest-bearing borrowings and associated costs, tax-related assets
and liabilities, costs relating to business combingations, and Head Office salary and premises costs.

Revenue comprises £441.7m of fees and £166.6m of goods {2022: £398.1m and £156.1m respectively).

Operating segments

The Group is split into four operating segments {Veterinary Practices, Laboratories, Cremotoria and Online Retail Business) and
a centralised suppart function {Central administration) for business segment analysis. In identifying these operating segments,
management generally follows the Group’s service lines representing its main products and services.

Each of these operating segrments is monoged separotely as each segment requires different specialisms, marketing approaches
and resources. Intra-group sales eliminations are included within the Centrol cdministration segment. Central administration
includes costs relating to the employees, property and other overhead costs associoted with the centralised suppert function
together with finance costs arising on the Group’s borrowings.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

for the year ended 30 June 2023

4. Segment reporting continued
Qperating segments continued

Veterinary Online Retail Central

Practices Lab C atoria Business  gdministration Group
Yeor ended 30 June 2023 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 541.6 293 109 49.1 (22.6) 608.3
Adjusted EBITDA 116.6 92 3.6 3.9 (11.9) 121.4
Profit/{loss) before tax 598.7 8.2 3.1 38 (20.9) 539
Total ossets 4719 44.0 239 19.4 131 572.3
Total liabilities {171.3) {5.3) (3.2) (15.5) {120.4) {315.7)
Recanciliation of adjusted EBITDA
Profit/{loss) before tax 59.7 8.2 31 38 (20.9) 539
Finance expense 42 —_ — — 4.2 8.4
Amortisation of intongible assets 225 -_— 0.1 — 226
Depreciation of property. plant and equipment 109 0.9 0.5 — 03 12.6
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 14.7 0.1 — — 0.4 15.2
Profit on disposal of property. plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets {0.2} — _ —_ — {0.2)
Costs relating to business combinations 25 — —_ —_ 4.1 6.6
Exceptional items 2.3 —_ — — —_ 2.3
Adjusted EBITDA 116.6 9.2 3.6 39 (11.9) 1214

Veterinary Dnline Retail Contral

Practices Loborgtories Crematoria Business administratian Group
Yeor ended 30 June 2022 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 492.1 27.2 9.5 46.6 {21.2) 564.2
Adjusted EBITDA 108.8 8.3 3.4 35 {16.6) 107.4
Profit/{loss) before tax* 57.3 76 29 3.4 {35.2) 36.0
Total assets 426.0 386 201 279 56 518.2
Total liabilities {170.8) 51) (2.2) {18.6) {104.3) (300.8)
Reconciliation of adjusted EBITDA
Profit/{loss} before tax* 57.3 7.6 29 34 (35.2) 36.0
Fincnce expense 4.1 — - — 27 68
Amortisation of intangible assets* 22.1 — — 0.1 — 22.2
Depreciation of property. plant and equipment 9.9 0.6 05 — 03 11.3
Degpireciation of right-of-use assets 13.7 0.1 —_ —_ 03 14.1
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets {0.3) —_— —_ _ -_— (0.3)

. Costs relgting to business combinations 20 —_ — - 29 49

Exceptional items -— — —_ _— 124 124
Adjusted EBITDA 1088 8.3 34 35 {16.6) 107.4

* Amortisation of intangibles in the prior year of £7.5m hos been re-ollocated from Central administration to Veterinary Practices lo better reflect the

noture of the charge,

Geographical segments

The business operates predominantly in the UK. As at 30 June 2023. it has 27 veterinary practices in the Netherlands and three
in the Republic of Irelond. It performs a small omount of laboratory work and teleradiology work for Europe-bosed clients and

a small amount of teleradiology work for clients based in the rest of the world. In accordance with IFRS 8, ‘Operating Segments’,
no segment results are presented for trade with tlients in Europe or the rest of the world as these are not reparted seporately

for monagement reporting purposes and are not considered rmaterial for seporate disclosure.
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5. Finance expense

2023 2022

£m £m

Interest expense on bank loans ond overdraft 3.1 22
Interest expense on lease liabilities 4.3 4.2
Amortisation of debt arrangement fees 1.0 0.4
Finance expense 8.4 68

6. Expenses/(income) by nature

2023 2022

Noté £m £m

Amortisation of intangible assets 12 226 222
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13 126 11.3
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 14 15.2 141
Employee benetit expenses 7 2846 2596
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense (included in cost of sales) 1293 121.2
Repairs and maintenance expenditure on property, plant and equipment 7.6 49
Movement in provision for expected credit losses 20 1.0 (1.4}
Exceptional items? 23 12.4
RDEC income? {9.6) 2.0)
Other expenses 80.4 69.1
Total cost of sales and administrative expenses 546.0 5114

1. During the year ended 30 June 2023, exceptional items relote to the closure of Gilabbey Veterinary Hospital and include ¢ trading loss for the year *
of £1.3m, Yoss on dispasal of potient data records of £0.8m and impoirment of right-of-use osset, net of reduction in leose liability, of £8.2m. In the prior
yeor. exceptional items related to impairment of the invesiment in Quality Pet Core Ltd, which was disposed of on 30 June 2022. The impoirment of the
practice closure and prior year investment is considered as exceptionol ond non-recurring due to the circumstances of the respective closure and sale.
These costs are included within administration expenses and are shown above.

~N

. In the course of their ordinary work. our colleagues perform work which advances the overoll knowledge in the veterinary field ond seeks to resolve
scientific and technologicol uncertainties. In the current year, claims were submitted in respect of the 2021 and 2022 financial year under the Reseoarch
and Development Expenditure Credits {RDEC) scheme to HMRC. The amount of qualifying expenditure In relation to 2023 is yet to be datermined, in part
due to the uncertainty around oll ¢cloims maode to date. which is explained more fully in note 2, however on estimate has been recognised of £7.0m with a
provision against this of £5.2m. The amount of research and development expenditure within cost of soles and administrative expenses is therefore not
separotely disclosed.

Services provided by the Company's auditor and associates
During the year the Group abtained the following services from the Company’'s auditor at costs as detailed below:

2023 2022
£000 £000
Audit services
Fees poyable to the Group's auditor for:
The audit of the parent company and consolidated financial statements 229 180
The audit of the Company's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 448 352
677 532
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 June 2023

7. Employee benefit expense and numbers

Group
2023 2022
Ermployee benefit expense for the Group Note £m £m
Wages and salaries 251.1 2285
Social security costs 249 229
Other pension costs . 3 6.7 59
Share-based payments* 11 19 2.3
284.6 259.6

* Inthe Current year shore-bosed poyments includes employers’ NIC In respect of the shore-bosed payment expense.

The employee benefit expense included within cost of sales is £200.9m (2022: £181.9m). The belance is recorded within
administrative expenses.

The uverage monthly number of people employed by the Group {including Executive and Non-Executive Directors) during
the year, anolysed by category, was as follows:

2023 2022

Number Number

Veterinary surgeans and pathologists 2,215 2,079
Nurses, practice oncillories ond technicions 5,948 5.489
Crematoric staff 97 a8
Central support 260 247
8,520 7913

Company
The average monthly number of people employed by the Company is four (2022: four), being the Non-Executive Directors.
The Executive Directors received remuneration in respect of their services to the Company from a subsidiary company.

8. Directors’ remuneration and key management compensation

Highest pand Director Directors’ emoluments
2023 20722 2023 2022
£m £m £m £m
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 0.9 08 2.4 2.3
Company contributions to money purchase schemes — —_ - 0.1
09 0.8 2.4 2.4

Retirement benefits are accruing to two Directors (2022: one) under a personal pension plan. The remuneration of the
Executive Directors, amounting to £2.1m {2022: £2.1m)}, is borne by the subsidiary company CVS (UK} Limited, without
recharge. The remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors, amounting to £0.3m (2022: £0.3m), is borne by the subsidiary
company CVS (UK) Limited and recharged to the Company.

Directors’ remuneration is disclosed on on individual basis in the Remuneration Committee Report on pages 83 to 23.
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8. Directors' remuneration and key management compensation continued
Share options
Under the Company’s SAYE schemes the Directors have the following options at the year end:

Eorliest exercise dote Number of
SAYE scheme Date of grant ond vesting dote Exercise price shares
R Fairman SAYEL3 02 December 2020 01 jonuary 2024 1,009p 606
B Jacklin SAYE13 02 December 2020 01 Jenuary 2024 1.009p 570
R Alfenso SAYE13 02 December 2020 01 January 2024 1,008p 606
R Fairman SAYEl4 25 November 2021 01 January 2025 1.974p 310
B jacklin SAYE1l4 25 November 2021 01 january 2025 1874p 310
R Alfonso SAYE14 25 November 2021 01 Jonuary 2025 1.974p 291
R Fairman SAYELS 25 November 2022 01 January 2026 1516p 380
B Jacklin SAYELS 25 November 2022 01 January 2026 1.515p 403
R Alfonso SAYELS 25 November 2022 01 Januory 2026 1.515p 403
Under the Company's Long-Term Incentive Plans (LTIF) the Directors have the following options ot the year end:
Market price on Earliest exercise date Number of
LTIP Date of gront dote of grant and vesting dote shares
R Fairman LTIP14 02 October 2020 1.219p 30 June 2023 41,030
B lacklin LTiP14 02 Qctober 2020 121%p 30 June 2023 24618
R Aifonso LTiIP14 02 October 2020 1.219p 30 june 2023 13,540
R Alfonso LTIP14(b} 04 January 2021 1,48%p 30 june 2023 6,733
R Fairman LTIP15 06 October 2021 2.407p 30 june 2024 21188
B Jocklin LTIP1S 06 October 2021 2,407p 30 June 2024 12,712
R Alfonso LTIP15 06 October 2021 2.407p 30 June 2024 11,009
R Fairman LTIF16 30 September 2022 1.690p 30 June 2025 30,773
B Jacklin LTIP16 30 September 2022 1.690p 30 june 2025 18464
R Alfonso LTIPlE 30 September 2022 1,690p 30 june 2025 15,820

The exercise price for oll shares awarded under LTIPs is 0.2p.

LTIP13 vested in the year: for further details of the above schemes see the Remuneration Committee Report on pages 83 10 93.

Key management compensation

Key menagement is considered to be those on the Executive Committee (being the Executive Directors and other senior

management) and the Non-Executive Directars. The employment costs of key management are as follows:

2023 2022

£m £m

Solaries and cther short-term employee benefits 38 35
Post-employment benefits 0.1 0.2
Share-based payments 0.6 11
4.5 48
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 June 2023

9. Tax expense
a} Analysis of tax expense recagnised in the income statement

2023 2022
Note Em £m
Current tax
Current tax on profits for the yenr 14.1 131
Adjustments in respect of previous years (2.3) —
Total current tax charge 118 131
Deferred tax
QOrigination ond reversal of temporary differences (0.2} {2.4)
Adjustments in respect of previous years 0.4 (0.4}
Total deferred tax charge/{credit) . 25 0.2 (2.8)
Total tax expense 12.0 103

b) Reconciliation of effective tax charge

UK corporation tox rate is calculated using the blended standard rate of tax for the year of 20.5% (2022 19.0%). Taxation for
other jurisdicticns is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions. The total taxation charge for the year differs

from the theoretical amount that would arise using the blended standard rate of UK corporation tax of 20.5% (2022: 19.09%)
as explained below:

2023 2022
£m £m
Profit before tax 5392 36.0
Effective tax chorge at 20.5% (2022; 19.0%) 111 68
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes ’ 13 12
Loss on disposal of non-qualifying assets — 23
Adjustments to deferred tax charge in respect of previous years 0.4 {0.4)
Adjustments to current tax charge in respect of previous years (2.3) —
Current year tax losses not recognisediutilisation of brought forward losses previously unrecognised 0.6 0.2
Effect of difference between closing deferred tax rate and current tax rate 0.8 02
Total tax expense 12.0 103

Factors affecting the current tox charge

UK corporation tox is calculated at 20.5% (2022: 19.0%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year. Tax for other jurisdictions

is calculated ot the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The effective tax rate on reported profits is 22,2% (2022; 28.6%) and hos decreased frem the prior year mainly due te the

non-recurring impact in the prior yeor of the impairment and subsequent disposal of an investment, which resulted in tax losses

of £13.4m.

_ Changes in tax rates
The UK corperation tax rate for the period up to 31 March 2023 'was 19.0% and increased to 25.0% from 1 April 2023
{2022: 19.0%).

Uncertain tax position
The Group recognises toxation based on estimates of whether taxes will be due. No material uncertain tax positions existed
at 30 June 2023 or 30 June 2022.
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10. Earnings per Ordinary share

a} Basic

2023 2022
Profit for the year (Em) 419 25.7
‘Weighted overage number of Ordinary shares in issue 71,272,880 70926977
Basic earnings per share (pence) 588 36.2

b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of Ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential Ordinary shares. The Compony has potentially dilutive Ordinary shares, being the contingently
issuable shares under the Group's LTIP schemes and SAYE schemes. For both share option schemes. a calculation is undertaken
to determine the number of shares that could hove been acquired at fair volue (determined as the averoge annual market share
price of the Company's shares) based on the monetary value of the subscription rights attached to outstanding share options.
The number of shares calculated as above is compared with the number of shares that would have been issued assuming the

exercise of the share options.

2023 2022
Profit for the year {£m) 419 25.7
Weighted aoverage number of Crdinary shares in issue 71,272,880 70926977
Adjustment for contingently issuable shares — LTIPs 173,688 248,506
Adjustment for contingently issuable shares - SAYE schemes 205,853 377.056
Weighted average number of Crdinary shares for diluted earnings per share 71,652,421 71552539
Diluted earnings per share {pence) 58.5 35.9
Alternative performance measure: adjusted earnings per share
2023 2022
Note £Em £m
Profit before tax 539 360
Adjustments for:
Amortisation of intangible assets 12 226 222
Costs relating to business combinations 4 6.6 49
Exceptional items 6 23 12.4
Adjusted profit before tax B85.4 755
Tax expense amended for the above adjustments {17.0) (14.6)
Adjusted profit after tax 68.4 €0.9
Weighted average number of Ordinary shares in issue 71,272,880 70926977
Weighted averoge number of Ordinary shares for difuted eornings per share 71,652,421 71552539
Pence Pence
Adjusted earnings per share 96.0 85.8
Diluted adjusted earnings per share 95.5 85.0
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 June 2023

11. Share-based payments
Long-Term incentive Plans
The Group operates incentive schemes for certain senior executives, the CVS Group Long-Term Incentive Plans {LTIP).

Under the LTIP schemes. awards ore made at an effective nil cost, vesting over a three-year performance period conditional upon the
Group’s adjusted earnings per share growth ond Totol Shorehclder Return (TSR). The LTIP scheme arrongements are o mixture of
equity settled and cash settled. Cash-settled LTIP schemes are linked to o number of shares, the value of which is settled in cash
UpOn exercise.

Details of the share options outstonding during the yeor under the LTIP schemes are as follows:

July 2022 scheme  July 2021 scheme  july 2020 scheme  July 2019 schame

(LTIP16/16(b)) {LTIP15/15(b)) (LTIP14/14{b} (LTIP13/13¢by)

Number of share Number of share Number of share Number of share

awords awards awards owards

QOutstanding at 1 July 2022 — 69,643 123819 128914
Granted during the year 125554 — —_ —
Lapsed during the year - — — —
Forfeited during the year (11,533} (7.259) {10,003) 9,930
Exercised during the year — — - (118,984)
Outstonding ot 30 june 2023 114,021 62.384 113,816 —
Exercisable at 3¢ June 2023 — — 113,818 —

Options are exercisoble at 0.2p per share, The weighted average exercise price was 0.2p at the beginning and end of the period.

The options outstanding at the year end under LTIP16, LTIP16(b), LTIP15, LTIP15(b}, LTIP14 and LTIP14{b) have a weighted average
remaining contractual life of two years, two years, one year, one year, nil years ond nil years, respectively.

The share-based payment charge for the year in respect of the options issued under the LTIP schemes amounted to £0.7m
(2022: £1.2m} ond has been charged to administrative expenses. Employer’s National Insurance contributions ond dividend
equivalent payments of £0.2m {2022: £0.2m) have been charged to administrative expenses in respect of the LTIP scheme
transactions and are treated as cash settled transactions,

Further details of the above schemes, to the extent that they relate to statutory directors. are included in the Remuneration
Committee Report on pages 83 to 93. Detcils of LTIP16(b) and LTIP1&{c) are shown below:

During the year, the Group issued 5,915 options under an equity-settled LTIP scheme, LTIP16(b), where the only vesting condition
is for an employee. who is not a Director, 1o remain employed until 30 September 2025,

During the year, the Group issued 5,215 options under a cash-settled LTIP scheme, LTIP16(c), which is linked to o number
of shares, the value of which is settled in cash upon exercise.

Save As You Earn (SAYE)
The Group cperates an incentive scheme for all UK employees, the CVS Group SAYE plan. an HM Revenue & Customs-approved
scheme. Details of the share options outstonding during the year under the SAYE schemes are os follows:

SAYE1S SAYE14 SAYE13 SAYE12 SAYE1l

Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of

shaore gwards share awords shaore awords share owords shore owards

Outstanding at 1 July 2022 — 201,530 310,191 222,227 35,463

- -Granted during the yeor 381,689 — _ - — —
Forfeited during the year (17.718) {27.998) (24315  (2.566) —_
Exercised during the yeart — — {1,.372) {209,684} {35,463)
Outstanding at 30 june 2023 363,971 173,532 284,504 9,977 —

— . Exercisable at 30 June 2023 — — —-— 9,977 —

1. The weighted averoge share price ot the date of exercise was £19.32.
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11. Share-based payments continued
Save As You Earn (SAYE) continued

Further information on the SAYE schemes is shown in the toble befow:

SAYELS SAYEL4 SAYE13 SAYELZ
Daote opened for subscription November 2022  November 2021 December 2020 December 2019
Date options granted Jonuary 2023 Jonuary 2022 Jonuary 2021 January 2020
Discount on closing rmid-market price 20% 20% 20% 10%
Exercise price £15.15 £19.74 £10.0% £8.63
Remaining contractual life 2 yeors 5 months 1 year 5 months 5 months nil

All of the SAYE schemes vest over a three-year period. There are no performance conditions attached to the SAYE scheme.,

The weighted average exercise price ot the beginning of the period for the options outstanding was £12.11 and end of the period

was £14.30.

The share-based payment charge for the year in respect of the options issued under the SAYE schemes omounted to £1.0m

(2022: £1.1m) and has been charged to administrative expenses.

Options for all schemes were valued using either the Monte Carlo or Black Scholes option pricing models. The fair value per option
granted in the year and the assumptions used in the calculation are as follows:

LTIP16 LTIP16{b) LTIP 16(c} SAYELS
Grant date 30 September 2022 30 September 2022 12 Cctober 2022 25 November 2022
Share price ot grant daote! £16.90 £16.90 £17.53 £19.79
Fair value per option £14.91 £17.13 £19.79 £8.21
Exercise price 0.2p 0.2p 0.2p £15.15
number of employees 38 1 1 1985
Shares under option at dote of grant 119.639 59156 5915 381.689
Vesting period/option lifefexpected life 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years
Weighted average remaining contractual life 2 years 2 years 2 years 2 years 5 months
Expected volatility? 36.1% — — 40.4%
Expected dividends expressed as
a dividend yield — —_ —_ 0.4%
Settlement Equity settled Equity settled Cash settled Equity settled

1. Shore price colculated ot average of closing shore price for preceding five days in line with scheme rules.
2. Expected volctility has been determined by reference to the historical shore return volotility of CVS Group plc.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

for the year ended 30 June 2023

12. Intangible assets

Trade Patient dota Computer

Goodwill nomes records softwaore Towaf
Group Note £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 July 2021 1139 15 2712 6.0 3926
Additions arising through business combinations 6.7 -_ 2.1 — 8.8
Other additions — — — 15 15
At 30 June 2022 1206 1.5 2733 7.5 402.9
Additions arising through business combinations 15 42.1 — 17.2 — 59.4
Fair value adjustments in respect of prior periods (0.2} _ 0.4 —_ 02
Other additions —_ — _ 3.4 3.4
Disposals —— —_ {1.5} — (1.5}
At 30 June 2023 162.5 15 2895 109 464.4
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 July 2021 — 1.5 158.1 46 164.2
Amortisation for the year —_ — 21.4 08 22.2
At 30 June 2022 — 15 179.5 5.4 186.4
Amortisation for the year — _ 219 0.7 226
Disposals — _ 0.7} — {0.7)
At 30 June 2023 — 15 200.7 6.1 208.3
Net book amount
At 30 June 2023 162.5 — 88.8 48 256.1
At 30 June 2022 1206 — 938 2.1 2165
At 1 july 2021 11398 — 113.1 14 2284

Amortisation is charged to administrative expenses in the income statement.

The patient data records and trade names were gequired as a component of business combinations. See note 15 for further

details of current year acquisitions.

intangible ossets thot are individuolly material to the financial statements are disclosed as follows:

Intangible category Description Corrying cmount Remaining life
Patient data records Slate Hall Veterinary Group £5.3m 5 years
Patient dota records YourVets £1.9m 2 years

The components of goodwill are disclosed occording to the group of CGUs to which they have been cllocated. Due to the

integroted nature of the Group, although each veterinary practice, laboratory and cremotorium is considered to be anindividual
CGU, the monitoring of goodwilt is performed on an aggregoted basis for groups of CGUs thot are no larger than the operating

__segments. as determined in accordance with IFRS 8.

The majority of other assets are tested at the CGU level, to the extent that an impairment review is triggered following identification
of an indicator of impairment by management. A small number of assets {typically patient data records acquired in a business
combination with multiple sites or locations) are shared between sub-groups of CGUs and are tested for impairment when there

are indicators of impairment at that level.

. Goodwill per operating segment

2023 2022

Em Em

Veterinary Practices 157.8 1159
Laboratories 2.1 21
Cremotorio 2.6 26
Total 1625 1206
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12. Intangible assets continued

Impairment tests

The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is derived from the Group's pre-tox weighted averoge cost of copital.
The risks relating to each of the CGUs are considered to be the some as o result of the Group's operations being entirely focused in the
veterinary market and, os such. the discount rate applied te each CGU is the same. The use of the Group’s weighted average cost of
capital is consistent with the valuation methodology used when determining the offer price for business combinations and, therefore,
is considered an appropriate discount rote. The Directors consider the growth rate to be broadly consistent between CGUs: o 7.0%
growth per onnum in adjusted EBITDA haos been assumed for years one to five with a long-term growth rate of 2.0% per annum

for the purposes of assessing net present value of future cash flows, with adjusted EBITDA, adjusted for an assumption of capital
expenditure, used as an approximation to cash flows given the insignificant impact of working capital adjustments. The budget for
the next financial yeor is used as o basis for the cash flow projections, The growth rate used in the impairment tests is bosed upon

a prudent assessment of market-specific growth assumptions. Further details of the impairment tests are disclosed in note 2.

Estimates are based on post experience and expectations of future changes to the market. Growth rate forecasts are extropolated
based on estimated long-term average growth rates for the markets in which the CGU operates (estimated at 7.0% for years one
to five and 2.0% long-term rate}. The pre-tax discount rate used to calculate valve in use is 12.1% at 30 June 2023 {(2022: 11.3%).

A sensitivity onalysis using reasonably possible changes in key assumptions has been performed. None of these changes result in the
value of goodwill aliocoted to the CGUSs being in excess of its recaverable amount and therefore ne sensitivity analysis is presented.

13. Property, plant and equipment

Fixtures,

Freehotd lond Leosehold fittings ond Motor

and buildings  improvements equipment vehicles Total
Group i Note £m £im £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 July 2021 12.3 37.1 62.0 5.0 123.4
Additions arising through business combinations _ _ 0.7 _ 0.7
Additions 32 88 90 20 230
Disposals - {Q.1) ©.2) (0.3) (0.6)
At 30 June 2022 225 458 715 6.7 146.5
Additions arising through business combinations 15 — — 22 — 22
Additions 20 219 165 19 423
Disposals — — C.4) [0.4) {0.8)
At 30 June 2023 245 67.7 898 8.2 190.2
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 july 2021 2.1 196 419 24 66.0
Depreciation for the year 0.4 29 6.9 11 112
Disposats —_ — 0.2) (0.3) {0.5)
At 30 June 2022 25 225 48.6 3.2 768
Depreciation for the year 0.4 32 7.4 16 126
Disposals —_ - (0.3) {0.4) {0.7}
At 30 June 2023 29 25.7 55.7 4.4 88.7
Net book amount
At 30 June 2023 216 42,0 341 38 1015
At 30 june 2022 200 233 229 35 897
At 1 July 2021 17.2 175 201 26 57.4

Freehold lond amounting to £1.7m (2022: £1.7m) hos not been deprecioted.

Included within the above classes of assets is £18.8m (2022: £5.5m) of assets which are under construction, of which £16.0m
was incurred in the year and £2.8m is carried forword from the previous year.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

for the year ended 30 June 2023

14. Leases
Group as d lessee

The maijority of the Group's veterinary practices, specialist referral centres and support offices ore leased, with remoining lecgse
terms of between one and 25 years, The Group also has a number of non-property lecses relating to vehicle, equipment and
material handling equipment, with remaining lease terms of between one ond four years. Additions to right-of-use assets include
new leases; extensions and amendments to existing lease agreements are disclosed as remeasurements.

Right-of-use assets

Motor

Property Equipment vehicles Total
Group Note £m £m Em £m
Cost
At 1 July 2021 120.8 1.7 29 1254
Acquired through business combinations 1.0 — — 1.0
Rerneosurement of leose term 11.7 — — 11.7
Additions 6.1 0.4 0.4 6.9
Disposals {1.7) — (1.0 2.7)
At 30 june 2622 and 1 july 2022 1379 2.1 2.3 1423
Acquired through business combinations 15 4.3 — —_ 4.3
Remeaosurement of lease term 55 — — 55
Additions 4.9 2.1 1.6 86
Disposals (3.0) — (0.7) (3.7)
At 30 june 2023 149.6 4.2 3.2 157.0
Accumuiated deprecittion
At 1 July 2021 25.7 0.7 18 28.2
Depreciation for the year 13.0 03 0.8 141
Disposols {0.7) — {1.09 1.7)
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 38,0 10 1.6 40.6
Depreciation for the year 137 0.8 0.7 15.2
Impairmernt 0.4 _ _— 0.4
Disposols (1.5) — {0.6) (2.1)
At 30 June 2023 50.6 _ 18 1.7 541
Net book amount
At 30 june 2023 99.0 2.4 1.5 1029
At 30 june 2022 99.9 11 0.7 101.7
At 1 July 2021 25.1 1.0 11 97.2

The impairment loss in the current year rejotes to Gilabbey Veterinary Hospital which was closed in the year. In line with |AS 36,
the carrying value of this right-of-use asset was ossessed for indicators of impairment and the closure wos considered to be an
indicator of impairment. The right-of-use gsset was written down to its expected recoverable value and impairment costs of

£0.4m were charged to exceptional items, No impairment loss was recegnised in the prior year.

Leose liabilities

-— - -— - - -2023 2022
Group £m £m
Current 133 9.4
Non-current 936 951
Total discounted lease linbilities 106.9 1045
Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted lease payments -
Less than one year 173 13.2
Between one ond five years 58.3 56.2
More than five years 51.7 56.6
Total undiscounted lease payments 1273 126.0

Total cash outflow for leoses is £18.4m [2022: £16,9m).

138 CVS Group plc Annual Report and Financiol Statements 2023



15. Business combinations
Details of business combinations in the year ended 30 june 2023 are set cut below. The reason for each acquisition was te expand
the CVS Group business through acquisitions oligned to our strategic goals.

Name of business combination Dote of ocquisition
Werrington Vets Limited 27 July 2022
Woodlands Veterinary Clinic Limited 16 September 2022
Market Crass Veterinary Clinic Limited 18 October 2022
Seadown Veterinary Services Lid 09 November 2022
The Harrogate Vet Limited 24 November 2022
AT Animal Care Limited 24 jonuary 2023
Macqueen Veterinary Practice {trode and assets) 26 Janucry 2023
Matt Smith Pet Care Limited 26 Jonuory 2023
East of England Veterinary Specialists Limited 28 February 2023
Brunswick Veterinary Practice (trade and assets) 31 March 2023
Top Vets Limited 25 May 2023

All businesses were acquired via 100% share purchase agreement unless indicated otherwise in the table above.

Given the nature of the veterinary practices acquired and the records maintained by such practices, it is not practicobte
to disclose the revenue or profit or loss of the combined entity for the year as though the acquisition dote for all business
combinations during the year had been ot the beginning of that year.

The toble below sumrnarises the totol assets acquired through business combinations in the year ended 30 June 2023:

Book volue of

aequired Fair value

assets adjustments Foir valug

Note £m £m £m

Property, plant and equipment 13 2.2 - 2.2
Patient data records 12 —_ 173 17.3
Right-of-use assets 14 4.3 —_ 4.3
Inventories 0.4 —_ 04
Deferred tax liability 25 (0.3) (4.4) {4.7)
Trode and other receivables . 36 —_— 36
Trade and other payables (2.8) — (2.8)
Loans {C.8) — {0.8)
Lease liabilities {4.3) — {4.3)
Total identifiable assets 2.3 129 15.2
Goodwill 12 42.1
Total consideration (net of cash acquired of £5.0m) 57.3
Initiol consideration paid {net of cosh acquired of £5.0m) 54.6
Deferred consideration paycble 1.2
Contingent consideration payable 15
Total consideration {net of cash acquired of £5.0m) 57.3

The total consideration of, net of the cash, acquired £57.3m is prior to the agreement of the completion accounts. The amounts
recognised are subject to adjustment in line with IFRS 3 for up to twelve months from acguisition, with goodwill being
adjusted accordingly.

Contingent consideration payable relates to o business combination mode in the year where consideration is payable over o
three-year period based on the practice reaching certain adjusted EBITDA targets. This is held at fair value and it is expected
that this will be payable.

CVS Group plc Annual Report and Finoncial Stotements 2023 139

woday si10392.10 L FupLaA0g 33nuodion uoday 216330ns

SJUAWIINS [DIIUDULY



Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 June 2023

15. Business combinations continued

Goodwill recognised represents the excess of purchase consideration over the fair value of the identifiable net assets. Goadwill
reflects the synergies arising from the combination of the businesses: this inciudes cost synergies arising from shored support

functions and buying power synergies. Gaodwill includes the recognition of an omount equal to the deferred tax that arises on

non-qualifying fixed assets acquired under a business combination.

Post-acquisition revenue end post-acquisition adjusted EBITDA were £10.7m and £2.4m respectively. The post-acquisition
period 1s from the date ot acquisition to 30 lune 2023. Post-acquisition EBITDA represents the direct operoting result of practices
from the dote of acquisition to 30 june 2023 prior to the allocation of central overheads, on the basis that it is not practicable

1o aliocate these.

Goodwill and intangible assets recognised in the year relating to business combinations are not expected to be deductible
for tax purposes.

Acquisition costs of £4.4m (2022: £4,.9m) are included within other expenses in note 6 of the financial statements.

The Directors do not consider any individual in-year acquisition to be material to the Group and therefore have not separately
disclosed these.

Business combinations in previous years
Details of business combinations in the comparative year are presented in the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2022, During the year £nil {2022: £0.4m) was paid to settle deferred consideration payable from the prior year,

Business combingtions subsequent to the year end
Details of business combinations made subsequent to the year end are set cut below. The reason for each acquisition wos to
expand the CVS Group business through acquisitians aligned to our strategic goals.

Name ¢f business combination 9% Shaore capital ocquired Dote of ocquisition  Country of incorporation
Vetright Pty (td* 75% 26 july 2023 Australic
McDowall Veterinary Hospital Pty. Ltd 100% 26 July 2023 . Australia
Brunker Road Veterinary Centre Pty Limitad 100% 17 August 2023 Australia
North Rood Veterinary Centre Trade and asset 23 August 2023 Australia
Cottle Dog Health Pty Ltd 100% 23 August 2023 Australia

The table below summarises the total assets acquired through business combinations subsequent to the year end:

Back value of

acquired Fair value

assets odjustments Fair volye

£m £m £m

Property, plant and equipment 0.5 — 05
Patient data records — 135 135
Right-of-use gssets 1.1 - 1.1
Inventories 0.2 - 0.2
Deferred tax liability — {4.1) {4.1)
Trade ond cther receivobles 0.3 — 0.3
Trode and other payables {0.8) — {0.8)
___loans . (0.2) —_ (0.2)
Lease liabilities T T T o (1.1) — (1.1)
Total identifiable (liabilities)/ossets — 9.4 9.4
Goodwill 150
Total consideration {net of cash acquired of £0.5m) 24.4
Initial consideration paid {net of cash acquired of £0.5-r-n—) ' 238
Deferred consideration payable 06
Total consideration (net of cash acquired of £0.5m) 24.4

* On 26 july 2023, the Group acquired a 75% interest in Vetright Ptd Lid (included on page 140} in Australia for initial cash consideration of £8.7m.
The identifiable net assets at acquisition were valued at £5.7m, of which 25% will be ottributed to Non-Controlfing interest (NCIj. NCl are measured ot
the proportienate share of the identifioble nat assets at the date of ocquisition. The acquisition comprised net assets (being principally patient dato records)
with a foir value of £5.1m, resulting in goodwili of £5.3m.
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15. Business combinations continued

Business combinations subsequent to the year end continued

The totol ¢consideration of £24.4m is prior to the agreement of the completion accounts. The amounts recognised are subject
to adjustment in line with IFRS 3 for up to twelve months from acquisition, with goodwill being adjusted accordingly.

Goodwill and intangible ossets recognised in the year reloting to business combinatiens are not expected to be deductible
for tax purposes.

In addition to the above, the Group has mode a further two acquisitions:

On 15 September 2023, the Group completed the purchase of 100.0% of the share capital of Bridge Veterinary Practice Limited,
a company registered in England and Wales, for initiol cosh consideration of £3.5m. This is g business comprising one companion
animal veterinary practice site in the UK. Assets acquired comprised principally goodwill and intangible patient data records with
a provisional fair vatue of £3.7m.

On 18 September 2023, the Group completed the purchase of 100.0% of the share capitol of Masefield Veterinary Services Ltd,
o company registered in England and Wales, for initiol cash consideration of £3.1m, This is a business comprising one companion
anima! veterinary practice site in the UK. Assets acquired comprised principally goodwill and intangible patient data records with
¢ provisional fair value of £3.0m. .

16. Investments
a) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale finoncial assets, which ore densminated in Sterling, consisted of on investment in managed investment funds.

The Group no longer holds an investment in managed investments funds (2022: £0.1m). During the year. the Group disposed
of its investment. which had a quoted market price in on active market ond was accordingly measured at fair value. Gains and
lesses arising from changes in the fair value were recognised directly in equity.

b) Shares in subsidiary undertakings

Company Note £m
Cost and net book amount

At 1 Juty 2021 716
Opticns granted to employees of subsidiary undertakings 11 23
At 30 June 2022 739
Options granted to employees of subsidiory undertakings 11 1.7
At 30 June 2023 75.6
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

for the year ended 30 June 2023

16. Investments continued
b} Shares in subsidiary undertakings continued

The principal subsidiary undertakings of CVS Group plc are set out below:

Name of subsidiary

Principal business

Country of incorporation

Albavet Limited

Anhned Direct Limited

Axiom Veterinary Loboratories Limited

B&w Equine Group Limited

CVS [Australia) Holdings Proprietary Limited
CVS Vets (Australia) Proprietary Limited

CVS (Ireland) Veterinary Services Limited

CVS (Ireland) Veterinary Services No.2 Limited
CVS (Netherlands) 8 V.

CVS (UK) Limited

Dierenziekenhuis Drachten BV.
Diergeneeskundig Centrum Noord Nederland B.V.
East of England Veterinary Specialists Limited
Endell Veterinary Group Limited

Greenacres Pet Crematorium Limited
Highcroft Pet Care Limited

Kliniek voor Gezelschapsdieren Dieren B.V.

Mi Vet Club Lirnited

Okeford Veterinary Centre Limited

Pet Doctors Limited

Pet Emergency Treatment Services Limited
Pet Vaccination Clinic Limited

Precision Histology International Limited
Rossendale Pet Crematorium Limited
Ruddington and East Leake Veterinary Centre Limited
Severn Edge Equine Limited

Severn Edge Farm Limited

Severn Edge Veterinary Group Limited
Silvermere Haven Limited

Silverton Veterinary Practice Limited
Sustainable Developments (SW) Limited

The Harrogate Vet Limited

The Pet Crematorium Limited

Valley Pet Crematorium Limited

Vet Direct Services Limited

Werrington Vets Limited

. Whitley Brook Crematorium for Pets Limited

Woodlands Veterinary Clinic Limited

Veterinary services and buying club
Online dispensary

Veterinary diognostic services
Veterinary services

Holding company

Veteringry services

Holding company

Veterinary services

Holding company

Veterinory ond diognostic services
Veterinary services

Veterinary services

Veterinary services

Veteringry services

Animal cremation

Veterinary services

Veterinary services

Veterinary goods ond services buying club
Veterinary services

Veterinary services

Veterinary services

Veterinory services

Veterinary diagnostic services
Animal cremation and provision of burial grounds
Veterinary services

Veterinory services

Veterinary services

Veterinary services

Animal cremation and provision of burial grounds
Veterinary services

Property development

Veterinary services

Animal cremation

Animnal cremotion

Veterinary instrumentation supply
Veterinary services

Animal cremation

Veterinory services

Scotland

Englend and Wales
England and Wales
Engtend and Wales
Australia

Australia

Republic of ireland
Repubilic of Ireland
The Netherlands
Englond ond Woles
The Netherlonds
The Netherlands
Engfand and Wales
Englond and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
The Netherlands
Englond ond Woles
Englond and Wales
England ond Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
Englond and Wales
England and Woles
Englond ond Wales
Englond ond Woles
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England ond Wales
England ond Wales
England and Wales
Englond ond Wales
England and Wales
England ond Wales
England ond Wales
England and Waoles
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16. Investments continued
b) Shares in subsidiary undertakings continued

The dormant subsidiary undertakings included within the consolidation are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

Country of incorparation

Animal Health Centre Limited

Anton Vets Ltd

Ambivet Ltd

Astonlee Limited

AT Animal Care Limited

Charter Veterinary Hospital Group Limited
Cinder Hill Equine Clinic Limited

Corner House Equine Clinic Limited
Cromlynvets Limited

Darboe ond Baily Limited

Enterprise Veterinary Services Limited
Greendale Veterinary Diagnostics Limited
Greensands Veterinary Clinic Limited
Gurka Animol Core Limited

Insight Laboratory Services Limited
Keown O'Neill Limited

Market Cross Veterinary Clinic Limited
Matt Smith Pet Care Limited

Newlands Veterinary Group Limited
OCVC Limited

Pet Vaccination UK Limited

Pets Molding Limited

Pharmsure UK Limited

Palmont Veterinary Clinic Limited
Seadown Veterinary Services LTD
Severn Edge Holdings Limited

Slate Hall Veterinary Practice Limited
Slate Hall Veterinary Services Limited
Superstar Pets Limited

Top Vets Limited

Total Veterinary Services Limited

Vet Direct Holdings Limited

Veterinary Enterprises & Trading Limited
Weighbridge Referrol Service Limited
Western Counties Equine Hospital Limited
White Lodge Veterinary Centre Ltd
Wyatt Poultry Veterinory Services Limited
Your Vets (Holdings) Limited

England and Wales
England and Wales
England ond Wales
England and Waoles
England and Wales
England ond Wales
England ond Wales
England ond Wales
Northern Ireland
England and Wales
England and Wales
Engtand and Wales
England and Wales
Englond and Wales
England and Wales
Northern lrefand
Scotlond

England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England ond Waoles
England and Waoles
England and Wales
Scotland

England and Wales
England and Wales
Englond and Wales
Engiand and Wales
England and Wales
Scotland

England and Wales
Englond and Wales
England and Wales
England and Waoles
England and Wales
England and Waoles
Englaond ond Wales
Englond and Wales

CVS Group plc owns 1009 of the Ordinary share capital of CVS (UK} Limited, the remaining subsidiaries above are indirectly held

by CVS Group plc.

100% of the Ordinary share capital is owned for all equity shareholdings and therefore all are wholly owned.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 June 2023

16. Investments continued

b) Shares in subsidiary undertakings continued

The registered office for all United Kingdom registered subsidiary undertakings is CVS House, Owen Road, Diss, Norfolk IP22 4ER,
with the exception of the following companies:

Nome of subsidiary Registered office address

Albavet Limited 74 Niral Street, Kirkcoldy. Fife )Yl INY

Axiom Veterinary Laboratories Limited The Manor House, Brunel Road, Newton Abbot, Devon TQ12 4PB
Cromlynvets Limited 50 Old Coach Road. Hillsborough, County Down BT26 6P8

Keown O'Neill Limited 11 Church Street. Ballygowley, Co. Tyrone BT70 2HA

tarket Cross Veterinary Clinic Limited ~ 18 Edinburgh Road. Dalkeith, Midlothian EH22 1)Z

Polmont Veterinary Clinic Limited Boness Road, Polmant, Falkirk FK2 OXZ

Precision Histology International Limited The School House, One Eyed Lane, Weybread, Diss, Norfolk 1IP21 57T

Top Vets Limited Riverside Vet Practise Howden South Lodge, Howden, Livingston EH54 6AD

The registered office for all Netherlonds registered subsidiary undertakings is Postbus 176, 8300 AD Emmeloord. The registered
office for all Republic of Irelond registered subsidiary undertakings is KPMG, Dockgate, Dock Road, Galwoy H91 VERR. The
registered office for all Australian subsidiary undertakings is BDO Offices —- BDO Services Pty Ltd. Level 10. 12 Creek Street,
Brisbane Queensland 4000.

17. Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are used for hedging in the management of exposure to market risks, This enables the optimisation of the overoll
cost of accessing debt capital markets, and the mitigation of the market risk which would otherwise arise from movements in
interest rates.

The ineffective element of cash flow hedges in 2023 was immoterial (2022: immateriol).

Cash flow hedges
On 28 Fetruary 2020, the Group entered into an interest rate swop arrangement limiting the Group's exposure to interest rate
increases. The arrangement exposed the Group to Sterling LIBOR within o cash flow hedge accounting retationship.

Following the proposed and subsequent discontinuance of Sterling LIBOR, the Group has adopted both Phase 1 and Phase 2 of
Interest Rate Benchmark Referm (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7). The Group debt was transitioned per agreement
entered on 31 December 2021. On 31 December 2021, the Group transitioned its interest rate swaps. The revised arrangements
aomended exposures from Sterling LIBOR to the Sterling Overnight index Average Rate {SONIA), plus o credit adjustment spread.

The Group has applied the practical expedient published by the IASB, allowing the Group to account for g change in the
contractual cash flows of the debt required by the Interest Rote Benchmark Reform by updating the effective interest rote and
applying ony changes prospectively.

The Group has also applied the proctical expedient to continue hedge occounting where chonges to the hedging arrongement
arise as o direct result of changes required by the reform. Therefere, the amount accumulated in the cash flow hedge reserve
is deemed to be based on the alternative benchmark rote and does not require reclassification into retained earnings.

The expedients can be applied by the Group because the transitioning of interest rate swaps and debt was necessary as o direct
consequent of IBOR reform, and the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the
previous baosis.

At 30 June 2023, £70.0m of debt was hedged {2022: £70.0m); the remainder of the debt was unhedged ct the year end.
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17. Derivative financial instruments continued

Cash flow hedges continued

Below are details of the hedging instruments and hedged items in scope of the IFRS 9 omendments due to interest rate
benchmark reform. The terms of the hedged items listed match those of the corresponding hedging instruments.

Hedge type Instrument type Maturing in Nominal Hedged item

Cash flow hedge Receive SONIA+ credit 2024 £70.0m Sterling fixed rate issued
odjustment spread, pay debt of the some maturity
Sterling fixed interest and nominal of the swap
rate swaps

The Group clossifies its interest rate swap arrangement as o cash flow hedge and utilises hedge accounting to minimise income
statement volatility in relation to movements in the volue of the swap arrangement.

The fair values of the Group’s interest rate derivatives are established using voluation technigues, primarity discounted cash
flows, bosed on assumptions that are supported by observable market prices or rates (level 1}.

The foir values of derivative financial instruments have been disclosed in the Group consolidoted statement of financial position
as follows;

2023 2022

Current Non-current
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Group £m £m £m £m
Interest rate swap arrangements - cash flow hedges 2.1 — 2.3 —

Movements in fair values

Interest
rate swap
orangements
Group £m
Fair value at 1 july 2021 (0.4)
Fair value loss through reserves — hedged 2.7
At 30 june 2022 23
Fair value gain through reserves — hedged {G.2)
At 30 June 2023 21

The cosh flow hedge reserve represents the cumulotive amount of gains and losses on hedging instruments deemed effective in
cash flow hedges. The cumulative deferred gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in the income statement only
when the hedged transaction impacts the profit or loss, or is included directly in the initioi cost or other carrying omount of the
hedged non-financial items.

The cost of hedging reserve includes the effects of the changes in fair volue of the time value of option when only the intrinsic
value of the option is designated as the hedging instrument.

The changes in fair value of the time value of an option in retation to o transaction-reloted hedged item accumuloted in the cost
of hedging reserve are reciassified to the income statement only when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss. or included
os o basis odjustment to the non-financial hedged item. The changes in fair value of the time value of an option in relation to

a time-period related hedged item accumulated in the cash flow hedging reserve are amortised to the income statement on

a rational basis over the term of the hedging relationship.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements contmued

for the year ended 30 June 2023

18, Financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities

2023 2022
FVTPL FVTPL
~ derivatives — derivatives
designated in FVTPL designated in FVTPL
hedge  ~ l.ul’!llﬂgl!ll! FVY WK - Amortised hedge - contingent FVTOCI~  Amortised
relatic ips « tion desig cost Total relgtionships consideration  designated cost Total
Group Note £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Investments 16 — — — — — — — 0.1 — a1
Trade ond
other
receivables! 20 — _ —_ 47.1 47.1 — — — 421 421
Cash and cash
equivalents 21 — —_ — 215 215 — — — 49.0 490
Derivative
financial
instruments 17 2.1 — — — 2.3 2.3 - — — 23
Borrowings 24 - —_ -_ (92.2) {92.2) —_ _— — (84.3) {84.3}
Trade and
other payables? 22 — {3.5) —_ (63.6) (67.1) — — — {68.2) (68.2)
Lease liobilities 14 _ — — {106.9) ([106.9) - —_ _ {104.5) {104.5)
21 {3.5) —  {194.1) (195.5) 23 - 01 {165.9) {163.5)
1. Trade and other receivables exchudes prepayments.
2. Trade and other payables excludes deferred income, sacial security ond other taxes.
2023 2022
Company Note £m £m
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 33 75.2 794

Amounts owed by Group undertakings ore unsecured and interest-free and have no fixed date of repayment. Amounts owed
by Group undertokings are measured at amortised cost.

19. inventories

All inventories ore finished goods held for resale. The Directors do not consider the difference between the purchase price
of inventories and their replacement cost to be material.

20. Trade and other receivables

Group

Group

Campany

Company

2023 2022 2023 2022
£m £m £m £m

Trade receivables:
Within their due period 17.3 17.1 — —

Past due:

Nat impaired 1186 10.8 — —
Fully impaired 35 “397 — —
Total trade receivables 324 318 _— —
Less: provision for impairment of receivables (3.5) (3.9 — —
Trade receivables — net 289 279 — —
Other receivables 7.3 &§.4 —_ .
Prepayments 110 10.6 _ —
Accrued income 1049 8.8 — —
Total trade and other receivables 58.1 52.7 — —
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20. Trode and other receivables continued

Group

The carrying omount of trade and other receivables is deemed to be a reasonable approximation to fair value. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivable abave with the exception of prepayments
which hold no credit risk. The Group does not hold any colloteral as security. The Group's trade and other receivables are
denominated in Sterling.

A provision for expected credit losses has been recognised at the reporting date through consideration of the ageing profile of the
Group’s trade receivables and the perceived credit quality of its customers reflecting net debt due. The carrying amount of trade
receivables, net of expected credit losses, is considered to be an approximation to its fair value. The amount of the expected
losses was £3.5m (2022: £3.9m). The Group has not disclosed the expected loss rate as this varies by type of customer.
Aggregate movements on the Group's expected losses of trade receivables are as follows:

2023 2022

£m fm

At the beginning of the year 38 6.4
Charged/(credited) to the income statement within administrative expenses 1.0 (1.4}
Utilisotion of the provision during the year (1.4) {1.1)
At the end of the year 35 39

Other receivables do not contain impaired assets.

At 30 june 2023, there is o contract asset recorded as occrued income of £10.9m {2022: £8.8m), relating to customer membership
schemes including the Healthy Pet Club {HPC) contract. The contract asset arises from customers having received consultations
and treatments which are weighted towards the beginning of the twelve-month scheme, in advence of cosh poyments, as detailed
more futly in note 2. Due to the noture of the scheme, the accrued income amount brought forward has been fully utilised in the year.
21. Cash and cash equivalents
Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
£m £m £m £m
Cash 215 40.0 — —
Cash equivalents —_ 9.0 — —_—
Total cash and cash equivalents 215 49.0 — —

Cash equivalents relate to funds held in an escrow account, which are available to the Group on demand.

22, Trade and other payables

Group Company

2023 2022 2023 2022
£m £m £m £m

Current
Trade payobles 415 40.4 —_ —
Social security ond other toxes 218 18.4 — _
Other payables 5.8 6.0 — —
Deferred income! 2.2 22 — —
Accruals 198 19.6 —_ —
Total trade and other payables : 911 B86.6 — —

1. Deferrad income relotes to the contract liobility reloting to the Healthy Pet Club (HPC) contract.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 June 2023

23. Provisions

2023 2022

£m Em

At the beginning of the year 21 39
Charged to the income statement within administration expenses - 03 12
Utllised in the period {1.7) (3.0}
At the end of the year 0.7 21

Provisions relate to costs set aside for properties including site closures and other property maintenance obligations. Itis
anticipated these will be utilised in the next twelve months.

24. Borrowings
Borrowings comprise bank loans and are denominated in Sterling. The repayment profile is as follows:

2023 2022
Group £m £m
Within one year or on demaond — —
Between one and two years — 84.3
After more than two years 92.2 —
92.2 843

The batances above are shown net of issue costs of £3.3m {2022: £0.7m), which are being amertised over the term of the bank
loan. The carrying ameount of borrowings is deemed to be a reasonable approximation to fair value.

The Group has total facilities of £350.0m to 21 February 2027, provided by a syndicate of eight banks: AIB. Barclays. Danske,
HSBC. JP Morgon, Lloyds, NotWest and Virgin Money. The focility comprises the following elements:

> @ fixed term loan of £87.5m, repayable on 21 February 2027 via a single bullet repayment;
> g four-year Revolving Credit Facility of £262.%m, available to 21 February 2027; and
> we retain our £5.0m overdraft facility, renewable annually.

The two financial covenants associated with these focilities are based on the ratios of bank-test net debt to bank-test EBITDA
and bank-test EBITDA to interest. The bank-test net debt to bonk-test EBITDA ratio must not exceed 3.25x. The bonk-test
EBITDA to interest ratic must not be less than 4.5x. The facilities require ¢ross guarantees from the maost significant of CVS
Greup's trading subsidiaries but cre not secured on the assets of the Group.

Bank-test EBITDA is based on the lost twelve months' adjusted EBITDA performaonce annualised for the effect of acquisitions
deducting costs relating to business combinations and adding back share option expense, prior to the impact of IFRS 16,

Bank covenants are tested quarterly and the Group has considerable headroom in both financial covenants and in its undrawn
but committed facilities as at 30 June 2023. Mare information can be found in note 3.

Interest rote risk is olso managed centrally ond derivative instruments are used to mitigate this risk. On 28 February 2020, the
Group entered into a four-year interest rote fixed swap arrongement to hedge fluctuations in interest rates on £70.0m of its
term lgan.

At the year end £70.0m of the term loan was hedged using on interest rate swap. The remainder of the debt is not hedged.
- Further information on the cosh flow hedge can be found in note 17.

Undrawn committed borrowing facilities
At 30 June 2023, the Group has ¢ committed overdraft focuny of £5.0m (2022: £5.0m) and an RCF of £262.5m {2022: £85.0m).
The overdraft was undrawn ot 30 June 2023 (2022 undrawn) and the RCF was £8.0m drawn (2022: fully undrawn).
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25. Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the Group has a legally enforceable right to do so. Deferred tax bolances are
calculated using tax rates expected to apply in the period when the liability or asset is expected to be realised based on rates
enacted or substontively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets comprised:

023 2022

Group £m £m
Tox effect of temporary differences:

Share-based payments 15 15

Tox losses 0.2 a.z2

Other 0.2 0.1

19 18

The Group's deferred tax assets hove been recognised based on histarical performance and future budgets. The recoverability
of deferred tax assets is supported by the expected level of future profits. The Group believes that it is probaoble that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which the deferred tox assets will reverse.

Deferred tax liabilities comprise the excess of carrying value over the tax base.

2023 2022

Group £m £m
Tax effect of temporary differences:

Excess of qualifying amortisation and intangible fixed assets acquired vic a business combination 20.8 20.4

Derivative financial instruments 0.6 06

Caopital allowonces in excess of depreciation 53 08

26.7 218

The movement in the net deferred tax assets and liabilities is explained as follows:

Acquisition of

Credited/ Charged to Chargedto  subsidiory and

{charged) other statement of deferred tax
At 1 july o income  comprehensive chongesin  recognised in At 30 June
2022 statement income equity goodwill 2023
Group £m £m £m £ £m £m
Shere-based payments 1.5 (0.1) — 0.1 — 15
Derivative financial instruments (0.6) — _ —_ — {0.6)
Other temporary differences 0.1 01 — — — 0.2
Property, plant ond equipment (0.8) (4.2} — — 0.3 (5.3)
Tax losses 0.2 —_ — — — 0.2

Intangible fixed assets acquired

via a business combination (20.4) 4.0 — —_ (4.4) {20.8)
(20.0) (0.2} — 0.1 (4.7) {24.8)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

for the year ended 30 June 2023

25. Deferred tax continued

Credited/ Acquisition of
Credited/ {tharged) Credited to  subsidiary ond
{charged) 1o other statement of deferred tax
At 1 july toincome comprehensive changesin recognised in At 30 June
2021 stotement income equity goodwill 2022
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Share-based puyments 28 Q.2 — (1.3) — 15
Derivative finoncial instruments 01 — 0.7} —_— o (0.6)
Other temporary differences 0.1 — — — — 0.1
Property, plant and equipment 0.2 {0.9) — — {0.1) {0.8)
Tax losses G.1 0.1 — — —_ 0.2
Intangible assets and fixed ossets acquired
viq o business combination {23.5) 3.4 — — (0.3) (20.4}
(20.4) 2.8 (0.7} {1.3) 0.4 {20.0

The deferred tox balance is non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset where they relate to the same taxation autharity, the Group had a legally
enforceable right to offset and the Graup intends to settle the liability and realise the asset simultaneousily.

The recoverability of deferred tax assets is supported by the expected level of future profits. The Group believes that it is probable

that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which the deferred tax assets will reverse.

The Group has corried forward unutilised tax losses of £22.7m {2022: £20.6m) of which £0.7m expires on 30 june 2026, £1.5m
expires on 30 june 2027, £2.0m expires on 30 June 2028 with the remaoining losses ovailoble indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of Group companies within the tax jurisdiction in which the losses arose. A deferred tax osset has been
recognised of £0.2m (2022: £0.2m) in respect of some of these losses s it is probabfe that sufficient future taxabfe profits will
arise against which the asset will reverse. This deferred tax asset hos been offset against the deferred tax liability in respect of
intangible assets. The Group has not recognised a deferred tax asset on remaining losses of £22.5m (2022 £18.9m) as itis not
proboble that sufficient future toxoble profits will arise against which the losses con be utilised.

No deferred tax is recognised on the unremitted earnings of overseas subsidiaries. The earnings are continually reinvested by the
Group and there is no intention for these entities to pay dividends; no tax is expected to be payable on them in the foreseeable future.

26. Share capital

2023 2022
Company £m £m
Issued and fully poid

71,423902 (2022: 71,120.037) Ordinary shares of 0.2p each 0.1 0.1
During the year, shares were issued for o total consideration of £1.6m (2022: £2.3m) as follows:

2023 2022

shares shares

LTIP12 — 97,491

LTIP13 118,984 —

SAYELC 27 15810

SAYE1l 34,382 249,108

SAYE12 149,100 2,798

SAYE13 1,372 1,047

Total 303,865 366,255

Detuils of shares under option are provided in note 11 to the financial statements.

The authorised share capital of the Compaony is 352,000,000 Crdinary shares of 0.2p each.
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26. Share capital continued
Dividends

The Directors have proposed a final dividend of 7.5p (2022: 7.0p) per share, giving a total of £5.4m {2022: £5.0m). During the year

the 2022 final dividend totolling £5.0m was paid (2022: £4.6m).

EBT own shares

The Group operates an EBT which holds 384 shares (2022: 64 shares).

In the year ended 30 fune 2017, the Group established an Emplayee Benefit Trust (EBT) for the purposes of satisfying the exercise
of certain share options vesting under the Group's LTIP and SAYE schemes. The Group has accounted for the purchase of the
shares held by the EBT as Treasury shares ond has deducted these from reserves.

Curing the year, the EBT bought 60.944 shares at open market value for £1,2m {2022 no shares).

During the year, the EBT did not sell shares {2022: nil shares) to satisfy shares vesting under LTIP schemes. The EBT sold
60,584 shares {2022: 646 shares) to sotisfy shares vesting under SAYE schemes for proceeds of £0.5m (2022: less than £0.1m).

27. Share premium

The share premium reserve comprises the premium received over the nominal value of shares issued.

28. Analysis of movement in liabilities from financing activities

At L luly Ligbilities an Non-cash AL 30 June

2022 Cosh flow New leases disposed lzases moverment 2023

Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Lease liobilities (104.5) 184 {18.4) 19 (4.3) {106.9)
Bank loans {84.3) (2.7) —_ —_ 1.8 {92.2)
Total ligbilities from finoncing activities {188.8) 87 (18.4) 1.9 (2.5) (199.1)
At 1 July Liabilities on Non-cash At 30 June

2021 Cash flow New lecses disposed leoses movement 2022

Group £m £m £m Em £m £m
Lease ligbilities (98.8) 16.9 {19.6} 1.3 (4.3] {104.5)
Bank loans {83.9) 0.1 -_ — {0.5) (84.3)
Totai liabilities from financing activities (182.7) 17.0 {19.6) 13 (4.8) (188.8)

Non-cash movements on right-of-use assets mainly comprise interest on right-of-use lease liabiiities. Non-cash movements
on borrowings ond bonk loans mainly include amortisation of issue costs on bonk loans and bank debt ccquired.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 June 2023

29, Cash flow generated from operations

Group Company

2023 2022 2023 2022

£m Em £m £m

Profit/(loss) for the year 419 257 {0.8} 0.6)
Trx expense 120 103 — —
Finonce expense 8.4 68 — —
Amortisation of intangible aossets 226 222 — —
Depreciation of property, plant ond eguipment 126 11.3 —_ —
Depreciation and impairment of right-of-use assets 15.2 14.1 — —
Profit on sale of property, plant ond equipment and right-of-use ossets {0.2) {0.3) — —
Incregse in inventories (1.8) 6.6} — —
{Increase)/decranse in trade and other receivobles (4.€) {3.2) 4.2 29
Decrease in trade and other payables {0.8) 0.1) — —
Cecrease in provisions (1.4) (1.8) —_ —_
Share option expense 1.7 23 —_ —_
Exceptional items 23 12.4 — —_
Total net cash flow generated from operations 107.9 931 34 23

30. Guarantees and other financial commitments
Capital commitments
The Group had no capital commitments as at 30 June 2023 (2022: £nil).

Bank guarantees

The Company is @ member of the Group's banking arrangement, under which it is party to unlimited cross-guarantees in respect
of the banking facilities of other Group undertokings, amounting to £355.0m ot 30 june 2023 (2022. £175.0m) The Directors do
not expect any material loss to the Company to arise in respect of the guarantees. .

Contingent liabilities
A {etter of support has been provided to.certain subsidiaries indicating the intention of the Company to support them, if required,
for a period of a minimum of twelve months from the dote of signing their financial statements.
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30. Guarantees and other financial commitments continued

Exemption from audit by parent company guarantee

The following wholly owned subsidiories of the Company ure covered by o guarantee provided by CVS Group pic and are
consequently entitled to an exemption under Section 473A from the requirement of the Act relating to the oudit of individual
accounts. Under this guarantee, the Group will guarantee all outstanding liabilities of these entities. The Group has deemed it
not proctical to quantify the possible outflow and no liability is expected to arise under the guorantee. The entities covered by
this guarantee are disclosed below.

Nome of subsidiary Company number
Albavet Limited $C275059
Animed Direct Limited 07007357
AT Anirmal Care Limited 09311923
Axiorn Veterinary Laboratories Limited 02526935

B & W Equine Group Limited 06777468
East of England Veterinary Specialists Limited 10722594
Endell Veterinary Group Limited 08078308
Greenacres Pet Crematorium Lirnited 07877237
Greendale Veterinary Diagnestics Limited 05138112
Highcroft Pet Core Limited 07238070
Matt Smith Pet Care Limited 11212628
Mi Vet Club Limited 08365201
Okeford Veterinory Centre Limited 05984705
Pet Doctors Limited 03769799
Pet Vaccination UK Limited 05391973
Pet Vaccination Clinic Limited 03252801
Pets Holding Limited 11161672
Pet Emergency Treatment Services Limited 03586933
Precision Histology International Limited 02161963
Rossendale Pet Crematorium Limited 01409643
Ruddington and East Leake Veterinary Centre Limited 04551334
Seadown Veterinary Services Ltd 05377692
Severn Edge Eguine Limited 09524486
Severn Edge Farm Limited 09521408
Severn Edge Holdings Limited 09522086
Severn Edge Veterinary Group Limited 09523786
Silvermere Haven Limited 02187947
Silverton Veterinary Proctice Limited 08101117
Sustainable Developments (SW) Limited 05174372
The Harrogate Vet Limited 11333183
The Pet Crematorivm Limited 03442460
Volley Pet Crematorium Limited 04961306
Vet Direct Services Limited 05167635
Vet Direct Holdings Limited 06746630
Veterinary Enterprises & Trading Ltd 03495054
Werrington Vets Limited 11201583
Whitley Brook Crematorium for Pets Limited 04734723
Woodlands Veterinary Clinic Limited 11201683
Your Vets (Holdings) Limited 07071834
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 June 2023

31. Pension schemes

The Group contributes to certain employees’ personal pension schemes in accordance with their service contracts. The omounts
are charged to the income statement as they fall due. The amounts charged during the year amounted to £6.7m (2022: £5.9m}.
The amount outstanding ot the year end included in trode and other payables was £1.3m (2022: £1.1m}.

32. Events after the reporting period

Since the 30 June 2023, the Group has entered the Australian veterinary services market and completed five acquisitions
comprising ot tive practice sites for initial cash consideration of £23.8m {Australion $46.8m). detailed below. This is aligned
with the Group's strategic goals.

9% Share Copital
Nome of business combination ocquired Dote of ocquisition Country of incorporotion
Vetright Pty Ltd 75% 26 July 2023 Australia
McCowall Veterinary Hospital Pty. Ltd 100% 26 July 2023 Australia
Brunker Road Veterinary Centre Pty Limited 100% 17 August 2023 Australia
North Road Veterinary Centre Trade and osset 23 August 2023 Australia
Cattle Dog Health Pty Ltd 100% 23 August 2023 Australia

In addition to the above. the Group completed the following two acquisitions of two practice sites in the UK.

On 15 September 2023, the Group completed the purchase of 100.0% of the share capital of Bridge Veterinary Practice Limited,
a compony registered in Englond and Wales, for initial cash consideration of £3.5m. This is a business comprising one companion
animal veterinary practice site in the UK, aligned with the Group's strategic goals.

On 18 September 2023, the Group completed the purchase of 100.0% of the share copital of Masefield Veterinary Services Ltd,
a company registered in Englend ond Wales, for initiol cash consideration of £3.1m. This is a business comprising one companion
animaol veterinary practice site in the UK, aligned with the Group's strategic goals.

Further information on these business combinations can be found in note 15.

In addition the Group has exchonged contracts in respect of the acquisition of an additional small animai first opinion veterinary
practice in the UK, with completion expected by the end of September 2023. Consideration for this pending acquisition is £2.5m.

On 7 September 2023, the CMA announced o Market Review of the Veterinary sector for household pets in the UK. The review is
carried out under the CMA's general review function which allows it to obtain, compile and keep under review information relating
to the CMA's functions. The Market Review is voluntary ond we will work closely with the CMA in support. The CMA have stated
they will provide o further update in early 2024.

33. Related party transactions
Directors' ond key management’s compensation is disclosed in note 8.

Company
During the year the Company had the following transactions with CVS (UK) Limited:

2023 2022

£m £m

Recharge of expenses incurred by CVS (UK Limited on behalf of the Company (0.8) 0.6}

Cash advanced to fund payment of dividend {5.0) (4.6)
The following balances were owed by related companies:

2023 2022

Receivable Payable Receivable Payable

£m Em £m £m

CVS {UK) Limited 75.2 — 79.4 —

Amounts owed by CVS (UK} Limited are unsecured and interest free and have no fixed date of repayment.
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33. Related party transactions continued
Transactions with Directors and key management

On 24 Novemnber 2022, the Group completed the purchase of 100.0% of the share capital of The Harrogate Vet Limited, a company
registered in England and Wales, for total consideration of £2.5m, plus deferred considerotion of £0.1m and contingent consideration

of £1.5m. This is a business comprising ene animal veterinary practice site in the UK. Prior to acquisition, the company was portially

owned by the spouse of one of the Executive Directors of the Group. ond as such the acquisition is considered o related party
transaction. The terms of the acquisition, including consideration paid. were on an arm’s length basis ond consistent with

acquisiticns of other unrelated entities.

Consideration of £1.6m remains payable to the related party, of which £1.5m is contingent on fixed EBITDA targets within
the proctice acquired. The related party remained in part-time employment within the Group and received a salary in 2023

of £8,400 which is on an arm’s length basis.

The following dividends were paid to the Directors of the Group:

2023 2022
. £ £
R Connell 11,830 10,693
R Gray 420 325
D Kemp 561 426
D wilton 455 -
R Fairman 1,381 1,158
B Jacklin 467 306
Spaouse R Fairman 848 709
Spouse R Alfonso 243 130
Spouse B Jacklin B& -

Uhimate controlling party
The Directors consider there is no ultimate controlling party.
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Five-year history — unaudited
for the year ended 30 June 2023

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
£m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 608.3 5542 510.1 427.8 406.5
Gross profit 262.3 239.1 2219 1701 1689
Operoting profit 62.3 428 40.1 185 156
Finance expense (8.4) (6.8) {7.0) (8.6} {3.9)
Profit before tax 539 36.0 33.1 99 11.7
Tax expense {12.0) (10.3) (13.8) {4.2} {3.5)
Profit for the year 419 25.7 193 5.7 82
Adjusted EBITDA 1214 107.4 975 710 54.5
Adjusted profit before tax B85.4 755 €66.2 38.2 41.4
Cash genergted from operations 107.9 931 80.3 S48 521
Toxation paid {14.9) {11.2} {13.0) (9.5) {7.3)
Interest paid 7.2) (6.4} (7.1) {7.0) (3.4)
Business combinations (net of cash acquired) (54.6) 8.4) (15.4) (7.2) {56.6)
L.oans and borrowings acquired through business combinations (0.8) 0.1) (1.0} - (1.5)
Purchase of property. plant and equipment and intangible assets {45.7) {24.5) {16.6) {12.4) (12.9}
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets 03 0.2 06 —_ —
Purchase of other investments - (21.4) — — —
Proceeds from sale of other investments 0.1 8.0 — —_ —
Dividends paid (5.0) (4.6) — {3.9) (3.5)
Proceeds from issue of Ordinary shores 1.6 23 1.2 Q.1 06
Proceeds from the sale of Treosury shares 05 — 03 08 —
Purchase of Treasury shares {1.2) — — — —
Repayment of obliggtions under right-of-use gssets {14.1) {12.7) {13.0} {14.2} —
Amortisation of debt issuonce costs {1.0) {0.4) (0.4} {1.0) (0.5)
Exceptional items {1.3) — — 0.7) —
{Increase(decrease in net debt {35.4) 149 119 39.9 {33.0)
Year-end net debt 70.7 353 50.2 62.1 102.0
Pence Pence Pence Pence Pence
Bosic earnings per share 58.8 36.2 27.3 8.1 116
Adjusted basic earnings per share 96.0 858 75.1 420 46.7
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Contact details and advisors

Registered office
CVS House

Owen Road

Diss

Norfolk

1P22 4ER

Nominated advisor and broker

Peel Hunt LLP

7th Floor

100 Liverpool Street
London

EC2M 2AT

Joint broker
Berenberg

60 Threadneedie Street
London

EC2R 8HP

Financial Public Relations
Comarco

3rd Floor

Cannongote House

62-64 Cannon Street
London

ECaN 6AE

Company Secretary
S Morrison

Bankers
NatWest Bank plc
Gentleman's Walk
Norwich

NR2 INA

HSBC Bank plc
8 Canada Square
London

E14 SHQ

AIlB Group (UK) pic
St Helen's

1 Undershaft
London

EC3A 8AB

Barclays Bank plc
1 Churchill Place
London

El4 SHP

Virgin Money

15th Floor

The Leadenhall Building
122 Leadenhall Street
London

EC3V 4AB

JPMorgan Chase Bank
25 Bonk Street

Canary Wharf

London

E14 5)P

Lloyds Bank pic
25 Gresham Street
London

EC2V 7HN

Danske Bank UK

75 King William Street
London

EC4N 7DT

Rabobank
Willemskade 1
8011 AC Zwolle
Netherlands
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independent auditor
Deloitte LLP

1 Station Square
Cambridge

CB1 2GA

Legal advisors
Leathes Prior

74 The Clase
Norwich

NR1 4DR

DLA Piper UK LLP
Victoria Square House
Victoria Square
8irmingham

B2 4DL

Eversheds Sutherland
115 Colmore Row
Birminghom

83 3AL
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